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Commemorating

150th Birth Anniversary of
Lala Lajpat Rai

A sinhwart of Tw reedom vinuggie, Lala Lejet Ral mnks among indx’s meesd
outsinnding eaders. He waa popuiarty inovm as Punjab et of The
Lion of Punjab'. Bom on 28th Jonuory 1865 af 2 amal| viiega of Dhwdie in
disrict Forame, Punjsh, be we & contemporary of peet sishwrks
inciding Mshatma Sandi. Paying trisute io him, Gandhil wmds in Young
Il urschasr thves capiion "Long Lies Lals)" : Teen Bos Lata)| cannot da 5o long
i thin sun shines In B indien sioy’. As 4 tribule to fhe recogniion of hia
saafims, Ihs Commmenl of inda ommemorsies his 1506 birh
armiversany irom 25th Janusny 204 5 o 28th Jenusny 2016,

Laiej pified Inclia not only the freedom Bt aleo tha firel Swadeshi Bank
ket iat Punjah Mathwed Bonlc PNB sovirged 7 ha late ninslsactth
ey, inharfing m tneiilons on anclent trade & banking. influsnoad by
tiva impact of modarm Bvitish banks, & section of als In Punjak thougit of
extabliahing 4 Bwadash| Bank profbesicnally nn with indion Capltol and
Maragemnk. Ral Mol R of Arye Sarne] sl had long chelishaed the e
that indians shoukd heve B Netlonal Bank of thelr own. Lalal who sas
deaply concarmind wilh the lect e indisn captial wes baing usd fo un
Engliah Bonks and profts wart snfinaly fo tha Brilish, supporiad thia
philescphy thal resuliad inko e smesgence of Punjsh MNeliona| Bank io
hurtherthe courdny's imlemel The Bank was setabished on 12t Apid, 1696
by patriols Boa Lads Lajoad Red, Mr. EC Josasmin, Babu Kall Prasono Roy,
Lals Horbishon Ll Serder Dvel Singh Maofiihla, Laks Lal Chand, Lale
Dihoian Dex anglLats Prabhw Dyal. The Lional Punjab, Lals Lajpst Rl asen
ety associsied with the mensgeme Tt of the Benk in s Fmatie yeas

On oomplslion of 208 yeer of wxisiens of the Bank, PHE paid omags in
Laiad &y teking the initielive k-2evelop six villages which include tha birh
place-of Lala Lojpat Fal Le, Diwdiice ae THCITAL VILLASES". The Banics
actviiins In thase Diginl Viages: el ol b (Imisd o provids cashiss
hemking through dighed platiorms, but alsn focus on digielzing svery
aphane of thelr Bvea, Apert e this, $he Bank aleo calabrarted 150th brh
ennivensory of Lako |aleet Rl with groct anthdskesem on 28t . anuen1B.

Punjsh Mafirel Bank sshise Purjsh Kesar Laks Laipat Rul for his
ousianding contrbulion to the Bank. The neon wil foreesr remein
indebied fc hin for hie coursgs, velor end dedkation io country In genenl
and to the Bank, Inperticular.
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From the Managing Director
& CEO's Desk

DearShareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to present the performance of your Bank for the Financial Year
2014-15(FY"15).

The last Financial Year 2015 was an important year for the Indian economy in general and
banking sector in particular. The sconomy witnessed easing of inflation, mederation of Fiscal
Deficit & Current Account Deficit and relatively stable exchange rate of rupee. Slew of proactive
measures were initiated to rein in the high inflationary frend, control Current Account Deficit,
contain currency volatility and to promote economic growth. The growth in Gross Domestic
Product {GDP} at constant Market Prices as estimated by the Government which stood at 6.8%
in FY"14, projected to reach 7.4% in FY'15. Both external and infernal factors viz. decline in
global crude oil & commodity prices, good inflow of funds through Foreign Institutional
Investment (FII) coupled with the reform initiatives of the Government, supported the ravival of
economic growth.

For the banking sector, the last Financial Year was challenging. The tepid growth in credit,
increased siressed assets, pressure on profitability, squeezed margins and increased
competition due to new entrants tested the resilienca of the Public Sector Banks. The Non Food
Credit of the banking system grew by 9.7% on year-on-year basis as on 20.03.2015, the Last
Reporting Friday of FY"15.

Under these circumstances, Punjab National Bank (PNB) adopted a balanced approach
towards growth and profitability. For PNB, Profitable Growth from the Grassroots continued to
be the corporate strategy of the Bank with focus on retall business. During FY*15, the Bank with
extensive network of more than 6500 branches and 8348 ATMs remained competitive in terms
of Domestic Business, Domestic Deposits, Domestic Advances, CASA Deposits and Operating
Profit. The Global Business of the Bank touched ¥ 8,81,913 crore and Qverseas Business
Inereased to T 1,00,785 crore as at the end of March™ 5. While the Global Deposits reached T5.01
lakh erore, Total Advances of the Bank reached< 3.81 lakh crore as at the snd of March'15.

| would liks to share with you some of our key performancs highlights of FY15:

e The Bank crossed various miestones i.e., ¥ 6.0 lakh crore Giobal Assets, ¥ 5.0 lakh crore
Global Deposits, ¥ 1.50 lakh crore Saving Deposils and ¥ 1.0 lakh crore Overseas
Business.

@& On the Deposits side, we confinued to strengthen the funding prefile of your Bank by
mobilizing ¥ 4.28 lakh ¢rore Core Deposits, which compriges T 2.44 lakh crore Core Term
Deposits and T 1.84 lakh crore CASA Deposits.

¢ On the Credit side, the approach was to target low risk and profitable business by focusing
on the conventional sectors of the economy i.e., Retail, Agriculture and MSME. We
achieved the objective of accelerating the momentum in retail lending which recorded a YoY
growth of 24,6% to reach T 48415 crore as at 31" March™5. The Bank posted robust growth
of 21.4% in MSME creditwhich stood atT 1093 crore as at 31" March'15.

e In terms of bottom-line parameters, Operating Profit of the Bank rose to ¥ 11855 crore
during the Financial Year ended March™5. The Bank's Total Income elevated to T 52206
crore. However, due to higher provisioning of T 8833 crore, the Net Profit stood at T 3062
crore during FY'15.

®  Interms of key ratios, the Bank's Net Interest Margin at3.15% remained one of the highest
amongst nationalized banks. We continued to focus on efficiency and productivity and
further reduced the Cost of Deposils to 6.09% during FY5 from 6.33% during
corresponding period last year. Yield on Investment increased from 7.85% during FY'14 to
7.99% during FY"15.

e The Bank's Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood comfortable at 12.21%
which included 9.30% Tier | ratio as at 31*March'15.

During Financial Year 2014-15, the Bank focused its attention on reducing NPAs, strengthening

technological capabilities and sustaining higher growth in financial parameters. The challenge

of stressed assets in the Indian banking system intensified during the year under review. In
response fo this, we calibrated the growth in corporate lending, menitored SMA Il accounts on
regular basis and integrated technology to take proactive appreach towands NFAmanagement.

For close monitoring of NPAsfirregular accounts to increase recoveries in these accounts,
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recovery verticals were strengthened during FY'15. Further, various monitoring tools have been
developed viz. SARFAESI tool Portal, Debt Recovery Tribunal Cases Monitoring System
Varsion 1.1 and Dashboard at the branches. Apart from thess, Special Recovery Campaign was
launched on Pan India basis to reduce the level of NPAs in the Banlk.

PNB ensures that its 'IT strategy’ remains in line with the 'Business strategy’. Your Bank
continued to launch @ number of new infliatives in recent years. One such initiative was Mobile
Banking Campaign from 01 - 31 Dec'14 wharein more than & lakh new users were added taking
the total to 8,680,997 users as at 31° March'15. The 'PNB Rewardz Moblle Application' was
launched to facilitate the customers to redeem the points eamed under PNB Dabit Cand Loyalty
programme. We also revamped the Infemet Banking interface and upgraded Mobile Banking
version. Further, the Bank enabled Internet Banking and Moblle Banking for NR| customers and
alsoinitiated steps to put in place 24*7 NRI help desk. During the year, we also launched various
new cards i.e., PNB RuPay Platinum Cards, RuPay Samagra Cards for
MP Cltizen, PNB Bhamashah Cards for Rajasthan state, ele. These endeavors polnt to the fact
that PNB is the ‘Digital-only' bank that provides end-to-end banking services through various
digilal platforms.

PNB remains commitied towards nation building and its contribufion to society. Financial
Inclusion has been prority area for the Bank as reflected in its mission "Banking for the
Unbanked™ and around 63.6% of branches ware located in Rural & Semi Urban ameas as on
31.03.2015. Consistent with this philosophy, your Bank opened 90.17 lakh accounts and issusd
84.74 lakh RuPay Cards under Pradhen Maniri Jan Dhan Yojana ason 31* March'15. The Bank
has also developed a concapt of Digital Village whenein the idantified village will be Wi-fl enabled
along with Off Site E-lobby, Infernet Banking Kiosk and TV display unit. Further, the Bank will
impart skill development trainings towards their social and financial empowsarment.

Awards & Accoladas

Owing foits parformance during FY"15, the Bank eamed many laurels and accolades in different
areas. During FY'15, PNB was the only Bank amongst Public Seclor Banks fo raceive ‘IBA
Banking Technology Award' under 'Bast Risk Management Initiatives'. The Bank was awarded
with "Corporate Vigilance Excellence Award 2015' by Institute of Public Enterprises, thereby
adding another important feather in the cap of the Bank's achievement. Other major awands
received during the year under review were ‘Bank with leading Financial Inclusion Initiatives
Award' by ABP News; 'Social Banking Excellence Award' by ASSOCHAM, 'Best Public Sector
Bank under Priority Sector Lending' by Dun & Bradstreat and 'Golden Peacock Business
Excellence Award' and 'Golden Peacock Innovative Products/Services Award' by Instifute of
Directors. On HR front, the Banking Frontiers Magazine conferred your Bank with 'Inspiring
Workplace Award'.

PNB was recognized as the 'Most Valuable Indlan Brand' amongst naticnallzed banks by
Millward Brown (leading global research agency) and WPP (World's largest communication
sarvices group). As per the Economic Times-Top 500 Indian Companies for 2014, PNB was
ranked Number One amongst nationallzed banks.

Way forwerd

With optimism in terms of outiook about India’s economic scenario, the banking sector wil
recoup from s present stete of tepld credlt growth and rising stressed assets. Varlous
rengwned agencies i.e. Intamational Munstary Fund (IMF), World Bank, etc., have identified
India as a "bright spot’ since India is projected to overtake China as the fastest growing
economy n near future. The Inltlatives Ilke “House for All by 2022°, “Make In Indla”, “Pradhan
Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana®, Promoting Infrastructural and Industrial growth, efc. may creata many
businass opportunities for banke going ahead.

In the above backdrop, the Financial Year2015-16 will be The Year of Performance’ for PNB
wherein the Bank will adopt three-pronged sirategy, i.e., Mobllizing CASA Deposits on liability
side, achieving healthy growth in advances on asset side and reducing NPA level by upgrading
the existing NPAs and containing the fresh slippages. The Bank will also focus on digitalization
of operations of the Bank to serve Gen Next customers.

At tha very onset of FY"16, the Bank has identified “Misgion Next Gen" a3 a thame for this year
with the endeavor o become the most prefered bank among Gen-Next dients to take
advantage of India's favorable demographics. Further, after compstently delivering services via
Internat banking, Mobile banking, SMS Banking and Triplex Salf Services Machines, the Bank
will foray into Tab Banking for acquisition of new customers, especially tech-savvy people of the
society. Anotherimportant development in this ansa is opening upof 121 offsite e-obbies during
FY'18, announcement of which was made on the historic day of complation of 120 years of the
Bank's existence. Hence, with these initiatives, the Bank has set a course of tuming young
clients into proud customers of the Bank. Last but not the least, the Bankwill continue to provide
a premium Igvel of customer services while dealing with all the customer segments including
Gen-Next

Inthe end, | take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to all the stakeholders for their
persistent support In our journey towards progressive growth and for overall developmentof the
Bank. At PNB, wa continue to deliver mora value to all the stakeholders in a conscientious
manner by capitalizing on opportunities available in the economy. | look forward to your
continual support in keeping your Bank as frontrunnerin the banking industry.

Yours sincerely,

i
b st

I-rLL

{ {Gauri Shankar)
Managing Director & CEO
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tdsna Siglisia AW L.‘ Punjab national bank

were o1 geftay ! -.. the name you can BANK upon !

( UG TR T ST )
weht, 7 @St s e, = faeet-110 607
(3-9a : hosd@pnb.co.in)

TAEN ged fohan S & foF OoMe A9He o & SPRERET w1 1491 oifie o de% WGR, 30 W, 2015 @l WE: 10,00 &

Sl AIE S ATSARTH, 51 WIH Fos, §, sieled Ue, fafaa oy, fReeht - 110054 § mfad =1 smoh ooy fr=1 &
ﬁlﬁ\‘:ﬂaﬁ:—

. 31 WM, 2015 i S & @UieR qod T, 31 4, 2015 T faxiE od @ fow oy o g1 @l e Se o sty & fog
S 1 HEYUIel T TfafafEl W Ry ded w1 RO qen qer-ue Td wel W oar-gderhl et Rud W) el S, srHed
FHET TF YA |

2. fo=iia a9 2014-15 & fou aneen =ifod s |

3. 9 AAEE - % § Uk IEEesl SRR % I |

frefafad Hahed TG = S6 & TRURHT § T 5 TWHR F SR U8 Tk Fowsh &1 g1 foeh Gawr & sfsm fafem
afufEg 1949 (59 5o o ‘fafrem sfaftem’ w1 ™1 ®) & o ufed Sf H0AT (STHAl 1 3 U6 Fawon) sAtt=m
1970 (T8 T0& 915 39 Gehoy W AffEw el 791 €) &1 9 9(3) (i) & AR e AWl W gU &, s sSeh (qaer
wel faferer gEemE) @ 1970 (59 36 o= ‘A’ el T §) MR USE A9 e (IR TE Wes) fattEm 2000 (@
g% o5 ‘fafEma’ we T R) @ aRdE Reid o6 #T1.11.2007 1 sifuge gen SEtedt | didi, 46 9 47/29.39.
001/2007-08 T 23.05.2011 1 tfergerm G <eftefiet et €. 95/29.39.001/2010-11 (5 586 =g “‘ Rdw safergern”’
FE T ®) qU1 WRA WHR & gaue en-Fee & ogEr B o

Hehed:

o o

freferiad W foem e iR 3fad o& SH Wl GeieE % W Sieel A & fo o -

“Hemew aTia feram ST € o 31 A9, 2015 % @R o% 1 o T qo O SR 31 A5 2015 %1 e on & fag
S & oW 9 eI @, Wl gR wer oty % fow de & % u fafafiE W) e qed @t Ui @R qem-u 9 @l
T T TRl H RO TaggN SO STgAifed 9 aikd e’

“gaen arfafiem Herew wiita foram STt € fof Ui & 2/~ % 3ifhd god & 9fd sfadt SR W €.3.30 T G A9 Sl
@165% 541 fF W §% & 9 gR GEgfa 1 W T, Taggn wifd 9w fwmar w1

“THeh Stfafiem Hehew UE feran et & for Traifo diomn den Sush sl ST U fafamat e sTRetend siferger & @ feq
M & @ 9(3) & IER, S5 TR ¥ 9= Taeeed 4 9 I T Tk (R TasgR IRl i e % 9¥Ed &
o @ 9% % fws & ] R R 5 W T SR R 7w # g 9 39 auf w1 sty of @9 9 ) ) o ©@ W

v Hed & SARYTER

Hd TS AIFA Sk

—Sftarem—

T ;T2 feoett (TR vieRT )
fe s @ 12/05/2015 FHEUTeeR evTeR
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TSNa SIS 3 L.‘ pPunjab national bank

were o1 geftay ! .. the name you can BANK upon !

(A Government of India Undertaking)
Head Office: 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi-110 607
Email —hosd@pnb.co.in

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK will be held on Tuesday,
the 30th of June, 2015 at 10.00 a.m. at Punjab National Bank Auditorium, Central Staff College, 8, Underhill Road, Civil Lines, Delhi-
110054, to transact the following business:

1.

To discuss, approve and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31st March 2015, Profit and Loss Account of the Bank
for the year ended 31st March 2015, the Report of the Board of Directors on the working and activities of the Bank for the period
covered by the Accounts and the Auditor’s Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

. To declare Dividend for the financial year 2014-15

. Other business - Election of One Shareholder Director of the Bank

To elect ONE Director from amongst the shareholders of the Bank, other than the Central Government, in respect of whom valid
nominations are received in terms of Section 9 (3) (i) of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 (hereinafter referred to as “Act”), read with the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (hereinafter referred to as “Regulation Act”).
The Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970 (hereinafter referred to as “Scheme”) and the
Punjab National Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2000 (hereinafter referred to as “Regulations”) and Notification Nos.
DBOD.No0.BC.No0.46& 47/29.39.001/2007-08 dated 01-11-2007 and DBOD.N0.BC.N0.95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23-05-2011
of Reserve Bank of India (hereinafter referred to as “the RBI Notification”) and the extant Government of India (Gol) Guidelines.

RESOLUTION (S):

To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution(s):

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31st March 2015, Profit & Loss Account of the Bank for the year
ended 31st March 2015, the report of the Board of Directors on the working & activities of the Bank for the period covered by the
Accounts & the Auditors Report on the Balance Sheet & Accounts are hereby adopted, approved & passed.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Dividend @ Rs 3.30 per equity share of the Face value of ¥ 2/- each i.e. @165% as recommended by
the Board of the Bank is here by declared & passed.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT one Director elected from amongst shareholders other than the Central Government, pursuant to
Section 9(3) (i) of the Act read with relevant Scheme, Regulations made there under and RBI Notification, be and is hereby appointed
as the Director of the Bank to assume office from the day after the declaration of results and shall hold office until the completion
of a period of three years from the date of such assumption”.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For Punjab National Bank

%Wﬁ‘/%//“j”"
Place : New Delhi (Gauri Shankar)
Date: 12/05/2015 Executive Director
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Election of Shareholder Director

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS TO ELECT DIRECTOR

Shareholders other than GOI hold 40.14% of the share capital of
the Bank. As per Section 9(3) (i) of the Act, Bank is entitled to have
a maximum of three Directors representing the shareholders of the
Bank (other than the Central Government). At persent there is one
vacancy of Shareholder Director on the Board.

Accordingly, the vacancy shall be filled in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the shareholders of the Bank on 30/06/2015.

The shareholders (other than the Central Government) are entitled
to send their nominations, if eligible, as per the procedure detailed
in relevant Act, Regulation Act, Scheme, Regulations, Notification,
the relevant portions of which are indicated hereunder. The elected
director will assume office from the day after the declaration of
results and will hold office for a period of three years from the date

of assumption of office.

LEGAL PROVISIONS

The following table indicates the provisions contained in various
Acts/ Scheme / Regulations / Notification governing the matter.

ACTS/SCHEME/REGULATIONS/ PROVISIONS
NOTIFICATION
Banking Regulations Act, 1949 Section 20

Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970

Section 3 (2E), Section 9 (3) (i),
Section 9 (3A) (A) to (C), Section
9(3AA), Section 9(3AB), Section
9(3B) Section 13(2)

The Nationalized Banks (Manage-
ment and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970

Clause 9 (4), Clause 10, Clause 11,
Clause 11A, Clause 11B, Clause
12(8)

Punjab National Bank (Shares and
Meetings) Regulations 2000

Regulation 10, 61A to 70

Reserve Bank of India Noti-
fication No. DBOD.No.BC.
No0.46&47/29.39.001/2007-08
dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD.
No. BC.N0.95/29.39.001/2010-11
dated 23.05.2011

Pursuant to Section 9 (3AA) and
Section 9 (3AB) of the Bank-
ing Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 — Fit and Proper criteria for
elected Directors on the Boards of
the nationalized banks.

SEBI guidelines — circular no. CIR/
CFD/POLICYCELL/2/2014 dated
17.04.2014

Electronic voting

The Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules 2014

The  Companies  (Management
& Administration) Rules 2014 as
amended by The Companies (Man-
agement & Administration) Amend-
ment Rules 2015

Rule 20 - voting through electronic
means
Rule 20

Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance, Government of
India letter no. F. No. 16/83/2013 —
BOl dated 03.09.2013 and guidelines
for selection of part time Non-Official
Director vide letter no. 16/17/2010-
BO.I dated 13.10.2011 as on
01.06.2011 and subsequent amend-
ment thereto dated 01/04/2015 and
any other amendment as on date of
filing of nominations.

Guidelines for appointment of
part time Non-Official Directors in
Public Sector Banks.
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THE GIST OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED PROVISIONS IS
DESCRIBED HEREIN BELOW:

Banking Regulation Act, 1949

Section 20 places certain restrictions for granting any loan or
advance to or on behalf of any of its directors.

Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970

Section 3 (2E) restricts the voting right of a shareholder
other than the Central Government to Ten per cent of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders.

Section 9(3) (i) prescribes the maximum number of directors
to be elected by the shareholders.

Section 9 (3A) (A) to (C) prescribes qualifications and
special knowledge in certain fields for the directors to be
nominated under Section 9 (3) (i).

Section 9 (3AA) and (3AB) prescribes that no person shall
be eligible to be elected as director unless he/she is a person
having “Fit and Proper” status based upon track record,
integrity and such other criteria as per Reserve Bank of India
NotificationNos.DBOD.No.BC.No0.46 &47/29.39.001/2007-
08 dated 1st November, 2007 read with DBOD.No.BC.
N0.95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23rd May, 2011.

Section 9(3B) deals with the right of Reserve Bank of India
to remove a director so elected under Section 9(3) (i) of
the aforesaid Act, who does not fulfill the requirements of
Section 9 (3A) and Section 9(3AA) of the said Act.

Section 13 (2) deals with the obligation as to declaration
of Fidelity and Secrecy in the form set out in the Third
Schedule.

Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970

Clause 9(4) provides that an elected director shall hold
office for three years and shall be eligible for re-election.
Provided that no such Director shall hold office for a period
exceeding six years.

Clause 10 specifies certain disqualifications for directors.
Clause 11 deals with vacation of office by directors.

Clause 11 A deals with the situation where a director
elected under Sec. 9(3) (i) of the Act may be removed and
another person in his stead be elected to fill the vacancy.

Clause 11B deals with casual vacancy.

Clause 12(8) deals with disclosure of interest by directors,
in certain arrangements in which they are interested.

Punjab National Bank (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2000

Regulation 10 determines the voting rights in the case of
joint holding of shares.

Regulations 61A to 70 prescribes certain conditions
for nominating a person as a candidate for election as a
Director, the procedure for conducting an election and
deals with other incidental matters.
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SEBI Guidelines — circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICY-CELL/2/2014
dated 17.04.2014 mandates that e-voting should be facilitated
in General Meetings of shareholders in terms of The Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014.

The Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 as
amended by The Companies (Management and Administration)
Amendment Rules 2015.

Rule 20 enumerates the period of e-voting and the eligibility of
shareholder to attend & vote in the General Meetings.

PROVISIONS OFACTS/SCHEME/REGULATION/NOTIFICATION
IN WEBSITE

e For the convenience of the shareholders, the relevant
Regulation Act, the Act, the Regulations, the Scheme
as well as RBI Notifications are hosted on the Bank’s
website www.pnbindia.in — (Investor Info page), which are
downloadable.

QUALIFICATION FOR A CANDIDATE

e The candidate shall comply with the qualifications
prescribed in Section 9 (3A) of the Act and shall not
suffer the disqualifications specified in Clause 10 of

the Scheme and shall satisfy the conditions mentioned
in Regulation 65 of the Regulations, which are detailed
herein.

[ In terms of Section 9(3A) of the Act, a candidate being
a shareholder of the Bank and who desires to be elected
as a Director of the Bank under Section 9 (3)(i) of the Act
shall:

(A) have special knowledge or practical experience in respect
of one or more of the following matters namely :-

i. agriculture and rural economy,
ii. banking,

iii. co-operation,

iv. economics,

v. finance,

vi. law,

vii. small scale industry.

viii.any other matter the special knowledge of and
practical experience in, which would, in the opinion
of the Reserve Bank of India is useful to the Bank.

(B) represent the interest of depositors; or
(C) represent the interest of farmers, workers and artisans.

[Il. Interms of Section 9(3AA) of the Act and RBI Notifications
a candidate being a shareholder of the Bank and who files
nomination to be a Director of the Bank should possess
‘Fit & Proper status’.

lll. Further, the elected directors should execute the
Deed of Covenants and are required to furnish annual
declarations, as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India
in this regard.
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DISQUALIFICATIONS FROM BEING ELECTED AS A DIRECTOR
OF THE BANK

(A) In terms of Clause 10 of the Nationalized Banks
(Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970,
a person shall be disqualified for being appointed, as and
for being a Director:-

a. if he has at any time being adjudicated an insolvent or
has suspended payment or has compounded with his
creditors; or

b. if he has been found to be of unsound mind and stands so
declared by a competent court; or

c. if he has been convicted by criminal court of an offence
which involves moral turpitude; or

d. if he holds any office of profit under any nationalized
bank or State Bank of India constituted under sub-section
(1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act, 1955 or any
subsidiary bank as defined in Section 3 of the State Bank
of India (Subsidiary Banks) Act, 1959, except for holding
the post of a whole-time director, including the Managing
Director and directors nominated under clause (e) and (f)
of sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the Act from among the
employees of the Bank and.

(B) If he/she is not found to be ‘fit and proper’ person, by the
Nominations Committee of the Directors of the Bank In
terms of RBI Notifications No. DBOD.No.BC.No.46 &
47/ 29.39.001/ 2007-08 dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD.
No. BC.N0.95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23.05.2011 and
extant GOI guidelines.

JyTeRTieTeh TR- oMfirehTiver Favrenl (THaNEr) & =@ ®q  Gist of Guidelines for selection of part time Non-Official Director
fegnfer & 9w -

(NOD)

A Director already on the Board of a Bank/FI, under any
category, may not be considered for nomination as NOD on
any other Bank/Fl.

No person may be re-nominated as a NOD on the Board of
a Bank/FI on which he/she has served as Director in the past
under any category for two terms or six years, whichever is
longer.

An NOD would not be considered for nomination as a Director
on the Board of a Bank/Fl if such Director has already been a
NOD/shareholder-Director on the Board of any other Bank/FI
for six years, whether continuously or intermittently.

Government guidelines for selection of part time NODs shall
be applicable for election of Shareholder Directors also.

Full details are as per Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance, Government of India letter no. F. No.
16/83/2013 - BOI dated 03.09.2013 and guidelines for
selection of part time Non-Official Director vide letter no.
16/17/2010-BO.I dated 13.10.2011 as on 01.06.2011 and
subsequent amendment thereto dated 01/04/2015 and any
other amendment as on date of filing of nominations.
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LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS TO CONTESTANTS

A list of shareholders of the Bank as on 22/05/2015 (Cut-off
date) will be available for sale on and from 27/05/2015 on
pre-payment of ¥50,000/- (Rupees fifty thousand only) by
a demand draft/pay order of a Scheduled Bank in favour of
“Punjab National Bank” payable at New Delhi/Delhi along
with a request addressed to the Company Secretary, Punjab
National Bank, Share Department, Finance Division, 5,
Sansad Marg, New Delhi 110001, The intending candidates
may also inspect the Register of shareholders and take extracts
there from.

INSPECTION OF THE REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Register of shareholders will be open for inspection by the
shareholders, with the Company Secretary, Punjab National
Bank, Share Department, Finance Division, 5, Sansad Marg,
New Delhi 110001, on all working days commencing from
27/05/2015 till 15/06/2015 between 3.00 p.m. and 5.00 p.m.
on weekdays and Saturdays between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m.
for the purpose of enabling the candidates to take extracts of
any part from the Register of Shareholders or request the Bank
for computer prints of the relevant portions, on prepayment
of an amount to be calculated at the rate of ¥ 5/- for every
thousand words or part thereof.

PARTICIPATION IN ELECTION

In terms of Clause 64(i) and (ii) of PNB (Shares & Meetings)
Regulations, 2000, such of those shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Shareholders/Beneficial owners
as furnished by NSDL/CDSL/Share Transfer Agent (STA) as
on 22/05/2015 (Cut-off date) shall be entitled to nominate,
contest and vote in the election of Directors from amongst
Shareholders other than the Central Government.

NOMINATIONS:

Validity of Nominations

In terms of Regulation 65 of the Regulations and in terms of
Notifications of Reserve Bank of India — DBOD.No.BC.No.46 and
47/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 01.11.2007 and DBOD No. BC No.
95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23.05.2011 and other applicable
provisions of various Acts, nomination of a candidate for election
as a director will be valid provided:

A. He/she is a shareholder holding as on 22/05/2015 (Cut-
off date), a minimum of 100 (one hundred) shares in
Punjab National Bank and continue to hold a minimum
of 100 shares till 15/06/2015 and thereafter if he is
elected.

B. As on 15/06/2015 being the last date for receipt of
nomination, he/she is not disqualified to be a director under
the Regulation Act, the Act, the Scheme, the Regulations or
RBI Notifications and GOI guidelines.

C. The nomination is in writing signed by at least 100
shareholders entitled to elect Directors under the Act or by
their duly constituted attorney, provided that a nomination
by shareholder who is a Corporate Body may be made by a
resolution of the Directors of the said Corporate Body and
where it is so made, a copy of the resolution certified to
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be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it
was passed shall be dispatched to the Company Secretary,
Punjab National Bank, Share Department, Finance
Division, 5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi 110001 and such
copy shall be deemed to be a nomination on behalf of
such Company.

D. The nominations by the shareholders (Minimum 100) is
accompanied by a declaration by the candidate, as per the
specimen forms of nomination and declaration furnished
in this Notice, duly signed by the candidate before a Judge,
Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other
Gazetted Officer or Officer of Reserve Bank of India or any
nationalized Bank, that he accepts the nomination and is
willing to stand for election and that he is not disqualified
from being a director, either under the Regulation Act or
the Act or Scheme or the Regulations or RBI Notification or
GOl guidelines.

E. The Nomination Forms and the Declaration Form are as
prescribed by the Regulations and as per the Proforma
annexed to this notice. The entire notice inter alia
comprising these Proforma is also available on the Bank’s
Website: www.pnbindia.in. (Investor Info Page)

Submission of nomination forms

Shareholders desirous of contesting the election of Director
should submit following documents in the formats annexed to this
notice, in a SEALED ENVELOPE to the Company Secretary, Punjab
National Bank, Share Department, Finance Division, 5, Sansad
Marg, New Delhi 110001 together with the connected documents,
complete in all respects, on a working day at least 14 days before
the date of the meeting, i.e., on or before closing hours of the Bank
at 5.00 pm on 15th June, 2015.

a) Duly filled in Declaration Form;

b) Nominations from minimum of 100 shareholders entitled
to nominate in the elections;

c) Personal Information, Declaration and Undertaking
together with the connected documents, testimonials,
viz., Bio Data, Certificates of Educational qualification,
experience, etc.

SCRUTINY OF NOMINATIONS
DIRECTORS

a. Nominations shall be scrutinized by the Bank on
16/06/2015 i.e. the first working day following the last
date fixed for the receipt of the nominations and in case
any nomination is not found to be valid, the same shall be
rejected after recording the reasons there for.

AND ELECTION OF

b. Nominations shall also be subjected to scrutiny by the
Nomination Committee of the Board in terms of the RBI
Notifications.

c. If there is only one valid nomination for the one vacancy to
be filled by the election, the candidate so nominated shall be
deemed to be elected forthwith and his/her name and address
shall be published as so elected in terms of Clause 66(i) and
(iii) of PNB (Shares & Meetings) Regulations, 2000.

d. In the event of an election being held, if the valid
nominations are more than one, the names of the
candidates shall be published in the news papers. The
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candidates polling the majority of votes at the election will
be deemed to have been elected and his/her name will
be declared by the Chairman after receipt of scrutinizer’s
report and will also be published in newspapers. He/
she will assume office on the day after the declaration of
results.

e. If there is any dispute the same shall be settled as per
Regulation 67 of the Regulations.
Withdrawal of Candidature
If any candidate desires to withdraw his nomination, he would be

entitled to do so at any time prior to closing hours of the Bank i.e.
on or before 5.00 pm on 17/06/2015.

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of Bank is interested in the aforementioned
item of business.

The Election shall be subject to the decision of the High Court,
Delhi, on the writ petition no 2699/2015 (Mr. Adarsh Malpani
v/s PNB & others) and writ petition no 2700/2015 (Mr. Puspjeet
Yaduka v/s PNB & another), inter-alia, challenging the decision to
postpone the elections in the EGM on 19/03/2015.

NOTES:
1. APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, is entitled
to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself and
such a proxy need not be a shareholder of the Bank. The proxy
so appointed shall not have any right to speak at the meeting.
No person shall be appointed as a Proxy who is an officer or an
employee of the Bank. The grantor of an instrument of proxy shall
not be entitled to vote in person at the meeting. The proxy in
order to be effective, must be received by the Bank at the Share
Department, Finance Division, Head Office, 5, Sansad Marg, New
Delhi-110001 not less than four days before the date of the meeting
i.e. on or before the closing hours i.e. 5.00 p.m. on Thursday, the
25th June, 2015.

2.  APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at any meeting as duly
authorized representative of a body corporate, unless a copy of the
resolution appointing him/her as a duly authorized representative,
certified to be a true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which
it was passed, shall have been deposited at the Share Department,
Finance Division, 5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi 110001, not less
than four days before the date of the meeting i.e. on or before the
closing hours i.e. 5.00 p.m. on Thursday , the 25th June, 2015. No
person shall be appointed as an authorized representative, who is
an officer or an employee of the Bank.

3. CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Register of Shareholders and Share Transfer Books of the
Bank will remain closed from Wednesday, the 24th June 2015 to
Tuesday, the 30th June 2015 (both days inclusive).
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4. VOTING RIGHTS

In terms of provisions of Section 3(2E) of the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 (as
amended) no shareholder of the Bank other than Central
Government shall be entitled to exercise voting rights in respect
of the shares held by him in excess of 10% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders of the Bank. If any share stands in
the name of two or more persons, the person first named in the
register shall, as regards voting, be deemed to be the sole holder
thereof.

5. DIVIDEND MANDATE FOR E-CREDIT/BANK ACCOUNT
DETAILS, CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND OTHER
PARTICULARS
a) Holding of shares in Physical Form
Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested
to inform the Share Transfer Agent (STA) i.e. Beetal Financial
& Computer Services (P) Limited (Unit: PNB) ‘Beetal House’,
3rd Floor, 99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre,
New Delhi 110062, regarding the change of address, email
address, bank account details viz. name of Bank, Branch
Address, Bank Account Number, MICR/IFS Code as given on
the cheque and e-credit mandate etc. to update the records
for receipt of beneficial interest/communications, if any. The
format for e-credit mandate/Bank details form is available on
Bank’s website www.pnbindia.in.

b) Holding of shares in Electronic Form

Beneficial Owners holding shares in Electronic form are
requested to ensure that their address, Bank details viz. name
of Bank, Branch address, Bank Account Number, MICR/IFS
Code as given on the cheque and e-credit mandate etc. are
duly updated with their Depository Participant (DP) as and
when there is any change.

6. NON RECEIPT OF DIVIDEND

Shareholders are also hereby informed that if any dividend
amount remains unpaid/unclaimed for 7 years from its due
date, the said unpaid/unclaimed amount has to be transferred
to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by
Central Government. As such, the unpaid/unclaimed amount in
Dividend Account for FY 2007-08 is due for transfer to IEPF.
The shareholders who have not received/claimed the said
dividend(s) are, therefore, requested to claim the same not later
than 10.08.2015 by giving their latest address, Mobile/Telephone
No. Folio No./ DP-ID & Client ID and Bank details viz. Bank
name, branch address, Bank account no. and IFS code etc. for
claiming the amount. Please note that once the unpaid amount
is transferred to IEPF, no individual claim shall lie against the
Bank. Year-wise list of unpaid/unclaimed dividend from 2007-
08 onwards is uploaded on Bank’s website www.pnbindia.in
under ‘Investors’ Info’.
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8.

REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS

a. Please note that copies of the Annual Report will not be
distributed at the venue of the meeting. Shareholders/
Proxyholders/Authorized Representatives are, therefore,
requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the
meeting. The Annual Report along with formats is being
posted on the Bank’s Website at www.pnbindia.in

b. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2014-15 is being
sent to all the shareholders whose email IDs are registered
with the STA / Depository Participant(s) for communication
purposes unless any shareholder has requested for a hard
copy of the same. For shareholders who have not registered
their email address, physical copies of the Annual Report for
2014-15 is being sent in the permitted mode, separately.

c. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 14th Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Bank, inter alia, indicating the
process and manner of e-voting along with Annexures,
Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the
shareholders whose email IDs are registered with the STA/
Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes
unless any shareholder has requested for a hard copy of
the same. For shareholders who have not registered their
email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 14th
Annual General Meeting of the Bank inter alia indicating
the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

d. Shareholders may also note that the Notice of the 14th
AGM and the Annual Report for 2014-15 will also be
available on the Bank’s website www.pnbindia.in for
download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents
will also be available at the Bank’s Head Office at Share
Department, Finance Division, 5 Sansad Marg, New Delhi-
110001 for inspection during normal business hours on
working days. Even after registering for e-communication,
shareholders are entitled to receive such communication
in physical form, upon making a specific request, by post,
free of cost. The shareholders may also send their requests
to the Bank’s email-id: hosd@pnb.co.in

e. Shareholders may kindly note that no gift/gift coupon will
be distributed at the meeting.

f. Due to security reasons brief cases, eatables & other
belongings are not allowed inside the auditorium. Persons
attending the meeting are therefore advised to make their
own arrangements for safe keeping of their articles.

VOTING PROCESS

VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

I. In compliance with provisions of Clause 35 B of the
Listing Agreement read with provisions of Section 108
of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as
substituted by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 the Bank is
providing the shareholders facility to exercise their right to
vote on Resolutions proposed to the considered at the forth
coming AGM by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-voting platform provided by Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).
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. That the facility for voting, through Ballot paper shall also

be made available at the meeting & members attending the
meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting
through Ballot paper.

That the Members who have cast their vote by remote
e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

. CDSL shall provide 2 EVSN numbers for e-voting. One

for election (agenda item number 3) and one for agenda
items number 1& 2. A person who is not a share holder
on 22/05/2015 will not get any voting rights on election
but may get to vote on agenda item number 1&2.

The process & manner for e-voting are as under:

(i) The voting period begins on 27/06/2015 (9:00 am)
and ends on 29/06/2015 (5:00 pm). During this
period shareholders’ of the Bank, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date of 22/05/.2015, may cast
their vote electronically for agenda item number
3 relating to election of share holder Director &
Share holders holding shares as on 23/06/2015
may cast their vote electronically on agenda item
numbers 1&2 relating to approval of Audited
Accounts & declaration of Dividend. The e-voting
module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

ii The shareholders should log on to the e-voting
website www.evotingindia.com

iii Click on “Shareholders” tab.

iv. Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits
Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should
enter Folio Number registered with the Bank.
v Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and
Click on Login.

vi If you are holding shares in demat form and had
logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on
an earlier voting of any company, then your existing
password is to be used.

vii If you are a first time user follow the steps given

below:
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For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as
physical shareholders)

e Members who have not updated their PAN with the Bank/
Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence
number in the PAN field.

e In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter
the applicable number of 0’s before the number after the
first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg.
If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1
then enter RAO0O000001 in the PAN field.

DOB

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in
the Bank records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/

yyyy format.

Divi-
dend
Bank
Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat

account or in the Bank records for the said demat account or folio.

o Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order

to login. If the details are not recorded with the depository

or Bank please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

viii 31 = & 3fed YFR 9@ < FE B 9, SUBMIT 39

R ot i

(ix) 9fd €9 § IR 9RO FE a6 G5 @Y H

HARM ThiT W ST qefe Sie 9 § I &R0
el T e e fasmed | sma o 379 U
IS Hieg | AU @H UHeE ifad ®9 9 IS
HEA AT g1 FU A R 39 uEerE 1 S9En
ol 31 Hl & Hehoul W A B S TERURHT
g fan s 7, 59 w9 a|ifen & fow o @ awd
FYA HEMATA WEHH & TeAH 9 $-aifen JH| I8
Tedqds germa faan san € & fRet ot o= wafm =
Y YA qEEE HE A B S SN qrEae i Mo
T WA W G S|

(x) ¥ifder &9 ¥ IREN0 FH 96 96 & fag, =R &6

IYIN 39 Aifew ¥ fRu U Eehew W s-aifen & fau
o <1 weRar 21

(xi) TS H9Fe dF & fau EVSN W faarer o S W

A oe HH & foag 5 2

(xii) difem o= W, SR 'RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION’

f@m R @ % faws @ifr & faw ‘YESNO'
foerea fe@mm oo S=SER YES 12/l NO fased
I faFed Yes 1 @eqd @ foh o7 Tehou & HwelA
H ¢ oiX fosheu NO &1 arcqd & fF om0 Hehed &
foeg 1 IHNE R & FAE e Ghed & Hag
#, @/ EVSN gRa &1 T Rl 22.05.2015 (e
i fafer) 1 YeRUIRa T are YERENS, IRRHRE
e & 999 & fow o9 die w6 2 U # AR
FH & fau, oo oy € fF Fefud EVSN W faasw
F @ AT WY AT U W ugET| AT IS W
3R] I STHIGAR & W fE@rEh 3 erud stuferd

viii After entering these details appropriately, click on
“SUBMIT” tab.

ix Members holding shares in physical form will
then reach directly the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form
will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders
for voting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It
is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

x For Members holding shares in physical form, the
details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

xi. Click on the relevant EVSN for Punjab National Bank
on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION
DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
"YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO
as desired. The option YES implies that you assent
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution. In respect of the resolution
for election of shareholder director, separate EVSN

Xi

is created. Shareholders holding Shares as on
22/05/2015 (cutoff date) are eligible to cast their
vote for election of Shareholder Director. For casting
vote, you are requested click on the relevant EVSN
and you will then be directed to voting page. On
the voting page you will see the names of eligible
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candidates. You are required to mark your preference
before the name of one candidate in whose favour
you want to cast your vote. This EVSN will be visible
to only those Shareholders who hold shares as on
22/05/2015.

xiii Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish
to view the entire Resolution details.

xiv After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote
on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
“OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
and accordingly modify your vote.

xv Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution,
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

xvi You can also take print out of the voting done by you
by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.

xvii If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed
password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password &
enter the details as prompted by the system.

xviii Note  for  Non-Individual  Shareholders &

Custodians:

e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as
Corporates.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp
and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com.

o After receiving the login details a compliance user should
be created using the admin log-in & password. The
compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for
which they wish to vote on.

o The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would
be able to cast their vote.

e A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of
Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the
system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

VI. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting,
you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com
under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@
cdslindia.com. The contact details of official for e-voting
are as follows:

Name — Mr. Wenceslaus Furtado

Designation — Deputy Manager

Address — Central Depository Services (India) Ltd.

Email-ID — helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

Phone no. - 18002005533
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VII. If you are already registered with CDSL for e-voting earlier
then you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN
for casting your vote.

VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id
in the user profile details of the folio which may be used
for sending future communication(s).

IX. The Voting Rights of the members shall be in proportion to
their share of the paid up Equity share capital of the Bank
as on cut off date of 23/06/2015 for agenda item number
1 & 2 and 22/05/2015 for agenda item number 3.

X. Anypersonwhoacquiresthe sharesofthe Bankandbecome
member of the Bank, after dispatch of the notice of AGM
and holding shares as on cut-off date i.e. 23.06.2015, may
obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at
evoting@cdsl.co.in or RTA. However, if you are already
registered with CDSL for remote e-voting then you can use
your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If
you forget your password, you can reset your password by
using “ Forget user Details/ password” option available on
www.evotingindia.com or contact CDSL at the following
toll free no.: 18002005533.

XI. A person whose name is recorded in the register
of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only
shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting
as well as voting in the Annual General Meeting through
ballot paper.

XIl.Ms.  Ashu Gupta, Practising Company Secretary
(Membership No. F4123, CP No. 6646) of M/s Ashu Gupta
& Co. (email ID - agc.scrutinizer@gmail.com) has been
appointed as the Scrutinizer by the Bank to scrutinize the
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

XIll. The Chairman shall, at the Annual General Meeting,
at the end of discussion on the Resolutions on which
voting is to be held, allow voting , with the assistance of
scrutinizer, by use of “ballot paper” or “polling paper” for
all those members who are present at the annual general
meeting but have not cast their votes by availing the
remote e-voting facility.

XIV.The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at
the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote
e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses, not
in the employment of the Bank and shall make not later
than three days of conclusion of the AGM a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized
by him in writing who shall countersign the same and
declare the result of voting forthwith.

XV.The Results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be
placed on the Bank’s website www.pnbindia.in and on
the website of CDSL within three days from the AGM of
the Bank and communicated to the Stock Exchanges.
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Poll Process on 30.06.2015 (AGM date) for those who
have not cast their remote e-vote.

e The voting for the proposed resolutions will be by Poll
through Secret Ballot.

e The polling will commence immediately after an
announcement in this regard is made by the Chairman and
continue up to 1.00 p.m.

o Ballot Papers shall be issued at the Counters set up for this
purpose to the shareholders / proxy holders / authorized
representatives on surrender of Ballot Paper Pass issued at
the time of registration.

o Shareholders may exercise their right by affixing a rubber
stamp (X) against the name of one candidate of their choice
in the Ballot Paper for agenda item no. 3 and against ‘Yes’
or ‘No’, as desired by them, for agenda items no. 1 & 2 and
deposit them in the Ballot Box (es).

ATTENDANCE SLIP - CUM - ENTRY PASS- CUM-BALLOT
PAPER PASS

Forthe convenience of the shareholders, Attendance Slip-cum-
Entry Pass-cum-Ballot Paper Pass is annexed to this Notice.
Shareholders/Proxy holders/Authorized Representatives are
requested to fill in and affix their signatures at the space
provided therein and surrender the same at the venue of the
meeting. Proxy/ Authorized Representative of shareholders
should state on the Attendance Slip-cum-Entry Pass as
“Proxy” or “Authorized Representative” as the case may be.
The portion of Ballot Paper Pass shall be surrendered to obtain
Ballot Paper at the time of Poll.

Subject to the above, as per Regulation 68, each shareholder
who has been registered as a shareholder on the Cut-off Date
shall have one vote for each share held by him/her.

By order of the Board of Directors
for PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK

G st

(Gauri Shankar)
Executive Director

Place: NEW DELHI
Date: 12/05/2015
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KEY FINANCIAL POSITION

Total Business as on 315t March
(% lakh crore)

8.82
8.01
7.00 I I

2013 2014 2015

Total Deposits as on 315t March
(% lakh crore)

5.01
451

3.92

2013 2014 2015

Net Advances as on 31t March
(% lakh crore)

3.49 =i

3.09

CASA Deposits as on 31t March
(X crore)
183780

172872

153344

2013 2014 2015

2013 2014 2015




Bulk Deposits as on 315t March

Retail Loans as on 315t March

(¥ crore) (T crore)
48921 48415
38864
31721
22512
12123
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
Total Income (% crore) Operating Profit (X crore)
52206 11955
11384
47800
46109 I 10907
FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'13 FY'14 FY'15
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BUSINESS PRODUCTIVITY

Business per Employee (% crore)
as on 31 March

13.19

12.38

1165 I
2013 2014 2015

Business per Branch (% crore)
as on 31*March

127.42
126.10
116.84 I I
2013 2014 2015

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%) ( As on 315t March ’15)

Non-
Institutions, 5.48

Insurance, 12.84

MF & UTI, 5.41

Fis/Banks, 0.16

RATIOS
Cost of Deposits (%) Yield on Investment (%)
6.82 7.99%
6.33 7.89%
6.09 J 7.85%
FY'13 FY'14 FY'15 FY'13 FY'14 FY'15
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T crore
W E | UreT THATS10 | THATS 11 12 "13 14 "5
S. No PARAMETERS FY’10 FY'11 FY’'12 FY’'13 FY'14 FY’'15
1 PR S
Share Capital 315 317 339 353 362 371
2 T faferat
Reserves 17408 21192 27476 32323 35533 38709
3 SR
Deposits 249330| 312899 379588 391560 451397 501397
4 srfim
Advances 186601 242107 293775 308796 349269 380534
5 HA FHER
Total Business 435931 555005 673363 700356 800666 881913
6 HA TRERtE
Total Assets 296633 | 378325 458194 478948 550420 | 603334
7 Tarer
Investment 77724 95162 122703 129896 143786 151282
8 e ITETer (HEen)
Total Branches*( Number) 5002 5189 5670 5874 6201 6560
9 Ty SEdeh (9E)
ATM Network ( Number) 3544 5050 6009 6313 6940 8348
10 U= @1
Operating Profit 7326 9056 10614 10907 11384 11955
11 A AT
Total Provisions 3421 4622 5730 6160 8042 8893
12 G T
Net Profit 3905 4433 4884 4748 3343 3062
13 FRER/wRE (= 3)
Business/Employee (Rs lakh) 808 1018 1132 1165 1283 1319
14 /e (e 3)
Profit/Employee (Rs lakh) 7.31 8.35 8.42 8.06 5.49 4.85
15 FHur-sr rurd (%)
Credit-Deposit Ratio (%) 74.84 77.38 77.39 78.86 77.38 75.90
16 SR St @t (%)
Cost of Deposit (%) 5.38 5.24 6.59 6.82 6.33 6.09
17 1 W e
Yield on Advances (%) 10.36 10.58 11.67 11.06 10.36 9.88
18 Tt o wrfta (%)
Yield on Investment (%) 6.73 7.05 7.57 7.89 7.85 7.99
19 g == "1 (%)
Net Interest Margin (%) 3.57 3.96 3.84 3.52 3.44 3.15
20 ufemfaat w afawer (%)
Return on Assets (%) 1.44 1.34 1.19 1.00 0.64 0.53
21 @AW a1 et (%)
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 39.39 41.27 39.75 42.81 45.06 46.74
22 e T (%)
Gross NPAs (%) 1.71 1.79 2.93 4.27 5.25 6.55
23 & T (%)
Net NPAs (%) 0.53 0.85 1.52 2.35 2.85 4.06
24 Ysft atwar srura (s@e 1) (%)
Capital Adequacy Ratio (Basel Il1) (%) - - - - 11.52 12.21
25 T
Dividend (%) 220 220 220 270 100 165

* Teh THHSYM hiSeX Wfed We] vrEng

* Domestic Branches including one Extension Counter
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ot ad 2015 U9 Fera S% ® fAw FHET A @
T I % | 9 eue den A SeolEH SuwteE St
T 3R T HRISH WHITT HT TP e e uRegwa &
3TEY IFIT TN 3Fd 987 W FH AN SHRIRET M qe
e w8l T TR K0T SUe I % G ok F A
T ‘Jad "R 9 g9 | ghg’ offl 39 WHifa & &R,
I foxita o 2015 & IR e HRER, e STHRIR,
el AR, Fr SENE SR uReEen o & 9 |
s wfagfeat @ sm s @

ot ad 2015 & SRM, d% A I8.80 @@ HUS Gf¥eh
FRER, 6.00 G HUS df¥aeh @, 35.00 o/ Hlg
Aok SRR, 71.80 ©E S HIEN SENRET, T1.00 @
FUE foaeell wRER S w2 HifqaH w1 97 fmam A= 2015
% 3fd ° S 1 Afvesh HRER aftes YR W 10.1% i
gig <9 TU 38.82 @ HUS & hild UgHl &b o Ay
HRER J 21,00,000 IS & Ufis &R & R fwman v
TT 37.2% HI g TU--T9 FfG IS HW gL 100,785
FAS W TgAN 31 T 2015 i Th TE el S HT Afgah
SHNEET 11.1% dgHR 35.01 @ o305 & T8, faa iy
9.0% %I IfF I9 FW g 33.81 AW HIg W T U
ANYEd AAEEl % "= °, d 1 uiaed @Y 31 "
2014 & 11384 HUS T F@HL 31 WH 2015 Hi T11,955
Fg T IET TN A, AfE EEE & FRO fad @y
33062 HUS W WE@qUl Sl & w=d H, W 2015 H
T fasita o9 & fau 3% 9 stfus =1 faa = wie
THFhd Sl % e Tated § W T @I WY &, 12.21% T
deh o1 HARER Fiia & ¥ W @I

Heg o, fa<ia a9 2014-15 TH T 96 @1 e g6 o
TMeh! i SR 31feh Ygg T W &M ®igd fohal oo vq@
ot wrRel, fovna Seash, 983 Wew SMUR a0 g3e s
fearfg o PR QR & @, S 4 ggg g &1 w3k
TS T 1 HE AR L T 2

70 Y34 §, oy R0 2014-2015 1 & w1 At
o, eramdfia aifte foxdia faawor & @, oo wme
el yEd W @ 2
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2014-15

The Financial year 2015 was a challenging year for Punjab
Bank. Amid
significant achievements and aligned its business strategy to the

National the challenges, your Bank made
macroeconomic scenario of the country. The core strategy of the
Bank was ‘Profitable Growth from the grass-roots’ by garnering
low cost deposits on the liability side and extending qualitative
credit on the assets side. Due to this strategy, the Bank stands tall
amongst its competitors in terms of Domestic Business, Domestic
Deposits, Domestic Advances, CASA Deposits and Operating

Profit during FY’15.

During FY’15, the Bank has crossed several milestones i.e.,
% 8.80 lakh crore Global Business, ¥ 6.00 lakh crore Global
Assets, ¥ 5 lakh crore Global Deposits, ¥ 1.80 lakh crore CASA
Deposits and % 1 lakh crore Overseas Business. The Bank'’s
Global Business reached close to ¥ 8.82 lakh crore as at end
of March’15 reflecting a growth of 10.1% on yearly basis.
The Bank’s International business crossed the landmark of
1,00,000 crore and reached % 1,00,785 crore while recording
a robust YoY growth of 37.2%. While the Global Deposits of
the Bank at ¥ 5.01 lakh crore grew by 11.1%, Net Advances
recorded growth of 9.0% to reach ¥ 3.81 lakh crore as on 31¢
March 2015.

In terms of Bottom-line parameters, the Bank’s Operating Profit
increased from ¥ 11384 crore as at 31 March’14 to% 11955 crore
as at 31 March’15. However due to higher provisions, the Net
Profit stood at ¥ 3062 crore. In terms of key ratios, Net Interest
Margin at over 3% for the Financial Year ended March’15 remained
one of the highest amongst nationalized banks. Further, the CRAR
of the Bank at 12.21% stood above the stipulated level.

To summarize, Financial Year 2014-15 was a year in which we
focused on further strengthening our businesses, bottom line
parameters, network, technological capabilities and operating
parameters. With continued improvements in its key financial
parameters, vast network, large customer base and a healthy
capital position, the Bank has created a platform for achieving and
sustaining robust growth in the future.

In this backdrop, your Directors take pleasure in placing the Bank’s
Annual Report for 2014-15 along with its audited annual financial
statements.
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OUR PERFORMANCE

T, faxita fafomand
A. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
T1 1 o
A.1. BALANCE SHEET
R #Ug T /% crore)
faawor 31 W= 2014 31 W 2015 qtE (%)
Particulars 31t Mar’14 31 Mar’15 Growth (%)
HA HRER
Total Business 800666 881913 10.1
SR
Deposits 451397 501379 11.1
A
Advances 349269 380534 9.0
T, 2, 9
A.2. PROFIT
R g T /T crore)
HHES Mar'14 Mar’15 (%)
Parameters
qfEre | 11384 11955 5.0
Operating Profit
PICEIE 8042 8893 10.6
Provisions
9 oy 3343 3062 -8.4
Net Profit
T, 3. 999 3Tqurd
A.3. KEY RATIOS
it / (%)
Teawor
Particulars 2013-14 2014-15
faferi &t @rTa
Cost of Funds 5.20 5.14
ffee W wfasa
Yield on Funds 8.31 8.00
it W ufawa
Return on Equity 9.69 8.12
fraa = wifsH
Net Interest Margin 3.44 3.15
sl W gfawa
Return on Assets 0.64 0.53
NINGESIE RS EIG]
Cost to Income Ratio 45.06 46.74
3 wERta FHE & gaa § 9=y ==
Operating Expenses to Average Working Funds 1.79 1.81
3a wERte FfEl & gaa o 9=y o
Operating Profit to Average Working Funds 2.19 2.06
gfd IR A (%) H
Earnings per share (Rs)* 18.78 16.91
gfd TR T g (%) H
Book value per share (Rs)* 190.50 203.24
YL oSl ST
Provision Coverage Ratio 59.07 58.21
HI3TRUSTR- <& Il
CRAR - Basel llI 11.52 12.21

* faursH & 918 WA 1 SfRd god T2 7
* Face Value of share after splitting is ¥ 2/-



o, ufemes favvam

o Uy foawor § <ern oM i fawn § o A fefsea stem
FHIUITS AT T QSR 1 IRY feRen Wiy €, S
T -UideT (sTRIMe UM YA SR &% WEifTR
T d TR & WY 99d § e IRy fEan
giqes FEeRk H UIEN W oA YUY YEd & H
oo 9 w4 % HH g J Sfted qHOeS Fed S
% T derl 1 THuHTE el e # uihar IE &
AR Sfrem gHToTas Aset % faeE § ol s

o HfT W fodta feafa &1 FARET SR TAdT w HH
Uhem & faw THg W FHAE FE 2q JoE 2014 T oF
" ¢ fawen dguifea fars R gomet (g8 =)
i @r feman T

o 4% ®W Sifew 3 e e erefa Ha g
(THAEARET) den IR=Te Sifed 3q WHehighd EahT0l
(ATE) H FAEH B fIu GHAR GEeE § onl §% A
If=reH Sifed ?q S9d W9F SR (TTHT) dem SN
Sifgm 7 STiafe died e (SETIY) & T &
e smer o oft weqa foRan 2

o IF 4 BB YW YEU I T WX ® ¥ ¥ G FH
I TTURON T ARY fomar 578 Tveg e wifa disa
% ded @il TE| aduH § A wed, g Hiure, el st
ofearenn w1 wIfd e H 1 g 2

o fefSieetiontor =1 ke & omi sed gC o 9 2fae =«
% STEN R ARE Ry IH o w1 dAfged ikl &
HieeH Bq ‘WS ReTgd Hiegel T’ THE Th A HH
w1 fasma fwan 50 AeRa tiasy™ &1 98 9, Ues
o fred % o R o gE ¥, o Rared
Sl BT ST T ThA ¢, TR! ST S BT Tahd
& o Sieq iR = & fau oo T Thd €

o T HRER A W & foay S I ‘W FH i
HAURON o AER W Th SUFHR foqur FE1 92 goreh
il 1 Tfud fohanl 369 o & SARl % gHE
TR | gfaen gn

|, AT

08 TE 2015 I g AT a3k H FRvek deot 3 fodia ad
2015 & fau 22 ufd sfaadt s W 23.30 (SifF 165% ©)
& R SIS 1 SO H|

B, HRER AT

HRET

T 2015 % 3q W dh 1 Hel HRER 381247 HAS HI IS
gfg T 10.1% & TU-T-T8 Jhg I91 HW T 38,81 913
FAg Tk TET T I8 & A §F H1 faRE FRER 37.2%
TEHL T A HAE o Vel &R hl IR HL T 31 A
2015 i df¥as HRER ¥ faRelt HRER # o) ™ af
HT T A H 9.17% T g | 11.43% &I
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OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

e Towards bringing efficiency in pension disbursement, the
Bank introduced a new facility i.e. Digital life certificate.
Further, the Bank started working in coordination with
the Government to be in pilot run of e-PPOs (Electronic
Pension Payment Orders). In order to avoid delay
in submission of Life Certificates by Pensioners in
November every year, the Bank initiated the process
of sending SMS reminders to pensioners to submit Life
Certificate and taking lead in developing life certificate
schemes.

e Anew system driven Preventive Monitoring System (Early
Warning) was operationalised in the Bank w.e.f. July
2014 for better monitoring of borrowers’ financial health
and taking timely action for reduction/containment of
NPAs.

e TheBankwas under parallel run foradoption of Foundation
Internal Rating Based Approach (FIRB) for Credit Risk
and The Standardized Approach (TSA) for Operational
Risk. The Bank also submitted formal Letter of Intent for
adoption of Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA) for
Operational Risk and Internal Models Approach (IMA) for
Market risk.

e The Bank initiated the concept of designating certain
major cities as Pragati cities where all branches were
opened under Pragati Model. Presently three cities
namely Bhopal, Noida and Patiala have attained Pragati
City status.

e Moving towards digitalization, the Bank developed
another platform for redemption of card loyalty points
earned on usage of debit cards known as “PNB Rewardz
Mobile App”. With the help of this Mobile App,
customers can register for PNB Rewards, check their
reward points, redeem online and get alerts for deals &
discounts.

e The Bank put in place a proper marketing structure and
separate vertical based on “Feet on Street” concept to
acquire fresh business. This would facilitate the effective
publicity of products of the Bank.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 8" May 2015
recommended dividend of ¥ 3.30 per equity share of ¥ 2 each
(i.e. 165%) for FY'15.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Business

The Bank’s total business reached ¥ 8,81,913 crore at the end
of March’15, registering an absolute increase of ¥ 81247 crore
and a YoY growth of 10.1%. The Bank’s Overseas Business
grew by 37.2% during the year, crossing X 1 lakh crore
milestone. The share of Overseas Business in Global Business
stood at 11.43% as at 31 March’15 as compared to 9.17% in
corresponding period last year.



Total Business as on 31t March
(% lakh crore)

8.82
8.01
7.00 I I

2013

2014 2015

2.

: .
49 982 TS ! Y g qen fusat ad &t qa 1 # 11.1%
1 gfg <9l gY, A 2015 & d H S hi Het SHRILET
3501379 i Wi s i HrEr s WA oai--ad 6.3
yfaea *1 Ifg 9 H g 1,83,780 TH TEA I faxia
a9 2015 H HA TN SHNIREN H Te9 ARG SHRITET
(Tre+e=a) w1 fEEd 40.57% el fAE 20.03.2015, A
fordta = 2015 & e Rifén Yham (THASRUE) <61, T
FT H THRIRE § WA BT fEE 4.89% W UET T el

Overseas Business as on 31t March

(¥ crore)
100785
73447
48335
2013 2014 2015

Resource Mobilization

The Bank’s Total Deposits amounted to % 5,01,379 crore as
at the end of March’15, showing an absolute accretion of
% 49,982 crore and a growth of 11.1% over previous year.
The CASA Deposits of the Bank increased to % 1,83,780
crore, registering YoY growth of 6.3%. The share of low cost
deposits in total domestic deposits was 40.57% in FY’15. As
on 20" March 2015 i.e. the Last Reporting Friday (LRF) of
FY’15, PNB’s share in system’s Aggregate Deposits reached
4.89%.

Total Deposits as on 315t March
(% lakh crore)

5.01
4.51
] I I

2013

2014

2015

o 3 fei 01.11.2014 ¥ 31.01.2015 o THASRSTE ST
e wern e 10,785 @l § 32876 U T2 U
TRt o1 THARE SHNIRE § S 1 fewerd o= 2014 &
2.20% ¥ FEH A 2015 H 2.39% B TEI

Tt erafy o o 3 oot e oft s e 11,703
TRd g2 W U T qeA 265.42 TG H1 ThTA1 TR swg
o e foxta o 2015 % IR el FRIT Y el §
£79.97 HUES H1 HA Torea foa foman mam

The Bank launched NRI Deposit Campaign from 01.11.14 to
31.01.2015 in which % 2876 crore were mobilized in 10,785
accounts. The Bank’s share in NRE Deposit in the system
increased to 2.39% in Mar’15 from 2.20% of Mar’14.

The Bank also launched “Locker Campaign” in the same
period wherein 11,703 lockers were leased out and arrear
rent of ¥ 65.42 lakh was recovered. Total revenue of ¥ 79.97
crore was generated during FY’15 by recovery of Locker
rent.



3.

o 3 f&fish 23.08.2014 T 31.12.2014 e **URER e o=
T (THTHETR) IR & fa «ff & i gefaa fea
3R 790.22 VS Y2 EC 20801 WA el T THUHe T
TEd T16.13 HUS o1 el oo NiHTH Th fohan 74 @I S

BRI T 34.80 HUS 1 HHYH Afed fwan

ot Tafeem e faawor

T Y W 31265 HAS A 9.0% I g I3 HW g,
o 2015 % od # S & T AW 3380534 Hg @ S
OIS &9 9 AE 2014 & 370 ¥ T3 49 269 FUE 91 W= 2015
T g o 2 S 1 Afml W) ufawet 9.88% @Il I 20.03.
2015, 1e1iq foita o 2015 & sifaw Raifén ypram (TaemU),
T YU o shiee § iuTet 1 G 4.80 W UEH T o
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The Bank also conducted a campaign for the “Family Suraksha
Bachat Khata” (FSBK) Product from 23.08.2014 to 31.12.2014
and 20801 accounts were opened mobilizing ¥ 90.22 crore.
Total insurance premium of ¥ 16.13 crore under FSBK was
collected and commission of approximately ¥ 4.80 crore was
earned by the Bank.

Credit Deployment and Delivery

Net Advances of the Bank as at the end of March 2015 stood
at¥ 3,80,534 crore, compared to X 3,49,269 crore as at end
of March 2014, registering an increase of ¥ 31,265 crore or
9.0% over last year. Yield on Advances of the Bank stood
at 9.88% for the year ended March 2015. As on 20" March
2015 i.e. the Last Reporting Friday (LRF) of FY’15, PNB’s share
in system’s credit reached 4.80%.

Net Advances as on 315t March
(% lakh crore)

3.49 381
. I I

2013

2015

THART A fafy die (SHuwew), JEmerd &9 H
YRR 3R Wl S=1ad B o WAe™ & 9qE
TSl 21 SPUETE % qed Gleuel & <@ ¥ WuAsl AHd
Fed § B| TE W ©@RA HRAE oI HRURS HEer
o goftd gehiss 1 LMol w1 T off| Sueuy & ded a6
% U THTESTE qU1 I-THUEeTE Soft ¥ Hafud 1041 @@
g1 fodta o 2015 & <A Sk 3 oW wEE (HRAE) 9
%126 HUS F TAYUHTH WlHS! U 1 q= 9= HfoE H
T foraor fomaml e &1, 15% B0 Heas geh afsuet arm
(HuaHTaug) & Sfad oI 316 @idl sl Hax foman
R forta o % RF THOHUEE HAGE ® T 227 HAS
1 gfeaet fer e & TE|

Fo1 FIRE yonet B g5 aH & fae gue wEied § T
was faam wrka o s adiea 7@ 6 Temads ol
T YR enfeqal =i feafq &t gaq et w9 & fag |
THESASA/ AL | e i Fge feT Tw Sw @
fafvm @, Ui THSTTHS/A.®L T8 YHl., T 99 HeR
AR ffia Tl 1 Tk ®E oSl & HeTH ¥ Tad SR
R R 61 TE| @ | SN ) e gEenstl i 9
1 T TN TART HIEH TRar T

The Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (TUFS) is a
flagship scheme of Ministry of Textile for modernization
and technology upgradation in the textile sector. PNB is
the designated Nodal Bank for claiming subsidy under
TUFS. For speedier processing of claims, a dedicated cell
at the Corporate Office was established. The Bank had
approximately 1041 accounts under TUFS pertaining to
SSl and Non SSI category. During FY’15, the Bank received
TUFS subsidy amounting ¥ 126 crore from Ministry of
Textile and disbursed to the eligible borrowers. Further,
there were around 316 accounts covered under 15% Credit
Linked Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS) and the subsidy
amounting ¥ 27 crore received from Ministry of MSME
during FY’15.

To strengthen the credit monitoring system, an Independent
Department was functioning at Head Office with a General
Manager as its vertical Head. Similarly, Nodal Officers
were appointed in all the FGMOs/COs to have continuous
watch over the health of the assets. All weak and irregular
accounts were monitored through Task Force Meetings
at different levels of the Bank i.e. CO/FGMO & HO on
continuous basis. The core issues of weaknesses in the
accounts were identified and addressed.



afash Td faiia qTied & We-T1Y Fsl agell ol Aoad
T Y, HIARES Gehe qMl o FEAH & A0g ¥ o
% fou yomelt *1 emar § guUR oW ?q S% 4

01.04.2014 9 YUiqa Yo oA TE SAUKRE A H
TRER i TGN H1 T TR

U @Al H g4 <dEd! Hehdl ol Al M & fAT Th A
fremer T gomet (dreaed) wigge IR fohan T SRl
e R Sifesd &9 @ i YR W & Sl §
S Tedd TET faAEt SR W fohar S e

FROT A

o & FUH HEEd T qEEd a9 € qen gag ue weg
¥ UUEd UHIg §| Sk % UUH wEeE § Uh qufid dehiRT
Th1g ft ¥ S URESHT gk iR dehieh - saderE
(Sigelt) eremr Hefera shidl §1 U€ AT o S
UGN & U qen HEd GHIRYA % SHTEEd HEWrl i
% WY WE HE B HEifer Ry W )

foxita o 2015 % WA, S% A7 216420 HUIS & HoA FOI
% A/ AediR og Aed & e diudet w1 fewm 33631
FAg ol foxfa ad 2015 & IRE 3@ Tfafafa @ 29.44 Fg
HI A I IS HI T

TET W/

TR HU G w1 faem foxitg @ 2015 § o g6 @
fore srfqmecyel fawg o1 @ SaR fawm @ gefud S% w5
e et 1 sTavaskare, fadwyel qea-faufor stqeem
IR ST faav & STEY W1 TR 32T GIU HOT T
% Aqd HRER H g HE A1 G4 HO W oRE w=H
T 3 o 1 81 favm feet w@e e €

THhd GO WU GEHITAA 31.03.2014 38,864 HUS H
TEHL 24.60% H1 TH-T-TH Jhg 5 HW gL 31.03.2015
H T48 415 FHUS B TN HR A dRwIfea foad smem,
ared, fien, Sufeess, YvEWnh, w@of, sue AR widedt
Sk U1 ASHTG WS el €, 31.03.2014 % 31,930
FAE ¥ FdgHT 26.0% T8-g-8 g IS W BT 31.03.
2015 1 340,552 S 8 A1 31 G 2015 i A & el
R-@rE gehel AT § GRU FOl H TSI 14.49% oft S
qoHcHs 9 9 31 HE 2014 HI 12.42% & oAt

AT FHOT Gt 7 26% H1 gu--98 gfg I&t o 31
€ 2015 i TN ART 221 544 HAS W AM&T BT Hawt
& S TR AR 14% Hi F9-X-8 gig I H g 31
T 2015 I TR 34089 HUS T M| dUH KN H 77%
#t gfg W W T

d% 7 FH O A EM ®g RO MR fAfy
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fafte =seti w1 ot wmEfftaa feam

In order to improve the system'’s ability to deal with corporate
distress and financial institution distress by strengthening
real and financial restructuring as well as debt recovery, the
Bank complied with the framework for Revitalizing Distressed
Assets, which was made fully effective from 01.04.2014.

To detect early warning signals in Loan Accounts, a new
Preventive Monitoring System (PMS) module was introduced
wherein PMS reports were being maintained online on
monthly basis, which was earlier done on quarterly basis.

Loan Syndication

The Bank has a Syndication Department at Head Office and
Syndication Cells at Mumbai and Chennai. The Bank also has
a dedicated Technical Cell at Head Office which undertakes
Project Appraisal and Techno Economic Viability (TEV)
Studies. These studies are for internal use and for sharing with
participating banks as part of syndication assignments.

During FY’15, the Bank gave approvals for syndication/
appraisal of debt aggregating ¥ 16,420 crore with PNB's share
of ¥ 3631 crore. Total income booked out of this activity
during FY’15 stood at ¥ 9.44 crore.

Retail Credit

The growth of Retail Loan portfolio continued to be the thrust
area of the Bank in FY’15. The Bank’s policies on the product
development were as per the customers’ requirements,
prudent pricing, customization and aggressive marketing.
They were directed towards boosting business under Retail
Loan Segment. The Bank has 81 specialised ‘Retail Asset
Branches” with an exclusive focus on Retail Credit.

Aggregate Retail portfolio of ¥ 38,864 crore as on 31.03.2014
increased to ¥ 48,415 crore as on 31.03.2015 showing YoY
growth of 24.60%. The Core Retail Advances comprising
Housing, Vehicle, Education, Personal & Pensioner, Gold
Mortgage & Reverse Mortgage Loan Schemes increased from
% 31,930 crore as on 31% March 2014 to ¥ 40,552 crore as on
315 March 2015 recording YoY growth of 26.0%. The share
of Retail loan in Bank’s total Non Food Gross Advances as on
31t March 2015 was 14.49% as compared to 12.42% as on
315 March 2014.

The Housing Loan segment registered YoY growth of 26% with
an outstanding amount of ¥ 21,544 crore as on 315 March
2015. The outstanding under Vehicle Loan segment increased
to ¥ 4089 crore as on 315 March 2015 registering YoY growth
of 14%. Mortgage loans witnessed a growth rate of 77%.

The Bank also implemented various Government of India
schemes such as Credit Guarantee Fund Scheme for Low
Income Housing (CRGFSLIH), Housing Interest Subsidy
Scheme under the name of “Rajiv Rin Yojana” launched by
Ministry of Housing & Poverty Alleviation and Education
Loans interest Subsidy under Central Scheme for Interest
Subsidy (CSIS), New CSIS and ‘Padho Pradesh for Minority
Communities’.
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A& 1 Y HT o1 o1 7 2015 F Wafiehar &= ABm &
IAfS T1 35,812 HUS W 1A 40% & TFT Aed & TG
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Priority Sector

The Bank achieved National Goal of 40% under Priority
Sector as on 315 March 2015. The achievement of Priority
Sector advances was % 1,35,812 crore as on March 2015 i.e.
42.89% of Adjusted Net Bank Credit against the National
Goal of 40%. The Bank also achieved all other National Goals
under the segment e.g. Credit to Direct Agriculture, Credit to
Weaker Section and Credit to Women beneficiary.

R =g 9) ® crore)
urEs 31.03.2013[ 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015| [Parameter 31.03.2013[ 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2015
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Credit to Agriculture sector stood at ¥ 60,006 crore as on
31%tMarch 2015 as against ¥ 54,586 crore as on 31 March
2014. The ratio of Agriculture Advances to ANBC was 18.95%
against the prescribed National Goal of 18%. The achievement
under Direct Agriculture Advances of the Bank was % 48,569
crore i.e. 15.34% of ANBC surpassing the National Goal of
13.5% in March 2015. The Bank issued 2.87 lakh Kisan Credit
Cards (KCCs) during FY’15 taking the cumulative number of
KCCs issued to 51.19 lakh since inception. During FY’15, the
Bank disbursed Agriculture loans to the tune of ¥ 49,603 crore
to 25.62 lakh farmers.

The Bank’s focus was on increasing investment credit
under Direct Agriculture especially on High-Tech
Agriculture Projects under Green House / Poly House
Farming, Sprinkler/ Drip Irrigation Systems, Tissue Culture,
Horticulture, Floriculture, Commercial Dairy, Fishery,
Poultry, Financing Commercial Agricultural Farming,
Plantation for forestry and Agri. Logistics like Rural Go-
down / Cold Storage & Agri Transport etc. besides

traditional agriculture financing.
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New schemes Formulated

e To keep pace with changing scenario, the Bank formulated
following new schemes to boost Agriculture credit:

a. PNB Dugdh Vikas Yojana: For setting up of Milk
collection centers; for purchase of Milch cattle,
construction of sheds and meeting working capital
requirements of Farmers under Tie-up arrangements
with Village Level Milk Society/Co-operative Milk
Unions and Private Dairy Company.

b. For promoting Organic Farming by the Farmers for
Commercial purpose.

c. Scheme for financing to Farmers / Producers under
Contract Farming arrangements.

d. Scheme for financing to Registered Farmer Producer
Organizations (FPOs) & Farmer Producer Companies
(FPCs) was approved by the Board of the Bank. Under
the scheme, FPCs were offered loans up to ¥ 1.00 crore
without any collateral subject to cover under Credit
Guarantee Fund for Small Farmers’ Agri-Business
Consortium (SFAC). MOU was signed with SFAC to
seek guarantee cover under the said scheme.

e To provide relief to farmers who suffer losses due to
reasons beyond their control, policy for restructuring of
Agriculture Debts was formulated (other than natural
calamity). Under the policy for restructuring of Agriculture
overdues - principal & interest was vested with Branch
Officials for loans up to ¥ 10.00 lakh. To meet urgent need
of farmers immediate relief upto ¥ 50000/- were provided
to farmers holding KCC under facilities like Kisan Tatkal
Card Scheme.

Modifications/Concessions in ROl in existing schemes

e The limits under Kisan Credit Card and Kisan Gold
Schemes were enhanced from ¥ 20 lakh to ¥ 50 lakh
during the year for meeting the increased credit needs of
the farmers

e Relaxation in Rate of Interest for construction of Rural
Godown and Cold Storages extended during FY’15.

e Relaxation in Rate of Interest was approved for financing
under Rural Godown/Warehouse/Cold Storage and SHG
schemes.

Celebration of Campaigns/Weeks

e As a step forward to extend focused credit to small and
marginal farmers for inclusive growth, the Bank organized
Special Agriculture Credit Campaigns from 16.06.14 to
20.09.14 & 01.11.14 to 31.01.15. During the Kharif / Rabi
seasons, the Bank disbursed ¥ 7065 crore against the target
of 6600 crore.

e TheBankalso celebrated Dairy Week from 11.08.2014 to
16.08.2014, Farm Mechanization Week from 20.08.2014
to 26.08.2014 and 15.12.2014 to 21.12.2014, SHG/
JLG fortnight from 06.10.2014 to 18.10.2014 and week
from 09.03.2014 to 16.03.2014.
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o The Bank observed Agriculture Week from 12.01.2015 to
19.01.2015 and High Value Agriculture Project Financing
week from 27.01.2015 to 02.02.2015.

Upgradation of Skills & knowledge dissemination

e To upgrade skills of Agriculture Officers, specialized
training with the support of outside agencies like National
Institute of Rural Development (NIRD) Hyderabad, 1BM
Pune, College Agriculture Banking (CAB) Pune and Bankers
Institute of Rural Development (BIRD), Lucknow for
financing high value projects/investment credit proposals
was imparted.

e To promote financial literacy in rural areas and to create
awareness about the Bank’s schemes, a Documentary
Film ‘VARDAAN’ was launched which was screened by
the Bank at the Kisan Goshthies, Farmer Training Centres,
Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs), etc. for
the farming community and also at the Bank’s own training
centres for creating awareness among the staff members.

e Farmers’ Training Centres were geared up to educate &
encourage farmers for adopting composite sustainable
commercial agriculture ventures and High Value
Agriculture Projects.

e All the important schemes related to agriculture were
updated on www.pnbindia.in. All the importantdocuments,
forms and circulars have been uploaded on the Knowledge
Center website of the Bank.

Others

¢ Lending Automation Processing System (LAPS) was made
mandatory for 22 schemes, which were customized in
LAPS, from 01.07.2014 to facilitate speedy disposal of
Agriculture loan proposals.

e PNB Score Model for Farm Sector was developed for
assisting branches in taking objective lending decisions in
accounts for Agriculture and Allied Activities upto limit of
% 50 lakh. The application of the model was launched on
pilot run in 154 identified branches.

e The Bank made Tie ups with the leading manufacturers of
agriculture implements & tractors, irrigation solutions, etc.
during FY’15. During the year, the Bank also laid focus
on increasing livestock advance portfolio by financing
through tie ups with dairy companies/cooperatives. Further,
the Bank focused on financing to Agri logistics like Rural
Godown/ Cold Storage & Agri Transport.

e The Bank geared up 14 Specialized Agriculture Finance
Branches & Special Agriculture Cells was established in
16 branches for increasing focus on high-tech agriculture
projects. An independent portal was developed for online
monitoring of 598 Agriculture Officers.

Credit to Weaker Sections & SC/ST

As on 31 March 2015, the Bank’s credit to weaker section
increased by ¥ 1690 crore on YoY basis to reach ¥ 32,187
crore. Ratio of Weaker Sections Advances to ANBC stood at
10.16%, exceeded the National Goal of 10%. Total outstanding
of SCs/STs stood at ¥ 4045 crore in 4,10,575 accounts.
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Credit to Women beneficiaries

Credit to Women Beneficiaries was 5.27% of ANBC i.e.,
% 16,689 crore as on 31 March 2015 against the National
Goal of 5%. A women cell was functioning and monitoring
the progress under various lending schemes for women
beneficiaries at Corporate Office.

Credit to Minority Communities

The Bank’s credit to minority communities stood at ¥ 20,936
crore as on 31 March’15 as against ¥ 18,923 crore as on
31 March’14. The credit to minorities constituted 15.41% of
Priority Sector Advances.

Micro Credit

A new Scheme of National Rural Livelihood Mission (NRLM)
was launched in June 2013 which promoted the formation of
women SHGs on the basis of affinity and not on the basis of
a common activity.

Interest rate of 7% p.a was charged for financing to women
SHGs inrural area. Subvention was available under this scheme
and additional Interest Subvention of 3 % was provided to the
SHGs on prompt payment in 150 identified districts. In FY’14,
the Bank received subvention claim of ¥ 1,77,64,031/- which
were credited into the beneficaires accounts. The claims for
FY’15 are yet to be lodged.

Micro finance through formation of SHGs & credit linkage
of SHGs gained momentum during FY’15. As at the end of
March 2015, the Bank had credit linked 2,16,878 SHGs with
an amount ¥ 2013 crore, registering an increase of 12026
SHGs. The number of deposit linked SHGs rose to 2,62,593
cumulatively from 2,46,258 as of previous financial year. The
Bank had 1,55,210 credit linked women SHGs and 1,85,719
saving linked women SHGs as on 31+ March 2015.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) plays an
important role in economic development through their
contribution to GDP, exports and employment generation in
manufacturing and service sectors.

At the end of March 2015, the credit to MSME sector stood at
% 91,093 crore thereby registering a growth of 21.37% over
March 2014 constituting 26.45% of total Non-Food Credit. As
against the Statement of Intent (SOI) target of MSE advances
of ¥ 71,100 crore for March 2015, the achievement stood at
% 71,590 crore registering growth of 20.90%.

The Bank implemented recommendations of High Level Task
Force constituted by Hon’ble Prime Minister to address the
issue of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector
by:

e Ensuring achievements of 20% growth in credit to Micro
and Small Enterprises on Year on Year (YoY) basis.
Against the growth of 20% envisaged for March 2015,
the outstanding MSE advances were ¥ 71,590 crore as on
31t March’15, showing YoY growth of 20.90%.

e MSME share in Non-Food Credit of the Bank increased
from 23.91% in March 2014 to 26.45% in March 2015.
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e TheBankopened 64,327 new Micro Accounts during FY’15
recording YoY growth of 13.72% over 4,68,918 Accounts
as on March 2014 compared to the goal of 10%.

The Bank leveraged Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro
and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) scheme for providing
collateral free loans upto % 100 lakh with focused attention,
vesting Branch Managers with higher loaning powers. As a
result, during FY’15, the Bank covered 25,325 cases under the
scheme with the credit outlay of % 1334 crore.

Other Initiatives

MSE Code

The Bank adopted Code of Bank’s Commitment for Micro and
Small Enterprises (MSE) formulated by Banking Codes and
Standards Board of India (BCSB). This was a voluntary code
which set minimum standards of banking practices for banks
to follow while dealing with MSEs. It also explained as to how
banks were expected to deal with MSEs for their day-to-day
operations and in times of financial difficulty.

MSME Credit Growth Initiative Branches

MSME Credit Growth Initiatives were launched in 250
branches in the month of January 2014, primarily with the
following 2 goals to be achieved under this initiative. After
this, 35 more branches were added from November 2014
onwards taking the total number of such branches to 285.

e To reduce turnaround time to 2-4 weeks;
e To grow MSME portfolio by 30% on YoY basis.

The MSME portfolio of these identified branches increased
from % 36,283 crore as on 31 March 2014 to ¥ 44,983 crore
as on 31 March 2015, registering growth of 24% against the
Bank’s overall growth rate of 21.37% in MSME portfolio.

Interest Concession on Advances to Food & Agro Based
Processing Units

Concession in Rate of Interest ranging from 0.50% to 2.50%
on Food and Agro based units were extended by the Bank.
Apart from that, concession in processing / upfront fee of 50%
was also available in these units.

Concession in Rate of Interest to MSME units engaged in
manufacturing of agriculture inputs

Special concessional Rate of Interest i.e. BR+1% to BR+2%
was available to MSME units engaged in manufacturing of
Agriculture Inputs.

Loan against Warehouse Receipt

Special concessional Rate of Interest i.e. BR+1%, (inclusive of
charges of Collateral Managers) was available under the scheme.

Interest Concession to Micro and Small Enterprises Covered
Under CGTMSE

The Bank extended interest concessions to MSE accounts
covered under CGTMSE upto 0.25%. Maximum Rate of
Interest capped at BR+4.00% including term premia was
available in the CGTMSE covered accounts.
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New Schemes Formulated during FY’15

The Bank formulated a new Scheme i.e., “Supply Chain
Financing” for reputed vehicle manufacturing units. In
addition to this, the Bank devised two more schemes such as
PNB Nirmata for financing MSME manufacturing units and
PNB Sewa for financing MSME service units.

Further, the Bank revamped the Scheme for traders as Kushal
Vyapari & Super Trade during FY’15. The Bank also revised
the scheme of General Credit Card for non-agricultural
entrepreneurs.

During FY’15, the Bank entered into a tie up with National
Small Industries Corporation (NSIC). In this, NSIC would
source the applications to the Bank with sharing of processing
fee. Besides, the Bank also formulated Scheme for financing
Business Correspondents.

MSME Clusters

The Bank adopted the cluster based lending approach and adopted
55 clusters to give extensive services to the MSME sector.

Simplified Loan Application for credit requirement up to ¥ 100
lakh for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Manufacturing
& Service sector) was made available along with the checklist
of documents. Similarly, Simplified Loan Application for
credit requirement for more than ¥ 1 crore for Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises (manufacturing sector) was made
available along with the checklist of documents.

Facility of submission of application on-line and tracking
them by prospective borrowers under MSE segment was
provided by the Bank. Under this facility, concession of 20%
in upfront fee and processing fee was extended to borrowers
to encourage this practice.

The Bank signed a MOU with vehicle manufacturers like
Ashok Leyland, Tata Motors, Asia Motors Works, Hindustan
Motors, Mahindra & Mahindra, Piaggio, ICM Ltd., Eicher
Volvo, Atul Auto, Bajaj Motors and J S Auto P Ltd. and MOU
had also been signed with Escorts for financing transport
dealers.

Implementation of Government of India Schemes and
Programmes: The Bank pro-actively participated in various
Government schemes viz. Prime Minister Employment
Generation Programme (PMEGP), Credit Link Capital Subsidy
Scheme (CLCSS) for Micro & Small Enterprises, Khadi &
Village Industry Commission (KVIC), Technology Upgradation
Fund Scheme for Textile & Jute Sector (TUFS) and Subsidy
Scheme for Food Processing Industries, etc., to fund the
economic development of the country. The Bank also entered
into a Tie-up with Ministry of MSME for TEQUP (Technology
Quality Upgradation Support) & TREADs (Trade Related
Entrepreneurship Assistance & Development Scheme).
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v. Ta<ia wum@aeE Financial Inclusion
o THEYE % @1 WefgRd w1 &9 @ ¢ S He e Financial inclusion was the priority area for the Bank as
“Sep—fed & Tera SRET' @ T W Ieled e 21 9 39 9 o refllsctetdf in ittshmifssii)?h"lfzta;lkigg fl(<)r tktl.e Lfnbantked”.tTQi§ V;/{?S
. o f T evident from the fact that the Bank actively participated in the
wswgm%ﬁg GH;:[ ( & ) | ; Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY). This scheme was
" | 8 A ARG <k HAE T ST gR e launched by Hon’ble Prime Minister of India on 28.08.2014
28.08.2014 = THYM Hig H Y &1 T off| Tl =R & o9 & in mission mode. The three pillars of first phase i.e., Universal
R CInECIC gfaensii w1 i q“@ T TS YY) & ferw access to banking facilities, Providing Basic Banking Accounts
¥ for saving & remittance and RuPay Debit card with inbuilt
T Sfae FIE q°1 ®.1 @ & 3AfIee GoA dH HAR & WY o tg_ f?1|ih Lt
o SR = SR fadt e FEET R accident insurance cover o akh and Financial Literacy
S : N Programme were accomplished successfully on 25.01.2015.
25.01.2015 ! W T ol T A wS The details of three pillars are as follows:
foreor fgeR ©
1 3 Era o S . Q. 1. Universal access to banking facilities: Mapping of each
: 3, . A & . district into Sub Service Areas (SSAs) catering to 1000-
Har &l (QFI’ TH0) 'E[ HfT S 1000-1500 WG 1 39 1500 households in such a manner that every habitation
YRR GfaHTT &M &< foh Ioieh IRER & 919 T 3tad g, has access to banking services within a reasonable
Sqewone 5 R, & iR @ SR daneti w1 wgw el distance, say 5 km.
T ofeRT Sl & WA W THUET i sheldst ( ITHIOT a. Coverage of SSAs through banking Outlets (Rural &
q'af ared o) Semi Urban)
(fe=ies 31.03.2015 ot Teerfa) (Position as on 31.03.2015)
AT AT & WM | THTHAT K WRETsT gRT | S gRT el Service Area No. of SSAs | Covered through | Covered by
e Faw R T forT T Villages Branches BCs
38970 8408 2444 5964 38970 8408 2444 5964
ot, I arSl ht shekSt b. Coverage of Urban Wards
HT?.,? W vt grr | el G e No. of Wards No. of SSAs Covered through | Covered by
Calkste)) Eadke e hal ﬁ'?'{ T W KLY Branches BCs
4130 3355 1849 1506 4130 3355 1849 1506

2. % WId Wiern: NUASEEE & AR, I&% TRER
F oAl 26.01.2015 d% sm@ne/de o (e o
FH 9 FH TH o @dl 3yesd w1 S a1 e

2. Opening of Bank Accounts: In terms of PMJDY, every
household was to be provided with at least one Bank
account at branches/Bank Mitr (BC) by 26.01.2015. In

e ﬁ’ S @ qed Rarl 1 welwm & e mission mode, households without a bank account were
Y YguH H T SR HeR T fhy ™ aRER % identified through survey and accounts were opened for
fau @ @ MU 98 W qEss T ¥ HE & uncovered households. These accounts were issued with
Y Wi fR MU e Fed 'L, =1 T H STMER Passbook & RuPay cards. Moving ahead, Aadhaar seeding

F difenr ® T Ew dddEdeTE st @
TA-TY YR GeH FIAE Jonedt  (TEHTE) oA
F1 gfawn weE w1 W et feufq A= f o R-

was done in these accounts to facilitate DBT/DBTL
benefits as well as enabling Aadhaar Enabled Payment
System (AEPS) transactions. The position is given below:-

(As on 31.03.2015) & Number in Lakh

(feies 31.03.2015 =it Tearfa s weEm o/ o)

LaY

[TASISATE & d&d | W (T T | WIRT ol T3 | €IS fehU I A/Cs opened under RuPay Card Pass Book Aadhaar
el T e Y HE e 9% T PMJDY i.e. BSBDA issued issued Seeded
srgia siugsigiT
90.17 84.74 77.50 73.70 90.17 84'7§ 77‘5(0) 7350
(93.90%) (85.90%) & U (e

3. foxiig werar ofiEm: dunsEerE & agq, fodm
TRl U HE@qU WA © S wnl i o foia g
T 3R K H A IO B AU IR FE W A R
F B foia weRal & WOR % 99@ WeE 4 9
o weRar ® (THUSET) ¥ S A9 W § WSt H
e o weray/fren oIk o Wt weH W @ E

3. Financial Literacy Campaign: Under PMJDY, Financial
Literacy is one of the important pillars focusing on
preparing the people for their financial planning and
availing credit. One of the major modes for disseminating
financial literacy is Financial Literacy Centres (FLCs)
which are providing free financial literacy/education and
credit counseling to the customers across the country.
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PAHAL (DBTL) Scheme: Modified scheme of Direct
Benefit Transfer for LPG Consumers, also known
as PAHAL, was initially launched in 54 districts on
15.11.2014 and later on implemented across the country
from 01.01.2015.

Initiatives taken during FY’15

PNB Turant (Immediate Payment System-IMPS):
Immediate Payment System (IMPS) allows interoperable
“Fund Transfer facility” on real time to customers with
Person to Account (P2A) mode. This Initiative was already
implemented through mobile phone, ATM and Internet
Banking facility (IBS). IMPS facility was launched through
BC network both for account holders as well as walk-in
customers.

PNB Sanchay (Micro Deposit Scheme): Micro Deposit
Scheme was customized with focus to inculcate saving
habit among low income groups like small businessman,
vendors, rickshaw pullers, etc. It was operational from
Business Correspondent locations.

Other initiatives

e-KYC: For opening of Bank account, e-KYC product
was fully operational and worked smoothly both at the
branches and the BC locations.

Aadhaar Seeding facility & Seeding of Aadhaar request
received through Alternate Delivery Channel (ATM,
Internet Banking, SMS & IVRS): Aadhaar seeding facility
was operational at branches and the facility was being
customized at BC locations. Request for Aadhaar seeding
was being received through ATM, Internet Banking and
through SMS. All requests received through alternate
delivery channels were pushed for Demo Authorization
and sent to UIDAI for verification. On receipt of response
from UIDAI, all successful records were seeded in the
accounts of the customers and SMS alerts were sent to all
successful and failed cases.

Deployment of Micro-ATMs at BC locations: The Bank is
in the process of deploying Micro-ATMs at BC locations.

Enrolment of Aadhaar number: The Bank engaged 7
agencies (empanelled by UIDAI under category T-3 &
F-4 ) namely, (i) M/s Smart Chip Limited, (ii) M/s Eagle
Software Private Limited, (iii) M/s Vayamtech Limited &
(iv) M/s Alankit Finsec Limited (v) M/s. Calance Software
Limited (vi) M/s. Mars Telecom System Private Ltd and (vii)
M/s. Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited for the enrolment
of Aadhaar number. Around 14.25 lacs enrolments were
made upto 31.03.2015.

Social Security Scheme of Government of India: The
Bank was in process of launching three ‘Special Security
Schemes in Insurance and Pension Sector’ i.e. a) Pradhan
Mantri Suraksha Bima Yojana (PMSBY)- for accidental
death insurance, b) Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima
Yojana (PMJJBY)- for life insurance cover and c) Atal
Pension Yojana (APY) for all citizens in the unorganized
sector.
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Asset Quality

The accumultaion of stressed assests remained the concern
for the Bank. The Bank initiated various measures to arrest
the incremental deliquencies and fresh slippages to improve
the quality of assets. In all NPAs, account-specific resolution
strategies were implemented and progress was monitored
regularly. Daily progress of recovery in NPAs (outstanding
% 10 lacs and above) was monitored and placed before Top
Management. Further, compromise/negotiated settlements
through one to one meeting with borrowers was adopted
as another vital strategy to tackle NPAs. The Bank also had
17 Asset Recovery Management Branches (ARMBs) and
20 Special Asset Recovery Cells (SARCs) which function
exclusively for resolving NPAs.

Initiatives taken during FY’15

e The Debt Recovery Tribunal Cases Monitoring System
Version 1.1 was one such endeavor that was ahead of its
times and a pro-active step towards resolution of NPAs.
In order to monitor progress of the cases that were filed
in DRT, and made branches and counsel/advocates pro-
active for follow-up of such cases, an easy and hassle free
Online Portal was introduced. The very purpose of the
Portal was to take legal processes to their logical end and
to make available up-to-date information about each and
every case that has been filed in DRT.

e Another pro-active initiative of Punjab National Bank, was
streamlining the entire process of various steps followed
in undertaking SARFAESI Action. Details of all the NPA
Accounts eligible for initiating SARFAESI Action were
entered in the Portal by the branches which can be accessed
by the Circle Offices, FGM Offices and Head Office for
monitoring purposes. Branches could also generate reports
of accounts where a particular action was pending. All the
details relating to progress of SARFAESI Action, particular
account is just a click away like 13 (2) Notice Issue, 13 (4)
Notice Issue, Possession of IPs, Reserve Price Fixation and
conduct of E-Auction. Circles and FGMOs could follow-up
with the branches in case of delays.

e Advent of innovative usage of technology provided an
effective solution and transparent mode of sale of secured
assets through E-Auctions. As advised by the Department
of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India
(DFS-MOF-GOI) to conduct free, fair and transparent
auctions, the option of introduction of e-auctions in DRTs
were considered and all the auctions were conducted
electronically. In this process, the concerned banks shall
arrange e-auction platform and pay for it as they were
paying for the advertisement. After issue of notice for
auction, proclamation of sale by the Recovery Officers,
the concerned bank may be advised to arrange for the
“e—auction”. Accordingly, the Bank has been conducting
e- Auctions both under SARFAESI Act and at DRTs.

e Further in this direction, Punjab National Bank was set
to create yet another history to implement the process of
e-auction in house. The very first In-House e-auction on
the Bank’s website www.pnbindia.biz held on 01.04.2015
at CO: Bhubaneshwar was successful.
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Retired bank officials were engaged as Resolution Agents
on commission basis in accounts up to % 1 crore.

During FY’15, in 5539 Rin Mukti Shivirs, cash recovery
of ¥ 269 crore was made in 64393 accounts and 27355
accounts were upgraded with balance outstanding of ¥ 388
crore. Thus, NPAs aggregating ¥ 656 crore were resolved
in these shivirs.

One Time Settlement (OTS) was marketed as a product
for faster resolution of NPAs and OTS cases in 55,320
accounts were approved.

Due to the above highlighted initiatives, the Bank recovered
% 3143 crore in freshly slipped accounts.

Accounts with aggregate outstanding of ¥ 999.62 crore
were upgraded to standard category. Total cash recoveries
in NPA accounts amounted to ¥ 2925 crore. Through
well defined recovery policy ¥ 655 crore were recovered
in approved OTS cases through negotiated settlements.
During FY’15, the Bank recovered ¥ 1017 crore in the
accounts written off earlier.

. Industrial Rehabilitation

The Bank continued its efforts towards rehabilitation of
potentially viable sick units to provide the much needed
relief to industrial sector by debt restructuring. The Bank
was assigned the role of ‘Operating Agency’ of BIFR in
21 accounts. During FY’15, Draft Rehabilitation Schemes
(DRS) were formulated by the Bank as Operating Agency
of BIFR in 3 accounts.

. Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR)

To ensure timely restructuring of the debt of viable
corporates availing credit facilities under consortium/
multiple banking, a transparent mechanism was formed
under CDR system. During FY’15, 25 accounts with
outstanding of ¥ 4524 crore were restructured under CDR.
Out of the 25 restructured accounts, in 4 accounts PNB
was assigned the role of Monitoring Institution.

. Debt Restructuring Mechanism for Small and Medium

Enterprises

The Bank already adopted Debt Restructuring Mechanism
for Small & Medium Enterprises (DRM for SMEs) on the
line of CDR since the year 2005-06. Timely restructuring of
dues of SMEs facing genuine problems was ensured by the
Bank. During FY’15, the Bank restructured 132 accounts
with an aggregate outstanding of ¥ 751 crore.

. Restructuring-Others

The Bank also put in place a transparent mechanism for
restructuring of debts of potentially viable units, which
were facing temporary problems due to factors beyond their
control even for cases which could not be covered under
BIFR/ CDR/DRM for SMEs. During FY’15, 166 accounts
involving ¥ 9966 crore were restructured/rescheduled
under this category.



4, SifEw yses

Sifgd w1 g9eE, 9o iR gHe yeaEd % dF &
I & gd w9 G Sk k1 Sifem geeE <9
%ﬁm@wwﬁaﬁﬁ%ﬁ@w

fruifa ol & 8, =9 wifew o &= § @ifaa sifem
T qe Sifew SR el R yfawe & s dqer et
FT Al i STHHRSTT T I AFEH 7 §1 3 IPRERE
qod &I AUy wH 3G TR fERT § UR wH @R
ToreTgul SNl i SRfYa w, wfor wi faxdia fefa
FT Tolgd R SR gt & wrRern 1 gifeed w6 &
Heqw § HRIER I 9@ i {90 § Ja9 i B

S 1 RO SIEH BHGH gIg § AR ok I ol Hol
Sifes gt dieal ®1 famm fmar 21 3 W aes & =0
Sifew gearsd 29 Iee Usfa S FAd §1 S o
e wieal w1 YEHINAT GHAREd FIA gL SR STATHR
Fefiptor F@ T R TR Goedl & WINU Bg HIEUTH
e fewiee T T &1 Herem ff w21 e wiewt
* MSYE * ST §F gR fAofa wfear (srefd wfee
rEwfer # e, wen ok FRE @ sfRed He
oo fefter o vifean) § ffan S @1 S 3 %u e,
T SifEH qAl 3=d SifEH ARl & STER TH alfed
iferal femror feif feran € dqen arfaes dEwieEn st
el eeR W FRET w1 ST ® IR s §ie st Sitew
wee fifa & gHe wega A Smar @1 d 4 fee S
qAT THUAS &5 0 o Heiel H ThINT Hisell ol fashm &
TR =T F T U HUAT 21 I UlHAS 3 Rl
3t 3R 3T Ao i oA W THETd @M TS <
1 GUE o U fovei0l w3 § §F i GEEd G H 2
Hfa & Bq o whiRT wige 1 fawm = o @ 2
deh W R SifEd YeEE S o fau gareiiia SeeTs
GO ARG €, S aWR Sifew stefq s ) Sifew e
foreft fafra Sifem = 99u yeiem 1 9fwan 1 IE@ S
2 3N 3o Yodisha U FRE 1 srEiyonferEl w5l it
FHIA T T GO, Ay, HeNfud safy, s S9
YR &1 It e | Sifgd Yared 'q 99l €9 9
I R S T R

freht ot Hurerar @ fues & fau §@ %1 e 3 geeA
(TTeITH) SUEfRd SUR W T ST 81 99= e Sead
%1 TR H dTel HR dfehT Wieger (Hieieg) & @y, e
A1 YU SR SER W fRA S @1 @1 e W g
SRl % HaY § YN W T <A R AwiAh SAER R a4
I Wt €1 frEt off gerfea g Gehe @ e & fow o
3 e foradior s 9 B

RETe Sifgn geee % Bq d W guReiia Sees
GO SR 0@l G ? S giEer Sifgd & a0 yeeE
HI qiepa 1 @@ w7 dH A ggg uierer SirEw
WU HHesh & W YR SR fd 1 Sk IR
T grer Sifew wd fresm @-fuiRer adem (SREvET)
Heerqul Sifed geehl (HeRemE) @R uRgya-favermor @nfg

arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

Risk Management

The Risk Management Philosophy & Policy of the Bank is an
embodiment of the Bank’s approach to understand, measure &
manage risk and aims at ensuring sustained growth of healthy
asset portfolio. This would entail in adopting leadership
approach in products and segments well understood by the
Bank and having pre-determined risk standards of moderate
to low risk level, taking limited exposure in high risk areas,
optimizing the return by striking a balance between the risk
and the return on assets. This strives towards improving market
share to maximize shareholders’ value and augmenting
business through attracting quality assets, strong monitoring
of borrowers’ financial health and ensuring conservation of
capital.

The Bank has robust Credit Risk Management Framework
and developed in-house Credit Risk Rating Models. The
rating models provide a scientific method for assessing
credit risk rating of a client. The Bank undertakes periodic
validation exercise of its rating models ensuring their
efficacy and also conducts migration and default rate
analysis to test their robustness. The output of the rating
models is used in the decision making of the bank (viz.
sanction, pricing, Loaning Powers besides Audit, Review &
monitoring of credit portfolio). The Bank has set a desired
portfolio distribution in terms of Low Risk, Medium Risk
& High Risk Categories and the actual portfolio is being
monitored on quarterly basis and the same is placed to
the Risk Management Committee of the Board. The Bank
developed and placed on central server scoring models in
respect of Retail Banking and SME sector Advances. These
processes helped the Bank to achieve quick & accurate
delivery of credit, bring uniformity in the appraisal and
facilitate storage of data & analysis thereof. The scoring
model for farm sector has also been developed.

The Bank has in place a well defined organizational
structure for market risk management functions, which looks
into the process of overall management of market risk viz.
interest rate risk & foreign exchange risk and implements
methodologies for measuring and monitoring the same.
Tools like stress testing, duration, modified duration, VaR
etc. are being used effectively in managing risk in the
Treasury operations.

Asset Liability Management (ALM) of the Bank is done
on proactive basis to manage any eventuality. With Core
Banking Solution (CBS) covering entire branch network,
ALM is being done on daily basis. Base rate and interest
rates in respect of assets and liabilities products are fixed
on scientific basis. The Bank has carried out contingency
funding plan so as to tide over liquidity crunch, if at all it
arises.

The Bank has in place a well defined organizational structure
and framework for operational risk management functions,
which looks into the process of overall management of
operational risk. The Bank has robust operational risk
management framework with a well-defined ORM Policy.
The Bank identifies, measures, monitors and controls/
mitigates the operational risk by analyzing historical loss
data, Risk & Control Self Assessment Surveys (RCSAs),
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Key Risk Indicators (KRIs) and Scenario Analysis, etc.
The Bank has also introduced an online Op-Risk Solution
under Enterprise wide Data Warehouse Project and placed
it on central server to take care of various aspects of data
capturing and management information system at various
levels.

Regulatory Guidelines

The Bank adopted Standardized Approach for Credit Risk,
Standardized Duration Approach for Market Risk and Basic Indicator
Approach for Operational Risk for computation of Risk weighted
assets (RWA) under Basel Il/ 1ll. As per the requirements of the
guidelines of the regulator, relevant risk management policies such
as Risk Management Philosophy & Policy, Credit Management &
Risk Policy, Investment Policy, Asset Liability Management Policy,
Operational Risk Management Policy, Policy for Mapping Business
Lines/ Activities, Outsourcing Policy, Business Continuity Plan,
Credit Risk Mitigation & Collateral Management Policy, Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) Document, Stress
Testing Policy, Group Risk Management Philosophy & Policy,
Policy for management and monitoring of Intra-group Transactions,
Model Risk Policy, IT Security Policy, etc are in place.

The Bank plans to migrate to advanced approaches for computation
of RWA / Capital charge for Credit, Market and Operational
Risk. The Bank is under parallel run for adoption of Foundation
Internal Rating based Approach (FIRB) for Credit Risk and The
Standardized Approach (TSA) for Operational Risk. The Bank
also submitted formal Letter of Intent for adoption of Advanced
Measurement Approach (AMA) for Operational Risk and Internal
Models Approach (IMA) for Market Risk. All the necessary actions
required in this regard have been initiated.

Others major initiatives undertaken

e The Bank perceives that risk culture should percolate at every
level and has recently started evaluating performance of Circle
Offices on risk adjusted basis. FGMs/Circle Heads are being
advised to generate healthy economic returns, set self-targets
for Total Credit Risk weighted assets/Total Outstanding credit
ratio and achieve consistent reduction YoY basis at various
forums like Circle Heads’ conference, FGM Conference,
etc. The Bank envisages to develop framework for capital
allocation on the basis of risk adjusted returns.

e The Bank took necessary steps to implement the various
norms as required under Basel Il guidelines issued by
the regulator. The Bank worked out capital requirements
till full implementation of Basel Ill guidelines and capital
planning is carried out keeping in view the various
requirements under Basel Ill and changes brought about
by the regulator.

e The Bank has put in new system driven Preventive
Monitoring System (Early Warning) w.e.f. July 2014 for
better monitoring of borrowers’ financial health and taking
timely action for reduction /containment of NPAs.

5. Digitalization

The Bank undertook several initiatives in its continued efforts to

provide better, prompt and efficient services to the customers.

These initiatives were a step towards cash less society and

paperless banking.
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It is relevant that the Bank’s share of electronic transactions
reached to 59.62% in the month of March 2015.

Alternative Delivery channels:

Internet Banking

The Bank has a world class Internet Banking application. On
boarding to Internet Banking is as easy as doing a phone call.
Customers have options to register online, through call centre,
through branch or through ATMs. NRI customers may also do
online registration. Apart from online registration, IBS users
having debit cards can reset their passwords online, through
“Forgot Password” link.

PNB’s Internet Banking is witnessing a steady shift of
customers for transfer of funds, inter-bank remittances through
NEFT/RTGS, bill payments, online share trading, tax payments
(including Excise duty, Service tax, MCA 21, Direct taxes,
Customs duty, DGFT etc) and other online payments towards
various integrations done such as VAT payments for various
states, donations, bill payments and fee payments, etc.

The Internet Banking Service caters to around 27.17 lakh
customers with its retail and corporate modules.

Mobile Banking

In order to cater the needs of all groups of the society, the
Bank has four different flavors of Mobile Banking. The Mobile
Banking Facility of the Bank is compatible not only with smart
phones but also with low end mobiles having SMS facility.
The Bank launched Mobile Banking services on National
Unified USSD (Unstructured Supplementary Services Data)
Platform of NPCI for the purpose of financial inclusion.

The Mobile Banking facility of the Bank is offered by way of
easy registration facility available through branches, ATMs
& online. IBS users can register for Mobile Banking through
Internet Banking application. Mobile app is available for
Android, Apple, Blackberry & J2ME mobiles. Mobile Banking
is available for NRI customers also.

Further, the facility of Balance enquiry by giving a missed call
to the toll free numbers 1800 180 2222/ 1800 103 2222 is
available for SMS Alert registered customers. In this regard,
approximately 40 lakh missed calls are being received per
month from the customers.

In order to promote the Mobile Banking aspect of the Bank,
Mobile Banking Campaign was launched during the month
of December 2014 which was a huge success. During the
campaign, more than 6.00 lakh new users enrolled for Mobile
Banking.

As on 31 March 2015, the Bank had 8,60,997 mobile
banking services users with number of transaction per month
at 9,63,052 and value per month % 1132 crore.

SMS Alert Services

SMS Alerts services were successfully deployed for both
retail and corporate customers. SMS Alerts are generated for
identified transactions (credit/debit) done at branches, ATM,
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IBS, Mobile Banking and POS terminals. In addition, SMS
alerts are also sent for non-financial activities like Birthdays,
Mobile number registration/modification, address/name
change, change of internet banking transaction password,
loan installment becoming due, loan installment overdue,
FD account maturing, FD account Matured, NEFT (N10)
confirmation, RTGS transactions with UTR No, Balance on
missed call, etc. The channel is also leveraged for providing
information on Bank’s products and services over SMS under
the SMS Pull Mechanism to esteemed clients of the Bank.

As on 315 March 2015, the Bank had 3.31 crore customers
who subscribed for SMS Alerts facility and on an average
around 17.32 lakh SMS Alerts were generated and delivered
per day.

E-lobbies: The Bank installed 1421 Cash Deposit/Multifunction
Kiosk, 383 Electronic Cheque Deposit Machines, 504 Queue
Management Systems, 1725 Passbook Updating Machines
across the country. The machines installed in E-lobby are
made available to customers 24*7*365.The customers of the
Bank may access the same as per their convenience.

In a way forward, the process of procuring 350 Cash Deposit
Machines (CDMs), out of which, 175 machines would be
Bunch Note Accepter having multi-functionalities of cash
recycling i.e. cash acceptance as well as cash dispense was
started. In addition to this, 500 CBS/CTS enabled Electronic
Cheque Deposit Machines would also be installed in the
branches in the coming days.

In order to improve the availability of Self Service Area
Machines, a real time monitoring tool for remote monitoring
of SSA Machines was introduced for effective monitoring and
to reduce down time.

ATMs: During FY’'15, 1408 new ATMs were installed taking
the total ATM network to 8348 as on 31 March 2015.

6313

Mar'13

ATM Network

6940 8348

Mar'14 Mar'l5
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E- Surveillance systems were installed at ATM sites to restrict
the incidences of vandalism and burglaries. Till 31.03.2015,
2249 sites were connected & monitored by E- Surveillance,
whereas 891 sites were under installation stage.

To decrease the downtime of ATMs on account of electricity
failure, Solar UPS was installed.

For on line ATM monitoring and to take prompt corrective /
preventive actions in case of ATMs getting down, ESQ ATM
Monitoring System was installed.

Immediate Payment Services: In order to facilitate the
customers to make inter-bank fund transfers 24*7 in real time,
Immediate Payment Service (IMPS) was launched on all the
three channels i.e. Mobile Banking, Internet Banking and
ATMs.

Debit Cards: The Bank took up many initiatives during FY’15
in this field. PNB RuPay debit card was made E-commerce
enabled. New security features were introduced for e-com/
pos transactions. 3D secure code was made mandatory for
e-transactions and PIN for POS transactions. Other cards
launched are PNB RuPay Platinum Card; Miller Card for Rice
Millers under Pungrain project, EMV chip based Master Non-
personalized Debit Card, RuPay Samagra cards for Madhya
Pradesh citizens, PNB Bhamashah Cards for Rajasthan State,
Pungrain RuPay Debit Card for farmers, HSAMB Cards for
Arhtiyas and Farmers of Haryana State and PMJDY Cards.

PNB Loyalty Rewards programme for Debit Card holders:
PNB Debit Card holders can earn and accumulate reward
points for all their spending at Point of Sales (POS) and online
purchases, (e-commerce). PNB Rewardz members can redeem
their Points to get merchandise and services from M/s Loylty
Rewardz redemption platform at www.pnbrewardz.com.
PNB launched another platform for redemption of loyalty
points i.e., “PNB Rewardz Mobile App”. With the help of
this Mobile App, Customers can register for PNB Rewards,
Check their points, Redeem online and get alerts for Deals
and Discounts.

E-Commerce Transactions: Tie up arrangements were made
with e-shopping sites such as Myntra, Pack my Bag, Pay TM,
etc. These sites offer special discounts on purchases through
PNB Debit Cards/internet banking. During the month of
March 2015, 39.73 lakh e-commerce transactions took place
using PNB Debit Card/Internet Banking/ Mobile Banking.

Implementation of Core Banking Solution (CBS): The Bank was
one of the pioneer Banks in providing 100% CBS solutions to
all the branches across the country. As on 31% March 2015, the
Bank had vast network of 6777 service outlets, covering 3480
centers with more than 1038 lakh Customers Accounts. All these
service outlets/centers are working under Core Banking Solutions
thereby extending convenient Banking to all customers.

Cheque Truncation System (CTS): The hardware was upgraded
at the Grid Service Branch (RCC Delhi) and new web based
application software was procured for Northern Grid. The Bank
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started participating from all 21 MICR centers in CTS (outward
clearing) through web-based application during FY’15.

IT Security: The Bank has an Information Security Policy
which was approved by the Board and reviewed each year
to keep it updated as per latest trend and best practices. In
addition to this, Information System Security Architecture
Implementation Committee (ISSAIC) meetings are being held
on monthly basis to review & recommend implementation of
Information security posture.

a. Business Continuity Plan & Disaster Recovery (BCP & DR)

The Bank has well defined Business Continuity Plan (BCP)
to provide un-interrupted Customer Services in case of
any exigency. The Bank has fully operational Disaster
Recovery Site (DRS) of its Data Centre with well defined
Recovery Time Objective (RTO) and Recovery Point
Objective (RPO). DR drill is conducted regularly to keep
testing its functional preparedness. DR site was available
for 28 critical applications.

b. Gopalakrishna Committee Recommendations on

Information security

The Bank initiated steps for implementation of the
recommendations of Gopalakrishna Committee. Various
action points such as realignment of Information Security
to Risk Management, Formulation of IT Balance Score
Card, Service Valuation matrix etc. have already been
complied with.

Management Information System

Enterprise-wide Data Warehouse (EDW) was implemented in
2008. EDW set up facilitated ready access to data required for
Regulatory/Statutory reporting and additionally for analytical
purposes. This reduced workload of field functionaries to a
considerable extent and was assisting Top Management in
taking timely decisions.

Standardized Approach for Credit Risk under Basel — Il was
implemented through LADDER (Loans and Advances Data
Desk for Evaluation & Reports) system enabling calculation of
Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) in respect of Loans & Advances
as per guidelines of the regulator.

Apart from this, data of all loan accounts was being
transmitted to four Credit Information Companies (CICs) i.e.
CIBIL, EQUIFAX, EXPERIAN & HIGH MARK on monthly basis
from Ladder System. Bureau One solution was put in place
since 2012 enabling the branches to draw Credit Information
Reports (CIRs) using Bank’s intranet (CBS network) for taking
credit related decisions. Around 13,30,563 CIRs of prospective
borrowers under Consumer category and 25,996 CIRs under
Commercial category were drawn from CIBIL, Experian, High
Mark & Equifax databases during FY’15.

The Bank was required to register the particulars of equitable
mortgages with Central Registry. Accordingly, around 3.67
lakh Immovable Properties (IPs) were registered with CERSAI
by the Bank till 31 March 2015.

Anti Money Laundering solution was implemented to scan
the customers at the time of customer acquisition and fund
transfer by verifying various watch lists. The system also
helped in submitting different reports to FIU and other
regulatory bodies.
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7. HEE GETEA Ua-EA 7.  Human Resources Management
S ST wUEIRE w1 A TEEyl T qowa | & w9
o T 4 B1OAE 2015 % 3 § SuiE wied weEnat
1 el & 68290 ot |

The Bank recognizes its employees as the most vital and
valuable asset. Total number of employees including those in
the subsidiaries was 68,290 at the end of March 2015.

Hartar wHenRE = 9 Cadre-wise Staff Strength

et aret 2014 et 2015 CADRE March 2014 March 2015

e | A ©w wE T LT Number %age of Number %age of

T % & % Total staff Total staff
EIREa 23811 36.33 24701 36.17 Officer 23811 36.33 24701 36.17
ﬁ-i—‘qa; 26864 40.98 27832 40.75 Clerks 26864 40.98 27832 40.75
S T 12866 22.69 15757 23.08 2:35?{‘;) 14866 22.69 15757 23.08
dereE wfed :

( ) Total 65541 68290
IS 65541 68290
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The Bank took up several initiatives during the year in the areas
of Manpower Planning, Recruitment, Succession Planning,
Leadership Development and Staff Welfare.

Manpower Planning

For FY’'15, the Manpower Plan was finalised well in time
in a scientific manner, properly taking care of impending
retirements, future branch openings/activity, business
expansions & other requirements. As per plan 8749 vacancies
were identified in Officer cadre, of which 5680 were filled
and 1433 vacancies were identified for clerical cadre of which
1087 were filled by way of Internal promotions.

Similarly, as per Plan 1453 vacancies in Officer Cadre and
5273 vacancies were identified to be filled up by Direct
Recruitment. Out of above, 1110 vacancies in Officer cadre
and 3715 vacancies in clerical cadre were filled up. Further,
2708 vacancies in Subordinate Cadre were to be filled up by
Direct Recruitment, of which 1760 vacancies were filled.

Recruitment Planning

Based on the Manpower Plan for 2015-16 approved by the
Board, an extensive recruitment Plan was prepared and
blueprint of the whole project from the date of advertisement
till the date of joining of the new recruits, was finalised well in
advance so as to ensure completion of the projects in a time
bound manner. Joinings after recruitment were kept aligned
with the immediate shortages.

Succession Planning

In order to address the Human Resource gaps arising in critical
positions due to retirements in the coming years, the Bank
created Leadership Development Forums (LDF). These forums
were formed for Dy. General Managers (DGMs) in Scale-VI,
Assistant General Managers (AGMs) in Scale-V and Chief
Managers (CMs) in Scale-IV. With the help of these forums, the
Bank identified potential successors for various critical positions
in the Bank considering their skills and aptitude. Identified
officers were being groomed for future leadership roles.

The Executives available in each area of specialization were
mapped and effort was on to equip each Executive with
minimum 2 areas of specialization in order to have alternate

utilization.
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Age Profile of the Employee

As a result of the carefully planned & executed Human
Resource Development Plans, the Bank undertook need
based extensive recruitment in the last three years which also
resulted in changes in employee age profile. The movement
of cadre-wise average age in the last few years is as under:

 3ftEd oty srferemt forfrer | arefreer =R st
31 |E 2010 50.18 49.82 46.89 49.29
31 W 2011 50.37 49.62 45.91 49.02
31 9= 2012 50.14 44.93 44.48 46.75
31 | 2013 49.49 44.70 42.41 45.96
31 O 2014 49.12 43.00 40.54 44.66
31 |9 2015 48.22 41.08 38.79 43.13

Average age as on Officer Clerical Sub-staff All
31% March 2010 50.18 49.82 46.89 49.29
31 March 2011 50.37 49.62 45.91 49.02
31 March 2012 50.14 44.93 44.48 46.75
31 March 2013 49.49 44.70 42.41 45.96
31% March 2014 49.12 43.00 40.54 44.66
31 March 2015 48.22 41.08 38.79 43.13
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The average age of employees in each cadre came down
over the years. It is also noticeable that average age as on
31.03.2015 came down during the year.

Welfare Schemes for Staff

The Bank continued with its 13 Welfare Schemes for staff for
the financial Year 2014-15 as well. A Core Working Group
is set up to monitor the schemes and make improvement in
schemes from time to time. Meeting of the Core Working
Group is held from time to time and is need based.

Reservation Policy

The Bank follows the reservation policy for SCs, STs and
OBCs as prescribed by the the Government from time to time.
The position in respect of SC/ST/OBC employees in different
cadres as on 31% March, 2014 and 31 March, 2015 is as
under:

Strength of SC/ST/OBC Employee

et W= 2014 T 2015 CADRE MARCH 2014 MARCH 2015
SIS, || | otfua. | otwm |erwsm |srfua SC ST| OBC SC ST| OBC

EibEar 4400 1496 1710 4815 1673 2163 Officer 4400 1496 1710| 4815 1673| 2163

fafter 5153 1243 3714 5459 1321 4848 Clerks 5153 | 1243| 3714| 5459| 1321| 4848

ECiproikinn 6338 828 2675 6633 903 3110 Sub Staff 6338 828| 2675| 6633 903 | 3110

(frrTE afed) (incl. PTS)

Eagl 15891 3567 8099 16907 3897 10121 Total 15891 3567 | 8099 16907 | 3897 10121
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The Bank used People Soft Package in the name of ‘PNB
Parivar’ which contains exhaustive database of all the
employees. It enabled the Bank to effectively utilize
technology for all employee related tasks like staff welfare
benefits, various reimbursements, transfer/postings, leave
rules, overtime payment, fitment of salary, terminal dues
etc. Salary was also being credited online through HRMS
centrally in respect of all employees and loan deductions
were simultaneously being made on the same day. PAF
submission/ assessment of Officers upto TEG-VI was made
online from FY’13.
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Industrial Relations

Industrial Relations in the Bank continued to be cordial with
issues raised by Workmen Union/Officers’ Association being
attended to immediately. Various meetings were held with
the representatives of the majority Officers’ Association/
Workmen Union during the year to discuss various issues and
take steps to resolve the same.

Training Activities

The Training system of the Bank is functioning effectively for
enrichment of Knowledge, Skills and Attitude of the staff at all
levels in line with the organizational objective to transform
the Bank to a customer centric and technology driven.

The Bank has a three tier training set up comprising of one apex
level training centre at its Headquarters in Delhi. The centre
named as ‘Central Staff College’ (CSC) is located in the serene
environments at Civil Lines, Delhi. It caters to the training
needs of Top/Senior/Middle Management Grade officers on
‘All India’ basis. Three Regional Staff Colleges (RSCs) are
located at strategically important cities i.e., Mumbai, Lucknow
and Chandigarh. They cater to the training needs of Senior/
Middle/Junior Management officers as well as workman &
sub staff. In addition, seven Zonal Training Centres (ZTCs)
are also functioning across the country at Dehradun, New
Delhi, Jaipur, Kolkata, Kozhikode, Ludhiana and Patna. These
ZTCs are looking after the training needs of Middle/Junior
Management Grade officers, Clerical and subordinate Staff.
Information & Technology being the backbone of banking,
the Bank has one exclusive IT Training Centre located at
Faridabad catering to training needs of officers in the areas of
Information Technology. Another autonomous Institute named
PNB Institute of Information & Technology (PNB IIT), located
at Lucknow which in addition to conducting IT programmes
on Banking Technology for officials of various banks also runs
an exclusive channel for the Bank

The Bank also imparts training to its officers in different Grades
in specialized areas through outside training institutions of
repute both in India & abroad viz. ASCI Hyderabad, COD
Hyderabad, IDRBT Hyderabad, NIBM Pune, CAB (RBI) Pune,
IIM Lucknow, IMI New Delhi, IIM Ahmedabad, CAFRAL
Mumbai, IIBF Mumbai, FEDAI, MDI and NIBSCOM, BIRD
Lucknow, IIBM Gauhati, etc.

In view of large scale recruitments in 2014-15 also, ‘Induction
Training Programmes’ of 1-30 weeks were conducted for all
newly recruited Officers and workmen to make them branch
ready before joining their duties in the field. In addition, for the
existing employees’ trainings in key subject areas like Credit,
Agriculture, SME, Foreign Exchange, Information Technology,
NPA Management, Risk Management, etc. were conducted.
All SC/ST employees aspiring for promotion to higher grade/
scale were provided Pre-promotion trainings. Similarly
newly promoted officials in different Grade/Scale were
covered under post promotion trainings both in Functional &
Management skill areas so as to equip them to take up higher
responsibilities. Besides, Faculty Development Programmes
(FDP) were also organized for enhancing the training skills of

in-house Faculty of the Bank.
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Further, as a part of succession planning in the Bank and
to enhance Management qualities amongst Senior/Top
Management Grade Officers, the Bank constituted 3 Executive
Skills Development Programmes, from “M/S Franklin Covey”
a reputed training institute in which 94 AGMs & DGMs
participated. CSC also conducted 13 MDP Programmes in
which 437 Senior Officials were imparted training.

Training Policy of the Bank envisages a training reach of 50%
of employees every year. Towards fulfillment of this objective,
during FY’15, the Bank imparted 167593 man days training
to 48421 employees through in-house training. In addition,
9263 man days training was imparted to 2053 officers at
reputed outside Institutes in India and abroad.

On Location Training

As per Training Policy of the Bank, 468 on-Location
programmes were conducted, in which 11114 employees
were imparted training on different small modules, including
Soft Skills for front line Staff & Part Time Sweepers, LAPS, New
IT Initiatives, programmes on Alternative Delivery Channels
& Mobile Banking, NPA Management, Credit Rating, Risk
assessment and e-Auction, etc.

e-Learning

Training system of the Bank makes extensive use of technology
for facilitating greater training reach of the staff. There is
exclusive Knowledge Centre website, comprising of e-circular
of all HO Divisions, knowledge repository of latest banking
and economic updates. This web-site is available to the staff
both through CBS network as well as via internet.

‘PNB Gyanuday’, the Bank’s exclusive e-learning platform
is accessible 24 X 7 to all employees across the country &
abroad. This is an interactive mode of learning that covers
Banking topics on various focus areas viz. Credit, Foreign
Exchange, Retail Banking, CBS/IT, KYC, AML, Marketing, Risk
Management, Resolution of NPAs, etc.

Branch and Office Network

Domestic Presence

The Bank has one of the largest branch networks of 6560 as
on 31.03.2015. It included one Extension Counter also. All
the Extension Counters except one at Badrinath (Uttrakhand)
were upgraded into full fledged branches.

5874

Mar'13

Branch Network 6560

6201

Mar'14

Mar'15
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International Presence

As on 31.03.15, the Bank had its overseas presence in 9
countries which includes 3 branches (2 in Hong Kong and one
in DIFC, Dubai), 3 Representative Offices each in Shanghai
(China), Dubai (UAE) and Sydney (Australia), 3 Subsidiaries
(London, Kazakhstan and Bhutan) and a Joint Venture Bank
in Nepal. The Bank also had an Offshore Banking Unit in
Mumbai.

New Forays

The Bank filed application for upgrading of Representative
Office in Sydney, Australia to a full- fledged branch in Australia
and is also looking forward for upgrading of Representative
Office in Shanghai, China to a branch.

The Bank got permission from the Regulator and the Board
of Investment, Bangladesh for opening of a Representative
Office in Bangladesh. The Bank also received the Regulator’s
permission for opening of a Representative Office in Yangon,
Myanmar.

Further, the Bank is also exploring possibilities for its presence
in Mozambique, South Africa, Sri Lanka and Brazil.

International Banking

Through its network of 228 authorized forex branches, Exchange
Bureaus and a forex Centralized Back office for Trade Finance
operations, the Bank registered a Forex turnover of ¥ 1,36,728
crore for FY’15 showing annual growth of 6%.

Further, remittances to the tune of ¥ 55,488.06 crore were
received through Bank’s International Service Branch, New
Delhi which is the nodal office for all inward remittances.
The Bank also expanded its tie up with Exchange Houses
under Rupee Drawing Arrangement taking the number to
35 (30 in the Gulf, 1 in Australia and 2 each in Singapore
and USA). In addition to real time credit into accounts of
the Bank’s customers (PNB FlashRemit/PNB Instcredit), the
Bank pioneered the launch of Immediate Payment Service
(IMPS) in partnership with National Payment Corporation
of India (NPCI) for providing instant credit to customers of
other banks present on the IMPS platform. The Bank also had
arrangements with 6 Money Transfer Operators under Money
Transfer Service Scheme (MTSS) for quick and easy money
transfers.

Operations Division

Operations Division at Head Office was formed w.e.f.
01.04.2013 to pursue the initiatives under “Operating Model
Optimization” pillar of “Organizational Transformation and
Business Excellence Program 2011” named PNB PRAGATI.

Under PNB Pragati initiative, efforts were being made to
organize model branches with state-of-the-art infrastructure
and manpower support to provide unique banking experience
to the customers. This model ensured a customer centric
system of delivery of products and services through the main
Pragati modules of Self Service Area, Queue Management
System, Receptionist, Customer Service Executive and
Business Development Executive.
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As at the end of March 2015, the number of such model
Pragati branches reached 666. The Bank plans to take this
number to 1350 by March 2016.

These model branches have a defined Star Certification system
of upto five stars depending on the level of implementation
of the concept. As at 31% March 2015, out of 666 Pragati
branches, 360 branches had Star 3 status while 9 branches
had Star 4 status.

Pragati Cities: The Bank also initiated the concept of
designating certain major cities as Pragati cities where all
branches would be under the Pragati model. Till 31 March
2015, three cities namely Bhopal, Noida and Patiala attained
Pragati City status. Plans were afoot to include more cities
under the Pragati city group during FY’16 in order to achieve
higher visibility of the Bank’s Pragati model and to make
Pragati flavour available to more customers.

New Initiative Division

During FY’15, the Bank had put in place a proper marketing
structure and separate vertical based on “Feet on Street”
concept to acquire fresh business. The concept of Kiosk
Banking was under implementation which would help in
acquiring new customers from off-site locations.

Towards digitalization, the Bank proposed to come up with
tab banking for acquisition of new customers using the newly
set up marketing vertical. Further on this front, the Bank
identified “Mission Next Gen” as the focus area and target
Gen X and Gen Y for FY’16. The Bank is reorienting business
and delivery model to achieve this target.

The Bank embarked upon to open 121 new Offsite E-lobbies
at institutional and cantonment areas to acquire business and
improve upon in service delivery.

The Bank identified NRI business as one of the priority areas.
The Bank already enabled Internet banking and Mobile
banking for NRI customers. The Bank initiated steps to put in
place 24*7 NRI help desk.

A special help desk was put in place to service the customer’s
requirements relating to Alternate channels like IBS, Mobile
banking, etc. with target to resolve the issues and Turnaround
time of 24 hours.

The Bank also developed a concept of Digital village where
the village will be Wi-fi enabled along with Off Site E-lobby
having ATM, Cash Deposits Machines, Electronic Cheque
Deposits Machines, Passbook Updation Machines, PC with
internet connection and TV display unit.

Business Diversification

Mutual Fund: During FY’15, the Bank distributed and marketed
Mutual Fund products of Principal PNB AMC & UTI AMC.
The Bank mobilized total amount of ¥ 2653 crore and earned
brokerage of % 3.62 crore as against 2.05 crore during FY’14,
showing a growth of 77%.
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Insurance Business: As a corporate agent of PNB MetLife India
Insurance Co. Ltd., the Bank mobilized premium of % 677 crore
(Fresh Business Premium of ¥ 343 crore & Renewal Business
Premium of ¥ 334 crore) during FY’15 from 99677 policies, as
against total premium of ¥ 487 crore mobilized during FY’14.
The Bank’s earnings from Life-Insurance business during
FY’15 amounted to ¥ 59.74 crore as against ¥ 46.29 crore
during FY’14 registering growth of 29%.

Similarly, under Insurance tie-up with Oriental Insurance Co.
Ltd. for Non-Life Insurance business, the premium collection
amounted to ¥ 193 crore from 4.40 lakh policies mobilized
by the Bank, which earned revenue of ¥ 21.87 crore during
FY’15, as against ¥ 20.30 crore during FY’14, showing a
growth of 8%. The Bank registered a growth of 23% in selling
of customized health insurance policy ‘PNB-Oriental Royal
Mediclaim’. The Bank sold 1,20,899 policies during FY’15
vis-a-vis 98,596 policies sold during FY'14.

Depository Services: The Bank is providing Depository
Services as Depository Participant of NSDL. The Bank
provided an access of de’mat account opening to all branches
instead of only 650 authorized branches hither-to-fore and
centralized the verification process of de’mat account opening
at Depository Back Office, New Delhi. This new system
enabled branches to cater to the needs of the clients of far-
flung areas more conveniently.

The Bank earned an income of ¥ 87 lakh during FY’15 for
providing Depository Services.

Repository Services-“e-Insurance Account (e-1A)”: The Bank
became approved person of National Insurance Repository
(NIR) of National Securities Depositary Services Limited
(NSDL) and started providing e-Insurance Account (e-1A)
service for keeping insurance policies (presently life policies
only) in electronic form from 16.02.2015. The unique
feature of e-IA facility is that it is available free of charge to
the customers and staff members i.e. no Account Opening
Charges or Annual Maintenance Charges (AMC).

Online Trading Services: Online trading facility was also
provided through the Bank’s Alliance Partners viz. M/s. SMC
Global Securities Ltd., M/s. IDBI Capital Services Ltd. and M/s.
Networth Stock Broking Ltd. The Bank earned an income
of ¥ 29.88 lakh from these alliances on account of Online
Trading Activities during FY’15.

Merchant Banking: As Category-l Merchant Banker, the
Bank handled 67 assignments of Dividend Payment/Interest
Payments and 8 assignments of Bankers to Issue during FY’15
and earned a float income of % 5.71 crore.

Being Self Certified Syndicate Bank (SCSB), Application
Supported by Blocked Account (ASBA) facility for submitting
application in public issues (IPO/FPO/Right Issue) was made
available from all the branches of the Bank. This facility is
also available online to the Bank’s CASA account holders
(both retail and corporate IBS users). ASBA facility was also
available for Syndicate/Sub syndicate Members of SEBI.
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During FY’15, the Bank collected applications for ¥ 67.59
crore for 87 assignments handled by the branches.

Credit Card: The Bank entered into premium card market in
April 2014 by launching Platinum Credit Card which carried
exclusive features like availability of the Concierge Services
& higher reward points. The Bank’s Credit Cards were well
received by the public. As per Central Bank’s data, while the
industry grew by 8.83% from December 2013 to December
2014. The Bank’s growth rate was 12.07% during the same
period.

In FY’15, to expand the presence of the Bank, an exclusive
scheme for issuing credit cards to employees of PNB’s
sponsored RRBs was launched apart from liberalising the
terms for issuance of credit cards against fixed deposit.

The Bank took steps towards issuing all credit cards with
EMV chip and PIN so as to enhance the security level of card
transactions.

Merchant Acquiring Business: Merchant Acquiring Business
through installation of Point of Sale (PoS)/GPRS Terminals and
Integration of Internet Payment Gateway (Debit/Credit Cards)
launched in February 2010 completed 5 years. The Bank
installed 12,067 PoS terminals and integrated 157 Internet
Payment Gateways upto 31.03.2015.

RuPay Card: The Bank took up membership of National
Payment Corporation of India (NPCI) for acceptance of RuPay
Debit card on PNB Point of Sale terminals. In addition to
acceptance of cards having logo VISA or MasterCard /
Maestro, PNB POS terminals accept RuPay Debit card for all
face to face transactions.

KAIRON Project of Punjab Govt. for Grain Procurement:
PUNGRAIN, a food grains procurement agency of Punjab
Government has launched Kisan Arhtiyas Information &
Remittance Online Network (KAIRON) project whereby
they are making payments to the farmers through Arhtiyas
using RuPay Debit cards with the help of National Payment
Corporation of India (NPCI).

The Bank was actively participating in the project and brought
a business of ¥ 4038 crore as Acquiring bank and ¥ 1997 crore
as Issuing bank during FY’15.

HSAMB Grain procurement project of Haryana Govt: NPCI
and RBI were persuading to other states to follow this policy
for procurement of food grains from Arhtiyas/Farmers and
this scheme is likely to be started in Haryana also, where the
Bank already signed an agreement, and being one of the main
players in Punjab, the Bank stands to gain.

Government Business

With a view to mitigate and minimize the problems faced
by retirees and to ensure timely settlement and payment of
the terminal dues subsequently at the branches, the Bank
undertook the process of shifting from manual submission &
payment to online submission & payment. All proposals for
settlement online and payment is made online on the day after
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the superannuation to all the retirees. The Bank undertook
many initiatives towards bringing efficiency in the pension
disposals. Some of which are enumerated below:

a. Introduced Digital Life Certificate, thereby Pensioners need
not visit Branches in November every year.

b. The Bank also worked in co-ordination with Ministries to
be in pilot run of e-PPOs (Pension Payment Orders).

c. The Bank was sending SMS reminders to pensioners to
submit life certificate.

d. The Bank was taking lead in developing life certificate
schemes.

e. The Bank was taking up multiple pension processing to
pay DA and other revised arrears to pensioners in middle
of the month.

f. Further, the Bank also consolidated and re-structured
Central Pension Processing Centres (CPPCs) in such a
way that each CPPC caters to a particular Ministry or two
so as to bring professionalism and synergy in operations
with convenience to both pensioners and the Ministries
concerned.

Further, the Bank is one of accredited Bankers for on-line and
off-line e-Biz collection for 14 services of Government. All
branches are authorized to collect fee from customers off-line.
The customer can also pay on-line e-Biz fee using the Internet
Banking Services Facility.

The Bank also launched Government’s Sukanya Samriddhi
Deposit Scheme through designated PPF Branches. Besides,
Kisan Vikas Patra was also under customization for
commencing business.

For collection of PPF subscription, 961 more branches were
authorized during FY’15 taking total authorization of PPF
branches to 1604 from 643.

PPF Campaign was launched from 01.01.2015 to 31.03.2015
to augment and create vibrancy for PPF business. 45,130 new
PPF accounts were opened during the Campaign period as
compared to 26,768 PPF accounts during the last campaign
period held during 01.01.2014 to 31.03.2014.

For collection of Direct taxes, 476 more branches were
authorized during the year taking the total authorization of
Direct Tax branches to 1138.

Automation of Public Financial Management System got
done in August, 2014. It facilitated disbursement of Central
and State Direct Benefit Subsidy instantly to beneficiaries’
accounts.

Monitoring of overnight holding of cash kept at branches to bring
efficiency and contained balance within limit fixed by ALCO.

Approval was obtained from the Executive Committee for
setting up Mega Currency Chest/Cash Processing Centre of
appropriate capacity and to identify potential for establishment
of MCC/CPC on PAN India Basis. This would facilitate the
Bank to manage currency chest operations in an efficient
manner in line with the Regulators’ directives.

Govt. Business Income for FY’15 stood at ¥ 84.92 crore.
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14. Treasury Operations

During the period under review, Gross Investment as on 31
March 2015 stood at % 1,49,266 crore and registered a YoY
growth of 6.26%. The average investments upto 31* March
2015 was % 1,41,340 crore as against ¥ 1,37,382 crore in
corresponding period last year. The Interest income from
investment portfolio as on 31¢ March 2015 increased to
%10,563 crore as against ¥ 10,231 crore for FY'14.

The Bank actively traded in sovereign bonds, Non-SLR bonds
and equity throughout the financial year. The liquidity position
of the Bank was generally comfortable throughout FY’15 and
the funds of the Bank were managed through Collateralized
Borrowing and Lending Obligation (CBLO), Repo and Forex
market swaps. The Bank complied with all the requirements
of Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR)/Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)
stipulated by the Regulator.

Fixed Income (Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)/Non SLR):
During FY’15, the rate market started with a negative
note after the regulator’s caution over high inflation and
its hawkish tone in first few monetary policies. However,
during second half, the yields softened and the market
gained momentum due to various factors like formation
of stable government at centre, increased flows from
overseas investors, declining US treasury yields, falling
crude prices, stable domestic currency, retail inflation on
lower trajectory within RBI’'s comfort level, government’s
continued commitment towards fiscal consolidation and
start of monetary easing cycle by RBI in first quarter of
calendar year 2015 when RBI reduced repo rate from 8.00%
to 7.50% due to which the yield on 10 year benchmark
security came down from 8.94% to 7.75% in between
touching a low of 7.64%. During FY’15, the Bank’s profit
from sale of investments in fixed income category showed
a growth of 61% over FY'14.

Equity: During FY’15, Market rallied around 25% on the
expectations of formation of a stable Central Govt in the
general elections held in May’14. The euphoria continued on
reform hope after the Govt formation with high expectations
built on the Union Budget 2015. Further, improvement in
macroeconomic parameters like stable exchange rate and
current account deficit buoyed Fll inflows. The Mutual Fund
market also remained buoyant with retail customers taking the
Mutual Fund route to encash the rally.

During FY’15, the Bank aggressively participated in equity
market and earned a growth of 137% in Profit over FY’14 in
this segment. Further, on reckoning the dividend income, the
growth in profit came to 99% in this segment. During FY’15,
the Bank earned growth in profit of 75% in income from
Mutual funds.

Forex: During FY’15, USDINR foreign exchange market was
range bound keeping the exchange rate relatively stable. In
spite of limited scope for earning Forex profit, the Bank earned
growth in Forex income by 25% compared to FY’14.
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Internal Control System

Credit Audit and Review

Credit Audit for FY’15 was undertaken for all eligible loan
accounts including weak and takeover accounts. During
FY’15, Credit Audit of overseas loan accounts in PNB DIFC,
Dubai and Overseas Banking Unit, SEEPZ, Mumbai were also
got conducted. In terms of the said Policy, Credit Audit of
borrowal accounts having exposure of ¥ 2,34,348 crore was
undertaken covering 55.22% of loan portfolio of the Bank as
on 31.03.2015 as against the RBI’s requirement of atleast 30%
to 40% in a year.

In order to revamp and reorient the Credit Audit process back
towards its primary purpose, Executive Committee of the
Bank approved changes in the format of Executive Summary
of CARD audit reports to overcome the overlapping nature of
observations in regular/concurrent and credit audit.

These changes were brought into force w.e.f. 01.10.2014,
keeping in view the following objectives of the loan review
mechanism:

i. To provide top management with information on the
effectiveness of credit administration including credit
sanction process and post sanction compliance.

ii. To maintain the integrity of the Credit Grading/Risk
evaluating process.

iii. To identify promptly loans which develop credit
weaknesses so that field functionaries at branches/
Circle Offices & sanctioning authority may initiate timely
corrective steps.

iv. To evaluate portfolio quality and isolate potential problem
areas.

v. To assess the adequacy of and adherence to loan policies
and procedures and monitor compliance of relevant laws
and regulations.

Internal Audit

The objective of the Inspection & Audit is to ensure that the
business of the Bank is conducted in a prudent manner in
accordance with the policies and strategies established by
the Bank’s Board of Directors. The management is able to
identify, assess, manage and control the risks associated with
the business. These controls supplemented by an effective
audit function, independently evaluate the adequacy,
completeness, operational effectiveness and efficiency of the
control system within the organization, which has become
quite crucial in the fast changing banking scenario.

Compliance of laid down systems and procedures not only
helps in smooth functioning of the Bank but also provides a
risk free environment to achieve the objectives. Inspection
and Audit Division assesses and ensures that systems and
procedures framed by the institution on the basis of directions/
observations made by the Regulator/Board/ACB and developed
over a period of time were complied with.
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To achieve the above objectives, various type of Audits were
conducted viz. Risk Based Internal Audit (Onsite and Offsite),
Revenue Audit, Information System (IS) Audit, Credit Audit,
Snap Audit, Segment Audit, Compliance Audit, Legal Audit
and FEMA audit.

Besides, onsite audit, offsite monitoring was done through
Offsite surveillance Cell set up at IAD / ZAOs & also
through Circle Offices. Off-site Audit was also carried out
in Non concurrent Audit branches covering comprehensive
audit items and their compliance level at the branches for
assessment of change in risk direction and/or risk level in
various Business & Control Risk Parameters. Accordingly,
audit plan was implemented.

During FY’15, number of concurrent audit branches increased
from 940 to 1124 and their reports were processed on line
through e-RBIA. As on 31.12.2014, the concurrent Audit
branches cover 71% of Deposits, 74.44% of Advances and
72.47% of Total Business, which was in line with the RBI
guidelines.

Templates already implemented in the Bank in e-RBIA
for Non specialized Branches, LCB/MCB, IBB/AD
Branches, Retail Asset Branch (RAB), Assts Recovery
Management Branch (ARMB), MICR Centre, Back Offices
(RCC & CDPC). Format for Centralized Back Office for
Trade Finance (CBOTF) & International Service Branches
(ISB) were finalized and implemented for online audit in
e-RBIA. Audit format for FEMA audit branches was being
revised. To cover FEMA stipulations extensively in other
templates also, IBB/AD Branches template was revised.
Daily/Monthly/Quarterly/Annual Revenue Audit was also
covered in e-RBIA. IAD planned to formulate a strategy
to bring all revenue charges to be system driven which
were still manual in the branches viz. Processing Fee &
Documentation charges, etc.

Disaster Recovery (DR) Site for e- RBIA was set up at Belapur,
Mumbai. e-RBIA Server at HO, IAD was upgraded with a view
to increase its efficiency and to bring all branches of the Bank
under the ambit of e-RBIA in a phased manner.

Know Your Customer(KYC)/Anti Money Laundering (AML)

The Bank strictly followed KYC and AML guidelines issued
by the Regulator from time to time and only KYC compliant
customers were accepted by the Bank.

Risk categorization of all the customers into three Money
Laundering risks i.e., High, Medium and Low was followed
meticulously in terms of RBI guidelines. The Bank followed
RBI guidelines in respect of Beneficial Owner meticulously.
The Bank installed software which enables watch list
scanning, verifies customer identity and facilitates generation
of automated alerts for scrutiny of transactions of suspicious
nature. The system-generated alerts were monitored on daily
basis and in case of suspicion, Suspicious Transaction Report
(STR) was submitted to Financial Intelligence Unit-India (FIU-
IND).
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All the prescribed reports such as Counterfeit Currency
Reports (CCRs), Cash Transaction Reports (CTRs), Non Profit
Organization Reports (NTRs) and Cross Border Wire Transfer
Reports (CBWTRs) were submitted regularly to FIU-IND
through fin-NET Gateway.

In order to sensitize/educate the field staff on KYC/AML/CFT
issues, training was imparted through Zonal Training Centers
(ZTCs) and Central Staff College (CSC) and workshops on
UCIC & KYC / AML / CFT compliance were also organized
from time to time.

Management Audit

The Management Audit was identified as a separate function
in the Bank and an independent Management Audit & Review
Division (MARD) is in operation since 08.07.2004. The Bank
has in place a Risk Based Management Audit (RBMA) system
for conducting audit of its administrative offices. For this
purpose, RBMA Policy was initially approved by the Board on
28.04.2006 and last annually reviewed on 02.02.2015.

The audit is based on Risk Templates and risk profiles prepared
in-house to capture risk perceptions inherent in various areas
of functioning of administrative offices including decision
making process, communication system, efficient resource
utilization, means used to achieve the goals, etc. MARD
regularly conducted snap audit of identified Circles/other
administrative offices with potentially High risk perception to
proactively spur them into taking steps for bringing in desired
improvement in their functioning.

MARD also conducts audit of the Bank’s outsourced Activities,
Verification of Loss Data, review of the Bank’s established
policies, procedures, compliance of RMC/ORMC Directives,
Division level Key Responsibilities Indicators, Review of
BCCP, Review of Risk Measurement System (RMD-Mid
Office) and Review & Validation of ICAAP (Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process).

During FY’15, based on approved Annual Audit Plan, MARD
conducted management audit of 69 Circle Offices, 13
Field General Managers’ Offices, 13 Zonal Audit Offices, 6
Training Establishments, 5 Regional Rural Banks, 3 Domestic
Subsidiaries and 3 Overseas Subsidiaries besides audit of
other activities listed above.

Compliance

The Board appointed a Chief Compliance Officer in the rank of
a General Manager. In pursuance to the Compliance Policy of
the Bank, Divisional Compliance Officers, Circle Compliance
Officers, Branch Compliance Officers, Compliance Officers at
each training centers, ZAQO'’s, Foreign Branches, Subsidiaries
etc. were designated in all Divisions of HO, Circle Offices,
Branches and other offices, respectively. Further, compliance
functions were identified for all HO Divisions/Circles/Branches
and reporting mechanism was also established at various
levels for compliance in accordance with the guidelines of
the Regulator.

Compliance testing/mapping review on various products of
the Bank was being carried out on a regular basis. In order
to have better control on compliance risk and to promote



fIu @R o § SFUeH WA I deEl 3 % LY W
Y% Hed H1 qHien qen fafes W W sTuer sifusmiat
1 Ao off TEa-TEg R fea S @ oem

T, Gdehdl

Hashdl YU G 4 Rl UH WA AT B ISR
Tahdl H SPERHT ahdl R =3 Geler ?q Fashdl W
T ey Seae % w9 H, fady w15 # SRE wdwd
faum 3 frfafaa Ted iR wfdfafemr =@

fraftid ®9 9 e SR 319 T % HR0 T oy 9 e
TG Y Gdehdl 1 HIE WH Y & B | IHS SFeqal,
el Afed Hashdl A i el G HER 387 B T off,
Shfer Heet & sfae® o =[ad 99 2

foR® Ha®dl U™ & €9 H Hachdl AURRA T &A
Teshal AN gRI W@l 1 S} GiHAfvea foman a1 ik &g
frarer/afswa AR 1 stasE fowar T

YRO/EER % HeAq 9 Hiee ® forg Hendl & fewn e
w1 gfea fwan m@m
Hashdl SIFTEhal 9 (fTgaed) 27.10.2014 ¥ 01.11.2014

T TART TN 39 99 i o ot ‘ yEER w1 faue - wmef
Jrefiert @ w9 1)

A TN HEIM, 2R Hasdl WIEA % fafdw wmee
% qed A% H ISEAE ITATEE % fAT 12.03.2015 H
BEER H Hahdl SAHINE % Fed § R gE o
% fau dieet &1 ufafgd ‘‘widie Tdashal SRl TR
2014-15"" ¥ TwAifq feam e

Th A, ToAsl & q&d Washal Muel i fafim
Hashdl HIASS! | Ichpudl & foIq IsTa H9Me S § dieftet &
w9 H 3% HEqUl ANEH BG ‘‘2014-15 % AT Wechal
ShitieR'’ =it fean =m

16, gor a1 3Tt srfafram

17.

g H1 AR AfufEm S% gu fRAfem R T em
T 1 AR e & IR T S S w5
ECLSIEC (www.pnbindia.in) ™ oftd st T o foxi o
15 % M, Sk 7 7,517 AT Ww fhu ol sfufEm %
WAl % TEd 5388 KA SR 2121 G H g I FH
FI 3TUfed SHHR UM i1 31.03.2015 T 224 SAEZH UF
fruifa T @ & iR f9em & fou 9@ & w9 9 9

JSAATHT ifa T St

dF = &5 W wWifd TS wEeEd o &% § o
BUYN 3R @1 Bl Sh 4 UG R 8 WA TSI
fauam g foxm a9 2014-15 & fou fuifa wo= =d
ueel § eAfueskier el g e fern 21 |l g
Wity #iR TIeNTATE S & g & d'd 91 59
fgorst Yomelt i STUATRY, TSI & HhrEead | Ifie
gfs g2l 3o arfafem, 9 & gt T W & wEr etk
% fau gfhie wic &1 s&HE fRma T

ferfta = 2015 % <A S w1 B TN H O Sehy
TR & AT 34 RN © writa fohan o on, e wfafsa

16.

17.

compliance culture in the Bank, compliance review of each
Circle and sensitization of Compliance Officers at various
levels was also being undertaken from time to time.

Vigilance

Vigilance Administration is an integral part of management
function. As a paradigm shift of focus of vigilance from
punitive vigilance to proactive vigilance and measures of
good governance, the Vigilance Department undertook the
following initiatives and activities during FY’15.

Due to regular follow up and concerted efforts, there was no
vigilance case outstanding for more than one year. Moreover,
the total number of vigilance cases, including new additions,
was pruned down to 387, which was the minimum ever
outstanding in the history of PNB.

As a preventive vigilance measure, branch visits by the
Vigilance officers and Chief Vigilance Officer was ensured
and several preventive/ proactive seminars were organised.

CVC guidelines were communicated to field through circulars
and other modes of communications.

Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was observed from
27.10.2014 to 01.11.2014. The theme of the year was
“Combating Corruption — Technology as Enabler”.

The Institute of Public Enterprises, Hyderabad conferred the
prestigious “Corporate Vigilance Excellence Award 2014-
15”7 upon PNB for the second year in succession at the
Conclave of Vigilance Officers at Hyderabad on 12.03.2015
for remarkable achievements of the Bank under various
parameters of vigilance administration.

Further, the Chief Vigilance Officer of PNB was adjudged as
the ‘Best Vigilance Personnel of 2014-15’, considering his
significant contribution as CVO in Punjab National Bank in
excelling in various vigilance parameters.

Right To Information Act

The Right to Information Act was implemented by the Bank.
The relevant information as per Right to Information Act was
posted on the Bank’s website (www.pnbindia.in). During
FY’15, the Bank received 7517 applications and provided
requisite information to 5388 applicants and 2121 applications
were found exempted under the provisions of the Act. 224
applications were outstanding as on 31.03.2015 for disposal
within the prescribed timeframe.

Implementation of Official Language Policy

The Bank hasalwaysbeen leadingin the area of implementation
of Official Language as in other areas of the Bank. The Bank
achieved almost all the targets in all parameters fixed by
the Govt. of India, Ministry of Home Affairs, Department
of Official Language for the year 2014-15. All the bilingual
CBS and HRMS computers were under Hindi Interface. By
adopting this bilingual system, implementation of Rajbhasha
increased a lot. In addition, the Bank used Unicode fonts for
Hindi correspondence etc. at all levels.

During FY’15, the Bank was awarded with 34 awards for its
excellent performance in the use of Hindi which includes
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some of very significant awards namely Indira Gandhi
Rajbhasha Shield — a top most award scheme of Govt. of India,
RBI Rajbhasha Shield and other Regional level awards of
Ministry of Home Affairs. In addition, Town Official Language
Implementation Committees situated in different locations
of the country and other Non-Govt. Organizations also
awarded the Bank offices. The Bank successfully convened
the Town Official Language Implementation Committees
constituted by Govt. of India in Delhi, Bharatpur, Kanpur,
Chandigarh, Dharamshala, Sriganganagar, Bulandshahar,
Dehradun, Gorakhpur, Kurukshetra, Rohtak, Muzaffarnagar
and Hoshiarpur.

The third sub-committee of Committee of Parliament on
Official Language visited the Ernakulum Circle Branch Office-
Kottayam of the Bank on 19" January, 2015 and Draft &
Evidence Committee of Parliament on Official Language
inspected Delhi Bank Narakas Members on 15t April, 2015,
convenor of Delhi TOLIC being Punjab National Bank. The
Committee not only expressed satisfaction but also appreciated
the efforts made by the Bank for progressive use of Hindi.

The Bank celebrates "Hindi Maah’ in the month of September
every year. Various competitions were organised at all India,
local and Circle levels in which staff members of all cadres
participate enthusiastically. The winners are awarded with
prizes in the Rajbhasha Function. Bank has its own Lala Lajpat
Rai Rajbhasha Shield Yojana for its various HO Divisions and
Circle Offices, Training Centres, Zonal Audit Offices, etc.
Under the scheme, every year offices were awarded with
prizes for doing excellent work in the area of Rajbhasha
implementation. This year also, the Bank organised Hindi
Maah & other programmes/competitions and awards &
prizes were given. Fifth collection of articles received in the
competitions on creative writing is going to be published.
Under Moulik Hindi Pustak Lekhan Yojana of the Bank, cash
incentives were awarded to the staff members for writing
original books in Hindi on Banking and Non-banking subjects.
All the staff members including the employees retired from the
Bank’s services, participated under this scheme.

Customer Care

The Bank continues to lay greater emphasis on providing
prompt and efficient service to its customers. With a view
to achieve this end, the Bank has established Customer Care
Centre at each Circle Office and Head Office. Customer Care
Centre at Head Office is headed by a General Manager, who
is assisted by a Deputy General Manager, two Chief Managers
and several other officers. Every endeavour is made to redress
the complaints within the timeframe fixed under the Grievance
Redressal Policy formulated by the Bank and complainant is
invariably apprised of the response of the Bank. In the Bank,
systems and procedures are reviewed at regular intervals to
remove systemic deficiency, if any, which help in further
improving the customer service.

Due to constant efforts made by the Bank to improve the
customer service, the number of complaints received during
FY’15 came down from 38,869 in FY’14 to 29,759. Out of
total number of 29,951 complaints, 192 complaints were
outstanding as on 01.04.2014 and 29759 complaints were
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received during FY’15. The number of complaints redressed
was 29,778 as at 31% March 2015. 173 complaints were
pending as on 31.03.2015, which stood resolved.

The number of unimplemented awards as at 01.04.2014
was 4. The awards passed by Banking Ombudsman during
FY’15 were 7 while the awards implemented during same
period were 10. One award remained unimplemented as at
31 March 2015, in respect of which appeal was filed with
the Appellate Authority.

Initiatives undertaken during the year for improvement in
customer service

e The Bank constituted a team of officials at Customer Care
Centre at Head Office to pay incognito visit to branches
in Delhi NCR area to assess their standard of service.
Deficiencies pointed out by the visiting officials are being
shared with the concerned branch and the Circle Office
for taking corrective steps for removal of the same. Similar
system was introduced in other Circle Offices of the Bank
on pan India basis. This helped in further improvement in
customer service.

e The Bank established state-of-the-art Contact Centres at
Gurgaon and Noida to provide tele-banking services to its
customers on 24 x 7 x 365 basis through two renowned
Service Providers viz., (i) M/s Aegis Limited and (i) M/s
Mphasis Limited. In addition to above two Primary Sites,
the Bank established two Secondary Contact Centres at
Mangalore and Bhopal to provide tele-banking services to
its customers in regional languages also.

e The Bank publishes a monthly magazine titled “Customer
Speak” in which gist of the selected complaints made by the
customers is published and the action taken and resolution
provided to the complainant is also mentioned. Besides,
the Bank’s guidelines on important issues pertaining to
customer service are highlighted for the benefit of the field
staff.

e Theme Based Meetings were conducted in all branches
on a common date at monthly intervals to bring about
awareness of the Bank’s products and schemes and for
improving knowledge and skills of the field staff.

PNB’s Subsidiaries and Regional Rural Banks
PNB Housing Finance Limited (PNBHFL)

FY’15 was a year of high growth once again under all the
parameters. The Company achieved good growth in fresh
loans, outstanding loan book, profitability and it further
reduced Non-Performing loans. The Company’s Total Loans
sanctioned during the year were ¥ 15,076 crore showing
YoY growth of 71% in FY’15. During the year, the total loan
disbursements was ¥ 9440 crore showing YoY growth of 72%
in FY’15. The Loans outstanding as on 31 March 2015 was
16,819 crore registering the growth of 59% over FY'14.

The Company’s Gross Non-Performing Assets stood at 0.20%
while Net Non-Performing Assets stood at 0.07% which was
lowest in the Industry. Profit before Tax stood at ¥ 295.46
crore, showing YoY growth of 68% over FY’14. The Profit
after Tax reached at ¥ 196.11 crore showing YoY growth of
54% over FY'14.
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The Company faced tough competition in the market, with
regard to declining margins and takeover of portfolio by the
competitors. This challenge was met with efficient funds
management and improved service to the customers. The
Company improved the borrowing mix during the vyear,
which has enabled it not only to reduce borrowing cost
but also better net interest margin as compared to last year.
Public deposits of the Company grew by over 186% atI 4897
crore. The deposits contributed over 28% of the loan assets as
compared to 16% a year ago.

The Company introduced online state-of-art Enterprise System
Solution. The Company will soon introduce web enabled
services for its customers and business associates. During the
year, the Company opened six new branches taking the total
network to 38 branches. These branches were supported by
15 zonal and regional underwriting hubs. The hub structure
scalable up to 60-65 branches would enable future growth of
business. By 31 March 2015, the Company was 5" largest
Housing Finance Company and 2" largest deposit taking
Housing Finance Company.

PNB Gilts Limited

During FY’15, Indian financial markets continued to be guided
by a host of varying factors, like commitment to inflation
management, reasonable stability on currency front, current
account deficit under control and on fiscal consolidation path.
Further, fast changing geo-political landscape, weakening
commodity prices including plummeting crude prices,
weakening Euro Zone economy, signs of strengthening US
economy, growth slowdown in China and positive macro
economic developments in India were shaping the contours of
Indian financial markets. In the wake of these developments,
a revised liquidity management framework was introduced
to manage liquidity condition on an ongoing basis while the
statutory liquidity ratio (SLR) was reduced to 21.5% of NDTL.
In tune with the falling retail inflation, RBI also cut the repo
rate by 50 bps to 7.50%. As a result of all these factors, the
yield on ten year Sovereign benchmark paper declined to the
level of 7.74% as on 31* March 2015.

Against the above developments, PNB Gilts Ltd. fulfilled all
its obligations as a primary dealer in both the Primary and
Secondary markets. Profit before Tax (PBT) amounted to % 134
crore as against ¥ 91 crore in FY’14 The increase in profit was
due to the company’s extra vigilance on market movement
with a suitable trading strategy within the risk parameters set
by the Board to keep the market risk under check. The trading
income amounted to ¥ 76 crore during FY’15 as against % 31
crore in FY’'14. Further the total outright turnover increased
to ¥ 4.71 lakh crore as against ¥ 3.08 lakh crore in FY’14.
This is the highest turnover achieved by the company since
inception. The Total Net worth of the company stood at
% 718.06 crore as on 315 March 2015.

Punjab National Bank International Limited (PNBIL)

During FY’15, Total Business of PNBIL increased from $2818
million (as on 31 March 2014) to $ 2975.17 million (as on
31 March 2015), registering a YoY growth of 5.58%.
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Depositsincreasedto $1421 million(2014:$1331 million), while
Advances increased to $1554 million (2014: $1487 million),
registering YoY growth of 6.74% and 4.50%, respectively. The
major growth under deposits came in retail deposits, which
grew from $683 million to $722 million. Operating Profit
went up from $27 million to $41 million, registering growth
of 52%. Total Comprehensive Income attributable to equity
shareholders was $ 9.91 million (2014: $8.63 million). Offering
basic banking products and relationship banking continues to
be the strong selling point for the Bank. The Indian Rupee (INR)
Remittance scheme of the Bank stabilized and gained popularity
among the ethnic population. The Bank built a strong brand
image in the UK market.

Cash ISA product launched by PNBIL with variants of Variable
Rate Cash ISA and Fixed Rate Cash ISA, has gained popularity
and the Company attracted over USD 100 million deposits
under the scheme. Helpline service established by the
Bank during previous year has stabilized and contributed in
improving the customer service. The Bank switched over from
Maestro Card to contact-less Master card. Debit card holders
of PNBIL have the option to withdraw money from any ATM
having Master Card logo. PNBIL is the first Indian Bank to
issue contactless debit card and few among the local banks
to do so. Strategic integration, parental support, continuous
innovation, customer centric approach, niche positioning
and competitive advantage in its targeted customer base
are the key strengths the Bank is enjoying in UK. The Bank
has in place well defined and clearly laid down policies on
Risk Management, Audit and Compliance. The Bank has its
own dedicated treasury at London and a back office in India.
The Bank complies with all regulatory and capital adequacy
guidelines of Prudential Regulation Authority of UK.

Punjab National Bank Investment Services Limited (PNBISL)

PNB Investment Services Ltd. (PNBISL) is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Punjab National Bank. It is engaged in providing
Merchant Banking and other Corporate Advisory services in
the streams of Financial Appraisal/Techno-Economic viability
Study, Debt Syndication and undertaking Corporate Debt
Restructuring (CDR) besides providing Trusteeship services to
various Corporate Clients.

The Company is having Corporate Office at Mumbai and
registered office at Delhi. At both these offices all gamut of
services are being rendered. The Company is also having
three other Representative Offices at Chennai, Hyderabad
and Ahmedabad. Besides generating business leads for
Mumbai and Delhi Offices, these Representative Offices also
undertake Security Trustee and Loan Syndication activities.
Chennai Representative Office is also equipped to handle
conducting of Techno-economic viability studies.

In the financial year ended on 31 March 2015, the overall
performance of the Company was good. During the year ended
March 2015, the Company earned total fee based business
income of ¥ 11.13 crore as against last year corresponding
fee of ¥ 8.08 crore registering YoY growth of about 38%.
Total Income of the Company increased from ¥ 11.15 crore
to ¥ 14.53 crore at a growth rate of 30%. Profit before tax,
during this period, improved from ¥ 8.06 crore to ¥ 10.70
crore, registering YoY growth of 33%.
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During the period, the Company under Merchant Banking
stream filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) for one of
reputed company engaged in Infrastructure development for its
proposed Initial Public Offer (IPO). The Company was also in
process of conducting due diligence for filing DRHP in another
Merchant Banking assignment of a reputed company engaged
in Automobile components for its proposed IPO. During the
period, the ambit of CDR Advisory Services was increased to
cover bilateral restructurings apart from restructuring under
CDR, EG aegis. The Company is now planning to further
expand the scope of the services to include debt resolution
through take-out financing, refinancing options and providing
corporate advisory services to arrange finance for big
Infrastructure Projects, which could not achieve commercial
operation as envisaged at the time of their financial closure.
Further, the Company was also planning to take steps for
providing corporate advisory services to the lenders and
borrowers through rectification route under JLF mechanism,
where the private equity/strategic capital is to be arranged.

With slew of reform and forward looking Central budget
coupled with supporting Monetary policy, of the Regulator
Bank, there is a positive outlook in financial and Stock Markets.
PNBISL is confident to get benefit of the positive sentiments
and hopeful to do better in FY’16. The Company was also in
process of strengthening its team through recruitment of some
senior officials under Merchant Banking and Restructuring
segments and is confident to get many more Merchant Banking
assignments to broaden its visibility in the financial market.

The Company aims to blossom into an Investment Bank by
offering the entire gamut of investment banking and corporate
advisory services like venture capital advisory, project
advisory, buy and sell-side advisory, accessing financial
markets to raise capital and restructuring advisory.

Regional Rural Banks

As on 31% March 2015, five RRBs, sponsored by Punjab
National Bank, were operating in five States, namely, Bihar,
Haryana, Himachal Pradesh, Punjab and Uttar Pradesh
covering 74 districts with a network of 2144 branches.

The aggregate paid-up capital of these Regional Rural
Banks stood at ¥ 199.30 crore. Central Government, State
Governments and PNB contributed in paid-up capital of
these RRBs in the ratio of 50: 15: 35 respectively. The Bank’s
contribution towards capital of these RRBs was ¥ 69.76 crore.
The combined net worth of PNB sponsored RRBs as on March
2015 was X 2809.85 crore.

During FY’15, the Aggregate Business of all RRBs increased from
340531 crore to< 45630 crore showing a growth of ¥ 5099 crore
(12.58%). The Aggregate Deposits and Aggregate Advances
as on 31.03.2015 stood at ¥ 29194 crore (YoY 14.01%) and
% 16436 crore (YoY 10.13%), respectively. The Aggregate Net
Profit of the RRBs as on 31.03.2015 stood at ¥ 331.25 crore
(YoY 9.05%). All the sponsored RRBs are in Profit.

The Gross NPAs of the RRBs stood at ¥ 692 crore (4.21% of
Total Advances) during the period. Further, Net NPAs stood at
% 338 crore (i.e. 2.15% of Net Advances) as on 31.03.2015.
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TN hl S XS T YT YeH S S @Y R

AT T S TS/ TeRe @ f @ ®© 1 |t &
Tt SR H TRl hl TRUHS, T Sfe HE ud hdE
HTE, AR Tes H & q8d fohdleh & SfehT Hegem
(FdiTH) IEIE & dw@d R W fow fawem (TEim)
T o GoHd Sues HUE ST Wl oMl S 3 wE 2015
T Ol TR okl (o W™ YRd WeR, SiUhud
BN 5k i U W) wi wrd foman 21 et feafa femgER © 1

31.03.2015 @l & UTHIUT Sehl o1 SHrATTSATEA

During the year, 217 new branches were opened by RRBs,
taking the Total Network of branches to 2144 with all being
on CBS and total numbers of employees stood at 8675.

Progress in opening of accounts under Pradhan Mantri
Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY) as on 31.03.15 was 23,88,792
accounts, out of which RuPay debit cards were issued in
5,34,122 accounts. Balance outstanding in these accounts
stood at ¥ 354.9 crore. The survey of allotted wards & Sub
Service Areas (SSAs) was completed by all RRBs in time.

The RRBs sponsored by the Bank actively participated in
economic development of the areas of their presence. With
the implementation of Core Banking Solution (CBS), rural
customers also received the benefits of latest technology, thus
providing services to the rural poor under Financial Inclusion
Plan at their doorsteps.

RRBs also opened NRE/NRO accounts. The facility of NEFT,
RuPay ATM cards & KCC cards, KIOSK banking solution (KBS)
under Financial Inclusion Plan, Aadhaar Payment Bridge
System (ABPS) under DBT, etc., were also being provided
to customers in all the RRBs. The Bank achieved all the SOI
targets given by the Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India, DFS
to the Bank for March 2015.

Performance of RRBs as on 31.03.2015

fag =@ 2015 % SR HuA 1 IHS H oA SR wEwl

% U ore e W g ol ° e R Ru s ® € :

o T IS gR WUR fo<ia THEYH Tedd o S ¥
HTHTHE 2015 TR
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TEYE SifEw gevE Ted|

o TSR ST FEAM, BSWAR GN HTURES HAehdl Schudl
YR 2014-15

o ITES SfehT Wil qEhR 2014-15 - **Scpy wi¥mer
qoT UM A, Al ved (fieey) - 9Rd oF g
g fgdta Iafasiar

o Wk YEUA ® fAU Thg G 37are : v faem 3t
ISR G5 - e ARH & e gamr o=

o JwH o Sfedd WEH! WGl US TEAY SOUESS g
THTHTH ST Sehdl WERR 2014 foxia gHEEH 29
F9g qeh - Iufersianl

(ufer g T H)
(Amt. In % Crore)
FH. | et rdor SR et 14 | W 15 (oRE | a-a-ad | [N [ performance of RRBs Mar'14 Mar'15 Yoy
EoRiELCEl (o Tt wife) | gfs % (Audited) (Audited) | growth%
. | e SHfE 25607 29194 14.01 1 Aggregate deposits 25607 29194 14.01
2. | ket S wferr 14924 16436 1013 |2 Aggregate Advances 14924 16436  10.13
3. |9 s @ 304 331 9.05 3 Aggregate Net Profit 304 331 9.05
4. | iy & siqiiq sma 100% 100% -1 |4 Branches under CBS 100% 100% -
5. | S HHER o (T T ) 3.98 4.04 152| |5 Profit Per Employee (Rs lakh) 3.98 4.04 1.52
"Tﬁl H ool @ e w 41 93 - No. of Loss Making 41 93 -
HeA (12 AR YA A Branches (being 12 month
Y STfere ) old or more)
20. S ! YT 3ETE TS YRR 20. Awards and Accolades

During Financial Year 2015, in recognition of its performance and
initiatives, PNB received various awards, some of which are:

e BFSI Awards for Bank with leading Financial Inclusion
Initiatives 2015 by ABP News.

e IBA Banking Technology awards 2014-15 for the Bank
with “Best Risk Management Initiatives” by Indian Banks’
Association.

e Corporate Vigilance Excellence Award 2014-15 by Institute
of Public Enterprises, Hyderabad.

e |BA Banking Technology Awards 2014-15 for the bank with
“Best Training and Human Resources, e-Learning initiatives
(PSU)” -Second Runners Up by Indian Banks’ Association.

e Skoch Renaissanace Award for people management: Skill
Development & Employment generation — Certificate for
Commendable Contribution.

e MSME Banking Excellence Awards 2014- Best Bank for
Financial inclusion -Runners Up by Chambers of Indian
Micro Small and Medium Enterprises.
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e Banking Frontiers: Inspiring Work Place by Banking
Frontiers Magazines.

e Golden Peacock Business Excellence Award 2014 by
Institute of Directors.

e Golden Peacock Innovative Product/Service Award 2014
by Institute of Directors.

e Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana Awards for Excellence by
Federation of Trade Services.

e PSU Awards — Financial Inclusion and Payment Systems
Award by Elets Technomedia Pvt. Ltd.

Board of Directors

As on 31.03.2015, there were 8 Directors on the Board of the
Bank including 3 whole time Directors i.e. Managing Director
& Chief Executive Officer and two Executive Directors. During
FY’15, the following changes took place in the composition of
Board of Directors:

e Shri K. R. Kamath demitted the office of Chairman &
Managing Director of the Bank w.e.f. 28.10.2014 on
completion of his tenure of five years on 27.10.2014.

o Shri Rajesh Aggarwal was appointed in place of Shri
Anurag Jain as Government of India Nominee Director on
the Board of the Bank w.e.f. 29.01.2015.

e Shri Gauri Shankar, Executive Director entrusted with
additional Charge of the Managing Director & Chief
Executive Officer of the Bank for a period of three months,
assumed charge of the office w.e.f. 09.02.2015.

e Shri B.B. Chaudhry, Shri M.A. Antulay, Shri M.N. Gopinath
and Shri D.K. Singla, Directors completed their tenure on
the Board of the Bank during FY’15.

e Dr. Sunil Gupta and Smt. Aradhana Misra, Directors
resigned from the Board of the Bank during FY’15.

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the
valuable contribution made by Shri K.R. Kamath, CMD, Shri
Anurag Jain, Shri B.B. Chaudhry, Shri M.A. Antulay, Smt.
Aradhana Misra, Dr. Sunil Gupta, Shri M.N. Gopinath and
Shri D.K. Singla, Directors.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors confirm that in the preparation of the annual
accounts for the year ended March 31, 2015:

e The applicable Accounting Standards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

e The accounting policies, framed in accordance with the
guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India, were consistently
applied;

e Internal financial controls have been laid down by the
Bank for ensuring orderly conduct of business;

e Reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates were
made so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Bank at the end of the financial year and of the profit
of the Bank for the year ended March 31, 2015;
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e Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of applicable laws governing banks in India,
and

e The accounts have been prepared on the principle of
“going concern” basis.

23. Acknowledgement

The Board expressed thanks to the Government of India,
Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of
India, Stock Exchanges, Bank’s customers, Public and the
shareholders for valuable support, continued patronage and
confidence reposed in the Bank.

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciation for the
valuable contribution made by the staff of the Bank at all levels
and look forward to their continued involvement in achieving
the future goals.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
%w‘/%/w’w

(Gauri Shankar)
Managing Director & CEO
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HRER ITEIIa [ue Business Responsibility Report

IFAT T : U & R o HU Gorqn Section A: General Information about the Company
1. HUET HI KGNS TEATT ] &l 1. Corporate Identity Number Not Applicable
e (AT ) (CIN) of the Company
2. YT HT AW TSl Y deh 2. Name of the Company Punjab National Bank
3. USitehd Tar TS e S, 3. Registered address Punjab National Bank,
T T Head Office,
7, HETTS A I, 7 Bhikhaiji Cama Place,
T f@ - 110607 New Delhi-110607
4, éiﬂm'sz www.pnbindia.in 4. Website www.pnbindia.in
5. 3-UeT 3MEET cmd@pnb.co.in, 5. E-mail id cmd@pnb.co.in
eicmasd@pnb.co.in eicmasd@pnb.co.in
6. Torcitar = frard 2014-15 6. Financial Year reported 2014-15
7. ®Ot f @( ) ¥ HWag § (it wfafafat - 7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activit
pany gag y
g AR ) code-wise)
%, e SN Sectors
1 ElciCi 1 Banking Services
2 TEHN HRER 2 Govt Business
3 e HHT 3 Merchant Banking
4 Hige w1 4 Credit Cards
5 ToiHl HRER- &H, Fgaa B g 5 Agency Business- Insurance,
Mutual Funds etc.

8. a"l‘-rug@s‘cqm/ﬁﬁrrq o= wudt faffe et 3/3Uete 8. List three key products/services that the Company

ETG) %\“ (qe=-ux * 3TTER ) manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)
¥F T UESRl H fafae Sedl @R efeRtanet @l 9 & The Bank offers wide range of products and services to its
foru i T T I e S 3 s customers serving various needs and aspirations. Some of the

key products offered are:

T IS T TFR 7:

TR Deposits
o TS @rdl e Current Accounts
o dI=d Tty @ e Savings Fund Account
o TEfY SH] @l e Term Deposit Account
T Advances

e Cash Credit
: ﬁg e Term loans
o foet 9% e Bills Discounting
o TG T e Letters of Credit
HI BT Ancillary Services
e dlhY o Lockers
o THEUMR Tam@ e Depository Services
o o 3R T-Sfeq s FRER e Life and Non life Insurance Business
o TEIA He e Mutual Funds



9. oHET TAM i WEAT W&l U+l gRT RGN Wfatareai st 9. Total number of locations where business activity is
T - undertaken by the Company
1, i Tl @ W (WE 5 % faater uEe W) a. Numb(;; of International Locations (Provide details of
Y . g . . major
TR 4 T (e W uE SewR AR gre . , , .
ﬁ e, ) R - Presently, the Bank has its overseas presence in 9 countries
), 3 3 . - i S & by way of 4 branches (including one Offshore Banking
% WeEm W AR H 9 TP oo Iufefa €, e Unit in Mumbai, 3 Subsidiaries, 1 Joint Venture and 3
faaror fr=ER 2. Representative Offices as per the following details:
el % W wHEEn | Type of office | SN _|Destination
1 FEIR SreT e, T 1 Offshore Banking Unit, Mumbai
: 2 B FIT A 2 Hong Kong Main
3 PRI BT HIT EIoiges 3 Kowloon Hong Kong
4 SloTEURH, I 4 [DIFC, Dubai
1 TN, J& (7 @) 1 |PNBIL, UK (7 branches)
. . | Subsidiar 2 DRUK PNB Ltd., Bhutan (5 Branches)
1 = S 9 (5 ) ! 3 JSC SB PNB, Kazakhstan (4 Branches)
3 SUEH TEel T, Heleh (4 ) Joint Venture 1 Everest Bank Limited, Kathmandu, Nepal
T STH 1 TR 9% fafiee, FeHrg, U (52 wE) g e (52 Branches)
1 TEE, < 1__|Shanghai, China
vfafafer smate= 2 T, qTC Rep Office 2 |Dubai, UAE
3 o, sefermn 3 |Sydney, Australia

9. TP T e

31 919 2015 1 UITE! & 13 Thics Hedss HrEicd (THESITHaT)
69 Heel ™, 6560 UMET q9 8348 TETH B

10 HUAT GRT Afgd SR - T/ /AT 3TaRiger

TE Wl Heash dfed UHE qol SR JNR|

AT &t : Ut & fawia faawor

1.

oS (D

ST Yot (TETTRAR ) %370.9 HT
HA FER ( STETANR ) T 881913 RIg
A h YYETA SRl oY (SMETHR ) T 3062 HUS
wT UYET W & Ufavid & &0 ¥ fwitha wmrtses
ITEIE (HTHIR ) W o & /e &9 (%)
feriar o 2015 % SR @SR TatateE W T wd
= %.375.89 G o1 Ig HY UL T T 0.12% ol
wfafafeat &t gei o sudea 4 ¥ Sfgfan =@ fag
T E-
T IWEe ¥ gHad ®E (M & q@d)
o, fafean fofer
. Sy fovafoeme o frami & a1 @feq

EXRERIEL
. garo

b. Number of National Locations
PNB has 13 Field General Manager Offices (FGMOs),
69 Circle Offices, 6560 Branches and 8348 ATMs as on
March 31st, 2015.

10. Markets served by the Company - Local/State/National/

International

Both National and International markets with large branch
network.

Section B: Financial Details of the Company

1.
2.
3.

Paid up Capital (INR) %.370.9 crore

Total Business (INR) %. 881913 crore

Total profit after taxes (INR) % 3062 crore

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
percentage of profit after tax (%)

During FY’15, the total spending on CSR activities was
Rs 375.89 lakh. This constituted 0.12% of Profit after Tax.

List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been
incurred:-

a. Rehabilitation work in Uttarakhand (Under Donation)
b. Medical Camps

c. Farmers Training including visits of farmers to Agriculture
Universities.

d. Tree Plantations
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e. Blood Donation Camps
f. Distribution of Artificial Limbs
g. PNB Hockey Academy

Section C: Other Details

1.

Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/
Companies?

Yes, the Bank has four domestic subsidiaries viz.:
PNB Gilts Ltd.

PNB Housing Finance Ltd.

PNB Investment Services Ltd.

d. PNB Insurance Broking Pvt. Ltd.*

o T o

* PNB Insurance Broking Pvt. Ltd is non functional. The broking License

2.

has been surrendered and steps are being taken for winding up of the
company.

The three International Subsidiaries of the Bank are:

a. Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd, UK.
b. Druk PNB Bank Ltd
c. JSC SB PNB Kazakhstan

Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the
BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s)

No.

Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors
etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in
the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%,

More than 60%]

| 60%, 60% | 1fae )
. No

EE

STTHTT T : HRER STETEaS gt Section D: BR Information
1. HER ST & fou swert feve/ v & faawor 4

3. FRER ITEAE Afa/Afaal & wEfeEe 3 SaEr

Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
the

a. Details of Director/Directors  responsible  for

v/ fRyw & forero implementation of the BR policy/policies
ER A 2158 faeur Sr No. |Particulars Details
1 |Siemw gemn 06861202 1 |DIN Number 06861202
2 AH o .. St a9 2 Name Shri K.V. Brahmaji Rao
3 RSl FHRTS 9T 3 Designation Executive Director
a4 FNER WA 799 1 o b. Details of the BR Head
E Terawor Sr No. | Particulars Details
1 SIE gq e <l Bl 1 DIN Number Not Applicable
2 [T™ il ggfj‘_"%‘ S ‘ ’ 2 | Name Shri D.K. Jain
3 B9, A9 U] A 8 Designation General Manager, Management
EARIRII Advisory Services Division
4 Y & 011-26196852 4 Telephone Number | 011-26196852
5 E;*fl?f S dkjain@prib.co.in e-mail id dkjain@pnb.co.in




2, fagidar (TSt & AR ) stemr sifa/~ifaat (3w &i/=f & ¥)

w d
E sl :E ‘E/ E
U U2 i3 ut4 s te 7 uig | dto
1 ek i T i | & | = % i | @ | @ | @ | =
1 A # Feior dag feaame & Wt 9 e T e I i ! . . . . . ,
2 i i i i i = = = =
1 it forel TtE/eraRigia HF R QU T @2 Afg @ dl av ] I ' . . . . . .
3 e (s0 st H)* i ki = =i = = = = i
1 Aifq A€ gR SFHifcd B TE 82 AR B A w0 A wAey @y A ] A A ‘ ‘ . A
4 |<genaeifon @ frve gw Twmala €2 = Gl & il i = i & Bl
1 Hifd & FEFEE S @@ 7 RO H S/ i i | | ) ) ) . . . .
5 e v iR 22 ki i i i = = = = =
6 | <@ S R i w1 feen wa?
g Afifa & fowa § @ty onafe w9 fequmal @6 I I | ) ) ) ) . .
7 | w9 @ gfed w0 R w2 | &l &l ® @ @ @ @ @
F AfaAfaal w1 @] FH F fau wUH H RE oTdiw wEE ! I ) ) ) ) . . .
N S A i G i i & i & & &
Fan SfifaAifaar § Hafud feqaumet w1 frewmal & gwae 7 T H
FN w7 R oA stean e USiH g 39 Aifd & wriEed ] ] ) ] i ) } ) !
10 | s Srariemy qeateT O 32 T il T T T T all T il
« g A HARE w1 WA R Y THE e fentE % ey 2
2u, Ife W €.01 & Tl fagia = ST <@ & @ Fuan sen W fe vEn w827 (2 fawmew e stfera @t
ok AR | 1 |q"}2 |1:|°r3 |t|"}4 |':|"}6 |1ﬁ7 |‘er |'ﬁ9
1 | & fagial o wwe e uE @

2

FI 38 TR W TG ¢ s i fagial & srEr Afaat
% fefa 3 @ = o

FUN H UW I FE B fadE een S e
ooty T F

T 6 HE H HT WH FT B Ao ©

T 1 T W 3 UE HE R A @

g 3T FHROT (FIAT AT FR)

3. WHIER STaETad o et srivgmes

o T ogf wa foud fRvrer weer, A @t wfufa storar Higsh KUt & HNER STRETIE & e 1 gedie
A B 3 WIE o ST, 3 ¥ 6 WiE W, Uidad, Teh o6 | iferes @ug 0?

I F HRER ST 006 & o 2 i€ ekl *1 aiffeh See 2l 2
o T HUH ST 3reran feoar (TRl ) Nuid 1 werror &dl 82 30 9@ & fou gguiferss =& 7

o e furd geifer e @ 9o 38 d@d & AU Wi www.pnbindia.in ¥1 g T aiffies 9 @ wehifera 1 St

? 3R S =1 aifter R w1 fewmn B R



arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies (Replyin Y/N)

3 3 é
2 2 <
= | 2 |2s B2 |2 5 :
. 2 -7 [£8 |BE £ N g
S.No |Questions g Ss |82 |€¢8 |sg 5 S E
= - o - = -
I |22 [ZE zEElE |z 12 |5 |%f
0 o ot 28 o O|T [iw| a S O =
P1 P2 P3  [Pa |p5 P6 [P7 |P8  |P9
1 Do you have policy/policies for....2 Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
relevant stakeholders?
3 Does the policy conform to any national /international Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
standards? If yes, specify?(50 words)*
4 |Has the policy been approved by the Board? Is yes, has it been |Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
signed by MD/owner/CEO/appropriate Board Director?
5 Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/ [Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Director/Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?
6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online?
7 |Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
internal and external stakeholders?
8 Does the company have in-house structure to implement the  |Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
policy/policies?
9  |Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism re- |Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
lated to the policy/policies to address stakeholders’ grievances
related to the policy/policies?
10 |Has the company carried out independent audit/evaluation of |N N N N N N N N N
the working of this policy by an internal or external agency?
* The policy is in conformity with the National Voluntary Guidelines brought out by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
2a. If answer to S.No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)
S.No. Questions P1 | P2 | P3 | P4 | P5 | P6 | P7 | P8 | P9

1 The company has not understood the Principles

The company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a
2 position to formulate and implement the policies on speci-
fied principles

3 The company does not have financial or manpower re- NOT APPLICABLE
sources available for the task

4 It is planned to be done within next 6 months

5 It is planned to be done within the next 1 year

6 Any other reason (please specify)

3. Governance related to BR

o Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance of
the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year.

The Board of Directors meets annually to assess the BR performance of the company.
e Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this?

The Bank publishes the BR report and the hyperlink for viewing this is www.pnbindia.in This report is published annually & is a
part of the Bank’s Annual Report.
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Section E: Principle-wise Performance

Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves
with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

o

Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption
cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the
Group/Joint  Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /
Others?

The Bank is committed to good corporate governance which
promotes long term interest of stakeholders. It also strengthens
Board and management accountability and builds public trust in
the Bank. The Bank’s accountability policy covers ethics, bribery,
corruption and related issues. Ithas an effective mechanismto check
corruption, malpractices, embezzlements and misappropriation
of funds. It also follows the guidelines strictly as per the Vigilance
Manual issued by Central Vigilance Commission.

The policy is presently applicable only to the Bank. However,
it will be gradually extended to cover subsidiaries.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the
past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so.

The total number of complaints received from the shareholders
during FY’15 is 67, out of which 66 complaints (98.51%) have
been resolved satisfactorily. The complaints relate to -

1. Non receipt of dividend warrant.

2. Non receipt of Annual Report.

3. Non receipt of share certificate.

4. Less credit/non credit of shares during FPO 2005.
5. Transmission of shares.

Also 2800 references were received for non receipt of dividend
or revalidation of stale dividend warrants in respect of earlier
years. All the cases have been resolved within a period of 7
days of receipt.

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services that are
safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle

1.

List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or
opportunities.

PNB is a leading Bank in terms of providing financial services
to the country and the Bank acknowledges its role as a growth
enabler. The Bank plays an active role in the economic and
social development of the country and various schemes
have been implemented to uplift the poor sections of the
society. The Bank being a service organization does not deal
with products which are hazardous in nature. Some of the
innovative products and services include:

1. Biometric ATM Cards: This card makes it possible for
illiterate or barely literate customers to use banking services.
The application supports transaction authorization using
fingerprint scans of the cardholder and thus enables them
to withdraw money without using PIN.



2. wrAfHeRar ST W WUT: S% I &5 B RO I @
® difer wieifehar & g WS @Rl i wiw feRar w0
Heh| WA &5 & d8d R0 UM HIA hl TANS b
FHHS o o SaTer T GehRcHS GHE TSdl & i
I K Y IAF FI YE F o 3% (AT IEH B
g U AR S €1 98 U WIS $evd @ al
do fRenfEel 1 ST uTer w7 A1 THISIA &g SO
AMEE FE ® gl TR 7

3. WERRT FreFTel § WAleRT: §% 9Rd SR &1 fafm
AeIet, A FAEEA §H oF A (TUSEEE),
T ISR o FHrEichH (TUEgsidt) geq ue oy
ITHl B R Heds Yol Hfswe! A (SHuerEias),
T TE TR AR (hAleTEH!) qo1 HUST WS S
& & forg grnfient s ffy @ (Sgueey) |, @
JHEHIUT S 2 At A, onf ® onrafera w9 9
TRl Y @l 21 3 Gt dsmre o fefer ganedi qen
W SEE & foi e WM Sl ® S eren
fafera g & X UMl 3@ YR Se gare & fou
USHIR G | ANEH il 2l

4. ufgem TS @t SwoT: Afgen onwfeEi & Rt
T W RO YEM foRA1 Wl € den siuie wEteE 9 T
Taftd Afet YR wEE € S Afeen araifdEr 3 faf
o1 A % ST B W F A ¥ e
7 A ITHT A STETAHAA H TR o1 Arsreit
) qAEE L 2

5 TUATHUNE &7 Wi HUT: THUGUNE &7 UH HewqUl &
2 W W W reforawen § Uw wewul it fem
21 Yo fafi demie & WeTd ¥ 39 &9 & RO YSH
FX @ ? U shent o sravaearet 1 gfd 1 et
e 2 @ R

2. TH udeh SAE & @ Sae &l uid g (Sehfeadh )

T HETER STANT (Felt, SeA, Theel 0T, ToATS ) o dael

Y frefafaa faeror e =

i. Taad ¥ "yl dog O W WiEn/sare/ faaor &
R d wHi?

ii. 7T ad § STWERTS (S, ST ) gRT SUANT @ SR
e wT?
Yol IS BH % A qE UM AR L 2

w0 R & U T St (Raes |t ) & fag we
HEYUTE 8?7 Tfe & @ oMUk MEmt ot feRae wfaera
Wt w0 ¥ Eiq fHar T ANET 50 Il W OgHeRT
Teaawor ot s

ot geom & faw ony 2 2l

T YT 3 3T HTe T & STHATH & T TS e
ITEeRl T HETEl § SRl TE el @t Wi 8q wed
3o1T &7 If & WHT e B ai W A iR
AT T TG 2q T HeH IS T &7

foria Heom den 991 W8 BF % A T Td S
SAEH W SGE T YA B HA i [oey HiHd 21 Sk

arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

2. Priority Sector Lending: The Bank has been lending
to these sectors so as to achieve the National Goals for
Priority Sector. Lending under the Priority Sector has a
positive impact on the standards of living of the weaker
sections of society by providing them with the funds to
start small businesses and become self reliant. It has a
social objective and the Bank is serious about complying
with the guidelines and making its contribution to social
upliftment.

3. Participation in Government Schemes: The Bank is pro-
actively participating in various schemes of the Government
of India, i.e. Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY),
Prime Minister Employment Generation Programme
(PMEGP), Credit Linked Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS)
for Micro & Small Enterprises, Khadi & Village Industry
Commission (KVIC) and Technology Upgradation Fund
Scheme for Textile & Jute Sector (TUFS), Subsidy Scheme
for Food Processing Industries, etc. All these schemes offer
finance to educated youth and upcoming entrepreneurs
who would not be able to obtain the funds otherwise.
Thus the Bank contributes to generation of employment
for youth.

4. Credit to Women Beneficiaries: Credit is provided to
women beneficiaries at subsidized rates and a dedicated
Women'’s Cell functions at Corporate Office which closely
monitors the progress under various lending schemes for
women beneficiaries and redesigns the existing ones as
per emerging needs.

5. Credit to MSME Sector: MSME Sector is an important
segment which plays an important role in the economy of
the country. The Bank is extending credit to this segment
through various schemes and giving utmost importance
towards catering the financial needs of this segment.

For each such product, provide the following details in
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.)
per unit of product(optional):

i. Reduction during sourcing/production/distribution
achieved since the previous year throughout the value
chain?

ii. Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water)
has been achieved since the previous year?

Being a service organization this section is not
applicable.

Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable
sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage
of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details
thereof, in about 50 words or so.

Not Applicable for a Financial Institution.

Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and
services from local & small producers, including communities
surrounding their place of work?

If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity
and capability of local and small vendors?

Being a financial institution and a service organization,
the scope to procure goods and services from local and
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small producers is limited. The Bank encourages the MSME
borrowers to source their inputs from micro enterprises.

Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and
waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products
and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Bank has an e-waste policy. The Bank purchases recycled
office materials to the maximum extent possible. With the
help of e-waste dealers, old and obsolete computers, servers,
monitors, printers, fax machines, ATMs, UPSs, etc are disposed
off. The Bank has also initiated E-freight and E-stamping of
products during the current year.

Old records, that have outlived their utility and are earmarked
for destruction, are disposed off by sales to approved agencies
that recycle the paper. The organization tries to make best
use of computer equipment by upgrading and reusing old
machines for miscellaneous work.

Principle 3: Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all
employees

1.

Please indicate the Total number of employees.

The total number of employees as on 31 March 2015 is
68290.

Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on
temporary/contractual/casual basis.

The Bank does not hire employees on temporary/contractual/
casual basis.

Please indicate the Number

employees.

of permanent women

The number of permanent women employees as on 31 March
2015 is 13748.

Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with
disabilities?

The number of permanent employees with disabilities as on
31st March” 15 is 1126.
Do you have an employee association that is recognized by

management?

No employee association has been recognized by the Bank.
However the following two majority Unions/Associations
represent the workmen/officers staff.

¢ All India PNB Employee Federation.

o All India PNB Officers Association.

What percentages of your permanent employees are members
of this recognized employee association?

Nearly 78.5% of PNB’s employees are members of the above
mentioned unions.
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S. No. Category No of Complaints | No of Complaints
filed during the |pending as at end of
financial year the financial year
Child labour/
forced labour / Nil Nil
involuntary labour
Sexual harassment 2 1
Discriminatory Nil Nil
employment

What percentage of your under mentioned employees were
given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last year?

A. Permanent Employees : 73.91%
B. Permanent Women Employees: 63.24%
C. Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees: Not Applicable
D. Employees with Disabilities: 54.09%

Principle 4: Businesses should respect the interests of, and be
responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

1.

Has the company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders? Yes

The Bank has identified its key stakeholders, internal and
external, and these are further segregated to enhance its
commitment towards them and they include:

External Stakeholders:

o Shareholders: Further divided into Government, Foreign
Institutional Investors, Financial Institutions, Insurance
Companies, Mutual Funds, Banks and Individuals.

o Customers: Further segmented into large corporate, mid-
corporate, small and medium enterprises and retail customers.
Dedicated branches provide service to these segments.

e Retail customers are segmented into premier customers
and other customers.

e The various communities for which the Bank operates.
Internal Stakeholders:

e Employees of the Bank.

Out of the above, has the company identified the
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders?

The Bank has identified its disadvantaged, vulnerable &
marginalized stakeholders as per Government of India
guidelines and these include small and marginal farmers,
artisans, SHGs and members of the weaker sections.

Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to
engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words
or so.

The Bank has taken various initiatives to engage and extend
its support and benefits to the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders. Some of the initiatives taken by

the Bank are as under:
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e For the financially excluded sections the Bank uses the
services of Business Correspondents and has tied up with
technology services providers to capture the Bio-metrics
(fingerprint) of these customers to enable them to conduct
basic banking transactions.

e There are various schemes available for marginalized
farmers. Under the Kisan Credit Card scheme, the farmers
can avail production and consumption loans. Under
the Rural Debt Swap Scheme farmers are given loans at
subsidized rates to enable them to liquidate loans taken
from money lenders at usurious rates of interest.

e The Bank also provides finance at subsidized rates under
the various types of schemes which have been started by
the Government for the up-liftment of rural and urban poor
such as SGSY, NRLM and SGSRY, etc.

e The Bank has implemented Voice Guidance Functionality
on select ATMs for assisting its Visually Challenged
Customers to enable them to carry out banking.

e Through various Farmers Training Centers and Rural
Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs), the Bank is
making an effort to upgrade the knowledge and skills of
farmers and impart vocational training to rural youth.

e Under PNB Prerna, the Bank takes CSR initiatives for
different segments of society. The various measures under
the aforesaid program include distributing free medicines
to the poor, rehabilitation support to physically challenged,
organization of blood donation camps, etc.

e Improving Financial Literacy: The Financial Literacy and
Credit Counseling Centres (FLCCs) established by the
Bank, provide a wide range of financial counseling to its
customers.
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1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover
only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The Bank respects human rights and does not tolerate any
human right violation in its sphere of operation and influence.
The Bank does not discriminate on the basis of national origin,
citizenship, color, race, belief, religion, ancestry, marital
status, gender, disabilities, age, sexual orientation, place of
birth, social status, or any other basis prohibited by the law.
The Bank does not have a stated Human Rights Policy but this
aspect is covered under the Human Resource policies and
practices of the Bank.

How many stakeholder complaints have been received in
the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?

The total number of complaints received from the shareholders
during FY’15 is 67 out of which 66 complaints (98.51%) have
been resolved satisfactorily.
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restore the environment

1.

Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/others.

The Bank has a “Green Initiatives” Policy which lists some
small routine actions that contribute to a better environment.
The Bank is encouraging “Green Practices” such as:

1. Use of Solar power to run Self Service Areas which are
equipped with ATM, PUM and CDM/Cheque Deposit
Machines.

Using CFL Lamps instead of incandescent lamps
Rain Water harvesting
Use of solar energy

Printing on both sides of paper

S 1 W N

Purchasing composite fax machines which can perform
multiple functions

Immediate repair of any water leakage

® N

Use of Master sensor / master switches for lights, fans etc.
wherever possible.

The policy covers the Bank only and gradually it will be
extended. Another related initiative is the elimination of use of
paper for circulating Board Notes and agenda items of Board
meetings.

Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address
global environmental issues such as climate change, global
warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage
etc.

e As per the Bank’s loan policy, the Bank does not extend
any finance to environmentally hazardous industries.

e During credit appraisal, preference is given to the
environment friendly green projects such as Wind Mills
and Solar Power Projects.

e For manufacturing units, the Bank insists upon installation
of effluent treatment projects for processing of such
pollutants before release into the environment and ensures
that the borrower also obtains NOC from Central/State
Pollution control Board.

e The Bank also undertakes a series of activities to save
environment under CSR initiative. The Van Mahotsav, tree
plantation camps, plantation along road sides, greening of
traffic circles in different cities and maintenance of parks
in residential areas are some of the initiatives the Bank has
taken in this direction.

e Some of the other initiatives can be found in the Corporate
Social Responsibility Report, the hyperlink for which is
https://www.pnbindia.in/En/ui/SocialBanking.aspx

Does the company identify and assess potential environmental
risks? Y/N

Presently this is not being done. However, the Bank is
committed to reducing its carbon footprint at its places of

operation.
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Does the company have any project related to Clean
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so. Also, if yes, whether any environmental
compliance report is filed?

The Bank does not have any project related to the Clean
Development Mechanism.

Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on — clean
technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. Y/N. If
yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

The Bank finances many Solar Power projects, Biomass, Small
Hydro and Wind Power projects, all of which are renewable
energy projects.

The Bank has put in place various methods to achieve
sustainable development and these include:

1. Reduction of electrical energy and fuel consumption by
installation of energy efficient equipments in some of its
office buildings. Electricity audit of all offices has resulted
in efficient functioning with cost benefits.

2. Solar ATMs. This is another green initiative, which has
the benefit of overcoming the power outage problem. The
Bank has gone for installation of Solar UPS at selected
ATM sites like in states of Bihar and U.P, where there is
power problem and downtime due to power-cuts is high.

3. Tree Plantations.

4. The Bank has taken steps to reduce wastage of resources
and energy. MARD (HO) conducts risk based management
audit of the administrative offices of the Bank on Green
Initiatives.

Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the Company within
the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial
year being reported?

The Bank is a service based organization and hence does
not emit any toxic hazardous pollutants. However the Bank
stipulates environmental compliances as one of the main
conditions for sanction. Besides that DG sets at Head Office
and other offices are checked by the Delhi Pollution Control
Committee to monitor noise levels and these have been found
to be in order.

Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as
at end of Financial Year.

Nil

Principle 7: Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and
regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1.

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or
association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your
business deals with:

The Bank is a member of:

Indian Banks’ Association (IBA)

Indian Institute of Banking & Finance (IIBF)
Institute of Banking Personnel Selection (IBPS)
National Institute of Bank Management (NIBM)

o0 T
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e. Centre for Advanced Financial Research and Learning
(CAFRAL)

f. Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry
(FICCI)

g. International Chamber of Commerce (ICC)

>

. The Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry of
India (ASSOCHAM)

i. Confederation of Indian Industry (ClI)

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for
the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No;
if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and
Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development
Policies, Energy security, Water, Food Security, Sustainable
Business Principles, Others).

The Bank, being one of the largest Public Sector Banks in
the country, works closely with policymakers and helps in
evolving policies that govern the functioning and regulation
of the Banking industry. The Bank gives its inputs to the
regulators and policy makers regarding various economic and
financial issues plaguing the economy.

Ef 8: L s ¥ ot Principle 8: Businesses should support inclusive growth and
AT e equitable development
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Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/
projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 82 If yes
details thereof.

Development in any country is incomplete if it is not inclusive
and does not cover the underprivileged strata of the society.
Banks through its various initiatives are striving to reach and
bring these sections into the fold of basic banking services.
Some of the initiatives that the Bank has taken for inclusive
and equitable development include:

e Under Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana (PMJDY),
Financial Literacy is one of the important pillars
focusing on preparing the people for their financial
planning and availing credit. One of the major modes
for disseminating financial literacy is Financial Literacy
Centres (FLC’s) who are providing free financial literacy/
education and credit counseling across the country. As
on 31st March 2015, 90.17 lac accounts opened under
PMJDY.

e Micro Deposit Scheme namely PNB Sanchay has been
customized with focus to inculcate saving habit among low
income groups like small businessman, vendors, rickshaw
pullers etc. It is operational from Business Correspondent
locations.

e PNB Turant (Immediate Payment System-IMPS) allows
interoperable “Fund Transfer facility” on real time to
customers, the Immediate Payment Service (IMPS) with
Person to Account (P2A) mode and already Implemented
through mobile phone, ATM and internet banking facility
(IBS). IMPS facility is being launched through BC network
both for account holders as well as walk-in customers.

Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house
team/own foundation/external NGO/government structures/

any other organization?
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The Bank has a separate Division for CSR activities and it
works through an internal team as well as in partnership with
NGOs and Government Institutions.

Under PNB Prerna, which is an association of the wives of
top executives as well as senior officials of the Bank, the Bank
undertakes CSR activities.

Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

The impact of the training programmes conducted by the
Bank is evident in the areas in which they are conducted.
The training extended to farmers is of practical use and
influences the way they conduct agricultural operations. All
the 10 Farming Training Centers of the Bank are located in
rural areas and provide free of cost training on agriculture
& allied activities, computer courses, cutting, tailoring
& embroidery, etc. During FY’15, FTCs have trained
1,37,755 persons including 25,226 women with the help
of 4210 training programmes. FTCs have also organised
72 Human Health Check Up Camps, 126 Animal Health
Check Up Camps and also arranged 104 visits to Agriculture
Universities/Colleges/Fairs/Govt. Farms etc. during this
period.

What is your company’s direct contribution to community
development projects-Amount in INR and the details of the
projects undertaken?

The Bank’s contribution to community development program
has been through PNB Vikas, a village adoption scheme.

The basic objective of “PNB VIKAS” is to develop the adopted
village/s in an integrated manner, which includes Human
Development, Economic Development & other Infrastructure
Development e.g. sanitation, drinking water supply,
education, electricity, health, etc in co-ordination with the
other stake holders (the villagers, the Govt. authorities, local
bodies etc).

Under this Scheme, the Bank adopted 130 villages (68
in lead districts and 62 in non lead districts) in different
Circles. So far, an expenditure of ¥5.34 lacs was incurred
on 37 activities under PNB Vikas Yojana on 31st March
2015.

Have you taken steps to ensure that this community
development initiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

Under PNB Vikas, the initiatives taken are ongoing, be it
the creation of a small library for the villagers or the other
activities listed above.

Principle 9: Businesses should engage with and provide value to
their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1.

What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases
are pending as on the end of financial year.

Around 0.58% of the complaints, received during FY’15,
remained unresolved. These unresolved complaints stand
resolved now.
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Does the company display product information on the
product label, over and above what is mandated as per local
laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional information)

The information related to financial products is displayed on
the website of the Bank and awareness of the products is spread
through pamphlets and brochures at branches. Besides this
customers can provide feedback through multiple channels to
the Bank about their experience and their expectations. During
the last year customers of Pragati branches have been enabled
to rate their experience at the branch after completion of their
work. They can inform the Bank through an SMS stating their
level of satisfaction.

Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company
regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising
and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years
and pending as at the end of financial year. If so, provide
details thereof, in about 50 words or so

Nil

Did your company carry out any consumer survey/consumer
satisfaction trends?

e Customer’s day is being observed on 15" of every month
in every branch to share experiences and grievances.
Customers are at liberty to give feedback and suggestions
on the quality of services.

e In order to ensure Customer Service of a high order, the
Bank has taken concerted efforts to train the staff on the
operational and behavioral aspects. Periodically reviews
and other measures are taken on an ongoing basis for
improvement of Customer Service to minimize the inflow
of complaints.

e The Bank has an efficient Customer Complaint Redressal
Mechanism and all complaints received are monitored
and corrective action taken to address grievances.

e The Bank also carries out Customer satisfaction surveys by
engaging outside agencies like NIBM (National Institute of
Bank Management) and MDI (Management Development
Institute), Gurgaon.

e The Bank has a State-of-the-Art Contact Centres at
Gurgaon and Noida to provide tele-banking services to its
customers on 24* 7 * 365 basis through two renowned
Service Providers viz., (i) M/s Aegis Limited and (ii) M/s
Mphasis Limited.

e In addition to above two Primary Sites, the Bank has
established two Secondary Contact Centres at Mangalore
and Bhopal to provide telebanking services to its customers
in regional languages also.

e From time to time, the Bank conducts a customer contact
week during which it contacts customers, obtains feedback
and takes steps to implement the valuable suggestions. The
Bank also has a feedback link on its website. The feedback
so obtained is analyzed and put up to top management
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every quarter. Findings are published in the monthly
bulletin “Customer Speaks” so that field staff can be
sensitized to the feelings of customers.

The complaints are analyzed and effective measures are
undertaken to avoid recurrence of the same.

Punjab National Bank is also entrusted with the
responsibility of managing Customer Service Center at
Delhi for all Nationalized Banks situated at Delhi.
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Report on Corporate Governance

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy

Corporate Governance is practiced in the Bank in all its functional areas through high standards of accountability, transparency,
social responsiveness, operational efficiencies and best ethical business practices. The Bank is committed to all the stakeholders of
the Bank to protect their interests and for maximizing the shareholders” value with Corporate Responsibility in view. The Bank has
well defined policies and guidelines for ensuring compliance of the Regulatory requirements in letter and spirit.

The functions of the Board and the executive management are well defined and are distinct from one another. The Board and its
various sub-committees meet at regular intervals to evaluate, monitor and ensure that the decisions taken by executives of the Bank
are as per laid down norms and policies and in the best interest of all the stakeholders including public at large.

2.1 Board of Directors

The Board is constituted in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, as amended and the Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous

Provisions) Scheme, 1970, as amended.

2.2. Composition of the Board of Directors as on 31.3.2015

S. Name of Director Date of Category Membership | Chairmanship Chairmanship / No. of
No. Appointment of Sub- of Sub- Membership of Audit Shares
Committees of | Committees of | Committee and Stake- held by
Board of the Board of the holders’ Relationship Director
Bank Bank Committee in other
Companies
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar 07.10.2013 Executive 14 13 Nil Nil
Executive Director (additional
charge of MD & CEO till
09.05.2015)
2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 22.01.2014 Executive 15 Nil Nil Nil
Executive Director
3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 13.03.2014 Executive 14 Nil Nil Nil
Executive Director
4. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 29.01.2015 Non- 9 2 1) National Nil
Executive Insurance Co. Ltd
(Gol 2) IFCI
Nominee)
5. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 31.05.2013 Non-Executive 5 Nil Nil 24
(RBI Nominee)
6. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 24.01.2014 Part time 6 3 1) Nagpur Power & Nil
Non-Executive Industries Ltd.
2) Informed
Technologies India Ltd
3) Khandelwal
Remedies P Ltd
4) Zeppelin
Investments Pvt Ltd
5) The Motwane Mfg. Co
(P)Ltd
6) Globus Spirits Ltd
7) Varrol Polymers (P) Ltd
8) Varrol Engg. (P) Ltd
9) Gras Education &
Training Service Pvt
Ltd
7 Sh. T. C. Jhalani 08.03.2013 Non—Executive 4 Nil Nil Nil
(Workmen
Nominee
Director)
8 Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 26.06.2013 Non- 5 Nil Nil Nil
Executive
(Officers
Nominee
Director)

Note: None of the Directors is related inter-se.




2.3 a8 & SR Fefafaa 9o feve = ®

arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

w0 | | v @ am Sroft wa fafer HIUT

1 off & R HMEA a7eey e wee e 27.10.2014 Aafy &t g
2 ot S S R Hrefarerh (WA TN & ) 29.01.2015 of TSI STETE R yfaeenfud
3 ot el =erd FgrRTferR TR sHTaTers 22.09.2014 ety w1 wE
4 #f T T g Fgrhifers TR HrdTers 19.05.2014 srafy &t g
5 off w9 U T TPRUNE FReTR 20.03.2015 Aafy w1 g
6 off < & faen TeRENE FReTR 20.03.2015 Aafy w g
7 Tl et e YeRERE e 28.02.2015 [RILES

8 gt srer fasn FvehTiers IR R 17.05.2014 [RILEE]
2.4 fa<ia ad & mafsa IS &t aSeh! T =T

i) Fow ot fafa g ¥ fravrent @ w5 wen o W Iufted FEveRl w wEm
1 12.05.2014 15 13

2 09.06.2014 13 10

3 30.06.2014 13 11

4 24.07.2014 13 11

5 19.09.2014 13 12

6 20.10.2014 12 11

7 22.11.2014 11 09

8 23.12.2014 11 10

9 02/03.02.2015 11 10

10 04.03.2015 10 09

11 30.03.2015 08 06

2.5 fadita od & SR 9IS ot dSehl AUT A AR W A3k (TSHUW ) H - vt ot sufterfa g

waE | TR o & R emEife | fe Sowt W Sufted gu | fusel ot aifies Sew O Sufufa
TSR TE&AT

1. Al & IR FHIEd 06 06 &
2. ot T wreRT 11 09 =
3. ot & o st e 11 11 7l
4. <Tf. W THHMR 11 11 &l
5. o SO S 08 05 BEil
6. EIRENECDE Gl 03 02 AR TR
7. ot <t o T 11 10 T
8. off ot ot <t 05 05 il
9. At St i wEerEre 11 10 Tt
10. ot T T M 10 06 &t
11. it € & fawen 10 09 &
12. . g e 10 07 Bl
13. ot & = e 11 09 RGi
14 ot feefta HAR @@ 11 11 7l
15 #t T T g 01 01 TR
16 it sy s 01 01 Nl




2.3 The following members ceased to be the Directors during the year:

S. No. | Name of Director Category Date of cessation | Reason

1 Sh. K. R. Kamath Chairman & Managing Director 27.10.2014 Term expired

2 Sh. Anurag Jain Non-Executive (Gol Nominee) 29.01.2015 Substituted by Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal
3 Sh. B. B. Chaudhry Part time Non-Executive 22.09.2014 Term expired

4 Sh. M. A. Antulay Part time Non-Executive 19.05.2014 Term expired

5 Sh. M. N. Gopinath Shareholder Director 20.03.2015 Term expired

6 Sh. D. K. Singla Shareholder Director 20.03.2015 Term expired

7 Dr. Sunil Gupta Shareholder Director 28.02.2015 Resignation

8 Ms. Aradhana Misra Part time Non-Executive 17.05.2014 Resignation

2.4 Details of Board meetings held during the Financial Year:

S. No. Date of the Meeting Total No. of Directors on the Board No. of Directors present in the meeting
lle 12.05.2014 15 13
2 09.06.2014 13 10
S 30.06.2014 13 11
4. 24.07.2014 13 11
5 19.09.2014 13 12
6. 20.10.2014 12 11
7 22.11.2014 11 09
8. 23.12.2014 11 10
O 02/03.02.2015 11 10
10. 04.03.2015 10 09
11 30.03.2015 08 06

2.5 No. of Board meetings & last Annual General Meeting (AGM) attended by Member-Directors during the Financial Year:

S.No. | Name of Director Board Meetings held during their tenure Board Meetings attended Attendance in last AGM
1 Sh. K. R. Kamath 06 06 Yes
2 Sh. Gauri Shankar 11 09 Yes
3 Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 11 11 Yes
4 Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 11 11 Yes
5 Sh. Anurag Jain 08 05 No
6 Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 03 02 N.A.
7 Sh. B. P. Kanungo 11 10 No
8 Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 05 05 Yes
9 Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 11 10 No
10 Sh. M. N. Gopinath 10 06 No
11 Sh. D. K. Singla 10 09 Yes
12 Dr. Sunil Gupta 10 07 Yes
13 Sh. T. C. Jhalani 11 09 No
14 Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 11 11 Yes
15 Sh. M. A. Antulay 01 01 N.A.
16 Ms. Aradhna Misra 01 01 N.A.




2.6 fada ad & dRm Fraea e = TEEa
it TSI9T ITETA
IRA WHR A o TS STaTe, SMETTH, -3 (FF T8
1 29.01.2015 ¥ AT AR a%, S o 9B B, dF ® ARA
TWHR & A & &9 § fga fFan 21 ST 9@ 25 anf 6
TR ST ® | oA § 9 GuEEs SHeE der afgd R
TR & Toxita TaEYE wifd @i ed R @ € |
3. e @ U wiufaar

1€ &1 g1 3u Gt fefated @
3.1 €I o erEr-udten Afufa (s, )

e e S/ WER & e Feel ok Wi uees
% Y GlEg TR F TER o9 gR 1S w1 o@mden gfafa
(wedl.) w1 e oA T €1 wiHtd % qem e e g

o 7391 371 U WA, WG, AR i@ T i T[urEmn
e wfeq o % wEm o e wEl w1 IR |
Sk 1 Hifelfereh/aTel o qhen sl Ue qRdg e S
% frltern & Hay o STadt HRaE HE

o e /aften fordta ©ewiel o fuel & Haw § s Hifafien
o e ¥ faem-fond e ek e v sifee
ROR" ¥ 32T MU THE WA W ST AT B |

o S o afiaen FRiemyeREn wien Gt il - STadl Hrars
% &9 H YUllell, TTad TS Jrasiierar s wHe S |

o T Gl w1 & fou faxiia foeror @i, o @i
& fodiia gEmetl &1 Teheiehao |
o TS H IARTY Tqd i ¥ Td, FaUF % @i, afh
foriar faeron ofR o Hifa & aftad= &1 gefen e |
o & ol WalwA e Hied € |
o [l AN HILH T SATEH |
o IR R % WEHHl % ER Td WRdE e o
% feen-fden & o1 ®q & & |
o FHTA WiAd Yeas FIW & TS 49 FI AR GHfa
% Gfed % %9 § & S 2l
31.03.2015 &t fearfa & o1TAR wfufa &t @w=@w
.ot St it Eedare -gfafa & 1A
Lot & o SISt T
I ENECDC I
.o & W s
fasta o & < wfufa & o= fve w5=
1.t T 3T - 01.4.2014 ¥ 03.3.2015
2. Bl TH TH §MY - 01.4.2014 ¥ 03.3.2015
3. o &t &t el - 01.4.2014 & 30.06.2014
4. St WH TA MEE - 01.4.2014 § 20.3.2015
5
6

AW N~

. ot 3O SF - 01.4.2014 ¥ 29.01.2015
. &Y €t % f&em - 01.07.2014 9 20.03.2015
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2.6 Profile of Directors appointed during the Financial Year.

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

Government of India appointed Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal, I.A.S., B.Tech.
(Computer Science), as Gol nominee of the Bank, with effect from
29.01.2015 until further orders. He has 25 years of Administrative
Service experience. Presently he is handling Financial Inclusion
Progress of Gol including Prime Minister Jan Dhan Yojana.

3. Sub-Committees of the Board

The main sub-Committees of the Board are as under:-

3.1 Audit Committee of the Board (ACB)

The Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) has been constituted
by the Bank as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India
/ Government of India and Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchanges. The main functions of the Committee are as under:-

e Providing direction and overseeing the total audit function
of the Bank including the organization, operationalisation,
quality control of internal audit and follow up on the
statutory/external audit of the Bank and inspections of RBI.

e To interact with Statutory Central Auditors in respect of
approval of quarterly/annual Financial Statements and
Reports and also follow up on all the issues raised in the
Long Form Audit Report.

e To review the internal inspection/Audit function of the
Bank — the system, its quality and effectiveness in terms
of follow up.

e Overseeing the Bank'’s financial reporting process and the
disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

e To review with the Management, the Annual Financial
Statements before submission to the Board for approval
and also about the changes in the Accounting Policies.

e Major accounting entries involving estimates.

e Compliance with all the applicable legal laws.

e To discharge the functions as per provisions of the Listing
Agreement and in line with the RBI guidelines.

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee in
terms of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Composition of the Committee as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal
2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal
4. Sh. B. P. Kanungo

- Chairman of the Committee

Other member Directors of the Committee during the financial
year:

Sh. Gauri Shankar — 01.4.2014 to 03.3.2015

Dr. Ram S. Sangapure — 01.4.2014 to 03.3.2015

Sh. B. B. Chaudhry — 01.4.2014 to 30.6.2014

Sh. M. N. Gopinath — 01.4.2014 to 20.3.2015

Sh. Anurag Jain — 01.4.2014 to 29.1.2015

Sh. D. K. Singla - 01.7.2014 to 20.3.2015

D B W N =



faia od & SR T ASw & =N

Details of meetings held during the Financial Year:

W®H |dow W aR@ | |fufe § Feve | Sow ¥ Suftem Freve @t S.No. | Date of the | Total No. of Directors | No. of Directors present
B W& = Meeting of the Committee in the Meeting
1. 12.05.2014 07 06 1. 12.05.2014 07 06
2. 09.06.2014 07 05 2. 09.06.2014 07 05
3 24.07.2014 07 06 3. 24.07.2014 07 06
4. 01.09.2014 07 06 4. 01.09.2014 07 06
5. 19.09.2014 07 05 5. 19.09.2014 07 05
6. 20.10.2014 07 06 6. 20.10.2014 07 06
o 22.11.2014 07 06 7 22.11.2014 07 06
3. 23.12.2014 07 05 8. 23.12.2014 07 05
9. 02.02.2015 07 05 9. 02.02.2015 07 05
10. 04.03.2015 05 03 10. | 04.03.2015 05 03
11. 30.03.2015 04 03 11.  [30.03.2015 04 03

fadg ad & I Ge-FRyeR g YSw T W on

No. of meetings

attended by Member-Directors during the

T 9= Financial Year:

wH | TR @ awm R & SN omal. | feheet S8 ®| | S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held during | Meetings
o Sowt wt WEmw | sulted gu their tenure attended

1. st <t o < 2 2 1. Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 2 2

2. Fi M wH 9 8 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 9 8

3. ot & o SRSt I 11 8 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 11 8

4. . [T AL 9 9 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 9 9

5. off ot 11 9 5. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 11 9

6. ot ST S 8 4 6. Sh. Anurag Jain 4

7. ot T T e 10 6 7. Sh. M. N. Gopinath 10 6

8. o € & femen 7 7 8. Sh. D. K. Singla 7

9. o TORT SHETA 3 3 9. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 3 3

3.2 Yeree gftfa (Todt)

W, WN T I SrHIfRd gfasfaal, sufEl & st ik
=u A ¥ v @ sfewefen

wfafa fr=fafes o, sife doEygsnso omHe afafa
(T -1 # fageniy afuer 9 | €, W faEr

EZcil
. Ul TEAEl i Wit (i T T faf)

@, FU gUAr/EE G &

T, deft SR Tore T & SrHRATY e

. 9 &7 SIfeRey ud fRiu W oF % AFcel | foee

et T

<. YhHeH)/STHA TR KT, 3TRT F916 HEl M

3. qH

. SIS g Ut o= hiE Al

31.03.2015 & fegfa & STTAR |=AT

AN R W N =

. ot T vt

.o SRSt |
. Tl T TH. "R
.o S o T
o 3 e

. o feefta AR g

wfafa & s1eae

3.2 Management Committee (MC)

The Committee considers following matters which are beyond
the discretionary powers of CMD/MD & CEO/Head Office
Credit Approval Committee (HOCAC) IlI:-

a0 T

™o

g.
h.

Sanctioning of credit proposals (funded & non funded),
Loan compromise/write-off proposals,
Proposal for approval of capital and revenue expenditure,

Proposals relating to acquisition and hiring of premises
including deviation from norms for acquisition and hiring
of premises,

Filing of suits/appeals, defending them etc.

Investments in Government and other approved securities,
shares and debentures of companies including underwriting,

Donations,
Any other matter referred by the Board.

Composition as on 31.3.2015

1
2
3.
4.
5
6

Sh. Gauri Shankar

Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
Dr. Ram S. Sangapure
Sh. B. P. Kanungo

Sh. T. C. Jhalani

Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha

- Chairman of the Committee
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Tt o & ST AR Saeh! ot faewur Details of meetings held during the Financial Year
wH. |de® # fafa wfufa & & oent ¥ SURed gq S. | Date of Total No. of Directors | No. of Directors
v v No. | Meeting of the Committee present in the Meeting
1. 12.05.2014 8 7 1. |12:05.2014 8 ’
2. 09.06.2014 7 6 2. |09.06.2014 / 6
3. [30062014 7 7 3. |30.06.2014 / /
4 |24.07.2014 8 8 4. |24.07.2014 8 8
5. [01.09.2014 8 6 5. |01.09.2014 8 6
6 19.09.2014 8 8 6. |19.09.2014 8 8
7. 27.09.2014 7 5 7. |27.09.2014 7 5
8 20.10.2014 7 7 8. 120.10.2014 7 7
9 10.11.2014 6 4 9. |10.11.2014 6 4
10 [22.11.2014 6 5 10. {22.11.2014 6 5
1. [10.12.2014 6 5 11.110.12.2014 6 5
12. 23122014 6 6 12.123.12.2014 6 6
13. 30.12.2014 6 6 13.130.12.2014 6 6
4. |16.01.2015 6 5 14. [16.01.2015 6 5
15 |02.02.2015 6 4 15. 102.02.2015 6 4
16.  |24.02.2015 6 6 16. |24.02.2015 6 6
17. 04.03.2015 6 5 17. 104.03.2015 6 5
18. 16.03.2015 6 5 18. [16.03.2015 6 5
19. 25.03.2015 6 5 19. 125.03.2015 6 5
20. 30.03.2015 6 4 20. [30.03.2015 6 4
foda ad & I wew fRvER gRT SS@l ¥ W OH No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the
&+ GE&ET Financial Year
w4, | Frawew & ™ wHHe & AN | ferat Jomt # S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
SRR S8eht | Sufiem gq during their tenure | attended
= e 1. Sh. K. R. Kamath 08 08
L A W il N P8 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 20 20
j j iﬁ;;ﬁ - ig Tz 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 20 18
n e - s 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 20 18
s A A T FT n n 5. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 20 14
5. PRy 06 05 6. Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 06 05
7. N N 0 05 7. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 09 05
3. T T T 02 01 8. Sh. M. N. Gopinath 02 01
0. |t & = famen e = 9. Sh. D. K. Singla 06 06
10. |2 g e 01 = 10. Dr. Sunil Gupta 01 Nil
11. ot 3 9 A 12 11 11. Sh. T. C. Jhalani 12 11
3.3 W1, RUT ITIHIES HiHfd (W - I ) 3.3. Head Office Credit Approval Committee (Level — I11)
AL B STAET G WO k100 FE ¥ aAfE @ik The HO Credit Approval Committee Level Il considers the
2400 FUE (THA) qF 3R 200 FAhe T 1 i 2800 credit proposals above ¥ 100 crores and up to ¥ 400 crores
g (@1;5, ) 7% & = m s s Estandalone) and) abc(;vel? 200 c.;oresg?;l/ép to 800 /c\x)ris
) RIS ) group exposure) and also considers ompromise/Write
U9 Higen w1 q@ A fifed wlwmE w dmoah sdew off proposals to the extent of powers earlier vested with CMD/
Ui/ T TEE W ER w6 T | MD & CEO.
31.03.2015 st farfa ITgER &= ¢ Composition as on 31.03.2015
1. of TR o - gfafg & 3yeme 1. Sh. Gauri Shankar - Chairman of the Committee



2. &t & ot SRSt E
3. T [ TH "R

IH S & TS & AN EAfaiEd heRmd 99T &

TEEYE ot 9fafy ® 95= B

Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

Besides the above Board members General Managers of
the following functional Divisions are also members of the
Committee:

I ford s i. Finance Division
ii. shfee wwm ii. Credit Division
iii. THThT SfEm Forer g iii. Integrated Risk Management Division
iv. Sfaisia ST gum iv. International Banking Division
fadta ad & IRW e R g dew ¥ 9T O H No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
e Year
®H, |feve @ am ITeh AR & oS T A forn S. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
4R € o No. during their tenure attended
1. o % SR F 25 25 1. | Sh. K. R. Kamath 25 25
2. ot TR R 31 29 2. | Sh. Gauri Shankar 31 29
3. o & o @S @ 31 26 3. | Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 31 26
4. <. TH THEMR 31 25 4. | Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 31 25
3.4 WfEw gyauq afuafa 3.4 Risk Management Committee

S g SfEd veruE |t &1 Ted R T T

o fofta 9 o™= AMell § Hafud SifEdl 1 789 @R 3=

$H hI |

o SifEH YA § Wafya fordl ff Aoyl foma W & o
T H, TSI, 3T AR TH 1 Ud STSTRUHH 1 AniegH
HET qT Yt g9ed & fau g gfafea & wE @

@ |

o fafim Sifem & erafq w1, o, e 2R fier |
Sifemt @ Hafa aeR Sifem gaue gfshaet (safe, gomet,

e, WA e s |fed) i Wikt < |

o Sifaw wee Hifa/mfiss & faan fdel o sren fordht
3 Sifew & YaU &1 ST = oTufed feRet ot

L L
AR HRATE ol AR BT

31.03.2015 =t fegfa & @R "=
1. ot T v
2. &t & & FESH

- wfafa & sreay

The Bank has constituted the Risk Management Committee:

e To identify and mitigate the risks relating to financial and
other matters.

e To guide CRMC, ALCO, ORMC & GRMC on any issue
of importance for risk management and to oversee
the functioning of these committees for effective
coordination.

o Approving Market Risk Management processes (including
people, systems, operations, limits and controls) pertaining
to various risk areas viz. credit, market, operational and
Pillar Il risks.

e Approval of any other action necessary to comply
with requirements set forth in Risk Management Policy/
RBI guidelines or otherwise required for managing any
risk.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:

1.

Sh. Gauri Shankar - Chairman of the Committee

2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. T T T |IR 3. Dr.Ram S. Sangapure
4. o St f wuSaEe 4. Sh. G.P. Khandelwal
ot g & SR ST S8t § e - T92vrenl @&  No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
ufiord F1 # TEn Year:
®d | fewes @ am IR IR Tt ot o S.No. |Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
NS Seent W WE | sufted gy during their tenure | attended
1. ft T oA 04 04 1 Sh. Gauri Shankar 04 04
2. &t % ot st 9 04 04 2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 04 04
3. <l T TR 04 04 3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 04 04
4. At Sft ot e 04 04 4. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 04 04
5. i giter e 03 01 5. Dr. Sunil Gupta 03 01
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3.5 WAShAT/IX Taehdal ITIIMHIH HRaE HHeA & Foem
i | 3q v wfafa

afafd, gasdr iR W-Hasddl SHIEE FHHEAE AHA &
e 1 Teften famet smem W T €

31.03.2015 &t feafa & AR w=mT

3.5 Committee of Directors to review disposal of Vigilance/
Non-vigilance Disciplinary action cases

The Committee reviews disposal of vigilance and non-vigilance
disciplinary action cases on quarterly basis.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:

1. =i T v -gfafg = eemer 1. Sh. Gauri Shankar - Chairman of the Committee
2. 4 & off SRSt = 2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

3. S U9 wH "R 3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure
4. ot TS ST 4. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

5. 4t Eﬁ.tﬁ.wﬁ 5. Sh. B. P. Kanungo

%, |, | Fravren w1 T wee & dnm | fawedt sowt & S. Name of Director Meetings held Meetings

AT oSehl ot & Iufeerta gq No. during their tenure attended

1 ot % SFH 02 02 1. Sh. K. R. Kamath 02 02

2 o T v 04 04 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 04 04

3 At &% N st 04 04 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 04 04

4 T T THHMR 04 04 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 04 04

5 off ST S 03 = 5. Sh. Anurag Jain 03 Nil

6 ot d T 04 03 6. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 04 03

7 2t ToRT STETA 01 01 7. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 01 01

3.6 WIE W g dranfient |fufa
79 Gffq &1 TS E YN S G Wit gedt fafim
TR ® A T 3 ok H Holgd HH 9 S SuEl
1 Ged A =g fopean T B1 g dreifient 9 et fafe
TEal o SEdt ifq e SR F WAUH &% S WA
it €, 1 SIS i Gol Gt i afifa i e domi
H el fammel/feen- frdey sraeTed wega fan s ?1

31.03.2015 &t feorfa & @R =T

3.6 | T Strategy Committee of the Board

The Committee studies various aspects of Information Security
and suggests appropriate measures to strengthen it in the
Bank. The IT initiatives including the IT Policies and report on
installation and functioning of ATMs are being placed in the
quarterly meetings of IT Strategy Committee for information/
discussion/guidance/ approval.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:

I RS R ENE N —gfafg = s1eae 1. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal - Chairman of the Committee
2. o T R 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar

3. o w.lsRmSt 1@ 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

4. . T TEAMYL 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

5. 4t feeita wmn 5. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha

6. &t 3 W s 6. Sh.T.C. Jhalani
faita af & SR g S8l B 9ew - eyt & No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Sufeerd 21 @ wen Year:

w49 | Feve wr am TS SRt | FSasr S § sufkea S.No. | Name of Director Meetings held during Meetings

= T their tenure attended

1 §t S ¢ wEeEE 04 02 1. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 04 02

> §t I v 04 04 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 04 04

3. st & o st W6 04 04 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 04 04

4 <. T TEETR 04 04 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 04 04

5 St feefy @m 04 04 5. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 04 04

6 g0 9 g:,a'ﬁ'} 04 03 6. Sh.T.C. Jhalani 04 03

7 4t T T T 03 02 7. Sh. M. N. Gopinath 03 02

3.7 USET & feaw v wfufa 3.7 Directors Promotion Committee

iy 3=a Frue I Whal VI SR @b VIl § REfd $ fag
IfieaR & Hay § foraR d! © a1 S99 e IS @l VI

T SR A 89 % ey U W Wioesl W feEr S 2

The Committee considers promotions to Top Executive Grade Scale-
VI and Scale-VII as well as representations of candidates against
non-approval for promotion to Top Executive Grade Scale-VII.



31.03.2015 @i feafq & SIER wC=FT

Composition as on 31.03.2015

1. ot T 9 gffa & 212997 1. Sh. Gauri Shankar - Chairman of the Committee
2. ot TSI e 2. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

3. o S 3. Sh. B. P. Kanungo
Ta<ie o & SR ST 93! § G T-T29Teh! o Sufea  No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
TH W 9@ Year:

. 9. |Tews @ T ST HEEA & aRE | TR seewt & S. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings

ST ekt st T Sufeafa g No. during their tenure attended

1 o . AR HA 01 01 1. | Sh. K. R. Kamath 01 01

2 AT R 01 01 2. | Sh. Gauri Shankar 01 01

3 PR ERIEDE S 01 01 3. | Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 01 01

4 o ST SH 01 01 4. | Sh. Anurag Jain 01 01

5 At s FT 02 02 5. | Sh. B. P. Kanungo 02 02

3.8 @ig ot Taviw wftfa - drEmaEt ame s FeRET 39
® 1.00 HUS A1 THY 3fere T & Wit e w1 e Ky
form ArEer urEeEt % umel w1 FRET den gien 2 9%
forgr wfafa wfed =1 7 2 a@ife -

o YU Ffed 1 TEEM R 3% R W & fau suE
TEA HE |

o HisieTE/gferd = i Wi H1 FFRE, age & =w
I |

o HEHEl H TG Tk & U IS T GUHS HEAl
1 YHTERICTdl hi HHIET |

o UHAM G HI ASGd & | Hafud foar MU s Ui
S YA BT |

31.03.2015 & fearfa & STTAR |=A

1. 2t T ikt

2. ot & o st Ta

3. S 9 TH "qY

4. St TSI STETA

faira ad & SR o ol ¥ weer fevmnt & suftea

TN W G

- gfgfq & a1eae

3.8 Special Committee of Board — For monitoring fraud cases

The Committee has been constituted for monitoring and
review of all fraud cases of ¥1.00 crore and above, as well as
cyber frauds irrespective of the amount, so as to:

e Identify the systemic lacunae and put in place measures to
plug the same.

e Monitor progress of CBI/Police investigation, recovery &
staff accountability.

o Review the efficacy of the remedial action taken to prevent
recurrence of frauds.

e Putin place other measures as may be considered relevant
to strengthen preventive mechanism.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar

2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure
4

- Chairman of the Committee

Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the
Financial Year:

wH. | FeEvew @ am HRT & SR Tt Joet o
A SSehl i HWEAT | SuURe™ BY

1 f &% N HHd 04 04

2 St T T 07 06

3 ot & o sEsh qa 07 06

4 T 9 THAMR 07 06

5 CIRENIEPE G 02 =

6 ot S S 05 01

7 At € = fawen 06 04

3.9 utRsrfues wfufa

aftfa ok & geru R qon wEUeeE FRee & g
1 ordan w1 faofa et 7
31.03.2015 @t fearfa e/ ER W=
1. TS smEa
2. & A wEE

- wfufg & eteaer

S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
during their tenure attended

1. Sh. K. R. Kamath 04 04

2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 07 06

3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 07 06

4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 07 06

5. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 02 Nil

6. Sh. Anurag Jain 05 01

7. Sh. D. K. Singla 06 04

3.9 Remuneration Committee
The Committee decides entitlement of incentive for MD &
EDs of the Bank.
Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal
2. Sh. B. P. Kanungo

- Chairman of the Committee
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No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

wH | TR @ awm FEw & SR e, | R Sowt & S. No. | Names of Directors Meetings held Meetings
I qSHt W HET sufterd g during their tenure attended

1 ot TSIeT SAYETA bl bl 1. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal Nil Nil

2 o ST S 01 01 2. Sh. Anurag Jain 01 01

3 Eliciicacent 01 01 3. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 01 01

4. ot o S e 01 01 4. Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 01 01

5 4t A, T, T 01 01 5. Sh. M. N. Gopinath 01 01

3.10 iR wfkfa
S % a1 § S Fei EReReh fAaereh! 1 frafe e s
g, MR oF & fen-Feel & ER vRuRE FReeR ()
% Hay | 'Wew o IugE’’ Heh] w1 STde gHfeed
wE & o wfufa &1 med R T

31.03.2015 ot farfa ergaR ST

1. of ToT sTEre - afafa & s1eae

2. o St wEeE

3. #ff feefia @m@

fota ad & IR TG wIw-FRveR gRT Yot § Wi
o W HE

wd | v @ A Rt & SR ot soent o
AT Seehl sl W@ | SURE™ gq

1 At To ET 01 =

2 o TR A = I

3 ot . d 01 =

4. of TH. WA, Wy 01 01

5 EIRC IR RG] 01 01

6 ot feefia AR =@ 01 01
3.113MEe ¥ar |iata

Uesh Yol @Hfq &1 T d g faHEl SR W 9w i
T g fert 7 Rt w feafa wt wen & fow e
™R
31.3.2015 @t Trafa rqaR d@w=m
. o T v
.o & o SISt |
. L T TH MR
I E NG
. o feiq H/AR ==
i s
facig ot & SR mAfSa wes-FRvren gRT 98 § W
N W HE

ofafa & sreme

AN W AW N =

3.10Nomination Committee

The committee has been constituted as per RBI guidelines to
determine the fulfillment of *fit and proper’ criteria in respect
of Shareholder Director(s) on the Board of Bank, as and when
elections are held for Shareholder Directors.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal - Chairman of the Committee
2. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal

3. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

S. No. | Names of Directors Meetings held Meetings
during their tenure attended

1. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 01 Nil

2. Sh. Anurag Jain Nil Nil

3. Sh. B. P. Kanungo 01 Nil

4. Sh. M. N. Gopinath 01 01

5. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 01 01

6. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 01 01

3.11Customer Service Committee

The Customer Service Committee has been constituted to
review the position of complaints received and disposed off
by the Bank on quarterly basis.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar - Chairman of the Committee
2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

3. Dr.Ram S. Sangapure

4. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

5. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha

6. Sh.T. C. Jhalani

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

. 9. | Favres @ wEE & SN ot Seenl o S.No. |Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
SIS S8Rt & W& Suftera T during their tenure | attended

1 ot &S HTIT 02 02 1. Sh. K. R. Kamath 02 02

2 o T 3R 04 04 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar 04 04

3 st & & st T 04 04 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 04 04

4. T Y TH AR 04 04 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 04 04

5 o TR AT 01 I 5. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 01 Nil

6 o 2 & fomen 02 02 6. Sh. D. K. Singla 02 02




7. 4 feelia AR el 04 03 7. Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 04 03
8. 2t 2 & et 04 04 8. Sh. T. C. Jhalani 04 04
9. A SR S 03 gl 9. Sh. Anurag Jain 03 Nil
10. | gh swue fasn 01 Bl 10. Ms. Aradhana Misra 01 Nil
1. |4 <t <t <l 01 gl 11. Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 01 Nil

3.12 @R wiufa
offa o § wd #x © afuiEl @i fosiy gems i
SRS WieR ATk 1T TR o YEH Ll © dlfeh of &S
w1 Foifed oY W SR A 1 HidtiHeE H T |
31.3.2015 & TTAR GTEHT
1. o T g
. & o SRSt T

. Tl T TH IR
. 2t fefla AR @@

e = =
fadg o & M orEifaa dow ¥ wew TRy @t
Suferfa 9@ :

- gfafa & s1eay

W\ B~ W N

3.12 Power of Attorney Committee
The committee sanctions and allots General Power of Attorney
to eligible employees of the Bank authorizing them to execute
documents and represent on behalf of the Bank.

Composition as on 31.03.2015

Sh. Gauri Shankar

Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha

5. Sh.T. C. Jhalani

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

- Chairman of the Committee

AW N =

%9 Ry & ™ FTEFRTA B SR | T Sewt B S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
TR Yo Iuftard gu during their tenure attended

1 sft TR STRT 09 09 1. Sh. Gauri Shankar 09 09

2 ot & off SISt = 09 08 2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 09 08

3 <. TH TH MR 05 05 3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 05 05

4 A fellv AR Al 03 03 4, Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 03 03

5 At A5 03 02 5. Sh. T. C. Jhalani 03 02

3.13 ST TRt o WHIS Wrierehit |fafa

wfafa # wfFE = ot o Al o sl G %
fofa =g fepan mn 2

31.03.2015 @i feafa & rgER wfufa @ W=

1. st T Wi - ofafg & sre

2. ot & o SIS ua

3. T 9 TH "R
4. ot TS ST

fadg ad & R mEifad de ¥ wew TR i
Sufefa 9@ :

3.13Appellate Authority & Reviewing Authority Committee

The committee has been constituted to decide the appeal and
review petitions falling in the powers of the Committee.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
Sh. Gauri Shankar

Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. Dr.Ram S. Sangapure

- Chairman of the Committee

4. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

% 9. | v = am FREE & SN | faa dow o S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held during | Meetings
T TeE sufera gu their tenure attended

1 sft TR ST 01 01 1 Sh. Gauri Shankar 01 01

2 st & & waEst T 01 01 2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 01 01

3 L. Y TF MR 01 01 3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 01 01

4 EIRENECPCIC 01 01 4 Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 01 01

3.14 fas 2016 fo@ €l |fafa

I5 wfufa fas 2016 SRS & ®EFEET § gE WG 6
e HI T

31.3.2015 &t feafa & o1gER dw=T
I S Cad
2. o & off SErsh e

3. 21 W TH "R

- wfafa & s1eay

3.14 Steering Commiittee for Vision 2016

The Committee reviews the progress in implementation of
Vision 2016.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar

2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. Dr.Ram S. Sangapure

- Chairman of the Committee



foreftar = 2014-15 & <A GG w1 w1 S5k &l g8 |

3.15 aelt ¥ WG i FARET & & faw g i afafa

wff Frefefaa 2q Tied & T ¥ -

o IS Selt ?q TG yerer SR fafe=r =l ® ot swEm
1 GURA Bq ikl 3R ORI T HHE S |

o pefema 9e2 @l wfed Tt @geh F g wiiw

e

SAE/EIREE | wfaq Are/sTRet it feafa w5t e |

Fu1 PR @ SR erfafia/susik @l w1 Feen SR

AT &t Yhemd TG HIH IS |
o wiufa gr fffa & o= wEifas |

31.03.2015 st feorfa & @R =T

1. o T e

2. 4t & ot SRSt @

3. TL 9 TH AR

4. =t TSR STETA

fada od & <R mEfSa Sewl ¥ we@ - FRwe @@t
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No meeting of the committee was held during the Financial Year
2014-15.

3.15 Committee of the Board to monitor the progress in recovery
The Committee has been constituted to:
e Review the ways and strategies to improve NPA

management and effective utilization of various tools to
expedite recovery.

e Monitor the progress of recovery in NPAs including
prudential written-off accounts.

e Review the status of cases/RCs pending at DRTs/DRATs.

e Review the credit monitoring mechanism and status of
irregular/weak accounts and the steps for prevention of
NPAs.

e Any other agenda as decided by the Committee.
Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar
2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

- Chairman of the Committee

4. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial
Year:

% | | ey wr am TR & SR 5 Sot o S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held Meetings
s Yot @t we | sufiem gu during their tenure | attended

) JE —— 0 = 1. Sh. K. R. Kamath 03 03

2 sft T SR 11 11 2. Sh. Gauri Shankar il 11

3 st & & st Td 11 08 3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 11 08

4. S W T Wrrgi 11 10 4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 11 10

5 o SR S 05 03 5. Sh. Anurag Jain 05 03

6 o TSI e 06 01 6. Sh. Rajesh Aggarwal 06 01

3.16 IEYNer TRveRl & fTaem w faem w@ & fag
wiufa - AEweR &7 & Senl gRT Tqa™
afufa, swutEl § Sei 9% % 99 3t SR €, % IR
el & frated 3g o N WoeH W fgER ¢
31.03.2015 &t feorfa & @R Ww=AT

1. o T8 o
2. ot & o SISt |

3. 2L W TH "R
forftar = 2014-15 % SR GG BT B Sk @l g8 |
3.17 9@ 3favor wiufa

qfafq TR & S0, gfhe/AT IR - YHOTTS SR FHH
qq WA GYTO IR IR A gd B9 H W ° G2
e w1 FARET T SHRT w2

31.03.2015 &t forfa & @R Ww=AT

I B il e
2. ot & o SISt |

- wfafa & s1eay

- gfgfa & 1Ay

3.16 Committee to consider election of Shareholder Directors -
voting by Public Sector Banks

The Committee considers voting by the Bank for election of
Shareholder Directors in the companies where Bank holds
equity stake.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar

2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao
3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

- Chairman of the Committee

No meeting of the committee was held during the Financial Year
2014-15.

3.17 Share Transfer Committee

The Committee monitors and approves transfers of physical
shares, issuance of duplicate share certificates/new certificates,
transmission of shares, re-materialization of shares etc.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:
1. Sh. Gauri Shankar
2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

- Chairman of the Committee



3. T U9 TH "R
4. ot St 9 Gedae

fadite ad & SRE mEfad dowl § wew TRvER @t

3. Dr.Ram S. Sangapure
4. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial

Sufeafa wen Year:
wH, | e @ R T IR Tt st o S. No. | Name of Director Meetings held during | Meetings
SRS S8t & W& U g their tenure attended
1 At T T 25 24* il Sh. Gauri Shankar 25 24
2 o & o IS @ 25 3% 2. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 25 23*
3 <. T TH MR 25 20 3. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 25 21%*
4 <l G e 23 1% 4, Dr. Sunil Gupta 23 21*
5 4t St Ot weeara 02 01* 5. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 02 01*

* QI ey Giafd k1 Tk doh WehelvH gNI it g ot |

3.18 ¥ glest v wuet

Tfffa SF/SER SR Tole (THAT) GRI W ERURHT 3R

FEUNGhT 1 RRRG &1 FARET 3R 39T Foer &t 2

31.03.2015 @t feafa & oIg@ER ww=mT

S (TS [N9) ()

. ot St Eeeare - gfafa & s1eaet
. o T vie

.o & o SRS e

. Tl T TH IR

fada af & SN oA a Yl W WIE-THRvTRl i

* One meeting of Share Transfer Committee was held by circulation.

3.18 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
The Committee monitors grievances of shareholders and
bondholders received by the Bank/Share Transfer Agent (STA)
and redressal thereof.

Composition as on 31.03.2015:

1. G. P. Khandelwal - Chairman of the Committee

2. Sh. Gauri Shankar

3. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao

4. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure

No. of meetings attended by Member-Directors during the Financial

Sufeerfa @& Year:
EX:H Fravrer @1 wHEE & I | TR Sewt § S. No.| Name of Director Meetings held during | Meetings
T SSent i HWEAT |  Suftew gy their tenure attended
’ P s — o= = 1. Sh. G. P. Khandelwal Nil Nil
2 PP — 03 - 2. Sh. D. K. Singla 03 03
3 <0 gl 06 05 3. Dr. Sunil Gupta 06 05*
4 ot T TR 06 06* 4. Sh. Gauri Shankar 06 06*
5 ot & o sErsh Ta 06 06* 5. Sh. K. V. Brahmaji Rao 06 06*
6 . 9 TH |G 06 06* 6. Dr. Ram S. Sangapure 06 06*

* W gieet RAvARTT FH21 %1 Th 955 WhelvH g T g8 off |

ot T TMIATeF, U Ffed 1 RO FIR 6 G 47 &
T | e At % w9 § Frge R €
% 1 foxig od & SN IERERET 9 67 e W g

ST W 66 1 TUeE A S T e 3R 31.03.2015 T
feafd TR %aa uw R afteq of

* One meeting of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was held by circulation.

Shri A. Gopinathan, Company Secretary, is the Compliance
Officer in terms of Clause 47 of the Listing Agreement.

Out of 67 complaints received from the shareholders during
the financial year, 66 were redressed and one complaint was
outstanding as on 31.03.2015.
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4, e, f-arfard stdemell ot STuTer 4.
dF A RO FR H G 49 H ACEE st
IUTe foren B | S @e I R - AT srdensti & wey

Compliance of Mandatory/Non Mandatory requirements

The Bank has complied with the mandatory requirements of
Clause 49 of Listing Agreement. In respect of non-mandatory
requirements of the said clause, the status of its implementation

o g9 st W frefd femgar @ -

is as under:

®H, |t srfrerd argmg FEtaaT ot fRefr Sr. |Non Mandatory requirements  |Status of implementation
| | PRk HEe - TR ST e | o T, e w1 R 3132015 1N°' e Board Y [NPrTp Do e e ,
N o @ @ W e W] Ee R e Board - A non-executive|Not Applicable. Chairman’s post is
N Chairman may be entitled to|vacantason 31.03.2015.
maintain a Chairman’s office at the
2 uiitsrfaes wfafe - @i gw | wiefos afafa s @R g7 S” company’s expense
Tiafie afafs nfeq w1 SU | fenfrdemgar freoes @ 92 g 2 |Remuneration = Committee  —|Remuneration Committee decides
Friqes Ry & fou fafim | w fofa ot @1 qenfu, srfdes Board may set up a Remuneration |the entitlement of Performance
st Yae §aR H T Uy | PR % 9Rd WR gN e Colmmitteeto det_e‘rmine compaqy’s Liere(JII Inc.entive in terms of
SRR AT WAEE T | e T S fre 3 policy on specific remuneration guidelines issued by the Cent-ral
firet @1 packages for executive directors|Government. However, Executive
8 including pension rights and any|Directors draw salary as fixed by
3 VRREWeRt & SRR - rRuRe | foadyanfis facia aftomm wroas compensation payment. the Government of India.
I fordfrg aftomdi & s wRumi | oiit diuaedt 1 SS/EEER TS 3 |Shareholders’ Rights - A half-yearly [The quarterly / Annual Financial
8 yearly q y
N T BT A kI HEqu weed | H weniv fRY S T g gl declaration of financial performance [Results are sent to NSE/BSE,
1 TR W R W) fadoaie wfeq &% @ SaEEe W including summary of the significant | published in  newspapers and
e e o events in last six-months, may be|placed on Bank’s website including
— - — = sent to shareholders. highlights.
4 erETaten et m - | S % A 1%&"{\'& forern e eqé?n 4 Audit  Qualifications - Bank|The Bank’s Annual Financial
fam s facdtr famol # feon | 8, weorpl o 14 srguf o may move towards a regime of|Statements are unqualified.
: VN S Y 5 4
o S "kl B fafeq & =Afel 9on e @i 9 gefE unqualified financial statements. | Significant Accounting Policies and
feorforr erene Fehtd i E | Notes to Accounts are contained in
P : = _— ; E— PSEU— schedules, which are explanatory
RESIC I LRt in nature.
RTEroT- S o S & wew B | w fgfd 9Rd e dew = : .
. . . 5 Training of Board Members|The Executive / Non-executive
FOA W &a q=: W B0 AT o (Sl qen m) - Bank may train Board|Directors are appointed by
% el % Sfew dema | | afufem 1970 % fafw wEeE @ members in the business model | Government of India / elected in
frierhi & fae den IRt frale | ofaia fae draaieh & smem m &t of the company as well as the risk|General Meeting having specific
FH F AT WE B GIY F | | o/: T gEay ¥ 97 wrw profile of the business parameters|qualifications under the provisions
gfefard X TRl B 2 of the company, the responsibilities | of Banking Companies (A&TU) Act,
P ¥ e — e as directors, and the best ways to|1970. As such, this will suffice.
6 i aara‘m & ’ aﬁ ® fam- ® discharge them.
b Sl @ wfh - W PIAICTD | STIER Th o wfafa =1 T 6 | Mechanism for evaluating | A Nomination Committee has been
Y F HE F qeAiE o | foRe e € e A weEe (Svwm Non-Executive Board Members — | constituted in terms of Reserve Bank
e+ g e o | 1 oS e sfaRun) stfuftEm 1970 The performance evaluation of non- | of India Guidelines and the directors
Bk P
oo U fRwe dea M W | ® @E 9(3)(i) ® A wEhE executive directors could be done|elected under clause 9(3)(i) of The
o fivs & &6 & Jeiea o | PRt #1 e qon Srger’ & by a peer group comprising the|Banking Companies (Acquisition
w1 % SH Wi 7@ e o | R S w3 38§ st entire Board of Directors, excluding|& Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
e : J it | o N ) i the director being evaluated; and|1970 are subject to determination
5 TSR ST | TNCshTIeTE ,W“QM" ! W Peer Group evaluation could be the [of “fit & proper” status.  Further
fore T T @ A R b e
s LS TE FEIRUG . TR R (Sl mechanism to determine whether|other Non-Executive directors are
foFn o f o FRe | et SR st afufm, 1970 to extend / continue the terms of |appointed by Gol, in terms of the
*1 TR @ SR SeEUS | ® e #) S 2 appointment  of  non-executive|Banking Companies (Acquisition
@ ST e e directors & Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
" : 1970
7 |fame wier @fq - 9% o | 9% 3 fawe seier i o w2 :
. 7  |Whistle Blower Policy - The|The Bank has implemented the
% fam Q—{ﬂ + Bank may establish a mechanism|Whistle Blower Policy.
g fygs efwfa 3 erfw " 4
Hehell i for employees to report to the
SRV, FRh AU HGTH management  concerns  about
SEEET AU FEA hI ER unethical behaviour, actual or
Hfear etoan Afawar g & 389 suspected fraud or violation of
p
% Gy § o femTd geeA i the company’s code of conduct
a TEE ¥ 3@ s § WA or ethics policy. This mechanism
. Id also provide for adequate
FHaE B WA S Y S = e
safeguards against victimization
# wal seen @t @ ga;f g of employees who avail of the
S 39 e w1 W o § aell mechanism and also provide for
sreR aRkfeafaal & @9 seas direct access to the Chairman of
¥ TUF FE F TG ot @ the Audit committee in exceptional
T 21 T IR @t g S # cases. Once established, the
= TR % s TE e existence of the mechanism may
A 5 be appropriately communicated
il s 2 within the organizati
ganization.
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5. General Body Meetings

The details of
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of shareholders during
the last three years are as follows:

Annual General

Meetings (AGM) and

Y& | fam, fovis @ |w@m kel
o Erpl
TR
TGS | HIEER, 26 5, | WAet sfeaitem, 31.03.2012 W1 TEMG  ad
ST | 2012 F9 RE wiow g | & fau 9% & o wifem
10.00 S gaied | efetfeat Te, fafoe | oM o qen @ 9 w1 @
e, faeft - 110054 | foer-fawel, emmeT w
YT AR MR areTrer B
HOT HT
$SieH | WimeR 4 A, | ot sffeaiem, T (mHiEem) At
2013 HEE WIE FISS | 2009 Y AAIIR YA STER
11.00 91 Yafed | sfeifea Te, fafad | W 9Ra TR &l 14294713
o, @l - 110054 |sRRRE ¥R S ®E SR
e & fou SeRuRH |
ST WIS T |
aREel | wER, 29 9, | Wuet sfeeitem, 31.03.2013 W TEME  ad
TS | 2013 T RE wiawg | & fau 9% & o wifed
11.00 5 gaied | efetfeat T, fafoe | oM o qen @ 9 w1 @
g, feg - 110054 | R foer-faws, erEReT
YA IR MR T By
O HT |
Sfiug | 9mer, 16 e sffefam, T (emEiEieR)  fatwe
fegwmt, 2013 HEE WIE HAS 8 (2009 HI V@R - AEEH
11.00 1 qaig | sfeifea Ve, fafaa YR W ARG TR
o, et - 110054 | 8596530 Tfrdt ¥RR SR
FE AR e ®  fag
IRRYRAT § THRA U
T
Wedl | WHer, 30 A, | dAet stifeeifem, 31.03.2014 %! FATE oY & forq
ST | 2014 S WE BN 3 | 9 o oiE Wi ger o ae
11.00 o Yaig | ofetfeat U, fafgar | @9 9 &1 @n R foem-fomd,
@, e - 110054 | STARA T STEM
S | geEfaar, 19 diuqe sifeafem, = = fou JRuRsl @
=, 2015 FEA WIE HioS 8 | TR W A : (1) fawm
10.30 9= aig | sfedfea U, fafaa Hehed & WM W THEWSAY
@, i@t - 110054 | Fpemdifradey o fRE
S WM | A et e
3 TASE BN §F OGS
Tl (2) Tl (SEEEER)
fafamE, 20090 #T TEITER
SIREE SR W NG R
& U ¥ 44207317 R
MenieaRELL R Cic cra

Type of | Day, Date | Venue Purpose
Meeting | & Time
Eleventh | Tuesday, |[PNB  Auditorium, | To discuss, approve &
AGM June 26, | Central Staff College, | adoptthe Audited Balance
2012 at 10 |8, Underhill Road, | Sheet and Profit & Loss
a.m. Civil Lines, Delhi|Account of the Bank for
-110054 year ended 31.03.2012
and to declare Annual
Dividend.
EGM Monday, |[PNB  Auditorium, | To seek approval of the
March 4, | Central Staff College, | shareholders for issuing
2013 at 11 |8, Underhill Road, | and allotting 1,42,94,713
a.m. Civil Lines, Delhi |equity shares to Govt. of
-110054 India on preferential basis
in terms of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2009.
Twelfth|Saturday, |[PNB  Auditorium, | To discuss, approve &
AGM June 29, | Central Staff College, | adoptthe Audited Balance
2013  at|8, Underhill Road,|Sheet and Profit & Loss
T1a.m. Civil Lines, Delhi [ Account of the Bank for
-110054 year ended 31.03.2013
and to declare Annual
Dividend.
EGM Monday, |[PNB  Auditorium, | To seek approval of the
December | Central Staff College, | shareholders for issuing
16, 2013|8, Underhill Road, |and allotting 85,96,530
at 11 a.m. | Civil Lines, Delhi |equity shares to Govt. of
-110054 India on preferential basis
in terms of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2009.
Thirteenth |Monday, |PNB  Auditorium, | To  discuss, approve
ACM June 30, | Central Staff College, | & adopt the Audited
2014 at|8, Underhill Road,|Balance Sheet and Profit
11a.m. Civil Lines, Delhi|& Loss Account of the
-110054 Bank for year ended
31.03.2014.
EGM Thursday, |[PNB  Auditorium, | To seek approval of
M a r ¢ h|Central Staff College, | the shareholders for (i)
19, 2015|8, Underhill Road, |raising of capital of the
at  10.30 | Civil Lines, Delhi|Bank by way of FPO/QIP/
a.m. -110054 ESPS or any other mode

or any combination
thereof by way of Special
Resolution (i) issuing
and allotting 4,42,07,317
equity shares to Govt. of
India on preferential basis
in terms of SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2009.

S afeh H SShi § i favi Heheu wEqd 7Rl faRw )

T W HATIHT & TN (WA S ) - oF 3 UE HE
FRER & Fwn © o fadg ad @ 3RE % gN HagE &

Fgata <t TR B

No special resolutions were put through in the above said Annual
General Meetings.

Postal Ballot - Bank has not conducted any business in which
postal ballot is permitted, during the financial year.
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Disclosures

61315881 T Yo FRweh qon FETes Rus % wiRefhs & 6.1 The remuneration of the Chairman & Managing Director and

it IR TR gR fRa S §1 S I wrEerss R
1 A e STHTHIGA HT dSH] § 9N oF % foTT ARG SRR
3 fuifia Soskh & ofemen +E o WRefod T& <dan Sa
Yo Frefafad §:

Y& TR Seeh B 9N o o o 39 Yo (F)
e %.10000/~
o€ HT 37 giafq %. 5000/~

o o 2014-15 & IRF TR-FEuers FRYH & 9 oH
% AU W 1 e e @ (qoisfers fwe iR wra
WeR Td ARdw & gfafifu feves w5 9 o # fag
foret JR &1 ®IE H1 JIaE T R S |

. |, |y @ am WA W TE AHT T §
1 st ot ot <t 90000
2 ot T9 & gl 15000
3 gt srae 10000
4 it St o e 175000
5 ot T T A 115000
6 it € & fawen 180000
7 <. g T 210000
8 ot feefia AR |w@ 175000
9 Eicii e s 175000

6.2 R Tstd deh/amgdiuanE & fen Fewl & oy | o &

g e @939 31.3.2015 &t ferfq 1aR gemas & @t
& Hed (et 18) H i ™ R

6.39e feen-fadenl & oTUR Hefud Uel & WY oF-39 I H

Hifq 9 1 SeEEe https://www.pnbindia.in/new/Upload/En/
Policy_on_Related_Party_Transactions.PDF WX q T 2l

4fema 3 =l & <RE G SR 9 wafuq Awe & ddd |

Qa2 TS gN 9%k T S UL/l Rl o
T 2

6.5 % W ¥R =R IEE ¥, A

i, et fee fa.

ii. et gfan wEAe o
iii. duAelt soede afdew fa.
iv. oTet SvERE sifeRT WL fax

* FHYR F TAT B AU HIH 3@ IR § FAF FIA T 14.02.2011
1 EHE ve & 9 e 2

Wt fieed fo. wh gefag den € Bl §% & 3 feus f =g
FE & fdes wued H T

Tu% Al oo w1 dF ST SuiE €, A

i, USE eEd §% (R fa g

ii. g deet o fol., qem

i, STUEH THel WU, HEE

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

the Executive Directors is fixed by the Government of India.
The Bank does not pay remuneration to the Non-Executive
Directors except sitting fees fixed by Government of India,
for attending the meetings of the Board or its sub-committees,
which is as under:-

Meeting Sitting Fees payable per Meeting (3)
Board 10000/~
Sub-Committee of Board 5000/-

The Sitting Fee paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the
Year 2014-15 is as under: (No sitting fee is payable to whole
time directors and director representing Government of India
& RBI):

S. No. | Name of the Director Sitting Fee paid (in )
1 Sh. B. B. Chaudhry 90000
2 Sh. M. A. Antulay 15000
3 Ms. Aradhana Misra 10000
4 Sh. G. P. Khandelwal 175000
5 Sh. M. N. Gopinath 115000
6 Sh. D. K. Singla 180000
7 Dr. Sunil Gupta 210000
8 Sh. Dilip Kumar Saha 175000
9 Sh. T. C. Jhalani 175000

The Related Party Transactions of the Bank as per RBI /ICAl
guidelines are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts (in Schedule
18) of the Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2015.

Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions in terms
of SEBI guidelines is available on Bank’s website at https://
www.pnbindia.in/new/Upload/En/Policy_on_Related Party
Transactions.PDF

No penalties/strictures were imposed on the Bank by SEBI/
Stock Exchanges in respect of matters related to Capital Market
during the last three years.

The Bank has four domestic subsidiaries, namely:

i. PNB Gilts Ltd.

ii. PNB Housing Finance Ltd.

iii. PNB Investment Services Ltd.

iv. PNB Insurance Broking Pvt. Ltd.*

*Steps are being taken for winding up of the company as the

licence has already been surrendered on 14.02.2011.

PNB Gilts Ltd. is a listed entity where two of the Directors of
the Bank are also Directors on the Board of that Company.

Further, the Bank has three international subsidiaries,

namely:

i. Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd., UK
ii. Druk PNB Bank Ltd., Bhutan.

iii. JSC SB PNB, Kazakhstan.
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d% & ufErecre Ue fade wE A @ SR
Frafia s W fequmen =1 < st 21 fordta aftoms wwER
T H YR R ST & -9y =i TES (TIuEE o
Aue) § off s ford o ?) fordia uftom sl fagmom
AR G see fereel & (st o fe=d) ercfuen aftemer
I IER TS geAd: TR SiE sfedr, fegwm o,
foore ©ree, BREAREE TRIUY, SHAHR JEr, TauRd
T, fegmm, fagim 2= (o), 3 wmor eiR
S ¥ geRiivd fRu S g

fammel/anfter fa<ia aftomy ok Heama fremesl/favervent i
aﬂrﬁnﬁﬁﬁésﬁaﬁ%aﬁaﬁéw (www.pnbindia.in) ™
Ty Sl @1 39 oferan, foia aftomel w1 fequmer! Wi
fie we solaeife Hifem & mem § SR fomtet gr o
gfeq feran s 21

e RO & 1 da9me | ff & S 7

AW IRRERH & forw g
dh & JETHUNGRI Skt 1441 Ak H A3 :
YSF H FRFH 3H THN T :

f&a, fafy 3 9= TAIR, 30 5[4, 2015 ! oliE

10.00 =t

Hieet siffeciiam, &= =Iw
Fictsl, 8, sietfea Us, fafaw
@, k& - 110054

fa<ia sherust 2015-16 @& forw (wwwTfam)

Freifera wTa sTafy/faaret fodta aRomal &1 STgART -

T

S 30, 2015 i wAME A - I, 14, 2015

faam=r 30, 2015 1 guw fouet - FEWR, 14, 2015

fegmr 31, 2015 ! gur foaamet - A, 14, 2016

4, 31, 2016 1 U< faaEl/ad - Tt
TE-30 TE,
2016 T

A G FE WA 9 FH wt fafer (anfier et - faw

a9 2014-15 & 14ef W 3k ) 24.06.2015 T 30.06.2015

T (I f7 wfirer)

AT BT SART - Tt ad 2014-15 & fo@

TN - o & Ry Hewd 3 o i 08.05.2015
%I AETSG 98 o ford ad 2014-15 & oy

®.2/- % Yo SfaEel IR W 33.30/- fd IR
(FAfd 165%) S HT TN BT 2

8.2

8.3

8.4

Means of Communication

The information about the operational and financial performance
of the Bank is disseminated on a regular basis to its stakeholders.
The financial results are submitted to the Stock Exchanges (NSE
& BSE) besides being published in newspapers. Financial results,
corporate advertisements and notices etc. are published in any
2 (English and Hindi) of the widely circulated newspapers viz.
Times of India, Hindustan Times, Business Standard, Financial
Express, Economic Times, Navbharat Times, Hindustan,
Business Standard (Hindi), Dainik Jagran and Jansatta.

The quarterly/annual financial results and presentations made
to institutional investors/analysts are placed on the website of
the Bank (www.pnbindia.in).

Further, the financial results are also communicated to
the stakeholders through news releases through print and
electronic media.

The Annual Report is also hosted on the Bank’s website.
General Shareholders’ Information

14th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank :

The following is the schedule of meeting:

Day, Date & Time Tuesday, June 30th 2015
at 10.00 a.m.
Venue PNB Auditorium, Central Staff

College, 8, Underhill Road, Civil
Lines, Delhi — 110 054

Financial Calendar (Tentative) for 2015-16

Approval of financial results for the quarter/period ending -
Q. E. June 30, 2015 - By August 14, 2015.
Q. E. September 30, 2015 - By November 14, 2015
Q. E. December 31, 2015 - By February 14, 2016

- Audited  Accounts
May 30, 2016

Q./Year ending March 31, 2016 by
Dates of Book Closure - F.Y. 2014-15 & 14th AGM:
From 24.06.2015 to 30.06.2015 (both days inclusive)

Dividend details — Financial Year 2014-15

Dividend: - The Board of Directors of the Bank in its meeting
held on 08.05.2015 has recommended Annual
Dividend for 2014-15 @ %3.30/- per Equity Share
of 32/- each (i.e. 165%).
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8.5 (i) Listing on Stock Exchanges:

The shares of the bank are listed on the following Stock

Exchanges :

Stock Exchange Stock Code | Date of Initial Listing
National Stock Exchange of PNB 24.4.2002

India Ltd. (NSE)

Bombay Stock Exchange 532461 25.4.2002

Ltd. (BSE)

(ii) Payment of Listing Fee and Custodian charges

The annual listing fee to NSE & BSE and annual custody
charges to NSDL & CDSL have been paid upto date.

8.6 Market Price (%) Data / Performance of Bank’s shares*

TE ELGH | AT NSE BSE COMBINED
e ki) =T e Eiz) =7 RIEL proey Month HIGH LOW VOLUME HIGH LOW VOLUME VOLUME
3T 2014 805.25 735.00 29046152 805.00 734.60 3253060 32299212 April-14 805.25 735.00 29046152 805.00 | 734.60 3253060 32299212
w 1037.85 776.05 40248024 1035.05 | 775.65 4847934 45095958 May 1037.85 | 776.05 40248024 | 1035.05 | 775.65 4847934 45095958
S 1023.50 | 946.65 21265549 102125 | 946.60 2707241 23972790 June 1023.50 [ 946.65 | 21265549 | 1021.25 | 946.60 | 2707241 23972790
i 096.50 | 87450 | 20870348 |ooa7s | g7425 | 2728008 | 25607446 July 996.50 | 874.50 | 22879348 | 994.75 | 874.25 | 2728098 | 25607446
B 08445 |ooass |17130534  losado  |oo200  |20009091 | 19142505 August 984.45 | 904.35 | 17132534 | 984.40 | 902.90 | 2009991 | 19142525
[REE 099.65 187010 |21211473  |99s.65 |s60.65 |2447499 23658972 September | 999.65 | 870.10 | 21211473 | 998.65 | 869.65 | 2447499 | 23658972
TR 05545 |87620 |18757802  |9s640 |875.50 |2305492  |21063204 October | 955.45 | 876.20 | 18757802 | 956.40 | 875.50 | 2305492 | 21063294
TR 107230 |922.55  |19577044 | 107695 |922.00 |2184805  |21762749 November [ 1072.30 | 922.55 | 19577944 |1076.95 | 922.90 | 2184805 | 21762749
ferm 1121.95 1071.85 | 54227684 1121.00 | 1071.50 |7541734 61769418 December | 1121.95 | 1071.85 | 54227684 | 1121.00 [ 1071.50 | 7541734 61769418
SR, 2015|510 90%% | 180.65%* | 08632816%* | 219.60%* | 189.90** | 14415101%* | 113047917 Jan.15 219.80%* | 189.65** | 98632816** | 219.60** | 189.90** [ 14415101**| 113047917
hasil 191.80%* | 159.55%* | 143834766%* | 192.00%* | 159.75%* | 21160942** | 164995708 February | 191.80**|159.55** [143834766**| 192.00%* | 159.75%* | 21160942** | 164995708
i 169.25** | 144.40%* | 99962099** | 169.30** | 144.40** | 15443071%** | 115405170 March 169.25%* | 144.40** [ 99962099** | 169.30** | 144.40** | 15443071**| 115405170
i 586776191 81044968 667821159 TOTAL 586776191 81044968 | 667821159

* B - TATHS/ATES daEEe (www.nseindia.com / www.bseindia.com)

o FIRIET B AR S B IR F AR qoq 10/~ F J2/- & WNE
§ & M, ok B I K1 God IAAH ®O 144.40 (T
Tawfsa ) den sifereraw w0 1121.95 (W8 - fawrsm) (@
faemfera 2224.39 FaMEI) don TICEE SR sited ¥ FRER
FI FHA A 66.78 HUS WA Wl Tk FAT Wik 74.45
FE IR W
o % <A ok % T A iR god 210/~ 9 fawfe w
32/~ 9fa ¥R & fan @ e sifehad qoa ¥ favsH & &t
e fafa 19 famr, 2014 o

8.7 e TR H qo ¥ S & IR ot Troames W & w9

¥ freree gotten e § -

S & IR BT GO § Seh TR w1 W w Y H oA

f sTgem @ -

=
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*Source - NSE/BSE website (www.nseindia.com / www.bseindia.com)
** Post split of Face Value of Bank's shares from ¥ 10/- to ¥ 2/-

The share of the Bank traded between a low of ¥144.40 (ex-split)
and high of ¥1121.95 (cum-split) (adjusted Z224.39 ex-split) and
total volume traded at NSE & BSE was 66.78 crore shares as against
the floating stock of 74.45 crore shares.

During the year, face value of Bank’s shares was split from ¥ 10/-
to ¥ 2/- per share. The Record Date for the purpose of split in face
value was 19th December 2014.

8.7 Performance of Bank’s share price in comparison with Bank
Nifty.
The graphical depiction of performance of Bank’s share vis-a-
vis Bank Nifty is given below:
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8.8 Ufd IEX TTeReT

(Fm) 2012.13 | 2013.14| 2014.15
Sferd g (T.) 10/- 10/- 2/-
31 A & fEfq STIER TAUER (%) 717.90 743.90 144.40
A (%) 139.52 93.91
%2/~ & Sifthd Hod B THEING o4 27.90 18.78 16.91
A T 10 P YAh SfeERl IR W 27.00 10.00 3.30
(2014-15 & fer@ 32/-)
T (%) 270.00 100.00 165.00
& qA () 884.03 952.50
%2/~ % sifhd goa 2q SHMEISd 3 176.81 190.50 203.24
e TN (TS M9 T %) 20.10 10.83 20.00

8.9 VX TUT TSie (THAT)
diedt AR Te SR gides (W) fa St odt §
Tsfiehd 3R IR S0 TolE B, S YA U TS &
&9 ¥ 01.01.2013 ¥ frwa fvw T 21 T faewo = fag
TI'Q%:—

et BEANE T8 HEE dibes (W) . (Ffe o deE)

‘diedt B=RA’, qdF ad

99, ISR, TAME AT U= & 0D

£ & - 110062

A - 011-29961281/82/83, He : 011- 29961284
30 -

8.10 (i) Ud &7 ¥ T T IRl & ferw 9w afavur yomett

R oW ax
Tl &9 H I ® IR 9 oY € fm 9 I %
SO, IR o YOOI, 394 d H YR, SelhH/Hiarsd
TR, 30 AR Sk AUy (S w1 AW, war @i
TEAT, HER IS TANR) 3R E-shfee afry sk &
T H YR SO TSUE hi Wi 3o T (hH 0 8.9
H fRu M) W giead w1 sEd gl w1 9o e
fedi =1 Sl U9 999 W it gHAv=a gl Feil

(i) S =T TR Aaor HiHfa & AT & oI5 IR S0
e g fAuifa sma & ff@ 7 R erRa W
&3 S 2

8.1151e &7 | @ T W & fag 9w sfawor qumedt 3iw

R a9

(i) 5% & I 1 FRER SAfardd: € 9 9 STEuEeE
He IFETE 160001022 & Faia fepan S &1 < A9He
e feufsed fa (@ @ € @) au d=a
feufferett wfes fafire (Hidugue) feuffsed & %
% IR e ®Y A W T B

(i )FRERe e T IR S %9 | § ST 3Ty € fR o
AW T U A Sk ARRY (V% H TH, w@, @i
T UES hie ) H ufedd & Hay § fwle euse
F & T @Y o fewfsed weantt &1 g )

8.11(T) TR alfeTr : YPRUNERT | oy € fo o eron
AT UG eTEer o fewifsedl Hewrl @ wHiw,

beetal@beetalfinancial.com

8.8 Per Share Data:

®) 2012-13 [ 2013-14 | 2014-15
Face Value R) 10/- 10/- 2/-
Closing as on 31st March -NSER) 717.90| 743.90| 144.40
Earnings (%) 139.52 93.91
Adjusted earnings for Face Value of 27.90 18.78 16.91
%2/- per share
Dividend per Equity Share of % 10/- each 27.00 10.00 3.30
(2/- for 2014-15)
Dividend (%) 270.00] 100.00| 165.00
Book Value ) 884.03| 952.50
Adjusted book value for Face Value of 176.81| 190.50| 203.24
32/- per share
Dividend payout (% of Net Profit) 20.10 10.83 20.00

8.9 Share Transfer Agent (STA)

Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Ltd., a SEBI registered
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent has been appointed Share
Transfer Agent of the Bank with effect from 01.01.2013.
Contact details are given below:

Beetal Financial & Computer Services (P) Limited (Unit: PNB)
‘Beetal House’, 3rd Floor

99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping Centre

New Delhi 110062

Tel. No. 011-29961281/82/83, Fax: 011-29961284

e-mail: beetal@beetalfinancial.com

8.10(i) Share Transfer System and communication mechanism
for shares held in physical form

Shareholders holding shares in physical form may send
requests/communications for transfer/transmission of
shares, change of address (with Telephone / Mobile
Numbers), E-mail address, change in Bank mandate (i.e.
Name of Bank, Address, Account No., MICR Code etc.),
e-Credit mandate etc. directly to STA at the above address
(given at S. No. 8.9). This will ensure timely receipt of all
communications & beneficial interests by them.

(ii) The transfer of physical shares is affected by the STA
within the stipulated time on approval by Share Transfer
Committee of the Bank.

8.11 Share Transfer System and communication mechanism for
shares held in Demat form.

(i) The Bank’s shares are traded compulsorily in Demat
mode under ISIN code INE160A01022. The National
Securities Depository Ltd, (NSDL) and the Central
Depository Services Ltd. (CDSL) are the depositories
holding the Bank’s share in Demat form.

(ii) Shareholders are requested to inform their Depository
Participant (DP) directly for updating the records in case
of any change in address and/or Bank mandate (Name of
Bank, Address, Account No, MICR Code etc.), for shares
held in Dematerialized form.

8.11(A) Electronic Voting: Shareholders are requested to

register their latest email ID with their Depository
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Participant or STA, as the case may be, for enabling
e-voting facility.

8.12 PNB-Unclaimed Shares (Suspense) A/c: The details of
unclaimed shares as per SEBI directive is as under:-

* yifore feran S @ foF o Rl W AifeT iR q Gk WIS W W qk H1 S GA w1 el
@ A @ H |

813 31 W, 2015 @t feafa AR JrEvenfiar qen faavor et

‘ @mﬁafq 2005) anétﬁaljl( 2002)4 il _| FPO (2005)  |IPO (2002) TOTAL
.4, |feeror ﬁ:;““ﬁ Erﬁm ﬁ:ﬁwna?r aﬁm ﬁ:ﬁ'{m ﬁ‘ﬁ“ﬁ S. |Particulars No. of |No. of |No. of |No. of |No. of |No. of
we ks we kSl HEAT| T HA No. Share- |Shares| Share- |Shares |Share- |Shares
s W we holders holders holders
L[ = e S 1.04. 363| 12347 60| 6900]  423| 19247 [T [Opening at the beginning| 363 | 12347 60| 6900|  423[19247
2014 = s (10/- of the year i.e. 01.04.2014
ERED) (Rs. 10/ each)
2 |eifRd wea # fasee & 363 61735 60 34500 423| 96235 2 |Balance after split in Face 363|61735 60 34500 423]96235
gy W (W T2/-) Value (Rs. 2/ each)
3 |99 % aRF I S 3 315 1 500 6l 1315 3 |No. of shareholders 5[ 815 1 500 6 1315
% fom o SrRETE approached for transfer of
= g shares during the year
4 |od & SR SEERE B 5| 815 1 500 o wt1s| |4 E}O‘ Whg:n S;Zizho\ll\‘jgz > 81> T 500 6] 1315
i transferred during the year
? ;11, == 5 |Outstanding at the end| 358]60920 59]34000]  417] 94920
5 HAd :;[ 1 ( ) 358 60920 59 34000 417( 94920 of the yeari.e. 31.03.2015
31.03.2015 hET (1-3 (1-3)

* Certified that voting rights on these shares remains frozen till the rightful owner claims the said
shares.

8.13 Shareholding and Distribution Pattern as on 31st March 2015

(i). vreerfar e (i) Shareholding Pattern
SRRERE Sl 0T grfia gfaeet Rl st wfaeraar Shareholders’ Category %age Equity shares held
IRq & g 50.86 President of India 59.86
ST STTS ST St 16.25 Flls/NRIs/OCBs 16.25
G S e e ey 13.00 Banks/Financial Institutions/ Insurance 13.00
- Companies
3T S 41
K . 5 Mutual Funds 5.41
L == 0:25 Domestic Companies/Trusts 0.95
(T STITHIERYT /TETHISH AR 444 Indian Public/Resident Individuals 4.44
FAART T 0.09 Clearing Members 0.09
8
Eagl 100.00 Total 100.00
(ii). 31.3.2015 i feafq STTHAR YERaRRT & W& 313318 (i) No. of shareholders as on 31.03.2015 313318
(iii). v sfaaet AR &1 Aisfa® T (3.) 2/- (iii) Nominal value of each Equity Share () 2/-
(iv). feaawor ¥ (iv) Distribution Pattern
PRRUNRT R | B HI|  TERE T WichfaeR| FfaeEt wrERi| Wi ()| w®e # No. of % age | Shareholding of No. of Amount ) | %age to
HE frsTaaT T (. ) & Gen wfroTaaT Shareholders of Nominal Value |Equity Shares Total
Total of )
3099301 98.92 SO0 R0 R 1 g 0084628 Sy 309930] 98.92 | Upto 5000 68042314| 136084628|  3.67
2137 0.68 5001 § 10000 7523903 15047806 0.41 2137| 0.68 5001 to 10000 7523903 15047806 0.41
508 0.16 10001 & 20000 3682307 7364614 0.20 508| 0.16 10001 to 20000 3682307 7364614 0.20
142 0.05 20001 § 30000 1748047 3496094 0.09 142 0.05 20001 to 30000 1748047 3496094 0.09
75 0.02 30001 & 40000 1325679 2651358 0.07 75| 0.02 30001 to 40000 1325679 2651358 0.07
53 0.02 40001 & 50000 1208220 2416440 0.07 59)| | 4002 40001 to 50000 1208220 2416440 0.07
122 0.04 50001 @ 100000 4357091 8714182 0.23 122| 0.04 | 50001 to 100000 4357091 8714182 0.23
351 0.11 10000137 &Tfaeh| 1766669386 3533338772 95.26 351| 0.11 [100001 and above | 1766669386 | 3533338772| 95.26
6T ® 313318 100.00 1854556947 | 3709113894 100.00 Total: 313318 | 100.00 1854556947 | 3709113894 100.00

31.3.2015 % 3TTER YEXENehI gIT T4 &9 § 997 e &7 |
oTia Pl st feraror

Details of shares held by the Shareholders in Physical &
Dematerialized form as on 31.03.2015

. |, |faewor R St G&AT|  IEA At GEAT| SEETREr st gravra S.No. | Particulars No. of Shareholders | No. of Shares | % Shareholding
1 qd ®9 H 9312 7480645 0.40 1. Physical 9312 7480645 0.40
2 e wu 4 fd | 304006 1847076302 99.60 2. Dematerialized 304006| 1847076302 99.60
) TAUHETA 216822 15692946 38.59 i) of which, NSDL 216822 715692946 38.59
i) |drEtETE 87184 1131383356 61.01 ii) CDSL 87184| 1131383356 61.01

w_A (1+2) 313318 1854556947 100.00 Total (1+2) 313318| 1854556947 100.00
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During the Financial Year, Bank allotted 4,42,07,317 Equity
Shares to Govt. of India of I2/- each on preferential basis at a
premium of ¥194.80 per Equity Share and the amount received by
the Bank on this account is ¥869,99,99,985.60.

8.14 Geographical spread of Shareholders as on 31.03.2015

o od = F wA ELECTRONIC PHYSICAL TOTAL
Vet | fravewen|  wfow V| wfeore | rawemeR| e, Vra|  ferora | Yravemes| e s City Name | Holder [Per %| Shares | per% |Holder|Per% | Shares [Per%)|Holder Per%| Share |Per%
STEHITET 12343 4.06| 3228979 0.17 60 0.64 36000 048] 12403 3.96 3264979 0.18 AHMEDABAD | 12343 4.06 3228979 0.17 60| 0.64 36000( 0.48( 12403| 3.96] 3264979| 0.18
kil 12855 423 3067863 017 222 238] 187765 251 13077| 417 3255628 0.18] BANGALORE | 12855| 4.23| 3067863 0.17| 222 2.38| 187765| 2.51| 13077| 4.17| 3255628| 0.18
= 11864] 3.90 7126760 0.39 440 473 390115 5.21 12304 3.93 7516875 0.41 CHENNAI 11864 3.90] 7126760( 0.39 440 4.73| 390115[ 5.21| 12304 3.93 7516875 0.41
feeit 27529 9.06| 1122331802  60.75 847|  9.10] 679970 9.09| 28376  9.06[ 1123011772|  60.55 DELHI 27529| 9.06|1122331802| 60.75 847 9.10( 679970( 9.09| 28376 9.06(1123011772|60.55
2z 7264 239 3069600 0.17 180! 1.93 158000 2.11 7444 238 3227600 0.17 HYDERABAD 7264 2.39 3069600 0.17 180| 1.93| 158000| 2.11 7444( 2.38|  3227600[ 0.17]
Ezscaut 14943 491 5667172 0.31 298 3.20 268855 3.59 15241 4.86] 5936027 0.32 KOLKATA 14943 4.91 5667172 0.31 298| 3.20| 268855| 3.59| 15241| 4.86 5936027| 0.32
s 40561 13.34| 658288360 35.64 587 6.30 466700 6.24|  41148| 13.13| 658755060  35.52 MUMBAI 40561|13.34| 658288360| 35.64 587 6.30[ 466700( 6.24| 41148[13.13| 658755060 35.52
TrfieR = 8862 292| 2799277 0.15 234 251 191035 2.55 9096 2.90] 2990312/ 0.16) NCR OTH 8862| 2.92 2799277 0.15 234 2.51f 191035 2.55| 9096( 2.90| 2990312 0.16]
Ex 167785 55.19| 41496489 2.25 6444|  69.21| 5102205 6822 174229|  S5.61| 46598694 251 OTHER 167785[55.19( 41496489| 2.25| 6444(69.21(5102205(68.22(174229|55.61| 46598694 2.51
ko 304006 100| 1847076302 100 9312 100 7480645 100 313318 100| 1854556947 100, TOTAL 304006( 1001847076302 100 9312| 100{7480645| 100[313318| 100[1854556947| 100

815 fafa = 2014-15 & XA d% 3 FE off SHSMUTEAY
IRE AYEl FE off uRadda faom S T8 R den
31.03.2015 1 hi3 SISIVTSIAERE a1 HE GRS

forer@ s 78t 2
8.16TATe T AT :-

(i) s gfea

TSfe WY ek

R faam, faa gam

599 ¥r, 98 K@ - 110001
(ii) 39 4. 011 - 23708257
(iii)®= 011 - 23766079
(iv) $9a: hosd@pnb.co.in

FA USTE oA §h
o
ACIET T

(T iRt )
yay Ry U e wrEiutels Tt

8.15 Bank has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments during the financial year 2014-15
and there are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments as on 31.03.2015.

8.16 Address for Correspondence

i. The Company Secretary
Punjab National Bank
Share Department, Finance Division
5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi 110001

ii. Tel. No.011-23708257
iii. Fax:011-23766079,

iv. e-mail : hosd@pnb.co.in

For Punjab National Bank

iy Sk

(Gauri Shankar)
Managing Director & CEO
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oo Declaration

: : : : The Bank has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board
d% 4 gt A wEE du aRs yEud av % SAfueiEl &
& 5 3 N O T g p—_— Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Bank, which is

posted on the website of the Bank i.e. https://www.pnbindia.in/En/
https://www.pnbindia.in/En/ui/Model-code-of-conduct.aspx ¥ ui/Model-code-of-conduct.aspx

Teran T #
M & TR G qn IS WaEH 7 Wi UsHes & @Y The Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed
GeHTT IR F @vg 49(i) () & FTER =R Hfed 7 compliance to the Code of Conduct in accordance with Clause

49 () (D) of the Listing Agreement entered into with Stock
1 w1 g F g Exchanges.
ETIREIC) EHEC-CO For Punjab National Bank
IR by Skt
LN
£ 1 I =|'§ Ecgll (Tﬁ'ﬂ‘ JTehT ) Place: New Delhi (Gauri Shankar)
ik ¢ 08.05.2015 e e T = HTUTeTeR 31T Date: 08/05/2015 Managing Director & CEO



TETIIIgTehl ST YHTITAR
TSI Y Sk % WL
B o % I WK % Y gC GEleg SHEY & WS 49
¥ FerfAfd® 31 @< 2015 =1 WA gC 99 & fod ffim
SMEH 1 Il T USTa M S gNI SO fhy STH i
Siter 1 21

i o 1 vl % Sruer 1 TR g w1 @1 B
St Frifed omee 5 vl % orued % gived ?q 9@ g1
Ffipa HrEigiaE dun 39 fharaad a% & @fd 21

g 9 A @ wen ® iR A & dk i foxia farfEl w @
1 srferteR €

TR T W qen g < M g wd ' fed e s
% HEN BH YHIUE *id € o o 3 Suds geieg R
¥ Fefafiy fifaa smem &t el @1 39 €W 9% sTde
foren € fob 570 9 e oo & Anifeen w1 SEeE @l
B B

B0 98 ot gfud & € fF 38 YRR 1 odied A Al s i
Tl FeRRidl 3R A & Y9 g S 1 HEEN FAN H ITh]
TEAT AU TSR B U HIS ARAET T B

Auditors’ Certificate

To the members of Punjab National Bank

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by Punjab National Bank for the year ended 31st
March 2015, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of
the Bank with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Bank for
ensuring the compliance of the condition of Corporate Governance.

It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial
statements of the Bank.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, we certify that the Bank has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
the above mentioned Listing Agreement to the extent these do
not violate the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970,
as amended in respect of appointment of Directors.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to
the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For and on behalf of

M/s KN Gutgutia & Co. M/s CVK & Associates

Hd 9T T & IR A

e % T e U weE fod Hf® Te ity
T @R TS AEHR
TF IR T 3041533 TF AR TH 1017458
(St R ) (T & 9eM)
R IR
GE&Iar 9. 012172 TE&qar 9. 032156
Tod WY HR T HEA g Bk Te Qe
TS TREThR TS AEHR
TF IR TT 0014774 TF 3R T 101794
(T FR) (Tt BER)
BIENK BIEK
S F0 080725 Gl 9. 049357
TS @R T AEHR
(TF 3R T 114207 T=9) (T IR TT 009907TT)
(RS Temd) (FY Ter)
HEER TR
TEEIar |90 074392 gE&aal |0 092257
T T e

T @ 08.05.2015

Chartered Accountants
(FRN 304153E)

(B R Goyal)
Partner
Membership No. 012172

M/s Ramesh Kapoor & Co.

Chartered Accountants
(FRN 001477N)

(Ramesh Kapoor)
Partner
Membership No. 080725

M/s R Devendra Kumar & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(FRN 114207W)

(Neeraj Golas)
Partner
Membership No.074392

Place: New Delhi
Date: 08/05/2015

Chartered Accountants
(FRN 101745W)

(A K Pradhan)
Partner
Membership No. 032156

M/s Chhajed & Doshi
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 101794W)

(M.P. Chhajed)
Partner
Membership No.049357

M/s Hem Sandeep & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(FRN 009907N)

(Manish Gupta)
Partner
Membership No.092257
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USTE YT Seh AT 31 WrEl, 2015 T W@ qo™ o
ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON MARCH 31, 2015

(vfer 7 @ #)
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31 W=t 2015 T 31 W=t 2014 S0
As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
o e T
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES
St 37091 36207
Capital
ynfara it ofm arfawe
Reserves & Surplus
wifafeess grfara faferm 966705 890166
Statutory Reserves
et arfara fafy 261447 254970
Capital Reserves
IR HfEm 700273 614157
Share Premium
T qen 3T grfar Atk 1942436 1794032
Revenue and other Reserves
@ 9 7 ' o e 0 0
Balance in Profit & Loss Account
SRR
Deposits
A SERRE 3358080 3149923
Demand Deposits
Tq e SRR 15019966 14137288
Savings Bank Deposits
ety STHRIETET 31759818 27852464
Term Deposits
IR
Borrowings
O H SUR
Borrowings in India
(%) 9rdta s o @ 0 1410800
(a) from Reserve Bank of India
(@) o S 9@ 547405 107354
(b) from other Banks
() o= eensl SR weitgEl @ 1846769 1247509
(c) from other Institutions and Agencies
IR | a8 IR 2172881 2037778
Borrowings outside India
T AN TS W
Other liabilities and provisions
7 faa 233901 249662
Bills Payable
T=: HEeE FHESE () 1437 2708
Inter-Office adjustments (net)
Iufed =S 128719 115913
Interest accrued
e enfeEl & faw waEm 279011 238249

Provisions towards standard assets
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TSI A9 Sk T 31 HTel, 2015 AT W@ qe U
ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON MARCH 31, 2015

(ufer 2 o o)
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31 W= 2015 ST 31 WT=t 2014 T
As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
Sefitd X 3T (IF) 0 0
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
Jq 1077421 902812
Others
& ﬁ 3ﬁ—{ e 60333360 55041992
Total Capital and Liabilities
Snise
ASSETS
el T8 AR fisrd o & U@ e 2422494 2224558
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India
Rl & U AT 9 R WA qUT T GO W WA &
Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice
qRd Sl B UE 9 696760 553702
Balances with Banks in India
TG H AW q ST A W A o 0 0
Money at Call and Short Notice in India
A W e m . 2474163 1743585
Balances outside India
Trawr
Investments
ard |
In India
%) R wfavfaar 12395380 11229041
(a) Government Securities
@) 2 SFAIfea wfavfae 18785 18653
(b) Other Approved Securities
M) TR 360259 275423
(c) Shares
o) fea=Rr IR ame 1479722 1811136
(d) Debentures and Bonds
) el sfystern G S 60601 24228
(e) Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures
=) 3 547208 770995
(f) Others
ARd | AR 266281 249074
Outside India
Ithim
Advances
IR o
In India
%) @i} iR g T A 2902418 2178037
(a) Bills purchased and discounted
W) g IUN, SR AR M W T B0 14724984 14315993

(b) Cash Credits, Overdrafts & Loans
repayable on demand



USTE YT Seh AT 31 WrEl, 2015 T W@ qo™ o
ABRIDGED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON MARCH 31, 2015

(ufer % @ #)
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31 HTel 2015 T 31 |Tl 2014 T
As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
) 'O 15182535 14385372
(c) Term Loans
ARG § 9T 5243503 4047511
Outside India
ST STTfeEt 355148 341974
Fixed Assets
ST et
Other Assets
31q; wEed TR (IS) 0 0
Inter-Office adjustments(net)
Iuferd =11 417629 419526
Interest accrued
FX HT AH PAF/FL FT Ed R B 143324 89993
Tax paid in advance / deducted at source
SeAfia X i (YS) 148485 55485
Deferred tax asset (net)
T & fueE v W TR SR et 2398 2398
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
H 491283 305308
Others
Bt S 60333360 55041992
Total Assets
JMHIHE JIATC
Contingent Liabilities
¥ % fovs T8 <@ 5= %0 & w9 § T 79 ™ T 18834 17869
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
R ARl fafe wfagiet & wRo <Far 18642004 13117067
Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange
contracts
el i SR | & T IR 4391920 3995478
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
T, guiea 3R o= e 4136220 4367393
Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
o= e foeh foq o eTepfens &9 9 f9ER © 205560 129671
Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable
agelt & fog foe 1964062 2032597
Bills for collection
yrfera ffedi iR sifedie & efavia gdes Rfem fafy 138755 140818

The amount of Revaluation Reserve under Reserves & Surplus -

114
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Bl B W, @, TEr
T K BALAMUKUNDAN J K GUPTA
TEEE TEIVE-<h TETIErETeh

ASSTT. GENERAL MANAGER GENERAL MANAGER

T, U9 T |y

&, IR SRSt |
DR. RAM S SANGAPURE K VEERA BRAHMAJI RAO
FriuTee Feves Ut TevTeR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

REED
GAURI SHANKAR
wee THaveR Te g T SRt
MANAGING DIRECTOR & C.E.O.

RENECDCIC] & & e feefia AR =
RAJESH AGGARWAL T C JHALANI DILIP KUMAR SAHA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
il IRCEIGEI] U9 TR
G P KHANDELWAL PREM NARAIN
IRGNED IRGNED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
T & U AT UT HET Fd Hidle U THIfaued Fd WY FYT TS wA
For K N Gutgutia & Co. For CVK & Associates For Ramesh Kapoor & Co.
TIET AETRT TS AGTRT

TEl V@R

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants

(St IR e - HEER) (TS UaH - WEER)
(B R Goyal - Partner) (A K Pradhan - Partner)

T H0 012172, THARTT 3041538 WIE H0 032156, THARTA 101745 T
M No. 012172, FRN 304153E M No. 032156, FRN 101745W

(TA9T FHYT - HEHER)

(Ramesh Kapoor - Partner)

TS G0 080725, THIIRTA 0014770
M No. 080725, FRN 001477N

For Chhajed & Doshi For R Devendra Kumar & Associates For Hem Sandeep & Co.
RREURSEeICa T TR

FEl A@TRR

Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(Tm Ut BT - WEER) (=T e - WEET)
(M P Chhajed - Partner) (Neeraj Golas - Partner)

TS H. 049357, THSTNA 101794 TS H. 074392, THANTA 114207 EES)
M No0.049357 , FRN 101794W

(el T - W )
(Manish Gupta - Partner)
TS 9. 092257, THANT 009907TA
M No0.092257 , FRN 009907N

M No0.074392 , FRN 114207W

feiem ¢ 08/05/2015
Date : 08/05/2015

T ;% feee
Place : New Delhi



TSS9 Seh oAl 31 WTEl, 2015 ohl AT o8 o AT WiAW o9 g1f9 @rar
ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK FOR THE YEAR

ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

(ufer 3 @@ H)

(All amounts in ¥ lac)

31.03.2015 sl HUTE o4
For the year ended
March 31, 2015

31.03.2014 sl WHTE o9
For the year ended
March 31, 2014

T
Income

fSta =Tt

Interest Earned

AT/ feett ™

On advances/bills

fraen ™

On Investments

qRet ot dF % U 9 R I or: Ao
On balances with RBI and other inter-bank funds

)
Others

T A"
Other Income

HHeE, fafwa e et

Commission, Exchange and Brokerage

fraen =1 fost W 35 @

Net Profit on sale of Investments

gy, W, 3 e il #1 fasww g8 o
Net Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets
fafma giserReMl W gg o™

Net Profit on exchange transactions

/e | el stveremn gged SuE @ A gets g o
Income by way of Dividends etc. from subsidiaries
companies and / or joint ventures abroad/in India

fafay sm=

Miscellaneous Income
wA M
Total Income

g
Expenditure

e feman & =

Interest Expended

ELRURRIEL

On Deposits

TR o Aeh/er: 9% SUR W
On RBI/ Inter - bank borrowings

3
Others

3479438 3239309
1059999 1026583
63225 36224
28874 20209
274488 257938
102273 54935
262 469
49820 54440
3503 2846
158727 87043
5220609 4779996
2762134 2522204
56699 76781
157146 108743
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TSS9 Seh T 31 WTet, 2015 ol WHTW o9 o AT wiere oy g1is @rar

ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

(ufe % = )
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31.03.2015 T THTE o 31.03.2014 &t HUTW a®
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
aft=rmer s a
Operating Expenses
HEEA 1 T AR 3 g e 733691 651045
Payments to and Provisions for employees
fortrn, 2w fersieft 54696 48391
Rent, Taxes and Lighting
TEUT TS @A W 8013 7428
Printing and Stationery
faame iR y=R 3617 2912
Advertisement and Publicity
Ik H T W TR 37023 35239
Depreciation on Bank’s property
e *1 wH, o e 126 155
Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses
Eiarhl 1 HE T @ (A e wfed) 5352 4562
Auditors’ fees and expenses (including branch auditors)
fafyr g9r 4319 3633
Law Charges
T, AR, TEAHE MK 12289 12535
Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, etc.
T 3R e 19591 15151
Repairs and Maintenance
Eic 45327 41010
Insurance
= 125111 111760
Others
YA Ta TR HRATT
Provisions and contingencies
e | Jege™ & foau wEye -56703 78276
Provisions for depreciation on Investment
S ATl & fag wee 797919 451709
Provision towards non performing assets
AR STl & fT wreem 40488 50534
Provision towards standard assets
I (3 FU % i) 18046 88875
Others (excluding income taxes)
= @t Tl ST g 4824884 4310943
Total expenses and provisions
ﬁ,fﬁugﬁﬁﬁéx 395725 469053
A H 182567 158580
Current tax
AT & -93000 -23786

Deferred tax



TSS9 Seh oAl 31 WTEl, 2015 ohl AT o8 o AT WiAW o9 g1f9 @rar

ABRIDGED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

(ufer 3 @@ H)

(All amounts in ¥ lac)

31.03,2015 Sl G a9 31.03.2014 &Y HHTE o9

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended
March 31, 2014

T U /B

Profit/(loss) after tax 306158 334259
amifya e g 0 0
Profit/Loss brought forward
ol
Total 306158 334259
T
Appropriations
wifafers yRfara fAfemi i svawor 76540 83564
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
o1 yRfera fafet st efawo 156148 208621
Transfer to Other Reserves
prearersicrici N caic | 73470 42073
Transfer to Government / proposed dividend
EEERER A RIC I 0 0
Balance carried forward to balance sheet
3 & qemE=ET S, &, T
T K BALAMUKUNDAN J K GUPTA
TETh TETIEIh A EESED
ASSTT. GENERAL MANAGER GENERAL MANAGER
. T T WmgR o, dRT SISt T
DR. RAM S SANGAPURE K VEERA BRAHMA]JI RAO
TR TR TR TevTeR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TR SieRt
GAURI SHANKAR
vy TR Td qer wEues At
MANAGING DIRECTOR & C.E.O.
RENECDEI 3 e feefta AR 9w=T
RAJESH AGGARWAL T C JHALANI DILIP KUMAR SAHA
AECNED IECNED AECNED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
SR IRCEECI| I AT
G P KHANDELWAL PREM NARAIN
AEENED AEEED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



Fd ® T e G ww
For K N Gutgutia & Co.
RREURSEeICan

Chartered Accountants

(St R TiEA - EWEER)
(B R Goyal - Partner)

TS G0 012172, THSTRTA 3041533
M No. 012172, FRN 304153E

w4 BNE T 90
For Chhajed & Doshi
HAE SRR

Chartered Accountants

(U Ut BT - WIEER)
(M P Chhajed - Partner)
TS H. 049357, THNTA 10179489

M No0.049357 , FRN 101794W

Fd Hiedten Ug wHfAUEE
For CVK & Associates
T FETHR

Chartered Accountants

(T & = - EEER)

(A K Pradhan - Partner)

T H0 032156, THIARTA 101745 T
M No. 032156, FRN 101745W

FA AW 9 FAN TS THTHTZH
For R Devendra Kumar & Associates

HE V@RI

Chartered Accountants

(RS MeE - WTHEr )
(Neeraj Golas - Partner)
TS E. 074392, THIRTA 114207 EES)
M No.074392 , FRN 114207W
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Hd I HY TS HA
For Ramesh Kapoor & Co.
LECURSICICaES

Chartered Accountants

(TS YT - WHER)

(Ramesh Kapoor - Partner)

I 0 080725, THIIRTA 0014770

M No. 080725, FRN 001477N

Fd TH WU U HWHA
For Hem Sandeep & Co.
RREURSICICaIS

Chartered Accountants

(TS TR - WEET )
(Manish Gupta - Partner)

T 9. 092257, THARTT 00990707
M No0.092257 , FRN 009907N

feiem ¢ 08/05/2015
Date : 08/05/2015

M ;e et
Place : New Delhi



G - 18 (THeA)

SCHEDULE 18 (SOLO)

wrdl | Haiferd feofora NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
1. st (*Ug §) 1. Capital % in Crore)
h e 31.03.2015|31.03.2014 SI. [Particulars 31.03.2015(31.03.2014
9. No.
i |9m sfeeEt SRR 1 Ust 3ud (%) 8.74 8.55 i. [Common equity Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) 8.74 8.55
i [2PR 1 IS e (%) 9.30 8.87| [ii |[Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) 9.30 8.87
i |[dR 2 gt o (%) 2.91 2.65| [iii |Tier 2 Capital ratio (%) 2.91 2.65
iv. e Ysi SO (ﬁmw) (%) 12.21 11.52 iv. |Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) 12.21 11.52
v. [d% # 9Rd WHR HI AReRar & 59.86% 58.87% v. [Percentage of the shareholding of the 59.86% 58.87%

I Government of India in the Bank
vi. [SeE T sfeet qsft st T 8.84* 8.60 vi. |Amount of equity Capital raised 8.84* 8.60
Vil [SeE T de| efdiE o @1 9| 1500.00 vii. |Amount of Additional Tier 1 Capital 1500.00

o i raised; of which NIL

= PNCPS: NIL

ITETE NSl PDI: 1500.00

LSRR 1500.00 viii [Amount of Tier 2 Capital raised; of which | 2000.00]  1500.00
viii [ T IR 2 St Wi ufw e ®ww| 2000.00 1500.00 Debt Capital instrument: 2000.00|  1500.00

TSt fore: sifera v gt forad afterdt|  2000.00 1500.00 Preference Share Capital Instruments:[

goht afme R (R R Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares NIL NIL

oy R £ I I (PCPS / Redeemable non- Cumulative

) FAR (SRTTHITTH) Preference Shares (RNCPS) /Redeemable
TRl SfymE PR (SHTE) Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS) |

*194.809fd TR % WHTH R qI® T2/~ & 44207317 sfaadt IR IS ®. 8.84
HUg TR RHFH 861.16 HAg (TF 2014-15 & IR el T B ot :
3870 HUS)

* 44207317 equity Shares of ¥2/- each at premium of ¥194.80 per share issued
during the year. Capital ¥8.84 crores, share premium ¥861.16 crore (Total Capital
raised during 2014-15 : 870 crore).

2. e R =g #) 2. Investments [ in Crore)
faeur 31.03.2015 |31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
() A (1) | Value of Investments
(i) |Feet = o 7w 151885.78| 144974501 17 TGross value of Investments 151685.78| 144974.50
F o § 149222.97| 142483.74
T |9Rd § 9 2662.81 2490.76| |a [InIndia 149222.97| 142483.74
i * qrEe= 603.44 1188.99
L S ity [0 |Outside India 2662.81|  2490.76
F |9 A - ) i |Provisions for Depreciation 603.44 1188.99
T |G ¥ amel 0.00 0.011 Ta  in India 603.44|  1188.98
(iiii) fae &1 g el 151282.35| 143785.51 b |Outside India 0.00 0.01
F |amg o 148619.53| 141294.76 iii |Net value of Investments 151282.35| 143785.51
a |[InIndia 148619.53| 141294.76
@ |9rd | a9 2662.82 2490.75
- b |Outside India 2662.82 2490.75
(2) [Frere tr{' ISR @ fer efia (2) |Movement of provisions held towards
R R A - depreciation on investments.
(i) [01.04.2014/01.04.2013 I FRfFeh 3 1189.04 491.63 Opening balance as on 01.04.2014/ 1189.04|  *491.63
01.04.2013
(i) [SE : = = <A fery e gEEE 0.00 697.51 i |Add: Provisions made during the year 0.00 697.51
(iii) [ ;= ® <kE fey Ty et 585.60 0.15
TEYE ® fau 92 @W et Wy iii | Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess 585.60 0.15
wfetefad i (313\) provisions during the year(Net)
iv |Closing balance as on 603.44 1188.99
(iv) 31.03.2015/31.03.2014 <! sfaei 603.44 1188.99 31.03.2015/31.03.2014

+ Troell s@fy & Sl H GAHTEA/JTHaEIo /e h ol
ﬁww@%wﬁmmﬁq@wﬁmma%wm
HEITF T

*  Figures of the previous period have been regrouped / rearranged /

re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s clas-
sification.
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3. O e 3. Repo Transactions
(X #E T) (Zin Crore)
ffha g 31.03.2015] 31.03.2015] 31.03.2015[31.03.2015| |Face Value Minimum| Maximum Daily|  Outstand-
=3¢ e =3¢ e = aE| = fefy outstanding| outstanding Average ing as on
ot @ @ T @ G| w6 @ dE| @ oeEw during the| during the |outstanding| 31.03.2015
A Sh N year ended | year ended| during the
T 31.03.2015| 31.03.2015 | year ended
SRt ST 31.03.2015
A & ST = T Securities sold
gfasfaat under repo
(i) wer st 0.00] 9658.00] 1937.25 0.00| | geocvu‘i:z;“se”t 000 965800} 1937.25 0-00
(ii) fortha swor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (ii) Corporate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
wfasfaat Debt Securities
i Securities
e i purchased under
- Tlg ‘Elﬁf - reverse repo
(i) =i wfasfar 0.00| 11083.25 3289.99| 2570.00| (i) Government 0.00| 11083.25] 3289.99 2570.00
(if) frter o 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| | Securities
et (ii) Corporate 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Debt Securities
4. THIAAN q T CRECICUIL 4. Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
47 TH T 3T ¥ gaX Fraon & friwesal deemm 4a. Issuer composition of Non SLR investments
(31.03.2015 &) (T *Ig H) (As on 31.03.2015) (Zin Crore)
| T , P Extent of
ot QET; SuRt - 'zm R Extent of ‘Below| Extent of Exte:;
o | terepert Tarer ) : "l gEhEE No. |lIssuer Amount Private| Investment|‘Unrated’|, .
e T TR w= |aﬁ uﬁn{l’%@' uﬁn{ﬁzﬁ' Placement Gr‘a('ie’ Securities Sl::ll::ittei:s
% g wfrsfer @ wivr| = Tl Securities
=t b LD (3] €)) “) (5) (6) ?)
a_|@ 3) “) () (6) @D [0 [psus 8174.95 (NID) (NID| 1476.17 (NID)
(i) |owwr &% ®|  8174.95 (3173) )| 1476.17 =13) (10404.49) (NIL) (NIL) [ (2211.23) (NIL)
ST (10404.49) () ()| (2211.23) G TGy [Fis 6153.76]  28.00 NID[ (NID[  76.62
(i) |fo<ia Heemd 6153.76 28.00 =) =) 76.62 (7430.91) (27.90) (NIL) (NID|  (76.62)
(7430.91)|  (27.90) T3 EF)|  (76.62) (iii) [Banks 4794.77 (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
(i) | 4794.77 @) ) ) ) (4783.38) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
(4783.38) CI)] CIR)) (CIR)) (313) (iv) |Private 4385.73 50.00 (NIL) 3.07| 303.09
(iv) |fsit siaie 4385.73 50.00 (¥173) 3.07 303.09 Corporates (2604.76) (50.00) (NIL) (2.90)| (277.55)
(2604.76)|  (50.00) @] (2.90)| (277.55) (v) |Subsidiaries 2091.35 (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)|  367.39
(v)  |ergufiEy 2091.35 (3] S E)|  367.39 /Joint (1727.63) (NIL) (NIL) (NID)| (367.39)
T vEm (1727.63) (=) (=) @=)| (367.39) _ Venturfs
CHESS 2903.70 =) @] 1.96] 2821| |V |Others (2897013'570(; EE:B EE:B (L"?S (2386291)
(871.50) (3) =) @=| .09 = = : :
— = 35432 e = = =) (vii) |Provisions -354.32 (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
vii) | T : held towards | (-510.32) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)
form T (-510.32) =) (317) (¥173) (S depreciation.
s 28149.94 78.00 | 1481.20( 77531 Total 28149.94 78.00 NIL| 1481.20| 775.31
(27312.34)|  (77.90) (1) | (2214.13) | (724.65) (27312.34)]  (77.90) (NIL)| (2214.13)| (724.65)

(g ¥ fu T S few T % 2 )

* o H STggE - 8 & ST Wkl Wiawfad # Sfefed foriw wwer
yfagfaal (e & a18) HT T 1009.23 HIE HT AT HT G900 THRT
vyt e g1 oM 4, 5, 6 3R 7 W SR & JFata g W=

TER Gag Tl el Hehall|

(Figures in brackets relate to previous year).

*Others include Special Govt. Securities (net of depreciation) of ¥1009.23 crore
shown under Govt. Securities in Schedule 8. Amounts reported under columns 4, 5,
6 and 7 above may not be mutually exclusive.

44, TSIk TH U N 9 ga¥ fawr 4b. Non-performing Non-SLR investments

(¥ qg ¥ ) (Zin Crore)

TaauT 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

TRFET 99 (01.04.2015/01.04.2014 1) 144.94 112.64 Opening balance as on 01.04.2014/ 144.94 112.84
01.04.2013

R 165.60 146.29|  [Additions during the year 165.60 146.29

BRI GGIETIN 12.78 114.19 Reductions during the year 12.78 114.19

31.03.15/31.03.14 <1 Siawr™ 297.76 144.94 Closing balance as on 31.03.2015/ 297.76 144.94
T 31.03.2014

= 25041 141.69 Total provisions held 250.41 141.69
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47, ToEUA Auit o /A fawt ud stawur 4c. Sale and transfers to / from HTM category
01 3T 14 9 31 A9 15 & SR Tadd Soft B gﬁﬂlﬁ'ﬁ Eql The total value of sales and transfers of securities to / from
3R s @ A T 31.03.2015 F oy & oTUR ™ HTM ga:jeég/ry dfutr}:ngbhtkAprlll’Mftp 31it MatrcEle _ha|s_|$[(\)/t
e T ) exceede o of the book value of investments held in
T Aot A Eﬁaﬁﬂ@;ﬁs‘%ﬁ i 2 category as on 31.03.2015.
{3 5 !. il =2 Tl ST 5T e o @ ST ﬁ {The 5 percent threshold referred to above will exclude the
feees Hed 9 U 31':@3‘[ % Y TIATA Ut hHE Flﬁl"fr@ one- time transfer of securities to/ from HTM category with the
T Teh R 301 I T2t T 2lx T;i_sm‘qa SuneT Je % approval of Board of Directors permitted to be undertaken by
e A RS ¥ 1 Ao 7 ) banks at the beginning of the accounting year and sales to the
Reserve Bank of India under pre-announced OMO auctions}
T TR TR s a_"g & A S feRm Il b STFER i o As such no disclosure is to be made in terms of extant RBI
TeheIhTul S Tal ol guidelines.
5. sfafess 5. Derivatives
5%, TN F HAN / S F AN qeedt () 5a Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap
(T Hs ¥) in Crore)
ErRIRRCk] ERECL] Current Year Previous year
Teazor Particulars
i |oEAERet IR AT AR 1822.44##|  2322.44**| |i |The notional principal of swap 1822.444## 2322.44%*
A agreements
_ s i | Losses which would be in- 4.42 30.45
i At TEU 9§ FR & SAqd ST 4.42 30.45 curred if counter parties failed
faetl & qU & wI@ @ Hefor to fulfill their obligations
e under the agreements
_ il § iii| Collateral required by the Nil Nil
iii |ometasell § WA eH WS A A bank upon entering into
BRI STufErd H"T@'{\Tﬁh‘ ‘Qﬁ‘{ﬁf swaps
: e xS iv | Concentration of credit risk Nil Nil
v el A A arising from the Swaps
v %7 SfEa ()13.82 (-)48.65 v | The fair value of the swa (-)13.82 (-)48.65
FEAERA! F_I T P
book
## Tl o 247.44 1 foxiia deomi & @9 9% 2 9% <o ™ . o
Y ## Out of which ¥47.44 Crores are Back to Back Deals with Financial
l . ) ) Institutions.
« 998 ¥ T647.44 ] FARe Fomsed/ foxia Heami & @y EEd zﬁm ** Out of which ¥647.44 Crores are Back to Back Deals with Corporate
<o frar T B Clients/Financial Institutions.
5@, TaEes SfeT A = X shafess 5b. Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives
(TH w0 H) ®in Crore)
=T e T Sl. Particulars Amount
o No.
o 3 e (i) Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest
® o 2014 - T 2015 F WA TH = il rate derivatives undertaken during the year April, 2014
= X Sfefess m Hau Tfer (fered=r) to March, 2015 (instrument-wise) 356.20
%) AN AR 356.20 A. Interest rate futures
(i) |31 9, 2015 1 ferfd & STIER I IS fen o (i) [Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest
=9 R Sfdfesst st s s I (faeqar) Nl rate derivatives outstanding as on 31st March, 2015 NIL
s e 5 (instrument-wise)
(i afer Asﬁ EI"I'?WWR o :{;ﬁ%@ & A (iii) | Notional Principal amount of exchange traded interest
i FMT g | ( ) il rate derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’ NIL
(iv) |wwEes 2fen o = X Sfefess &t s e qered (instrument-wise)
T T TR AER G (Wh-I-HhS) S ST I |(iv)  |Mark-to-Market value of exchange traded interest
et & € (fermder) rate derivatives outstanding and not ‘highly effective’ NIL
(instrument-wise)
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57 SfEafess
- I IS IIECE ]
R m et Wehe (et
ST ol e
3 &l 5 .
— T T g @iv e c. Disclo
RLc] a1 21 2f@f: ST el sure
B 2 i + TR [ 2fedfea - Q on risk ex
= ::q w9 wH Rl erer = it 1.7 ualitative Discl posure in deri
3T @ Yo~ . Theb sclosu ivative
e qﬁi{' 2fen A T g 7 - e pank e vt i
2. o e ET] h | derivati well as es produc
fafea ifa 2l MR T T Gy o rep tive operati trading pu ts for hedgi
[0} . r .
e Sy AR e i s to the ion is head poses. The ging its own b
Sifgn it EEECE £ nctions top m ed b risk-m alanc
3. R REIRIE g.R_[ baSiS - Tl’adin anagem y a seni anagem ¢
ERCE] IR SifEs ¥R . g positi ent, i or executi ent of
% for e w1 St 2. Th itions a independ cutive
Tt et i S wfefer @ forerd e derivati e , who
4 % ferm &l U feh S 2 Division vative polic ed to mark the line
. . , . 1 (S]
et ¥q SR feen #1 fedfén otk licy 15 framed b ton daily
& Hifg s ™R N 8 iR sifem 3. Th oK udes mea y the Ri
T | e hedge suremen isk Man
5. wfw F fe managem transactio ¢ of credit ek and
& 3R TR e risks is i ent. Pro ns are u risk and
ifa EIER ST nphee. | syst ndertak
gﬁ;qf;;?qm 2 WQT e =i fwre . Policy for hace. em for report.en for bala
9 H . n
3ﬁT %l EEJEI AT Y W Eﬁ m a'@'m 5 " place' edg|ng and pro Ing and mOniisriSheet
Ul . . . C n
I Wwaj’qrﬂ' I i@'m 3R fewpse gccounting i esses for monitori B of
- T IR o T e policy for oring the
Yeheleh{uT 2 o, o i 5 i - same i
| —con e n pace, v .
’ me, pre X n |O|a rding h 1S
contr Vil ce, which i edge
= acts s and hich ge and
N bein , provisioni disc includ non-
. |ferarwor g do ionin ounts es r hed
a9 ne. g, collateral . Valuation ecognition &€
%ﬁaﬁg TSt I-Q and credit i pt Outstand-of
R steatomn ® =l ) uantitative Di isk mitigaton are
(artn 0320151 31.03.2 gﬁ%&g TSt isclosure e
AU .03.2015| 3 Ex
() ﬁéﬂ . 1.03.2014 31?»;@;&)“ ,SJO Particul
m 2014 ars Curr
;‘;rﬁr{&“ 3ﬁ'{ aq; 0.00 1 Deri Derivaf:/ce)sl Interest Rat (?In C
(@) %) 0-00 (Nenva“"es 31.03.201 Dedhatives Curren rore)
Sfen = otional 2 Derbative Do ncy Inter
2 o - Princi 3.20 vativ est R
¥ 647 rincipal 15] 31.0 es| Deri ate
W% e 207.57| 18 A4 T Amount) .03.2014| 31 0';’*“'Ves
22. F -03.20
Hferen Q) aau (g;:wgi”g 1
(=
g; s (+) 1675.00] |b) backgtof,ggk) 0.00
Sfen (-) 0.00 ] For trading 0.00
%) S = = arkedeD 207.5 | e
3 @) 2o (+) -13.82 . market Eositinn 57| 1822.44# 44
e w(*) - 0.07 o
2 ] - - - - ging -| 1675
4 ) - 0.00 £ - = 2)) /L\sSet = 00
S q 5 BYNIT
e i 24 1@ Trac;?:glhty £ s
- : -0
e A 59.31 a) Asset (+ S =
g b Li ) 3.82 -
(100"t - ) Liabili
R o s - : 0.7
L <fafea i [ TR i 1E : : -
- Likely impa e 560 - -
o e S 5.66 - -
. ST
N interest 59.31
(100* rate
@ |o PvO1)
¥ n_hedging
erivatives -
0.00




derivatives

On trading - -0.12

18.93

Maximum

and Minimum
of 100*PVO1
observed during
the period

Maximum

On hedging - 0.00

(0.24)

Minimum - 0.00

NIL

Maximum

On trading - 0.03

(0.82)

(@) [Sfen  Sfafem - -0.12 E 18.93
=
5 |od % R U
T 100* et
01 AfHHam
T =ATH
(%) |wferen w C 0.00 = (0.24)
SICEX]
= " 0.00 . =
(@) [2fen ™ - 0.03 - (0.82)
SICEX]
ok - 0.00 - (0.26)

# o ¥ T 47.44 1 foda weH & @O 9% T 9% <A

Minimum - 0.00

(0.26)

# Out of which Rs 47.44 crore are back to back deals with financial

fpar T ) institution.
6. ST TqUTET 6. Asset Quality
6. ST IRt 6a. Non-Performing Asset
(% Fi ) Rin Crore)
Taerur 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2014
i Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 4.06% 2.85%
i. qad A qei | fereT aTIsieh 4.06% 2.85%
! R )'elﬁ A ¢ ¢ ii) | Movement of NPAs (Gross)
o
= K y Opening balance as on 01.04.2014/ 18880.06 13465.79
i) | oSl enfeEl (WEA) | Heds 01.04.2013
%;04.2015/01.04.2014 % URMSE | 18880.06| 13465.79 Additions during the year 1665956 | 1080997
—~r Reductions during the year 9844.76 5395.70
AR 16659.56 10809.97
7 Closing balance as on 25694.86 18880.06
¥ % SR el 9844.76 5395.70 31.03.2015/31.03.2014
A9 31.03.2015/31.03.2014 25694.86 18880.06 iii) | Movement of Net NPAs
iii) fraet ersier efeai & we-wg Opening balance as on 01.04.2014/ 9916.99 7236.50
01.04.2013
01.04.2015/01.04.2014 Tk YRR 9916.99 7236.50 — -
o Additions during the year 11550.97 7465.26
o % < afs 11550.97 7465.26 Reductions during the year 6071.46 4784.77
Closing balance as on 15396.50 9916.99
ot F R 6071.46] 478477 31.03.2015/31.03.2014
SfRTT 31.03.2015/31.03.2014 15396.50 9916.99 iv) | Movement of provision for NPAs
iv) et enfeaal & fou geeel o (excluding provisions on Standard
We-ug (WHE onfedl @ wrEfed assets)
W W BIEH) Opening balance as on 01.04.2014/ 8737.16 6102.84
URASE 99 (01.04.2014/01.04.2013 | 8737.16|  6102.84 01.04.2013
Ea)) Provisions made during the year 9159.91 5365.62
& SN fRT T WEeE (Hehe) 9159.91|  5365.62 (Gross)
- Write-off/write back of excess provi- 8095.31 2731.30
Al waeH 1 9% @M Sy | 809531 2731.30 sion
Closing balance as on 9801.76 8737.16
3fa9 31.03.2015/31.03.2014 i 9801.76 8737.16 31.03‘%015/31.03.2014
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6.7 Imfal W TA:ETT eq WAYfdetur / YA: WEEMT  6¢. Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation/

H At TS fawi enfeEt @ s Reconstruction Company (SC/RC) for Asset Reconstruction
(T w0 H) in Crore)
Toeror 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
1. |@m = "Hen 2 gl 1. |No. of Accounts 2 NIL
2. |uHE / SR F 9 T @ A R qod 53.11 Bgl 2. |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of 53.11 NIL
(IEYE R BIEHT) accounts sold to SC/RC
3. |=e gfawer Ofen 73.15 bl 3. |Aggregate consideration 73.15 NIL
fooe aui( aamM fodia 99 2014-15 & 0.12 37.15 4. |Additional consideration realized 0.12 -37.15
4 s oLos20ls % 3130t 3 nepet o s vnered o
e g‘g i M R year 2014-15 i.e. from 01.04.2014 to
AR B i 31.03.2015)
> 3 ; )EIE'T Y F G H F A/ wH 20.04 A 5. |Aggregate gain/loss over net book 20.04 NIL
-2 § value(3-2)
5.1 | Tefiel W= (Sl okt Tee g Kl A A 5.1 |Loss over NBV (where sale is for value NIL NIL
HH W H T ?) _ below NBV)
5.2 |l W e (Sl foskt T g | 20.04 A 5.2 | Gain over NBV (where sale is for value 20.04 NIL
s W R B) above NBV)
6.9 TIEt Tl /A=t W rSien faeita anfiEt & =R 6d. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
&, G T el fawa anfEEt % =i A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
(X *g #) ®in Crore)
Toraror 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015|31.03.2014
1. [(%) a4 & A @lie TN @ %1 ge 1 = 1 |(a) No. of accounts purchased during the 1 NIL
ear
(@) & T 62.18 = Y :
— 3 = - (b) Aggregate outstanding 62.18 NIL
2.|(F) = ,ﬁ T I @l AS i 2 |(a) Of these, number of accounts restruc- NIL NIL
w1 T tured during the year
) hel dh1Al regate outstandin NIL NIL
(@) =% T A (b) Aggreg ding
. dei/ fodita deamell, iR §fe fasfa wwfal @ 9=f . Dpetails of non-performing financial assets sold to Banks/Fls/
T St fadi snfma & =R NBFCs:
(€4 Eh‘ﬂ?% ) (in Crore)
Taemur 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
1. |59 % 3RE S MU @ w G = = 1 |No. of accounts sold during the year NIL NIL
2. |shel Seh ™l I I 2 |Aggregate outstanding NIL NIL
3. |hd 9 gfdee = N 3 |Aggregate consideration received NIL NIL
6.% WHeh Ml Twaseil yraem 6e. Provisions on Standard Assets
(X =T o) [in Crore)
feawm 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
1 |59 eafy & SRA SUe= w3 T 404.88 505.34 1 |Provided during the period 404.88 505.34
2 [G=l 3 (qoFs 1 ogel 5 d e 279011 2382.49 2 CST]ulaEivE I|3a|an(cg(eP(inc|uded under 2790.11 2382.49
3 . " ; frorfe “Other Liabilities rovisions” in
SR S % ) Schedule 5 to the balance sheet)
7. RIS AT 7  Business Ratios
Taerur 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 =
I e o R e e S A 8.00% 8.31% . Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
o i. [Interest Income as a percentage to 8.00% 8.31%
i, |[FEwd e ® ued ® w9 § R 1.02% 0.86%) | Bvokingilnds
e o ii. [Non-Interest Income as a percentage 1.02% 0.88%
- g Working F
il [#EEa R @ e # &9 # 2.06% 219%]| = tg OIRNR “fr.‘ds X R
: Sk iii. |Operating profit as a percentage to .06% 19%
- . Working Funds
IV. T 4 3 S 0.53% 0.64% iv. [Return on Assets 0.53% 0.64%
v. [afd bf TIER (ST J - Sfr) 13.19 12.83 v. |Business (Deposits plus advances) per 13.19 12.83
(X = #) _ employee Rin Crores)
vi. |90 wH=m @ (R w3 H) 0.05 0.05 vi. |Profit per employee (Zin Crores) 0.05 0.05
e - e et wifas iea W) enaia ) Note: Working Funds are based on Monthly Average.



8. Imfi@ - IgaT Yareua 8. Asset Liability Management
a3 Sarel %9 Tl T TRUSAT e Maturity Pattern of certain item of assets and Liabilities
(R &= ®) in Crore)
uiR faasht Borrow. Forei Forei:
. fry Frdoht ’ - gn oreign
ST STHT YT [erfir ST -@Tt\&r WV Deposits|  Advances (hosimenle ings| Currency| currency
(|heT) et S gatein (gross) Assets| liabilities
ksiaul
& fql_6679.99] 28786.22 053 13166.92( 3793.94] 2932.67 [ 6679.99] 28786.22 0.53] 13166.92] 3793.94] 2932.67
(5779.40)| (27967.49) 0.00)] (815.72)] (2300.44)] (1189.73) XY ™ (5779.40)| (27967.49) 0.00] (815.72)[ (2300.44)] (1189.73)
2 fq - 8347.76 6426.60 0.00] 5647.06] 4174.52| 3265.20 2 days- 8347.76 6426.60 0.00| 5647.06] 4174.52| 3265.20
7 f&a (9298.83)|  (7613.36) (0.00)|(11405.31)| (2854.49)| (4913.36)|  |7days (9298.83)]  (7613.36) 0.00)|(11405.31)[ (2854.49)] (4913.36)
_— 7600.41| _ 5486.56 89.81]  709.49] 2677.31| 2678.47| [g-14 7600.41|  5486.56 89.81| 709.49| 2677.31| 2678.47
(7124.60)| (7406.58) (0.00)[ (419.41)| (1093.66)[ (1208.82)] |days (7124.60)  (7406.58) 0.00)]  (419.41)[ (1093.66)] (1208.82)
\5-28 frl__9553.63]  7478.2 503.80] -462.12] 5254.05] 5765.96] [1z g 9553.63]  7478.22 503.80  462.12] 5254.05] 5765.96
(7955.69)| (7808.87)]  (518.71)] (1595.83)| (5106.29)| (2677.83)| |days (7955.69)]  (7808.87)|  (518.71)[ (1595.83)] (5106.29)] (2677.83)
20 fF- 3| 39335.90| 22959.55|  4692.44| 1134.81| 17594.17| 23079.05|  [59 days
PN 39335.90| 22959.55|  4692.44| 1134.81| 17594.17| 23079.05
(46200.77)|_(24228.29)] _(4740.50)| (7160.38)[(21513.39)[(21539.71)] [to 3
3 W ¥ | 45119.66] 22757.46]  2035.46] 1496.98] 25684.69] 25197.57| |months | (46200.77)| (24228.29)] (4740.50)] (7160.38)[(21513.39)[(21539.71)
fers qon Over 3 45119.66] 22757.46]  2035.46] 1496.98] 25684.69] 25197.57
6 TN | (34258.24) (15117.06)]  (679.83)[(12010.01)[(15291.26)[(13633.85)|  [Months
_ o6 (34258.24)| (15117.06)]  (679.83)[(12010.01)|(15291.26)| (13633.85)
months
;f:iﬁj. 54568.51) 28024.53| 2263.08] 1876.31) 16398.43| 12757.93| [Gyerg 54568.51] 28024.53]  2263.08] 1876.31] 16398.43] 12757.93
| a8 g5 | (61964.76)| (33052.27)| (7740.42)| (2393.54)[(15475.82)|(17609.25) M g (61964.76)| (33052.27)| (7740.42)| (2393.54)((15475.82)((17609.25)
to 1 year
1a8 8 | 197428.91| 190170.93| 19715.61| 7276.88| 11596.30| 10335.26| [Over 197428.91] 190170.93] 19715.61] 7276.88] 11596.30] 10335.26
afer qen 1Year to
3 o | (183544.23)| (167152.9)| (19238.88)| (2556.13)|(11578.09)| (9479.61)| |3 Years | (183544.23)| (167152.9)] (19238.88)) (2556.13))(11578.09)] (9479.61)
3l 5647.99| 31475.60 23377.82| 6519.82| 2782.94| 2530.81 ?e";rsio 2647.99] 31475.60] 23377.821 6519.82 2782.94) 2530.81
e e Y (4748.83)| (25928.51)| (23357.34)| (4962.22)| (2904.12)| (916.48)
s o g | (4748.83)| (25928.51)| (23357.34)| (4962.22)| (2904.12)| (916.48) €ars
S osreslbcace Bl=pon05 24 —a80470 o5 oias3|  |Overs [ 127095.88] 36968.73] 99207.24] 8304.40[ 460.09] 204853
5 y : o2 P40 601 48. Years (90521.40)[ (32993.80)] (88698.82)[ (4715.86)] (529.54)] (1831.62)
afr (90521.40)| (32993.80)| (88698.82)| (4715.86)] (529.54)| (1831.62) o =01378.64 380534.41] 15188578 45670.55 90416.44| 90591 45
i 5015676880554 21 1B151885.78]_45670.55] 90416.44190591.45 (451396.75)| (349269.13)|(144974.50)|(48034.41)| (78647.10)| (75000.26)
(451396.75)[(349269.13)[(144974.50)[(48034.41)[ (78647.10)| (75000.26)

(gt ¥ fEu U ifhe fwel 9 % €)1 Sudad I geree 5N GfeRd

T g w7

9. TFEUNR

9.% TSR WUST &F T HOT

(Figures in brackets relate to previous year). The above information is as
compiled and certified by the Management.

9. Exposures:

9a Exposure to Real Estate Sector:

(% T ) ®in Crore)
Sruft 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Category 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
(31) TTYT TR (A) Direct Exposure
i |ererda Tl S 41603.50|  37361.48| [i. |Residential Mortgages — 41603.50| 37361.48
AT T, S ROl g AR Lending fully secured by mortgages
oot T T W el S e on residential property that is or will
W& T T, T 5N Tﬁa; gﬁs{a be occupied by the borrower or that
%01 31.03.2015 &I 20 @ T is rented (individual housing loans up
TF B TR 14319.66 FUS & to 320 lakh-%¥14319.66 crore as on
31.03.2014 a,ﬁ gq;}l 20 @M dh 31.03.2015 and individual housing loans
T T 12618.42 FUE & SRRE up to 320 lakh-312618.42 crore as on
sardtE B0 et %) 31.03.2014.)
i ST e 9 - TR S 11860.80 12037 .31 ii. |Commercial Real Estate — including NFB 11860.80| 12037.31
el Sfed 3 Rl II:Ierr:"dtisng secured by mortgages on
g Tﬁmw; gngwg%m com.lmercial realI gstates (office buildipgls,
3 Soft e retail space, multi-purpose commercia
Ry Em? fwﬁ ST TR T, premises, industrial or warehouse space,
- 7 JETS land acquisition, development and
;ﬂ?é _:?ﬁi{qggﬁl) T construction etc.)
- - - iii. |Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
i, [ae Tt gﬁqﬂ;@ﬁ SRS gﬁ[% il securitized exposuregs—g | )
(F) |=TmamEa 0.00 0.07| [(@) | - Residential 0.00 0.07
(@) [enfurires TemeR |9=1 0.00 0.00| |[(b) | - Commercial Real Estate 0.00 0.00
(am) [sTuryr TS (B) Indirect Exposure
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TE e o (T3 T o§1) IR 11427.59 13143.30 Exposure to National Housing Bank 11427.59| 13143.30
s faq sl (T3 T ) g (NHB) & Housing Finance Companies
TFIISR (HFCs):
31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
7658.50 9112.50 7658.50 9112.50
S N oTE HECE TE RO Investments made by the Bank in
o foer fman T Housing Companies & Corporations:
31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
3769.09 4030.80 3769.09 4030.80
TEY Ul @3‘ Bl el RUT 64891.89 62542.16 Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 64891.89| 62542.16
EAC) gel ST Wl U 9b. Exposure to Capital Market
(X *3g ) ®in Crore)
faraor 31.03.2015|31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015/31.03.2014
1. |sfed s, oRada suas, aRads 3020.17| 2287.06| |1. |Direct investment in equity shares, con- 3020.17|  2287.06
=01 7ol AR SRRt IE AT Fel & vertible bonds, convertible debentures
3 erer Fraw < B 0 2 and units of equity oriented mutual funds
1 . ) kS the corpus of which is not exclusively
ﬁﬁ’;f.ﬁ # T A few = 2 i invested in corporate debt.
2. |9 (omEdten Sumeldt wimferd €) 3.67 4.12 2. |Advances against shares/bonds/deben- 3.67 4.12
g guT, qREdE B T SR tur.es (.)r.other secgrities or onvclean basis
HEcilcm e oot T § Few to individuals for investment in shares
S, DE’FE. st qsﬁm (including IPOs/ESOPs) convertible
‘ /a4 / RO = bonds, convertible debentures, and units
=1 gfasgfaat &t gfagfa = =n stafasg of equity oriented mutual funds.
Il
3. |fodt o= wsH & fau s s@t e 435.64 101.71 3. |Advances for any other purposes where 435.64 101.71
: : : shares or convertible bonds or convert-
71 R S wE A1 uieEdE o o 'Qldb ‘ 'b'?i ? cong!
. . ible debentures or units of equity ori-
UL IR uﬁm'w ® e ented mutual funds are taken as primary
gt gfagfa & ®9 | W@ T ﬁl ' security.
4. |fedt o= wSH & o sifie el e 358.31 370.34| |4. [Advances for any other purposes to 358.31 370.34
o1 uRadf wie. gRedda fea=w ik the extent secured by the collateral
' o : ity of shares or convertible bonds or
T S HHEE WS # g i " : i
convertible debentures or units of equity
wefeEs gfafd % i §f T w oriented mutual funds i.e. where the pri
N L. pri-
1t el giadHra arve / afed-a o mary security other than shares/convert-
T/ sfEd 3w g wel & el ible bonds/convertible debentures/units
& At of equity oriented mutual funds does not
q o QT gﬁﬁiﬁ[ = T\:T @ fully cover the advances.
FeR T w2l 5. |Secured and unsecured advances to 588.16 336.39
5. |%T® s ! gfasd den sTafasd sifim 588.16 336.39 stock brokers and guarantees issued
A =i S qur WeEe el H AR on behalf of stock brokers and market
P kers.
# & e ¥
- - - g — 6. |Loans sanctioned to corporate against NIL NIL
6. |WEeHl % FE FT H ) il :P:ﬁ s S the security of shares/bonds/debentures
#1 3t & ufd wedeRl & 3 w1 G or other securities or on clean basis for
*E & fau sERiEmel w0 T @ e meeting promoter’s contribution to the
gﬁqﬂzﬂﬁ = ufy w1 o o e equity of new companies in anticipation
erf S E;riﬁ{ z TI;TIE-IUT of raising resources.
- Bl - 7. |Bridge loans to companies against ex- NIL NIL
7. |wterd sferardt wamel/ & i RS RS pected equity flows/issues.
Al Gl 8. |Underwriting commitments taken up NIL NIL
8. |9’ o ufada v w @ ufteda T I by the banks in respect of primary is-
®U T A SR 3@ =geT™ wel & sue of shares or convertible bonds or
. VI ible debentures or units of equit
el % e 399 % g H Sl 5N onvert e
) oriented mutual funds.
IS GUI DRI = - 9. |Financing to stock brokers for margin NIL NIL
9. mﬁméﬁ%n%ﬁqwaﬁwﬁﬁﬂ = NGl trading
10. [sem ot fiferi (Wi iR TR oSfigra 416.28 505.95| |10. |All exposures to Venture Capital funds 416.28 505.95
<Hl) Rl THE B (both registered and unregistered)
11. | 7=9em@ we # afim 1000.00 1100.00 11. |Advances to Mutual Funds 1000.00 1100.00
T AR B B =W 5822.23 4705.57 Total Exposure to Capital Market 5822.23 4705.57




9.7 STEW U 9T Tl TeueT

31.03.2015 &1 o faa ffa TSR 2 35047.52 HAS
21 31.12.2014 1 S FY KA AT I574860.12 FIS 2,
gt 1% 35748.60 FUg €1 I 39 R AR qUE H
Fa @ Ay Teeas w1 I wAe: 210108.46 US
3R 27690.88 HUg € Sifh 31.12.2014 I dF & FHA
e & 1% 9 eifuss B or@: wiRd® & Arey afws Ho
SateAEl. | Sdiee. 12/21.04.048/2011-12 T 1 ST,
2011 % 3TIER BT & T 714.38 *g 3K ¢ & fog
%9.23 U 1 WEuH fRa T Bl 9Ra fEfa e TR
frm (SEiSTE) fieRor & STIER, BRI UG AEd gof
fq T SR quE %A Sifag ot stefq @ F 2

Sifew Sufiar I9T Had Tauer

9c. Risk Category wise Country Exposure

Total Net Funded Exposure as on 31.03.2015 is ¥35047.52
crore. Total assets of the bank as on 31.12.2014 were
3574860.12 crore, 1% of which comes to ¥5748.60 crore.
Total net funded exposure of two countries namely Hong
Kong & UAE amounting to 10108.46 crore & 7690.88
crore respectively, is more than 1% of the total assets of the
Bank as on 31.12.2014. Total net funded exposure of the
bank on Hong Kong & UAE is more than 1% of total assets
as on 31.03.2015 also. Hence provision of ¥14.38 crore for
Hong Kong & 9.23 crore for UAE has been made in terms
of RBI Master Cir. No.DBOD.No.BP.BC.12/21.04.048/2011-
12 dated July 1, 2011. As per Export Credit Guarantee
Corporation of India(ECGC) classification, Hong Kong is in
the Insignificant Risk Category i.e. A1 and UAE is in the Low
Risk Category i.e. A2.

Risk Category Wise Country Exposure

(T HT H)
Elice i wrel| Wret 2015| AT 2014 rel 2014
2015 hT| Rl TE@T TAT| whl TGS | oAl T@T 70
TEFHUSR wEgE| (I8) (T e
(35)| (=eg o) i) (7 99 )

(= a9 )
B 21747.68 14.38 17250.11 11.04
%A 13290.75 9.23 8597.18 6.12
= 6.78 A 1821.48 A
i) 0.99 N 12.80 N
i s=a1 0.01 Nl 0.30 N
EIEIE 1.16 Mg 24.28 N
% Hiee 0.15 A 0.00 A
Eayl 35047.52 23.61 27706.15 17.16

ST Yl YR §RI WAfhd TS WHIUE i T 2

9.9 §eF NI Uehe! SUNehdl AT T UYE SUNehdal AT &
SEEA & =R
We I % Ifea w1 Hiew TR F e Co% J
01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 & IRH fRelt T8 @ & Fwary

o foaaryoel et 1 @ &t fRar 21
9% sfaya 3tim
R FE H)
ferercor 31.03.2015] 31.03.2014
1. ARm # 9% | w1 ow fau sm@|  5521.58 4541.50
e S9 s, SR, Wik
amfE W %0 9R W erufasm fm' @
Il ST 9 W wniHe femen T 2
2. 3Tqd Huifvass wfayfaai &1 i gea 7323.39 5706.94

10, fied o g o T arefEEl T WeReIeRTT :
Sferm fafram sfufrem o o) 46(4) & TEuE & i
o stfufem & gear & e s stuan st fatea
sfufEd 1949 & siqfa wrdta fod 9% g fafim e,
T T e, T ST SAERAR ST 1 SAIAEH A HH W
e W 9Rda e S g =@ e ad (01.04.2014 |
31.03.2015) WIE ¥ srefee & @ 2

Rin Crore)
Risk Category Exposure| Provision Exposure Provision
(net) as held as| (net) as at held as at
at March| at March | March 2014| March 2014
2015 2015 (Previous (Previous
(Current| ( Current Year) Year)

Year) Year)
Insignificant 21747.68 14.38 17250.11 11.04
Low 13290.75 9.23 8597.18 6.12
Moderate 6.78 NIL 1821.48 NIL
High 0.99 NIL 12.80 NIL
Very high 0.01 NIL 0.30 NIL
Restricted 1.16 NIL 24.28 NIL
Off-credit 0.15 NIL 0.00 NIL
Total 35047.52 23.61 27706.15 17.16

The above information is as compiled and certified by the Management.
9d. Details of Single Borrower Limit and Group Borrower Limit
exceeded by the bank.

The Bank has not exceeded prudential exposure ceilings in
respect of any Group Accounts and individual borrowers
during the period 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015, except exposure
ceiling to State Bank of India.

9e. Unsecured Advances:

Rin Crore)

Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
1. Total amount of advances for which 5521.58 4541.50

intangible securities such as charge over

the rights, licenses, authority etc. has

been included in Sch.9 under ‘Unse-

cured Advances’
2. Estimated value of intangible collaterals 7323.39 5706.94

10. Disclosure of penalties imposed by the RBI:

During the year (01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015), no penalty has
been imposed by RBI on the bank under the provision of
Section 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, for contraventions
of any of the provisions of the Act or non-compliance with
any other requirements of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949;
order, rule or condition specified by Reserve Bank under the
said Act.
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TET ARl §RT 3TUTA 37T Wehe [ehiuT Other Disclosures required by Accounting Standards
11. OX@T HH&-5 ga-arafer it srEieRT fify & uRads 11. AS -5 Prior Period and Change in Accounting Policy
TGl HHR-5 & 27 Iﬁ At & 3™/ =T B FE q—z;ali-\gf There were no OIr.natlerial priodr pirisocﬂ; ir/l\come(jexpendri]ture
.o . t —5. t
TEEET aTiE A ) e v e W mh items requiring disclosure under A Amendments have
) : o been made in the Policy on Sale of Financial Assets, regarding
o @l b7 fohl W o Bl kT wene e treatment of loss and profit made on sale of accounts. However
2 AR 01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 T I @ & KM the change in the Policy has no impact on profit during the
et o qfEad & o 9 § &3 y9E T8l uel e year from 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015.
12, @ AHE-6 : Goagra o fafa 12. AS- 6 Depreciation accounting
o€ 2015 & Ad d% AR & YA 9 & fow few g Break up of total depreciation for the year ending March
qoagrd 10 2015 for each class of assets
FFIE ) ®in Crore)
EntsiE 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Class of assets 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
TRER 9.31 10.42 Premises 9.31 10.42
ERIEESESEI 330.70 313.82 Other fixed assets 330.70 313.82
T Al A = | |Leased assets NIL NIL
HFIT IR 30.22 28.15 Computer software 30.22 28.15
g 370.23 352.39] [Total 370.23 352.39

13, TGl Aeh- 9 TS WT=Iar
3T &1 B A 1 T T@ Aifd @ 10 (4) & TR
TGl MHR W HT I T TEEA, SH A TG 2

14, @T AR 11 : fagvn fafma = & afeds

13. AS- 9 Revenue Recognition:

Certain items of income are recognized on realization basis as
per Accounting Policy No. 10(4). However, the said income is
not considered to be material.

14. AS 11- Changes in foreign exchange rates:

Tt qgr uftads rfaE o we-ag
) Movement of foreign currency translation reserve

(R=E H) (in Crore)
feraor T (X &S #) Particulars Amount
1 3el 2014 I 99 46.28 Balance as at 1st April 2014 46.28
01.04.14 ¥ 31.03.15 1 s & <A 1101 Credited during the period 01.04.2014 11.11
STHT to 31.03.2015
sty | e 3.16 Withdrawn during the period 3.16
31.03.2015 i 39 54.23| [Balance as at 31.03.2015 54.23

15, @I "R 15 - HESRT T 15. AS 15 — Employees Benefits:

@l UTeh AT 3THRIOT - 15 (Honfua )
a7 01.04.2007 ¥ HRATT T AR HEH (SEHTETE)
R S T g - 15 (Wenfad)  wHen @ & SAheR
fopa B1 o A wi@meteal § oo ity s A et &
3fed o9 1 T <T@ & TGHE oA w1 ART H ®IH
FHEER Al @ S oA W TR A §

FHARE & fou 4y fowey @i qon 3UgE St Hmst
¥ 9fs

a9 2010-11 & A dF F FOH I FH=REA & foaw 9=
w1 fohed : @@ G i 9ea 9vH #1 faseu =&
o o aRomTREET 33982 HH=Al g7 TH fashed &1 F&m
feran T IR S 1 22757.65 HUS HI A H1 S SSH
gl T YRR ¥ 2010-11 H IUKH YaH ifufem 1972 o
GINUA & Heea®y S o HUEE % g SUSH A i
i o werE T fHe worasy SUSH GaH S w1 <o §
?566.00 U BT Ifg T o Al @S BT (32757.65

ADOPTION OF AS - 15(R):

The Bank has adopted Accounting Standard 15(R) - Employee
Benefits, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAIl), with effect from 1st April 2007. The Bank
recognizes in its books of accounts the liability arising out
of Employee Benefits as the sum of the present value of
obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets on the
Balance Sheet date.

OPENING OF PENSION OPTION TO EMPLOYEES AND
ENHANCEMENT IN GRATUITY LIMITS

During the year 2010-11 the Bank reopened the pension
option for such of its employees who had not opted for the
pension scheme earlier. As a result of exercise of the option
by 33982 employees, the bank has incurred an additional
liability of ¥2757.65 crore. Further during the year 2010-
11 the limit of gratuity payable to the employees of the
banks was also enhanced pursuant to the amendment to
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. As a result the gratuity
liability of the Bank has increased by ¥566.00 crore. These
additional Liabilities (2757.65 crore +3566.00 crore, total
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FE, + T566.00 HUS, HA T3323.65 HUS) VAT dHIRH
Yoo & STHR W K1 T ©

@ HEE 15, HHAR o9 H AU & ATIR TIF 3323,
65 HAS HI 9 F B @ H yRa fHan < smafea
g e, 9N R o 4 " e % Sl @
FHAIE % fere 9v foshed 4A: @i qen SUsH Himed |
gfg - fomeryul fafames =R * fawm w9 w&Ed, 2011
w1 URTA FEA  SrereAe T E i .80/21.04.  018/2010-11
SR fopan € So RS % WEHHl % @R % 4 3§ @
2014-15 & o9 T @ | T 664.73 HUS(FH 551.53
FUE UvH % fau 3R I=gd & fau ® 113.20 #Us) &
TR =S % BB S FW 3323.65 HUS 1 AR HT GiwE
fewmn st ® (fomsed @t eteiq 2010-11 9 2013-14 & 9&et
& 2658.92 i =S FhU S g ) UvH T SUGH KT
TRerdl a1 e 1 fafer ol yeria 21

FHEAMNE! o TH & WEHH 6 JaTHE o SMER T e
BN TUAT & R T

@ Ah - 15 (GINTEA ) & STTHR Uehe [hTuT

@ Hifd & TIEY a1 ol e - 15 (HIEa)® AR
ISR 39U e aTel W i 9fee feafad &1 e 9 =1
pei B E e I o e o O

| - EUT St ARG ht Y STHifheh A=A

33323.65 crore) were calculated on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

As per the Accounting Standard (AS) 15, Employee Benefits,
the entire amount of ¥3323.65 crore is required to be charged
to the Profit and Loss Account. However, the RBI has issued
a circular no. DBOD.BP.BC.80/21.04.018/2010-11 dated
9th February, 2011 on the prudential Regulatory Treatment
consequent upon the Re-opening of Pension Option to
Employees of Public Sector Banks and Enhancement in
Gratuity Limits. In accordance with the provisions of the said
Circular, the Bank had charged off ¥664.73 crore (X551.53
crore for pension and %113.20 crore for gratuity) representing
one-fifth of ¥3323.65 Crore to Profit & Loss Account for this
year2014-15 (R2658.92 crore already charged proportionately
in previous years i.e. 2010-11 to 2013-14). The transitional
liability for pension and Gratuity stands fully charged off as
on date.

Further the provision for employee benefits has been calculated
by the actuary on basis of pre wage revision salary.

DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-15(R):

In line with the accounting policy and as per the Accounting
Standard — 15(R), the summarized position of post-employment
benefits are recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c and Balance
Sheet as under:

I - Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

( ) ( ) b2 /:Ctua"a! Pension Gratuity Leave Encashment

H=AT ptions

31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 | 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
T2 8.03% 9.10% 8.00% 9.10% 8.00% 9.10% Discount 8.03% 9.10% 8.00% 9.10% 8.00% 9.10%
EiEGl 8.61% 8.61% 8.61% 8.61% - : Rate
e & Expected 8.61% 8.61% 8.61% 8.61%

Return on

S =t Plan Assets
Hrfad =X Rate of 550%|  5.50%|  5.50% 550%|  5.50%|  5.50%
I o gfs 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% Escalation In
1 o salary
BHE 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% Attrition Rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Il. o & adue g W qiteds ((Wietel ) uRftTe a9r

Il - Changes in Present value of the obligation (PVO)-

sifem oI <hT wHTHT Reconciliation of Opening & Closing Balance
CET =R in Crore)
Teaor U9 ELCiE EW Particulars Pension |  Gratuity Encasthiae‘rﬁ
01.04.2014 I Tl 1 &AM Present value of Obligation,
oo 15162.79 | 2609.46 1288.68 01.04.2014 15162.79 2609.46 1288.68
S T 1342.45| 222.47 107.82 Interest Cost 1342.45 222.47 107.82
e Eell AT 430.46| 182.86 41.53| |Current Service Cost 430.46|  182.86 41.53
Teq @ 821.16)| 329.48)| (207.74) Benefits paid (821.16) (329.48) (207.74)
Al W () Shligtons Blancing.
(Fqe STHS) 2102.86 | (265.48) 78.19 | |Figure) 2102.86| (265.48) 78.19
31032015 % Sfd H el H Present value of Obligation,
ECLiE| HA 18217.4| 2419.83 1308.47 31.03.2015 18217.40 2419.83 1308.47
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. T onfeat & Sfod Wewr o uftads - wrfisas @9r 11 - Changes in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets- Reconciliation

vt T T of Opening & Closing balances:
(z3de ) ®in Crore)
. el . . . Leave
Taaor v ST .F Particulars Pension|  Gratuity Encashment
1.04.2014 4TS affeqal 1 3fer FAIR value of Plan Assets,
HA 14756.02| 2756.05 - 01.04.2014 14756.02 2756.05 -
T STl W genfad gfawe 1335.11] 233.46 R Expected return on Plan assets [ 1335.11 233.46 -
e I g SRIRH 2322.08] 24033 207.7a| |Contributions by Bank, em-
HeT A4 (821.16)| (329.48)| (207.74) bloyees 2 2l 2l
— — e Benefits Paid (821.16) (329.48) (207.74)
R \?‘”lwa o ) q“.'mchch ( Actuarial (loss) / gain on Plan
A (HIETRR SAHS) (219.04)|  (63.96) | |Assets(Balancing Figure) (219.04)|  (63.96) -
31 |/, 2015 hi FiSHl AT ki FAIR value of Plan Assets,
sfm T 17373011 2836.4 | [31.03.2015 17373.01|  2836.40 -
IV. ST 3Tiaal WX aTefaeh Uiawet IV - Actual Return on Plan Assets
(X H) ®in Crore)
i Bl . . . Leave
faaoT Yo IUEH Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
S e R ST JTah et Expected return on Plan
1335111 233.46 | |Assets 1335.11 233.46 -
IS AT 9 StHisheh (B1H)/ Actuarial (loss) / gain on
AT STl W AT Toreh Sradel Actual Return on Plan i
1116.07 169.50 - Assets 1116.07 169.50
V. W dwifRes (), T V - Net Actuarial (Gain) / loss Recognized
(R=UT W) in Crore)
. gl " L c Leave
Taazor ﬁ'gm 3IUSHEH Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
i [ Actuarial gain / (loss) for the
gty & fau Ifael W dmifes (2102.86)|  265.48| (78.19) yprial gaig/( (2102.86) e (78.19)
(=If) /e period - Obligations
sfafy & fere A snfeal (219.04)|  (63.96) -| |Actuarial gain / (loss) for the (219.04) (63.96) =
Hiferer (7179 /eny period - Plan Assets
safy ¥ 9 3§ dmifhe 2321.90| (201.52) 78.19|  |Total (Gain) / Loss for the 2321.90|  (201.52) 28.19
(=) / = period
o & 3fd H AT SifeRe 2321.90| (201.52) 78.19|  |Actuarial (gain) or loss 2321.90|  (201.52) 78.19
(=) /et recognised in the period
0.00 0.00 0.00 Unrecognised Actuarial (gain) 0.00 0.00 0.00
/ loss at the end of the year
VI. qeEua ¥ Hr=T T e Wag fagerwor : VI - Amount recognised in Balance Sheet and related analysis
(TS H) (Zin Crore)
et i . . Leave
ey Yo U Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
Present value of Obligation
Y v 18217.4 2419.83 1308.47
31032015 A B A AT 55174] 2419.83) 1308.47] |31:03.2015
31.03.2015 A oTf&dal 1 3o g?lggvglou%of Plan Assets, | 143 1 2836.40 0
kS 17373.01| 2836.40 0| [Difference 844.39|  (416.57) 1308.47
SR 844.39| (416.57)| 1308.47| |Unrecognised Transitional 0 0 0
S T el v - fifed o - el [y
Unrecognised Past Service
S S T 0 0 0 cost - vested benefits - 0 0 0
oI H 9T 39T 0 0 a Carried Forward
Liability Recognised in the
844.39 -| 1308.47| |Ralance Sheet 844.39 = 1308.47




A AE - 15 (GE) % Ua 55 Negative amount determined
 arla TEaE Frafia o ke 57) . /u\r;df; P(elizr)agraph 55 of 0 (416.57) 0
el SITET o Bl SR e el Present value of available
Erinilcoferibt qa ol 41657 0 refunds and reductions in 0 416.57 0
T A~ 15 (SEd) W59 & - future contributions
SR T SR A= ST ol 41657 0 Resulting asset as per Para-
! : graph 59 (b) of AS-15 (R) 0 416.57 0
VII. &9 § T @ § 9 | o T
N, VII - Expense recognised in Profit and loss statement
& ) [Rin Crore)
geer
Tereror LR ERCiE] i . ; ; Leave
JHS ST Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
= wE AR 430.46| 182.86 41.53 Current Service Cost 430.46 182.86 41.53
EISESIUE] 1342.45 222.47 107.82 Interest cost 1342.45 222.47 107.82
i el gaifad gfawa (1335.11)| (233.46) 0 Expected return on Plan assets| (1335.11) (233.46) 0
I & A Y iR ( AT ) /qe Net Actuarial (gain) / loss
=1t 2321.90| (201.52) 78.19 recognised in the year 2321.90 (201.52) 78.19
Tq S T (FifEd o) 551.53 113.20 0 Past Service Cost-Recognised 551.53 113.20 0
o 9 TN wN W feeh § ar= Expenses recogni_sed in the
= 3311.23 8355 22753 statement of profit and loss 3311.23 83.55 227.53
VIII. e T U= g et IG5 qar o Ue-9g VIlI- Movement in Net Liability to be recognised in Balance Sheet
(s H) in Crore)
geer L
Fraar 3 SIS X . . eave
ENE] SuaT S Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
"{F&" (144.76)| (259.79) 1288.68 Opening Net Liability (144.76) (259.79) 1288.68
a9
3311.23 83.55 227.53 Expenses 3311.23 83.55 227.53
EERCNEE e e 20773) Contributions Paid (2322.08) (240.33) (207.74)
; - : : : Closing Net Liability
W 5 (A St F gert- (Liability recognised
T 9= 3d) 844.39| (416.57)| 1308.47 in B/S in current period) 844.39 (416.57) 1308.47
IX. adu srafy & fau af IX -Amount for the current Period
(T He H) Rin Crore)
el icul . . Leave
et Yo U RN Particulars Pension Gratuity Encashment
RETiCau
; Present value of Obligation,
<Ifaet 1 adHE qed, 31.03.2015 18217.40| 2419.83| 130847| |31 032015 18217.40  2419.83 1308.47
S AR 1 $ted e, 31.03. FAIR value of Plan Assets,
2015 17373.01] 2836.4 0] {31.03.2015 17373.01 2836.4 0
Y T WA ArTa ¥ g Surplus / (Deficit) before
afererey e ( (844.39)| 416.57| (1308.47)| |unrecognised past service
; U &ljﬂqueh - cost (844.39) 416.57 (1308.47)
- (@it et 48.45| 40675  (8.65) |Experience Adjustments in
T Plan Liabilities -(loss) / Gain 48.45 406.75 (8.65)
A ST ST TS - . . .
=1 /e 219.04 63.96 0 Experience Adjustments in
() ( | ) Plan Assets (loss) / gain (219.04) (63.96) 0
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X. AT St i yq@ SfuTar (eRel AT STl T X - Major Categories of Plan Assets (as percentage of Total Plan

wfeera ) Assets)
(ufaera #) (In %age)
Teeror e IUEH Particulars Pension Gratuity
AT HER BT Fffaar 12.78 15.45 Government Of India Securities 12.78 15.45
T FHR 1 wasfaar 36.91 33.21 State Government Securities 36.91 33.21
Ioa foher < hiite dfve 35.47 35.60| |High Quality Corporate Bonds 35.47 35.60
s HEE @ 3fERl IR 0.00 0.00 Equity Shares of listed companies 0.00 0.00
ﬂ"q'ﬁ'{ 0.00 0.00 Property 0.00 0.00
[ERLIECIE BRI 6.55 6.69 Special deposit scheme 6.55 6.69
Friimehal g =ems T8 A 737 8.86 Funds managed by Insurer 7.37 8.86
A dF STANRE SR S A (§E) 0.92 0.19| |Other- Bank Deposits and CDs 0.92 0.19
e 100.00 100.00|  LTotal 100.00 100.00
XI. Tt T & SR SvET T AFA STHA XI - Best estimate of contribution during next year
RFE #) Rin Crore)
et e ELECIE Particulars Pension Gratuity
(tiferm) | (FferR) (Funded) (Funded)
AN a9 & SR S 1 AYAH SICH T Bank’s best estimate of Contribution
A 2600.00 500.00 during next year 2600.00 500.00
XIl. ar=T Satafy s oy X1l — Other long term employee benefits
) (e ) ®in Crore)
e e e Sick Leave &| Leave Fare|  Silver Jubilee
foraroT e a"]'qTﬁ?‘;ﬁ s ( g N Particulars Casual leave| concession Bonus
et () fife) | Frfas) (3 Frfirer ) (Unfunded)| (unfunded) (unfunded)
=7 &1 a9 == Present Value of
i S 176.26 124.02 11.76 Obligation 176.26 124.02 11.76
HRAURIA 3T Opening Balance of
Rt 9w 0 0 0 Transitional Liability 0 0 0
o % eRE T Transitional Liability
. S 2 recognized in the year 0 0 0
- e 0 0 0 Closing Balance Of
1 Transitional Liability 0 0 0
EIGAEN 0 0 0
e — Liability Recognized in
e balance Sheet
176.26 124.02 11.76 176.26 124.02 11.76
ferarun TTUTT <l SATH Particulars Basis of assumption
T Yt oi@l weeh WEN 15 % W 78 % IER Discount rate Discount rate has been determined

SIfoce ot ST Tl o STIEY TR a9 TE W
qo T i fafyr 1 aeR witadl & ER e
T fruifa &1 T €

qe TRl ™

e Sl R Henfad gfawe X gefed i

Yfawa i Gfad | & g g & Rl & fou eafy & oy o a9

w G T e €

EREEIEEEN Henferd ol AFe T UEE15 % 9 83-91
SER Wl dagfs % oAl & fau wew
aWR § ogfd TS Wi S Gag W, WEME,
SREA, TREfd e W dHifh® qediwd W fa=r
o T R

BE B R w1 (HR0 fawd iR defga sl stqwat

oot g1 fomen T @ @I SEH 9o i s fhq
STYTRAAT & NV gE 3 G YhR i fmiiar
gfmfea §

by reference to market yields on the
balance sheet date on Government
Bonds of term consistent with estimated
term of the obligations as per para 78
of AS15(R).

Expected rate of return on plan
assets

The expected return on plan assets is
based on market expectations, at the
beginning of the period, for returns over
the entire life of the related obligation.

Rate of escalation in salary

The estimates of future salary increases
considered in actuarial valuations
taking into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors
mentioned in paras 83-91 of AS15(R).

Attrition rate

Attrition rate has been determined by
reference to past and expected future
experience and includes all types
of withdrawals other than death but
including those due to disability.
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st

MARCH 2015
(oM@ H) ®in Lakhs)
9T & : RER @8 PART A: BUSINESS SEGMENTS
EX) feremor e A T aw SI. Particulars YEAR ENDED| YEAR ENDED
S 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 g 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
i GgaR TS i Segment Revenue
&) |3 1287749 1156487 a) |[Treasury 1287749 1156487
@) |Fiite/ Aeria SebT 2327330 2280260 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking 2327330 2280260
m |fea 3 1558965 1298618 c) |Retail Banking 1558965 1298618
DIEEE ks 46565 44631 d) |Other Banking Operations 46565 44631
SIS 5220609 4779996 Total 5220609 4779996
Il mﬂﬁm T 2065 ii. Segment Results
—~ a) [Treasury 115605 130238
) W‘W izl 75505 4 2758 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking 735052 724758
) |[Ree site 492376 412753 - -
) o T TR 14707 14186 c) |Retail Bank{ng ' 492376 412753
p— 1357740 1281935 d) [Other Banking Operations 14707 14186
i, |’ ot oM 162264 143490 Total 1357740 1281935
T e e 1195476 1138445 iii. Unallocated Expenses 162264 143490
v FT 2q TEEH 89567 134794 iv. Operating Profit 1195476 1138445
vi. STETYRT 7S = = V. Provision for Tax 89567 134794
vii. 5 o 306158 334257 Vi. Extraordinary Items NIL NIL
kel Vii. Net Profit 306158 334257
viii. |@Ear smfEEr Other Information:
viii.  |Segment Assets
&) | 15358540 14738938 a) |Treasury 15358540 14738938
R sk cal 29636192 27042005 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking 29636192 27042005
™ |fea S 13692018 11680455 o) |Retail Banking 13692018 11680455
=) | St 1138717 1207539 d) |Other Banking Operations 1138717 1207539
Sk i 59825467 54668937 Sub Total 59825467 54668937
3) [*® W e 507893 373055 e) |Una||ocated Assets 507893 373055
T ? e BUB8SS6l) | w5 5041992 Total Assets 60333360] __ 55041992
= 51 14466730 13871663 iX. Segment Liabilities
) [ ae T 27915336 25450787 a) [Treasury : 14466730 13871663
) [foa S 12896977 10993149 b) Corporate/WhoIesaIe Banking 27915336 25450787
) | o= Sttt 1072596 1136485 ¢) |[Retail Banking 12896977 10993149
39 Se 56351639 51452084 d) |Other Banking Operations 1072596 1136485
) |-ﬁ-{ aratea et 73769 376 Sub Total 56351639 51452084
FHA A 56425408 51452460 e) |Unallocated Liabilities 73769 376
Total Liabilities 56425408 51452460
0T @ : Wit @ Part B — GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENTS
wn we | femror T o T J| g1 N Particulars Year Ended| Year Ended
1 RIS 1. Revenue
A i 5086534| 4682517 a) [Domestic 5086534| 4682517
@, | s 134075 97479 b)_|International 134075 97479
: T 5220609 4779996 Total 5220609] 4779996
ST 2. Assets
F. | 52344759] 48594534 a) |Domestic 52344759| 48594534
. | swigE 7988601| 6447458 b) |International 7988601] 6447458
ol 60333360| 55041992 Total 60333360| 55041992
e - T Note:
L E g’ﬁ mﬁﬁ%l 5 * W H 1. Segment Liabilities are distributed in the ratio of their respective

Segment Assets.
2. Tumell e@fe & el 1 SEVARAIER I WEET
EIRTOT TR T € qfeR S qera SR ST Heh |

Figures of the previous period have been re-grouped/
re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable.
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17. Disclosure of Related Parties as per AS —18 issued by ICAI

*

Names of the related parties and their relationship with the
Bank:

Key Management Personnel:

i.  Shri K. R. Kamath, Chairman & Managing Director (up to
27.10.2014).

ii.  Shri Gauri Shankar, Executive Director ( Additional charge
of Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 09.02.2015).

iii. Shri K.V.Brahmaji Rao, Executive Director.
iv. Dr.Ram S.Sangapure, Executive Director.
Subsidiaries:

i. PNB Gilts Ltd.

ii. PNB Housing Finance Ltd.

iii. Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd., UK
iv. PNB Investment Services Ltd

v. Druk PNB Bank Ltd, Bhutan.

vi. PNB Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd*.

vii. JSC SB PNB Kazakhstan

Associates:

i. Principal PNB Asset Management Company Pvt. Ltd.
ii. Principal Trustee Company Private Limited
iii. PNB Metlife India Insurance Co. Ltd

iv. Madhya Bihar Gramin Bank, Patna.

v. Sarva Haryana Gramin Bank, Rohtak

vi. Himachal Pradesh Gramin Bank, Mandi

vii. Punjab Gramin Bank, Kapurthala

viii.Sarva UP Gramin Bank, Meerut.

Steps are being taken for winding up of the company as the license
has already been surrendered on 14.02.2011.

. R 00.00.2014 § THIE HW TT RHEHEA TouEen fa. @ g% @ Note: Assets Care & Reconstructions Enterprise Ltd has ceased to be an

wedntt ween w1 9ot 9 g fem wn B, wEife e sl gerentar 30%
T FH T 1530% F A B

T AW
i) Tae 9% o, Jue

Associate of the Bank w.e.f. 09.09.2014, since the share holding of
Punjab National Bank has reduced to 15.30% from 30%.

Joint Venture:

i. Everest Bank Limited, Nepal

137



wHafa wieat & &7 a7

(o #)

Herk* (Tt SteEn STIERTET ** . Eayl

fereroy/gafyg ot | frEEo & oTER) HeAT/Age e & YA HIHHR g@ua;;gﬁﬁm@

i r e wn el wng Jel|  n] A8l i | 100.74] M T @ TR @M W[ 100.74 M Tl
| AR | A | AT d 12109 T W @ T T (121.98)] vl ]

SRS WG WG SWEE @ Tl 9010.29 1 497 21.29 4.83 25.95  9020.09 47.24
AR el ERGEl o T A TET| (2488.04)| (8274.89) (16.05)  (25.56)  (36.25)  (47.31)] (2540.34) (8347.76)

1 s o W AR | F T @ T ((34678.25)(34678.25) J . - | (34678.25) (34678.25)

1w AN TR A TR @M RN AR TR 2600.00 : - 36.12. 36.12]  2636.12 36.12

TR Oot ¥ frewr | @ 7@ T ol A TRl @ TRl (879.67)] (4944.50) - (24.22)]  (24.22)] (879.67)| (4944.50)
AR el AR el AN I Ar Tl 127.83 i - ] - 127.83 -

fearer 9 Tow o | @ AR o | o] e ] = | = | - @ T

R ffers o | @ | o | o] e ] | { A Tl

o T

AT

< TR

Bl

T oTfedal

T SAIfETEl

TR

AT

B e ] & ] & EOGEl @r TRl 510.53 . - . - 510.53 -
@ | @ | e | A | (283.48) VLTl (0.03)] VL 1 LT (28351 WL
o | @M | @ | @ | (2287.21) TR AR @R ] - { (2287.21) S |
ar | A | @] | (11430 T ! 1 (114.30) L
oF] e wm A€l @ el on @] (90.00) - - (90.00) A Tl

IS AT A A EWEE WG 11.89 - - - 11.89 -
] TR ] TR @M RN @] TR (1933.62) - - - 4 (1933.62) -

EEER Ar &l Ar &l @ @l ar TRl - - - ] . :

W HHIRA oF] | on | wn) | an] @l 1 ] SRS

* a0 GAR de HIfoR
(@i ¥ fu Y swe frwd o % )
oIl 3R H® TEArl Teenel & WY gL A 1 YHAR @l HHE - 18 1 gl qdl yeRde ' T 9 & WRASR e R e
S T gR1 e Seml B SR UHT o gt wiidal @ oA § 9 foRdt @ geafed g 39 9 w2 3@ ® S 1 gr fefa e
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Transactions with Related Parties ® in Lac)
k% .
Items/ Related Parent . S Associates/ Joint Key Management Relatives of Key
(as per ownership | Subsidiaries** Management Total
Party ventures Personnel
or control) Personnel
| Maximum | 2 | Maximum wn Maximum s Maximum et Maximum s Maximum
i) amount 3 amount ¥ amount ¥ amount ) amount ) amount
K |outstanding| & |outstanding < outstanding K |outstanding] & |outstanding < outstanding
N.A N.A[ N.A N.A - -| 100.74 NA NA NA 100.74 NA
Remuneration
N.A N.A[ N.A N.A - -1(121.98) NA NA NA (121.98) NA
Borrowings N.A N.A[ N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
) N.A N.A[ N.A N.A 9010.29 - 4.97 21.29 4.83 25.95 9020.09 47.24
Deposits N.A N.A| N.A N.A| (2488.04)| (8274.89)| (16.05)|  (25.56)| (36.25)|  (47.31)| (2540.34)| (8347.76)
Placement of N.A N.A| N.A N.A - - - - - R - _
Deposits N.A N.A|[ N.A N.A|(34678.25)| (34678.25) - - - - (34678.25)| (34678.25)
N.A N.A[ N.A N.A 2600.00 - - -| 36.12. 36.12 2636.12 36.12
Advances N.A N.A[ N.A N.A (879.67)| (4944.50) - -| (24.22) (24.22) (879.67) (4944.50)
. N.A N.A| N.A N.A 127.83 - - - - - 127.83 -
Investments in
share capital N.A N.A| N.A N.A - N.A - N.A - N.A - NA
Investments in N.A N.A| N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
debentures N.A N.A| N.A N.A - NA - NA - NA - NA
Non funded N.A NA| NA N.A - - - - - - ; .
Commitments
Leasing/ HP
arrangements - - - - - - - - = 3 < =
availed
Leasing/ HP
arrangements - - - - - - - = s = = =
provided
Purchase of i ) i ) ) ) ) i ) | ) )
fixed assets
Sale of Fixed ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) | ) i
Assets
Leasing/ HP
arrangements - - - - = = = = - = = =
availed
Interest paid N.A N.A|[ N.A N.A 510.53 - - - - - 510.53 -
p N.A N.A| N.A N.A (283.48) N.A (0.03) N.A - N.A (283.51) N.A
Interest N.A N.A|[ N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
received N.A N.A|[ N.A N.A| (2287.21) N.A N.A N.A - -| (2287.21) N.A
Receiving of N.A N.A| N.A N.A - = - - - & - -
Services N.A N.A[ N.A N.A (114.30) NA - - - - (114.30) NA
Rendering of N.A N.A| N.A N.A - = = = = - - -
Services N.A N.A[ N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
Management N.A N.A[ N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
contracts N.A N.A| N.A N.A (90.00) - - - - - (90.00) NA
Dividend N.A N.A[ N.A N.A 11.89 - - - - - 11.89 -
received N.A N.A| N.A N.A| (1933.62) - - - - -| (1933.62) -
Bank Charges N.A N.A| N.A N.A - - - - - - - -
Cormiecn N.A NA| NA N.A . - - - . 3 ; p
Received

* As compiled and certified by the management.
(Figures in brackets relate to previous year)

** The transactions with the subsidiaries and certain associates have not been disclosed in view of para-9 of AS-18 ‘Related Party Disclosure’, which
exempts state controlled enterprises from making any disclosures pertaining to their transactions with other related parties, which are also state
controlled.
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18. Accounting for Leases — AS 19

Financial Leases:

%) forfta wed w <t Tr‘it SRR G G i a. Original value of assets acquired on financial
2 ofEa il # wiwfad (WAt 9 lease and included in other fixed assets
Thaa=R gfed) 341.65 <@ (including furniture and fixture): 341.65 lacs
39 W feu MU BRI T EHME h1 T The amount of depreciation provided
31.03.2015 £41.65 <G upto 31.03.2015 thereon: %41.65 lacs
31.03.2015 ! STafarEd qed % 1.00 The written down value as on 31.03.2015: %1.00
@) T T b | L =~ b. Minimum Lease Payment due not later than
T - ¥ 1.00 one year: %1.00
) TH Y W Al T q5 aH H S § Hed c.  Minimum Lease Payment due more than one
AqH Y& JIar A year but not later than five years: NIL
H) 5O % 9% GF G Y2 YH d.  Minimum Lease Payment due later than
\ RS five years: NIL
) qa:é‘ A e. Operating leases : NIL
19, TGN UIMeh 20 : Uid & 3 (EUTH ) 19. AS 20 - Earnings Per Share
fareror 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 SI.No. |Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
%) i@ e gagsd (FE H) 16.91 93.91| [A EPS - Basic / Diluted (in %) 16.91 93.91
@) [T & YA MUE h €9 H ST 30615843 33425704 |B Amount used as numerator Profit 30615843| 33425704
Eal Tlf-a' Tﬂ'\ﬂ (2000 ®) after tax (Zin '000)
T [RER aﬂ%ﬂmﬁw = 32/~ 9id 10/~ 9fd  |C Nominal value of share ?2/- each| %10/- each
) | T AR EERRLE RIS D Weighted average number of eq-
3 : 1810470746*| 355946370 & 8 q *
Sfoferet PRl T ARG STHd 6 uity shares used as the denominator 18104707467 355946370

* f&iR 19.12.2014 1 S % TR H1 ®F e 10/~ Hid IPR W T 2/~ i IR
o fawifsa =t fean T 21 st St e fadsH % 9eeEe 9 T 2

20. OET HIFeh -22 : 37 W il & Gag W S@iehT
S A of@n Hifq e 7 % SFTER e Y enfedl qen
a1 vEEE w5 ® e yg@ sew fefdted ®

* The face value of bank’s share was split from 10/ per share to % 2/- per
share on 19.12.2014.The number of equity shares given is post split.

20. AS 22- Accounting for taxes on Income

The Bank has recognized deferred tax assets and liability as
per accounting policy no. 7. Major components of which are
set out below:

R HTE H) Rin Crores)
forerzon 31 03. 2015 | 31.03.2014 Particulars As on 31.03.2015| As on 31.03.2014

=1 feafa =1 feafq Deferred Tax Assets
SR T AT 523.04 538.23 Provision for Leave encashment 523.04 538.23
gz‘gﬁ THEEH & AU e A A Provision for Pension & Gratuity NIL NIL
U o SUSH % feT g 0.34 1.10 Statutory Liability u/s 43B 0.34 1.10
Y 43 o S STavid QiarHE TG R b Provision for wage revision NIL NIL
a1 gfg & foL WaeE 1371.29 343.87 Provision for bad & doubtful 1371.29 343.87
Gﬁgm_é:m 1894.67 883.20 ?ei)tls 1894.67 883.20

: ota . .
pr=— 3“% ;:%W 270 18.66 Deferred Tax Liabilities

per 1961 1 T 36(1) 20573 30970 Depreciation on fixed assets 4.10 18.66
HEHT AETH, : : Deduction u/s 36(1)(viii) of 405.73 309.70

(viil) % sferfa et Income Tax Act 1961
Stg . 409.83 328.36|  [7otal 409.83 328.36
it T et () 1484.84 554.85 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 1484.84 554.85

Y 930.00 HUS I ARAMT HT el a9 o &1 @ & <
w1 T

21, @l WS 23 : WHfeRa fawig faawon # wAifaweet §
fraett & fom o
e S 1 ST AT Sl ¥ wnierd e w1 few € et
S 1 ST TffeferEl W eyl g SIon 1 SR €, o
S 1 wfeRd fordi foafomt & o frael w6t W & T ¥

The deferred tax assets ¥930.00 crore is credited to Profit
and Loss Account.

21. AS 23- Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated financial Statements

Since Investments of the bank in its Associates are participative
in nature and the Bank having the power to exercise significant
influence on their activities , such Investments are recognized
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank.



22,

23,

24,

@ ek 24 : TR 3Ta%g BT

fedleh 01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 H1 7@ & A o A
o feret oft v w1 ufErer steeg et TR 8 faeae
RoTHEEY  SFaet w1 e SR efeEl w1 sqaE e
T g fuig =& foan T oo 9fEmmes o SiE o g
el =17

@l HAE 25 - fafa fasia Rafen

qF T Wl H AR GHaT ® TEeH 9 9RdE fo
S TS §. SIETE.USARTEE. 9 13/08.91.001/2000-01
fedi 17 W€ 2001 & Sfaviq wrda fed d% g feifa
FTel I ST @ e

G UeR 28 3TTREEl ahl STUETATIET

S T enfeaal W vt feem fasita enfeqal 1 @ W @
Tk 28 STl hi STTHHA o] &l € b k1 T H &
el (R oFs F] & 8) &1 Sohd AHE &1 d &
1 erifard we=H & faw 31 A€ 2015 1 fRe weeEe
1 T STOEEET Tl B

22,

23.

24.

25.
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AS 24 - Discontinuing Operations

During the period from 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015, the bank
has not discontinued operations of any of its branches, which
resulted in shedding of liability and realization of the assets
and no decision has been finalized to discontinue an operation
in its entirety which will have the above effect.

AS 25- Interim Financial reporting

The Bank is adopting the format prescribed by the RBI for
the purpose of half yearly review of its accounts as per RBI
Circular No. DBS.ARS.No.BC 13/08.91.001/2000-01 dated
17th May 2001.

AS 28 — Impairment of Assets

A substantial portion of the bank’s assets comprise of ‘financial
assets’ to which Accounting Standard 28 ‘Impairment of
Assets’ is not applicable. In the opinion of the bank, there is
no impairment of its assets (to which the standard applies) to
any material extent as at 31.03.2015 requiring recognition in
terms of the said standard.

AS-29 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

i)  Movement of provisions for liabilities*

25, TGN WM 29 : UG, TRk 90 3T TR
aiTﬁa'aﬁ:
i) Suarel & fou wraeri o ge-wg*
(T HE H)
fereor 9T A i LA AT/
STaed & 3T STTERHHATT
AT TR
1 3, 2014 &1 99 1020.00 18.21
afy & INE Heae 630.00 1.81
s1afy & IRE TR
e A A
safy % INE Ter T 356.00 1.97
31.03.2015 1 319 1294.00 18.05
afgatg / SAfw=a &1 99 i L

* 3 & U gEum B

[Rin Crore)
Particulars Salary arrears l‘mf]er Legal casgs/
negotiation contingencies
Balance as at 1st April 18.21
2014 1020.00
Proylded during the 630.00 1.81
period
Amounts used during the NIL
) NIL
period
Re\{ersed during the 356.00 1.97
period
Balance as at 31.03.2015 1294.00 18.05
Timing of outflow/ - -
uncertainties

* Excluding provisions for others

il ) STeRfTer IFaTell W 3FgeT - 12 9@ :
A "wen(), (1), (1), (1V), (V) & (VI) & T& 7@y
AT / IS /AT HHSAl o[RS, el sl fAuer,

arft s @ ufw, wewm SRl w1 owal, W e

ii) Refer Schedule-12 on contingent liabilities

Such liabilities at S.No.(l), (1), «l), (IV), (V) & (VI) are
dependent upon the outcome of Court / arbitration / out of
court settlement, disposal of appeals, the amount being called

up, terms of contractual obligations, devolvement and raising
of demand by concerned parties, respectively. No liability is
expected in such cases.

SN 1 T G W FEe: oqfyd ¥ UQ el § i wfagfd
ey el §
Y 9 FI @ ¥ = 9 o I=0id 99y T ‘uraem

26. 26. Break up of “Provisions and Contingencies” shown under the
a 3MMeRfEreRaTe’’ ot feaRor ffafaa ¢ - head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account is as follows:
(T Fls H) Rin Crore)
Tererot 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
freell | qoae™ o daeH (Us) 567.03 782.76 Provisions for depreciation on investment -567.03 782.76
, . - (net)

e Il ST () 797919 4517.09]  Iprovision towards NPAs (net) 7979.19] __ 4517.09
YHeh Al @ [ JTeem 404.88 505.34 Provision towards Standard Assets 404.88 505.34
AR o faT Jree (TheEl IR T 895.67 1347.94 Provision made towards Income Tax 895.67 1347.94

T gfegq) (including Fringe Benefit Tax & Wealth Tax)




T YA 3R 3TTeh [ EehdTy;: 180.46 888.75 Other Provision and Contingencies: 180.46 888.75
foeror 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 Detail: 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
e 86.24 868.67 Standard 86.24 868.67
i " ’ Restructured
AL / Sale to SC/RC NIL NIL
oy e *1 fomt = Pl Written off 74.06 57.25
2 @ 74.06 57.25 & others
e Sale to Arcil 20.16 -37.17
Sintkabice: 2016 15 & sk 7. Toa: oo Total 8893.17|  8041.88
27. TRAifeT wraem ot feeRor fAfataa € 27. Break-up of Floating Provisions is as follows :
R FE H) ®in Crore)
fereur 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
01.04.2014/ 01.04.2013 i IR(ETH oW 720.50 1075.36| |Opening ba/lance as on 720.50  1075.36
- S g 01.04.2014/01.04.2013
] fe S b/l pS Quantum of floating provisions made durin NIL NIL
gp 8
af the year
99 % IR SR N I T HH (sr 360.25 354.86 Purpose and amount of draw down made 360.25 354.86
TTSH) 1 TR I RYA during the year
Closing balance as on 31.03.2015/ 360.25 720.50
31.03.2015/31.03.2014 ! SfeRr™ 360.25 720.50 5
31.03.2014
28. ;II[II?-;IEI fafer & ifer SALALLR 28. Draw Down from Reserves:
(R Fs H) ®in Lacs)
EXBERECREE] HET0T| 3T Sr. |Reserves Amount |Purpose
g RERRAE] No. drawn
1. |or= yrfera fAfemT|  0.069] 31.03.2015 % 1 Fafy & fow #fd: 1 Other Reserves |  0.069 |Payment made during the year ended
T pfee & aEs @H % fay 31.03.2015 for Blocked Account of In-
=¥ # N fEE T e e ter Branch Credit entries pertaining to the
3181999 o = ¥ period upto 31.3.1999.
2. [gHem uRfea 2062.89 qqﬁq % eI dTel WM R Gedgd 2 Revaluation 2062.89 | Depreciation on revalued portion of
iy reserves property
29, Toraraar iR ST eieruter & erfufofay st farfaa @ 29. Disclosure of complaints and unimplemented awards of
FA & T ARSI ¢ Banking Ombudsman
&, Teeh ToTeRmEd a. Customer Complaints
(%) | ¥ 1M 01.04.2014 & IR ¥ aftaq forermrar 192 (@) |No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the 192
T year i.e. 01.04.2014
(@) | = =7/ 01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 & IRH W= 29759 (b)  |No. of complaints received during the year i.e. 29759
Forprat - .04.2014 to 31.03.2015
| e 01.04.20
(M) | a9 @@ 01.04.2014 & 31.03.2015 & <RH 29778 (c) |No. of complaints redressed during the year i.e 29778
ng\ﬁ . 'f‘ - o 01.04.2014 t0 31.03.2015
T 1l i & - - (d) |No. of complaints pending at the end of March 2015 173*
aﬁa—a ﬁ'ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁ e *
. (q‘iﬁ T, 2.015 & ; E kdl 173 * All complaints stand since resolved.
q NEIRGINCIRERCIE] el
@, AfRT ST gt fau wu arfafaota b. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
(%) [T 1fq 01.04.2014 & 30N H @ 7 fhu MU 4 (@) |No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the 4
srfufotay =t Te year i.e. 01.04.2014
(@) [ad arufq 01.04.2014 | 31.03.2015 & M ST 7 (b) |No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman 7
ATl B A At w7 e during the year i.e 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015
(M) [a9 &g 01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 % IWH @] 10 (c) |No. of Awards implemented during the year i.e 10
fiF T afufata = gen 01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015
M) [, 2015 ® s § R T T e (d) |No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of March 1*
=t - ary 2015

*

30. S 3 FAEee fhren § yefwae v sreifdl (femy) @i
g, feord oA Sl dSE e S (=) fafes
o TR W ek ehidl Svardd o S feRen € foed 3w A

ARSTSAE & SY TR b TH T IR FHT T

1 vERE fo T € fE Ak vee ema ¥ (ReRee)

* Appeal filed with Dy. Governor, RBI.

30.

The Bank has issued a Letter of Comfort to Prudential Regu-
lation Authority (PRA), the regulator in United Kingdom,
committing that the bank shall provide financial support to
its subsidiary, Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd., UK
so that it meets its financial commitments as and when they



fafide, 3 % o1t foxta wfdesad 9@ =1 < e @ 9% 39
foie TREa Y U S8Ed, 31 °H, 2015 &) ferfa &

feier 31 |, 2015 T W fRT U TwerE UH/eEE O

£l @ﬁﬂ:
(T Hs H)
2014-15 & SR T U Meames we/e=E T 43097
2014-15 & IRA IRUFa/ R arET /a=a & 20147
31.03.2015 =1 ST AR /= I 22960*

* Wi ¢T wfee faftem & ol I swfafed smwaws w/e=m
T qel o 1 Soid e & Ie- T, SR W o e o

SRR et 1 iR ST B

31. deh RT WO T U o TPEaRE SRER & ey o
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fall due. However, no financial obligation has arisen out
of such arrangement during the financial year ending 31st

March 2015.

The detail of Letters of Comfort / Letters of undertaking issued
and outstanding as at 31st March, 2015.

(Rs. In Crores)

Letter of Comforts (LoU)/ Letter of Undertaking (LoU) 43097
issued during 2014-15

LoC / LoU matured / cancelled during 2014-15 20147
LoC / LoU outstanding as at 31.03.2015 22960*

* The above mentioned LoC/LoU have been issued within the sanctioned
Trade Credit Limits and forms an integral part of the contingent liabili-
ties reported in the Bank’s Balance Sheet under the Head — Acceptance,

Endorsements and other Obligations.

31.

Disclosure in respect of Bancassurance Business undertaken

mu-r by the bank:
(R FIE ) (% in Crore)
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
ForeRoT
31.03.2015/31.03.2014 oo a8 & =1 31.03.2015] 31.03.2014 Details of fees/remuneration received
o Y . i 3 in respect of Bancassurance  Busi-
ag mﬁf.m 11-? S A ness including Mutual Fund Business
F W A e undertaken by the bank during the year
WRAfEE % w9 e Tl F e 31.03.2015/31.03.2014
(i) e = HRER 59.74 46.28 (i)  Life Insurance Business: 59.74 46.28
(i) TR Sfag < FRER 21.87 20.30 (ii)  Non-life Insurance Business: 21.87 20.30
(i) I HE FRER 03.62 2.05 (iii) Mutual Fund Business 03.62 2.05
85.23 68.63 Total 85.23 68.63
EIS]
32.1. ST TIOTEE, TR, HUT WfEW W T ies emfat 32 | Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and
NPAs:
T BRIl
(7 ) ST R T A (a) Concentration of Deposits:
= (% in Crore)
& ) Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
EC 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 20707.42 23735.90
20 HaH I8 STHThTIS hl el STHT T1LT 20707.42|  23735.90
Sk I Bl ol AT HT o | 4.13% 526% Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest 4.13% 5.26%
20 TS S STRAlsT S T T % depositors to Total Deposits of the bank
(@) ATt w1 i (b) Concentration of Advances:
(TS H) (% in Crore)
Terawor 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
% s R g o o S6283.42 Total Advances of twenty largest borrowers 57335.91 56283.42
d% ® Fa Ifm FT ger | 15.07% 16.11% Percentage of Advances of twenty largest 15.07% 16.11%
20 T 92 B & AfiHl w7 % borrowers to Total Advances of the bank
(1) UM T ShgIehTOT (c) Concentration of Exposures:
(=T H) ® in Crore)
]%ETUT 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
3 3 Total Exposures of twenty largest borrowers/ | 64105.34|  66512.10
20 a9 a2 HORNATEST F A T d@|  64105.34)  66512.10) | ctomers
i Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest 12.87 14.21
9% % wA H|U K ger H 20 TIH G 12.87 14.21| |borrowers/customers to Total Exposures of
B o e Tl the bank on borrowers/customers
o




T) o Sich TMIEAT ol ehelehTuT

(d) Concentration of NPAs:

(THUS #) ®in Crore)
fereroT . ¥ 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014|  |particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
4 Hai=a STl 3TTed Tl | %t H0 2047.53 2688.55 Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 2047.53 2688.55
T ) WIALTHIHIUT haisl Ut (e) Provisioning Coverage Ratio:
Teraor gl 10| el Particulars 31.03.2015] 31.03.2014
TR oS ST 58.21% 59.07% Provisioning Coverage Ratio 58.21% 59.07%
] Q’:F:lT{' STfimt 11. Sector-wise advances:
EX @3‘ 31.03.2015 deh 31.03.2014 dh SI. No. |Sector As on 31.03.2015 As on 31.03.2014
. heT Rt Hehe 371 A TEENEEA (5 &l Outstand-|  Gross|  Per-| Outstand-|  Gross|  Per-
B T (&E  |eThim Karirat:) HA ing Total NPAs| cent-| ing Total NPAs| cent-
¥ @t arfimt Advances age of| Advances age of|
e , Gross| Gross|
arfirt R NPAs NPAs
L) Tehet to to
Total Total
Rt LRy
A & Ad- Ad-
vances vances
EQ) BIGHE) in that in that
PIGEIG sector sector
A Priority
b - & Sector
1. FH T W 1. Agriculture
rfciferfera 56899.49(3114.089| 5.47| 49148.78| 2288.05| 4.66 and allied
2. ERie e activities 56899.49(3114.089| 5.47| 49148.78| 2288.05| 4.66
i & feru 2. Advances
e s to industries
5l 1 i | 31834.43| 3801.48| 11.94] 27616.63| 1868.67| 6.77 :Cg?i:;iltlflble
3 Bl 24378.84| 2480.91| 10.18| 14101.83| 938.33 6.65 sector lend-
4 SAfRT R | 28669.97| 1215.90|  4.24| 29594.82| 1631.76| 5.51 ing 31834.43| 3801.48] 11.94] 27616.63| 1868.67| 6.77
SaaTg (1) |141782.74|10613.18| 7.49]120462.07] 6726.82] 558 |- Services 24378.84| 2480.91| 10.18| 14101.83] 938.33] 6.65
Personal
loans 28669.97| 1215.90| 4.24| 29594.82| 1631.76] 5.51
3. ;W’ﬂﬁ? Sub-total (A) [141782.74(10613.18| 7.49| 120462.07| 6726.82| 5.58
1 FfT T T B Non Priority
Tfcfafert 1656.21|  30.11| 1.82| 2987.94| 150.88| 5.05 Sector
2 T & & 1. Agriculture
il % g and allied
' st activities 1656.21]  30.11] 1.82| 2987.94| 150.88] 5.05
&5l @1 | | 114760.23| 9308.50| 8.11| 92908.68| 6815.96| 7.34| | Industry 114760.23] 9308.50] 8.11| 92908.68| 6815.96] 7.34
3. BELY 68406.71| 2346.42 3.43| 56071.77] 1231.46] 220 > services 68406.71| 2346.42| 3.43| 56071.77] 1231.46] 2.20
i — Personal
3 IR 65816.27| 3396.64| 5.16| 87215.32| 3954.94| 4.53 loans 6581627 3396641 5.16| 87215.32| 395494 453
3‘1‘@3 (1) 250639.41|15081.67 6.02|239183.71(12153.25 5.08 Sub-total (B) 250639.41|15081.67 6.02]1239183.71112153.25 5.08
?jj)g 392422.1525694.86| - 6.55| 359645.78/18880.06|  5.25 Total (A+B) | 392422.15[25694.86] 6.55]359645.78[18880.06] 5.25
"
. 3TSieq MTREEt o "S- IIl. Movement of NPAs:
(FFHTE ¥) (Zin Crore)
faaruT 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
01.04.2014/01.04.2013 o1 T hdd TSI 18880.06 13465.79 Gross NPAs as on 01.04.2014/01.04.2013 18880.06 13465.79
e (wRftsr 9h) (opening balance)
9 % 1A qﬁ&r (R STsIR STTerEn) 16659.56 10809.97 Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 16659.56 10809.97
- Less:
W €ss
(i) STt =@t 999.62 1429.22 (i) Up gradation 999.62 1429.22
(ii) oget (919 @@l &1 31 @1 398 g8 age! 2925.48 2611.31 (i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made 2925.48 2611.31
rom u raded accounts
F BEHT i pgraded )
(iii) THIHI/YSS Tge-31Th 5919.66 1355.17| |(ii) Technical /Prudent Write-offs 5919.66 1355.17
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(iv) 3o (iii) ! SigHT fmam T TE-A1F - -|  |(iv) Write-offs other than those under (iii) - -
above
BECRED 9844.76]  5395.70| [Sub-total (B) 9844.76] _ 5395.70
31.03.2015/31.03.2014 1 Thal 3FSIH 25694.86 18880.06 Gross NPAs as on 31.03.2015/31.03.2014 25694.86 18880.06
sfeaat(sifam o) (31-31) (closing balance) (A-B)
TEe-31F 9T TN hl T T:l'!{%ﬁﬁ‘ ot TaeRor Detail of Technical write-offs and the recoveries made there on:
R *S #) (in Crore)
fererat 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars As on As on
& & 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
01 31T 2014/2013 THARI/GES Tee-3TH 5349.55| 4111.68| [Opening balance of Technical / Prudential 5349.55|  4111.68
@l T IR o written-off accounts as at April 1,
‘ i} 2014/2013
Sie: @Y & SR qkAhl/qee ek @M | 6767.48]  1701.35|  [Add : Technical / Prudential write-offs 6767.48] 170135
during the year
S IERE)) 12137.03 5813.03 Sub-total (A) 12137.03 5813.03
: A AR = Less : Recoveries made from previously
T T~ W technical / prudential written-off accounts 990.94 463.48
B T[g H’FK‘I"T (a1 990.94 463.48 .
) during the year (B)
31.03.2015/31.03.2014 3ffad 29 (21-3M) 11146.09]  5349.55| |Closing balance as at 11146.09|  5349.55
31.03.2015/31.03.2014 (A-B)
Iv. fagwr feom Wﬁ?ﬂﬁ, SEECIS o) AR T IV. Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue:
(R H) (Zin Crore)
fereor 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
®d e 79886.01 64474.58 Total Assets 79886.01 64474.58
ol STTSich SNl (Fehel) 376.81 344.24 Total NPAs (Gross) 376.81 344.24
Fol T 2247.19 1825.64 Total Revenue 2247.19 1825.64

IV. qoMUT & STelal deh gNT Wrifea fasi v areay
(foTent Sraieh AFEUS & ITAR AT Tufyd & )
31.03.2015 I TS for ad & wF 9% g0 fRE YR
foR s wreAm (e SR siadg) W @ fR T €

33.

wise w2 i fews aret @ Rare wEe

i, va FHW fuAed TeEd Bfee R efdewe uRE o
Hfee w1 3R e FIE T T97 F TG F@ ©
3% o & @ TF 6 91 ¢ 3 &% 3= a9 e
g W@ 3 et ofie g W #fee ok efae wE
T YA FG © FIEUNF 7 3R] F THEA FL Ghal &
Rarg @Rl & wRor <7 R w1 a1y 9 2 @ geia
o < 2 SR 2fer eeR W fafie wreuE wn o $fee
fopan ST ® wifer g8 Uiy aiemr A g |l

TR RaTe wrEet hise wE agr 37 dag § fog o

V.

Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Bank (which are

required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)

Bank has not sponsored any SPV (Domestic as well as
overseas) during the financial year ended 31.3.2015.

33. Reward Points of Credit Card & Debit Card

i. PNB Global Credit & Debit Cardholders are rewarded as
and when they make purchases through usage of Credit
& Debit Card. Reward Points are generated at the time of
usage of Credit & Debit Card by Cardholder at Merchant
Establishment. Card holder can redeem the accumulated
reward points. The amount payable on account of reward
points is charged to Profit and Loss account and credited
to Sundry Provision Account on daily basis because such

amount is quantifiable.

Position of outstanding reward points and provision regarding

e o Refy fefafea %z Credit Cards is as under:
TeareroT 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars As on As on
= = 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
TRt TN Tare @Ee 107562484 89045841 Balance Reward Points outstanding 107562484 89045841
T @RS % o foR T e (3o ®) 13865 445.23|  |Provision held for these points (in Lacs) 13865 445.23

ii. Taee! IR - Sfde HE § Fatud T R
el R 3 W gEeE i fefq feed € -

Teramor 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014

Eq) £

el e @R w1 9w 685567905 | 542983866

o wrEed & fau fFm o yeuE 247.63 198.58
R.da@H )

ii. Position of outstanding reward points and provision
thereon regarding Loyalty Reward Points-Debit Cards is

as under:
Particulars As on As on
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Balance of loyalty reward points 685567905 542983866
Provision held against reward points 247.63 198.58
Rin Lacs)*
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34, fa<ita od & af@ @ faier 31.03.2015 & WM @E  34. No SGLs were bounced during the year ended 31.03.2015.

B35

TESIUA &0 TehRT =0
AT RS ST
%, WTATHS Yehe [ehTuT

* The provision held against Loyalty Reward points has been worked at
%0.25 for 1 point, which has further been valued at 15% on estimated
basis as in the previous year.

35.

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

A. Quantitative Disclosure

Eaticicy] ud o Current year Previous Year
Exl o | e afvmifa | oo Faifa Total Total Total | Total Weight-
stfretfa fatfa|  Te (offm)| g (i) Unweight- | Weighted Unweighted ed Value
T P ed Value Value Value (average)
(average)* | (average)* average)
(ofraa )| (o ) ge) ge) (averag
I=d e WA Ho High Quality Liquid Assets
1 el =9 TUEE A Haf 65452.29 1 Total High Quality Liquid 65452.29
T NI Assets (HQLA) NA
h Outfl
T afeae Cash Outflows
B e E s s | 322412.72| 24223.32 2 Retail deposits and deposits 322412.72| 24223.32 NA NA
s A o= L T l‘—ﬁ"} from small business customers
il of which :
S Ll (GBS || Eloheers A | A | [G) [Stable deposits 160358.95| 8017.95 NA NA
(i) [ =9 feR s 162053.79)s16205.35 o] T o T (i) | Less stable deposits 162053.77 | 16205.38 NA NA
3 | ordie e fifu, o 4 B | Gl ] e A Tl 3 |Unsecured wholesale funding, | 81785.78| 64598.41 NA NA
. of which:
) ) 1552 22 SN T SN T (i) | Operational deposits (all 15.83 3.72 NA NA
e & o counterparties)
(ii) afErer s (|t wfaae) 81769.96 | 64594.68 ] & S & (i) | Non-operational deposits (all 81769.96 | 64594.68 NA NA
counterparties)
1Y) | %.00 %.00 T TE AL | [Gi) | Unsecured debr 0.00 0.00 NA NA
2 e ot faw - _ 0:09 4 Secured wholesale funding 0.00
> | 16.9] T6.91 5 Additional requirements, of 16.91 16.91
- which
@ 1 X aﬁ'{ar-a # 655 619 NIV ol SIS ol (i) | Outflows related to derivative 16.91 16.91 NA NA
STERERIIE 9 Hafd afedie exposures and other collateral
] requirements
(i W R o A Y 0.00 0.0 SIS qﬁ S :IE"‘[ (ii) | Outflows related to loss of 0.00 0.00 NA NA
aferd afeate . funding on debt products
fii)_|#fez o e w1 gt 0.00 0.0 o] | A FE | [Gi) [ Credit and liquidity facilities 0.00 0.00 NA NA
6 | o Hfemer At # 838680 48152 W] S 6 | Other contractual funding 8386.59| 48152 NA NA
Kk obligations
7 | e e fom www % @A (141600.61|  7080.03 KIEEE s 7 |Other contingent funding 141600.61| 7080.03 NA NA
obligations
8 | ®e T aftaw 96400.19 @ F&l| |8 [Total Cash Outflows 96400.19 NA
TR TR Cash Inflows
9 T (S T ) 8283.79 0.00 I LEE] 9 Secured lending (e.g. reverse 8283.79 0.00 NA NA
repos)
10 |0 7% ¥ Wi e Sitan 9 43546.72| 25628.61 WEE WEE 10 |Inflows from fully performing 43546.72| 25628.61 NA NA
Fiqats exposures
11 T TR TAE 6293.10( 3146.55 L qg"T A 7-13"’[ 11 Other cash inflows 6293.10( 3146.55 NA NA
12 %@ =t vae 58123.61| 28775.16 o] T o el 12 |Total Cash Inflows 58123.61] 28775.16 NA NA
Eagd H HETEISTT Total Total Adjusted
TS I Adjusted Value
s Value
13 |<he TereRUueq 65452.29 AL qg"]’ 13 [TOTAL HQLA 65452.29 NA
14 |=%a g T afedis 67625.03 sl 14 | Total Net Cash Outflows 67625.03 NA
15 | =iy seist squa (%) 96.79 A Tat 15 | Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 96.79 NA
* forgett fommet = Wﬁ aifges feoaforl =1 et siga (C‘H%Tf?[ 90 f7 =1 smafy o * Simple averages of monthly observations over previous quarter (i.e. average over a period of 90
sirga days)
)1
. AN Hels U WX TUTHe: Wehe [ehiuT B. QUALITATIVE  DISCLOSURE ~ ON  LIQUIDITY
COVERAGE RATIO
1. TR & T U<k oo
1. Main drivers of LCR

31.03.2015 @I, faftames omemst & sHER 60 wfawvm
TR % 9fd "qul o wR (fakelt wmans @fed) w
96.79 % =1 fomEl Sirea 1 waE W

o % ToHISR 1 G&1 s A e Ui qul ety
afee € (Tueueny) N9 e e S &1 =ty
STERIharstl &l QU fha1 ST T 9o G4 T B HREART

As at 31.03.2015, against the regulatory requirement of 60%
of LCR, the bank is at a comfortable level of quarterly average
of 96.79% at whole bank level (including foreign branches).

The main drivers of LCR of the bank are sufficient high quality
liquid assets (HQLAs) to meet liquidity needs of the bank at
all times and basic funding from retail and small business



TEh! 1 G BIET 1 S Th o & Hel S GhifeEl
H AT 72% SIEE G qdl B FRER H ¢ g
5/10% 1 &l T ST hered SAehitd il 2

2, 32T AT qeT ey <N U ufads

TSR ¥ HE uRedd & gan 21 gt 7, 2015 H
fouret, frndl =o o ook SHRIT #1 Gfen R gwel o
afferaman o1E

3. I%° UTEHT YUT oI MR ( TSIRUAT ) aht WToHT
I=d U YU ARG SRE 1 FHIfIE THeRuaT Sifh
AT Iiged % IR § U At ?g stewe e
ke o ®9 H Tg T4l § GRafad hi ST Eehil|
TR | 9 ®R 2 A 1 THeRTeT GaIey € w1 2 i,
TR AT AMORAT i WA T 3¢ 3 TR 2 & F &R 2
@ st | fawfsa e mn €

T 1 ete, 9 onfeal ® S S WerEl ® 31.03.2015 %
Sk H WR 1 ARG THUHUE § THUTATAHISY & AN
%62829.80 FUS I BigHT Bl

W2 ®H 2 @9 e € W A A 3R STl 9R
T 33460.45 HUS W 30 T B

4, Taeias Edl T Hehwgur

79 Hfew o =9 el & @ial e e swfity sifamt
% orfi ®, WA 21 TEHT Se¥A IS Wecqul wfqust
IR yAF Teaqul  Scae/faed @ enifed e fAefea
R & FRE g S % e S ) se S
2, 9 s & et % o e ¢ el gfimey/ forad/
IR 1 Tehel Wiuel Toraa/Scas o e % el i
1% | sifer i ool gfqueft € S o weg 9 % e
o witenfod feran T R

S T 31.03.2015 1 FE ff Hewqul gfqua )SEUSHR)
&l € % F Kl ;A B G TS THERA HT I 0.45%
% Safeh oS 20 SHERAIS HT AMCH 4.10 HH €1 HEwqul
Scqre/feraa o, o= A, e feuifse, S &1 Faomes 3K
R S w1 S R S BT Rl JAA BT 25%, 5%, T 41%
1% 3R 2% B, wifde 2, femmor st o foasga &9 9@ wen
T3 ® b & fory Hepgor wifegw &1 giva &t 2 ehal

5. Sfafea TameR

31.03.2015 1 9% T 9% WU A B AT 442 A H
ifes THeieA €, e @ e i Te TR 313.82 FS
g S foF St e W hE Weeqel gqe T e €
6. idr fugter

T fod o & feenfEel & oTER gw wewyel A
STt ¥ A% 39 R K1 KT S ki Heraddl & 5% Al
T afus € TR UM d, 39 9H% W Hhad Jud S
el ® S R TorieR ERESH § el dRIbER WA
T S 2l
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customers. The retail and small business contributes about
72% of total deposit portfolio of the bank which attracts low
run-off factor of 5/10%.

2. Intra period changes as well as changes over time

There has not been any intra period changes in LCR. However,
increase in LCR on quarter ended March,2015 was due to
shedding of bulk deposits and increase in quarterly inflows
from Term loans.

3. Composition of High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA)

HQLA comprises of high quality unencumbered assets that
can be readily converted into cash at little/no loss of value or
used as collateral to obtain funds in a range of stress scenarios.
HQLAs comprises of Level 1 and Level 2 assets. Level 2 assets
is further divided into Level 2A and Level 2B assets, keeping
in view their price volatility.

Level-l assets are those assets which are highly liquid. As
on 31.03.2015, the Level-1 assets of the bank includes Cash
in Hand, Excess CRR, Excess SLR, besides MSF & FALLCR
totalling ¥ 62829.80 cr.

Level-2A & 2B assets are those assets which are less liquid
and their weighted amount comes to ¥ 3460.45 cr.

4. Concentration of Funding Sources

This metric includes those sources of fundings, whose
withdrawal could trigger liquidity risks. It aims to address
the funding concentration of bank by monitoring its funding
requirement from each significant counterparty and each
significant product / instrument. As per RBI guidelines, a
“significant counterparty/Instrument/product” is defined as a
single counterparty/Instrument/product or group of connected
or affiliated counterparties accounting in aggregate for more
than 1% of the bank’s total liabilities.

The bank has no significant counterparty (deposits/borrowings)
as at 31.03.2015.The share of largest depositor in bank’s total
liability is 0.45% whereas the contribution of top 20 depositors
is 4.10% only. The significant product / instrument includes
Saving Fund, Current deposit, Core Term Deposit, Certificate
of deposit and Inter-bank term deposit which are 25%, 5%,
41%, 1% and 2% of bank’s total liability respectively, the
funding from which are widely spread and cannot create
concentration risk for the bank.

5. Derivative exposure

As on 31.03.2015, the back to back swap deals are having
negative MTM of % 4.42 cr. while trading swap deals are
having negative MTM of ¥ 13.82 cr which is not having
significant impact on liquidity management.

6. Currency Mismatch

As per RBI guidelines, a currency is considered as “significant”
if the aggregate liabilities denominated in that currency
amount to 5 per cent or more of the bank’s total liabilities. In
our case, only USD falls in this criteria which has insignificant
impact on total outflows in LCR horizon.



7. TAMI YaeR % ShelgetuT @i TS iR wgE
TR & Se GaTg

e THEA Wl YeeE W sl g aeiy, s |

TE -9 ke famaor s § 21 f5ed g % 9

gl &9 H TE H1 FAMY TISH w1 gfd w1 G|

7. Degree of centralization of liquidity management and
interaction between group’s units

The group entities are managing liquidity on their own,
however the bank has put in place a group-wide contingency
funding plan to care of liquidity requirement of group as a
whole in the time of stress.

36, wfaufasreor | grafeard Hehetantur 36. Disclosures relating to Securitization
ufasd STfeat st sehTa T OUTSTANDING AMOUNT OF SECURITISED ASSETS:
d. |faewor TR w0 SI.No |Particulars No/Zin
o crore
1. TR T3 B Tt o I At T w1 |9 1. {\rI;)n(;;CStFi’g/nssiponsored by the bank for securitization | NIL
7 o= g S - 2. Total amount of securitized assets as per books of | NIL
et g the SPVs sponsored by the bank
1 H T - 3. Total amount of exposures retained by the bank to
3. T T H 'ﬁfq 1 AL 1 ST o 5 comply with MRR as on the date of balance sheet
[k T FON HT FKA T
) a) |Off-balance sheet exposures NIL
£ RERE S e
& kS First loss
e Bl
Others
3T
b) |On-balance sheet exposures NIL
@) |ded 9 9 R0 A :
First loss
g Bl
Others
™ 4 A t of exposures to securitization transactions
: moun
4 THRSR ¥ fim wfasfa o w93 & wfd ww afe other than MRpR
®) |qeH 9F 9 R = a) |Off-balance sheet exposures NIL
i) | wfayfae 9 wEfua w0 i) |Exposure to own securitizations
w7 First loss
GlIE| Others
i) |ema vy gfayfaewe 9 wwEfaa w0 i) |Exposure to third party securitizations
ECERIE] First loss
& Others
@) |qe T 9l R = b) |On-balance sheet exposures NIL
i) | wfayfast § grafed wo i) |Exposure to own securitizations
ERERIE First loss
Gl Others
i) |ema vy gfaufaew 9 wrafad w0 i) |Exposure to third party securitizations
ERERGIE] First loss
7 Others
* TR QTR H-3A1 9 Traf-ed Tadiet & @8l gfea fRa s * Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitization transactions may
be reported here
37. whfge fewee @u

Jfr 9% dum dfagel & ged ?q R @it o
Hieel 1 WA T wAl SR HRER EEw (3 F W T,
3T Yo 1 eROT T I9R gR e €1 39 YR AR
Rste Sk & oAE TEYNTESl i YAER IS Fehelhl Tl
fopa ST 2

38, TRl T9TIT Uel WINMmekal T ( SEUuw ) sl stfafia:

AREE & IR TSl 0. SEuu® O &l 114/30/01.
002/2013-14, f&: 27.052014 & oMueq ¥ s 3 <HEWH
A, 2014 F Sidta e it REF 1 ofafa & T 7

37.

38.

Credit Default Swaps

Since the Bank is not using any proprietary pricing model for
pricing CDS contracts, and it is over the counter contract
(OTC), the price is determined by the market dynamics.
As such no disclosure is to be made in terms of extant RBI
guidelines.

Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund
(DEAF):

In compliance to RBI Circular No. DBOD.NO.DEAF.CELL.
BC.114/30.01.002/2031-14 dated 27.05.2014, the Bank has
transferred the following amount to RBI, as per Depositor
Education and Awareness Scheme, 2014.



arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

(s H) in Crore)
fererur i 31,03.2015 hT| 31.03.2014 ot ] Particulars As on 31.03.2015| As on 31.03.2014
ST 1 AN TR H1 IRESTH T @ T Opening balance of amounts NIL NA
oY transferred to DEAF
Sfie: rafy & U SIEulh &l 424.92 EuEE Add : Amounts transferred to 424.92 NA
ofaf ®t T Tl DEAF during the period
FHl: W H foeg SECE gW 2.86 @ T [Less : Amounts reimbursed by 2.86 NA
ufer &t gfaafa DEAF towards claims
31.03.2015* i SIZULH i FaRa 422.06 @ F&l| | Closing balance of amounts 422.06 NA
FT T TR FT SAfaH o transferred to DEAF as at

31.03.2015*

« ot foenolt =1 orggsh 12 % 3f@ia ‘ enspfirsr Soamefi-or=a" & dR
W YR gam 2l

39. anfura faasht wiet TaREeR (JUEHET )
§% 3 gE1 aefa wO SifEw w5 fEbE w @ fen
Hifq o € 3 d% H1 RO YA T SifEw HAifd 2014
o freqea et fomen o 2
“orfara facEil gE1 THAUSR ATl TEemsT @l WESK
% fou gsft ud gEurietor smenstt W wRdw &
feen fden & ST ER % aifter delemEst & Wy wHw
faaet & SuRedisti & @l ¥ gxeR oRfad fagei gw
&1 FARET O @ § 0 9 80 SUTH i AU d% &
HHea JEUE, S fF ®a wfse THOSR TI IS &l
AFTIhal, WUSE MM TEUM TS Ysft i Sqeavashal
AR TrEd: SEY BN aret B % fou Sumewd & 9
@l ® 98 T BN T WE Hh Wrdl H YEHE i
ATTTTHATTER TR o oIy sfeh Teh el =rst ST,
TS ehl AN SURehdl g1 a8 1 ST S @i foadia
faeroft # T 9qfd THRHESR SHRET S|

*

Reflected as “Contingent Liability - Others, items for which the bank
is contingently liable” under Schedule 12 of the financial statements.

39. Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE):

The Bank has framed a policy to manage currency induced
credit risk and has been incorporated in bank’s Credit
Management & Risk Policy 2014-15 as follows:

“In terms of RBI guidelines on ‘Capital and Provisioning
Requirements for Exposures to entities with Un-hedged
Foreign Currency Exposure’, Bank shall monitor the currency
wise un-hedged foreign currency exposure in the books of
borrowers at quarter ends along-with the Annual EBID. The
incremental provision (ranging from 0 to 80 bps on total credit
exposure, over and above the standard asset provisioning) and
capital requirement will depend on likely loss (due to foreign
currency fluctuation) that borrowers may face due to their un-
hedged forex exposure in their books. Bank shall maintain
separate charge and provisioning requirement on account of
such exposures which may impact the cost to the borrowers.
Appropriate disclosures in the financial statements of the bank
shall also be made.”

R s ) Rin Crore)
e 31.03.2015) 31.03.2014| [particulars 31.03.2015|  31.03.2014
5‘ _ WETH 4441 m:‘ﬁ Incremental Provision 44.41 NA
ghiteel  ehfuee 188.31 ] T Incremental capital held 188.31 NA
40. 33T I Qﬂ@ﬁ?ﬂ' 40. Intra-Group Exposures
(U H) (in Crore)
FeperTaT 31.03.2015] 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
% 321 q0 SR @1 & A 5160.00 o w2 a) | Total amount of intra-group exposures 5160.00 NA
e Qﬁ'ﬁf 20 7 79 Q;RUCIBIGI'{* W o T 5160.00 e b)|Total amount of top-20 intra group 5160.00 NA
(3 ) = v X exposures*(3 entities.
T s T TR Y5 % o ; 13.36% = c) [Percentage of intra-group exposures to 13.36% NA
. B i FEN total exposure of the Bank on borrower/
@)gc{ TFEATSR BT iR (31.03. customers (As on 31.12.2014)
2014 9% _ d) |Details of breach of limits on intra- NIL NA
El 37‘-:[ 7 TRISR W fafie F1 S@e &1 =1 A S group exposures and regulatory action,
TS el TRE, A w5 8 if any.

* 1) duTet TR WA fa 2) dewet fireew fa.
41, 3= feuforn

() 9 fisrd do & AR % SITER S H 31.03.2010
qoh I 5 o8 9 Aferh 1 I SIqImEn shise gfafsat
&I AT 1 3TaEg W H Aalka we & fow w e
T TEIER 2117.98 Fg H AR (fFu Y woEsE ®
T F G TRT) & SY 5 ¥ o FaE - o=
3 & oRla STerT § =wE W §

* 1) PNB Housing Finance Ltd. 2) PNB Guilts Ltd.

41

. Other Notes

a. As per RBI guidelines, the Bank has worked out the
amount of inter Branch Credit entries outstanding for more
than 5 years, pertaining to the period up to 31.03.2010,
to be transferred to a Blocked Account. Accordingly, a
sum of ¥117.98 crores (net of adjustments since carried
out) has been included under “Other Liabilities-others” in
Schedule-5.
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(@)

(M

M= e & 3R oiw sfee ufafval, s qeon stala
% WA 01.04.2014 ¥ 31.03.2015 1 @y & IRH
0.093 @ & & Wit foru 7T qen S 9 0.069 @
T RSE 9 qen 20.024 9@ a9- g1 @ 9 2fae
Hh g fohan T

32.99 U (Yede™ W) ( Tusdl a9 T 4.34 FUS)
(37.47 *8) (Trow od 2 8.7 HUE) &l TR =i
THfq FHa IR & U 2rged Sied &1 ISt fRg
ST 1 geiten € IR | 277.24 He (fuset @d w99
26.63. HUg) 1 dsiima i sl wfmfer &

fafve Heaiha oo & foaw o @ § S grr famy
TIaH R It foenfea afer wfed ‘o= sufeai”’
& qed WIS B % Bid W shadl i A / S |
A I €

21056.21%0s (frse a9 % 800.67 HAg) i faanfsa
STRIHT W Jq STWH &N X TN G Bl TEEE
YA OIS TR THS AN ek Sk i TF | ql
Frefor sifererrd gr1 fopw T wfeedq / St S
® a1 TR foRivS 1 1@ U 9% H el W
g Frofai w1 off srqumel € o9 faenfsa =i & g
T 2105621 U (fusat ad 2800.67 HUS) 1 I
o= T

(2.) 9% 3 ¥ & I [ fatEE 2009 FHE-THT W gq

(=)

ety (Tt eI fafmm & et Vil &
IAER Hed gr Fen fuifa 22/~ ufd seR & sifed
T ae SAfydrad: STUR W 2194.80 UM ¥RR &
HHEH W 44207317 et PR 9IRT WHR Hl sTEfeq
fohu € TRuTHEEY S 1 3870 U W gq T
%8.84 i el Toft @R 861.16 g Hiffaw & &9
T € Wora®y A= e d gd TR T SR
58.87 W w1 qoil W 319 59.86 Wiawrd B

Yo g Sehfad ol & AIER, foeda o 2014-15
% IR FT T TS | GeH, o 3R HeAm 3w famm
sitafEm 2006 ¥ fRu U feenfaaen @1 e R
T # SR erfufrEm & SrER fasware w1 e gu
W forn wn @1 S e § w5 6 T g € e
fota o 2014-15 % KA I <SeHd oIS A
Tt T T em

Claims of ¥0.093 lacs has been received during the period
(01.04.2014 to 31.03.2015) against Inter Branch Credit
entries, Blocked and transferred to General Reserve. This
has been met by transfer from General Reserve ¥0.069 lacs
and 0.024 lacs to debit of Profit & Loss Account.

. Premises include properties amounting to ¥2.99 crore

(Net of Depreciation) (previous year ¥4.34 crore) {Cost
%7.47crores} (previous year 8.70 crore) are awaiting
registration of title deeds. Premises include capital work in
progress of ¥77.24 crore (previous year 326.63 crore)

. Tax Paid in advance/Tax deducted at Source appearing

under “Other Assets includes disputed amount adjusted by
the department/paid by the Bank in respect tax demands
for various assessment years.

No provision is considered necessary in respect of disputed
Income Tax and Fringe Benefit Tax demands of ¥1056.21
Crore (previous year ¥800.67 crore) as in the bank’s view,
duly supported by expert opinion and/or decision in bank’s
own appeals on same issues, additions/disallowances
made are not sustainable. Against these disputed demands,
%1056.21 crores (previous year ¥800.67 crore) has been
paid.

. During the year the bank has allotted 44207317 equity

shares of ¥2/- each to Government of India at a premium
of ¥194.80 per share as determined by the Board in terms
of the Chapter VII of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009,
as amended from time to time on preferential basis. The
total amount received by the bank on this account is %870
crores which includes %8.84 crores as equity capital and
%861.16 crores as premium. Consequently the Government
holding has increased to 59.86 % as against 58.87% before
preferential allotment.

. As per the information compiled by the Management, the

guidelines given in Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006 have been complied with for
purchases made during the Financial Year 2014-15 and
payments have been made to the Vendors in time as per
Act. Since there had been no delay in payment so no penal
interest had been paid during FY 2014-15.

42, gt oft rTagaehar ot a8t frse o & afiehsl @ qdggs,  42. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged/

YRR/ A e feRam T #)

reclassified wherever necessary.
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(% 000)
2014-15 2013-14
Tararor
Particulars
3. ORI whsadl | el yarg
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
() = & A IF T 30,615,843 33,425,702
Net Profit after Tax
Sifer : X & fau yaem (smefi & #1 SeHl) 8,956,660 13,479,383
Add Provision for Tax (net of deferred tax)
U | gd e @
Profit ble?ire tax 39,572,503 46,905,085
(i) FmAfafee & fag TamEsE:
Adjustment for :
3= el W geag 3,908,570 3,730,620
Depreciation on Fixed Assets
HERT : YAHemd yRiw ity o smefa ufn (206,289) (206,732)
Less : Amount drawn from Revaluation Reserve
ISl il & fog grerem 79,791,913 45,170,850
Provisions for non performing assets
A ST TR JEE 4,911,219 13,740,086
Provision on Standard Assets
et (g5 ) R qegery (=), 9221 @, JaEH (5,670,342) 7,827,594
Depreciation/ (Release), Write off, Provision on Invest-
ments (net)
3 JEuE (YS) 1,021,731 688,614
Other Provisions (net)
MM / o= | i (e wiwery) (350,291) (284,619)
Dividend from Subsidiary / Others (Investing Activity)
aroel § = (o wrfwam) 12,242,793 9,394,313
Interest on Bonds (Financing Activity)
o enfeal &1 foskt @ e w1l (IS) (26,180) (46,882)
Profit / Loss on sale of Fixed Assets ( net)
(ii) 95,623,124 80,013,844
e nfadt & St § wRadt W 7 ufene™ oy
Operating Profit before Changes in Operating Assets (i-+ii) 135,195,627 126,918,929
and Liabilities
(iii) wftomer snfaat @ Yaarett ¥ yg wiadw
& Tau wamEeE
Adjustment for net change in Operating Assets and
Liabilities
fraet & =t / (3fg) (65,660,857) (144,396,456)
Decrease / (Increase) in Investments
Sfim o &/ (3fg) (396,047,233) (449,903,020)
Decrease / (Increase) in Advances
o= snfeal ® &/ (35 ) (19,148,443) 12,396,720
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets
St ® gfs / (FED 499,818,923 598,366,832
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits
Syl # gfs / () (86,638,639) 76,784,853
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings
& <Faiel 9 yeadE | gfg / (FE )
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities & Provisions 12,257,135 OGRS
TRETe | I TRt (iif) (55,419,114) 66,466,177
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(% 000)

2014-15

2013-14

@&

Cash generated from Operations

WA FX (ATH F BEH)

Tax Paid (net of refund )

UfeTe™ rehedl | g Tehel

Net Cash used in Operating Activities

a9 wreleeTdt ¥ Hehdt YaTe

Cash flow from (used in) Investing Activities

sTEq il st 'lg (fast 1 SEaHi)

Purchase of Fixed Assets (net of Sales)

STufmal Fge Seml/ 8. Sht W ww e

Dividend recd from Subsidiaries / JV / RRBs

ST WY ST/ &L Sl | fEw

Investment in Subsidaries / JV / RRBs
HEeheTdl B Wee Y[ Tehal

Net Cash used in investing Activities

faitas wEweTdl | Thal TaTE

Cash flow from (used in) Financing Activities

TR gt S e (SifrEm afEq)

Issue of Share Capital (incl. Premium)

S @Sl F (HEA) (FRR-1d IRR-)

Issued(Redemption) of Bonds (Tier | & Tier II)

qfvel W WET AN (-1 F TR0

Interest paid on Bonds (Tier | & Tier II)

AL T A (AL TR HT Hied)

Payments of Dividends ( incl.tax on Dividend)

faiem st | Ig ARl

Net Cash from Financing Activities

STRET qAT TRET T W Y aiad

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

6 T AT W Teha! qAT Tehal qod

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

THE 3R AT ReE 9% @ I 9w

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India

SH F T I S AT T T FA W A o

Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice

o & 3fd W Tehat qOT Tehal qod
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
THG IR R Rerd 9k % U 9

Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India

SRl U AW SR HT G T GEA W WA o

Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice

feofimat -
1 WEd ot H (AT F SieH) F AECR FEFA § TET A T € A 3 e qon fofe Fwriwerd & 7oA faved @ e wn e
2 wE ¥ Ry Tu g eewe ‘TR W’ <wid © o

(i+ii+iii)

(=1)
(A)

(%)
(B)

)
©
(3T+3T1+3)
(A+B+C)
222,455,799

229,728,656

242,249,419

317,092,301

79,776,513
(23,589,783)

193,385,106
(16,093,908)

56,186,730

177,291,198

(5,199,706)
350,291

(3,637,256)

(4,304,404)
284,619

(2,324,240)

(8,486,671)

(6,344,025)

8,699,999
63,000,000

(12,242,793)

4,999,999
7,350,000
(9,394,313)

6,927,770

59,457,206

9,883,456

107,157,265

452,184,455

559,341,720

178,862,497

92,491,329

222,455,799

229,728,656

180,830,629

271,353,826

452,184,455

107,157,265

180,830,629

Notes :-
1 Direct taxes paid (net of refund) are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing
activities.

2 All figures in minus represents “Cash Out Flow”
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IgECIEit CAONCANRCLE I INCCE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Har o To
WRd & Teafa The President of India

fa<ia faafort w fore Report on the Financial Statements
1. B9 USE AvEe S (‘S%) # 31 "E, 2015 1 G 1.

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial

factta faerforl =t @ wden w1 ? faod 31 @, 2015
% o T SR o9 9 B @ del dcdsel g o &
Tl gaTe foaervr qen Heeyul wEie Aifqe S 9’ T 3T
fod=mas gu gfwfaa @ 1w facia faefral & sur
BRI T qhfed 20 IMEneT i, Wl ekl gR sifee
I T 2771 w@RT ® (1 UAdd SFET g den 25 o=
FETA) T T w@ ThEehl g oer wifaa 3 faseh
yraneti i foerfori wfer €1 gER g sifee w1 T @i
I ol qderhl gRI Sfifee w1 T wmensti w1 wEd S
SR o wen % fau ardg o o gr S anitE w
AR for el 1 gore o= | o o o =it foeet @ & 3795
@ SR 160 S % o wEied w1 fed off wfmfer
g fomem eifee =&1 gam ®1 ¥ R w@n wdifkm wmene
AR wEfeE & @l % I W 7.04 wlava, swRfEr §
27.63 Jfaed, =TS TF H 7.43 Wiwd a1 =S 9 H 28.42
gfaera 279 2

fosiia faaxforat & foaw weiem @ efae
2. dFwH fafreea sfufem 1949 (sfufrE) &1 um 29

% UEUEl % ER T fawia foeroi w1 GER e iR
ATEE 1949 TAF ATGA & B & o @ o FAIET Gl
Yhe FE & faU 9% geuA IaErt © o1 3 facia foero
TE-gE W 3E Hed ¥ qRdw gr e fewn-fee ek
IRAE TS TR eI g S WM ol ARl i
Ul Y 2 T SaElde ® offuftem & geeE %
AR S T il w1 gUerd W iR el iR 3
srfEtHaaret 1 qar e 3R S "= % T Sugs o
Hifeai w1 W SR o] we fvia #e SR SEE e
o 3 @i @R faaeygol € @i 39 foita foerfom, st oo
IR fower feerfq <riet @ iR o forerol @ 4o ®, W &
dEeEt @ Afe # RO B, B dOR AR yEd w9
Tafud o el w1 Tk iR qufar i gifeed w6
% fou fe 3 guet 9 9 uftenfoa of v srafe o=
Frreion w1 T, wav@mE iR o] e % fog o siferat
1 JA T § e 2

TG eTeRl T ST
3. BN U 39 foeu o W eHR gN H1 T o udhen

% SHR W Ad Yk FH dF Tl THA TRIRGE I ARE
THRIH F e g0 IR o wWa W S "ERl &
AR SETien i B A Wk oiel wd € b g9 A
YA 1 A HY AR eH ol el 1 SIS e
3ITHT FoIeA 36 goR W R 7 facia faaorest & "6y o
U wyfad e fire Sq feR s e g T R
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statements of PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK (“the Bank”) as at
31st March, 2015, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2015, and Profit and Loss Account and the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. Incorporated in these financial statements are
the returns of 20 branches audited by us and 2771 branches
audited by branch auditors (including 1 off shore banking unit
and 25 other offices) and 3 foreign branches audited by local
auditors. The branches audited by us and those audited by
other auditors have been selected by the Bank in accordance
with the guidelines issued to the Bank by the Reserve Bank of
India. Also incorporated in the Balance Sheet and the Profit
and Loss Account are the returns from 3795 branches and 160
other offices of the Bank, which have not been subjected to
audit. These unaudited branches and offices account for 7.04
per cent of advances, 27.63 per cent of deposits, 7.43 per cent
of interest income and 28.42 per cent of interest expenses.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

2.

Management of the Bank is responsible for the preparation of
these financial statements in accordance with the provisions
of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 (“the
Act”) and to disclose the information as may be necessary
to conform to form ‘A” and form ‘B’ respectively of the Third
Schedule to the Act, complying with the guidelines issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in this matter from time to
time and the applicable Accounting Standards (“AS”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”) issued
by the ICAI. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.



4. TF o when ¥ wrified ufEed gaw R facim 4.

faerforl o sfeefaa afvmEl @R yerdea & 9§ weg g
fora ST €1 et wifafess ofan Themeh & e W SAHE e
2 TS forita foreiforei & Tierd oM, 9R o HEe! & SR
g W qfe % it @ fuikor wfinfad 21 9 Siten fio
T T F U TR AR % SER S wE
w1 oo & & fou o wee foxia foexfor s wer 3iR
foogey feorfa <oid €, &1 Sfoa wedieo @on 56 %1 99 9
Torg afaes e W fomm & €, 7 fF 39 wse gem
% afiafiss T w5 gEeiield | T < €, =R S w1 foxi
fidifen @ik w el & gumet Seen W gEw s e
Bl o TN W W ol SAifal i Sl 1 Jedihd Jae
] foha & oRal STAEN F difchenan, W & fowia faarfori
T Fohel TEIAHT T Gk off Ffmferd 2 |

. & fovarg € o 39 fowia faewon w oen wden wiem, s
B W B €, AR WA 1 R UM i & o vt
IR STg R

Siken)
6. TUR GG H, S w1 o/ dfed § g US| qen gatad

SR 3R T & T TRt % SR

i, gorue SR SEe O ufed fewfor ww gof qen s
JorTs B o weft stevaes foenon i T ? @ik we
ARG § HMA: Wihd o@ehd el & SgEd 39
WE ¥ @R = mn @ fw wad o %@t w5 31 9,
2015 1 TEl iR Sfea feufd wef¥m et @

ii. @9 9 T @@ qen 38 W ufed fewforen, R o
Y=Y Wiehd @k {9l % $T®Y ad & oy

w1 & U I § 3R
iii. Tt yare ool v 5@ fafy 1 gura od 2q wel @ik
3fed s vaE 9 ®
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An audit involves performing procedure to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the Bank has in place an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Management of the Bank, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for expressing our
audit opinion on these financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, as shown by the books of the Bank, and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. the Balance Sheet, read with the notes thereon is a full and
fair Balance Sheet containing all the necessary particulars,
is properly drawn up so as to exhibit a true and fair view
of state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March 2015 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in India;

ii. the Profit and Loss Account, read with the notes thereon
shows a true balance of profit, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, for the
year covered by the account; and

iii. the Cash Flow Statement gives a true and fair view of the
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

= fafyr wa faframe smemsy w fard Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
7. qaTA IR 9 9 B @ deherl fataae sifafm, 1949 7. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been

F T Y F FwE: M T SR A ¥ el ™ R
8. S TIwes 1 W 5 | giud oraradia &1 Hmie & Ty
qol drwr FHuTE (ITHA w1 e TS efawen) stfufm
1970, ST AU e S0 STUTRTd TehaiehIon i HHIST &
srefie 79 ufaafed + 2 fF .

. TN Wella™ SNl IR fovame & @R o wlern
% fau st ot g 9 T sEvds o, 9 76 uw
B T ¥ SR TN 3% HalUsHe Ul € |

@ TN G ¥, 9% 5N fafe & ey sufed @t w1 o R
W T § SS9 afed o S ¥ Ul = § |

7. 3@ R gr <wied W qer v, o F = @ iR
st yae foeror o@ @ iR faeRfoEr & e ergey
¥

drawn up in Forms “A” and “B” respectively of the Third
Schedule to the Act,

Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraphs
1 to 5 above and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, and
subject also to the limitations of disclosure required therein,
we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and
found them to be satisfactory.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Bank so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;
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A% % S oed SHM S § SR ®, o A o
ik & sidid ol
T d% & FEed SN vmEest 9 ure faefiEi, 9 wiie
e el faerivren Jeee & fovad & SR W YH o
F TR €, H BIgH TR e % 355vd ¥ v
et TR R
9. TR HA H I THA fowia fTeRioEn @n oREn Jeewht
% ITER T
Fd & T e Fd drdsh T Fd WA FR
TS HEAT TEifaTEs TS HEAT
T TR TR TEHR TS TETHR
THARTT 3041533 THANUT 101745 S THARTT 00147784

SR TS - HEER T & JUF - HRER W FPR - HEER

T 9. 012172 T 4. 032156 T3 9. 080725
T @R Te uwifaued TR TR
THIRTA 1017948 T AETHR THSTRTA 009907TA

THARTA 114207859

T W BET - WEER IS s - WERR T T - TR
I . 049357, TS H. 074392, TS E. 092257

feier : 08.05.2015
WE ;T2 feeett

d. The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our
notice, have been within the powers of the Bank.

e. The returns received from the offices and branches of the
Bank have been found adequate for the purposes of our
audit except in certain cases where the returns as certified
by the management have been relied upon.

f. Inouropinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the applicable Accounting Standards.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
K. N. Gutgutia & Co. CVK & Associates Ramesh Kapoor& Co.

Chartered Chartered Chartered
Accountants Accountants Accountants
FRN 304153E FRN 101745W FRN 001477N
B R Goyal A K Pradhan Ramesh Kapoor
Partner Partner Partner

M No. 012172 M No. 032156 M No. 080725

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Chhajed & Doshi R. Devendra Kumar Hem Sandeep & Co.

Chartered & Associates Chartered
Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN 101794W Accountants FRN 009907N

FRN 114207W

M P Chhajed Neeraj Golas Manish Gupta

Partner Partner Partner

M No. 049357 M No. 074392 M No. 092257
May 08, 2015

Place: New Delhi
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TSl A9 Sich Rl 31 WTE, 2015 ohT WIATW HHIRd qoi--ux

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON

MARCH 31, 2015

Tty 2 o o

(All amounts in ¥ lac)

31.03.2015 &¥
As on March 31, 2015

31.03.2014 Al
As on March 31, 2014

USRI
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES

o=t
Capital

wrfem ffra oi stfgw
Reserves & Surplus

wifaferes gRferd ffeRi

Statutory Reserves

et arfaa

Capital Reserves

IR HifgEH

Share Premium

T dn e ufard fafern
Revenue and other Reserves
@Y 9 7 ' o e

Balance in Profit & Loss Account
STHRTET

Deposits

HA SRR

Demand Deposits

o W SR

Savings Bank Deposits

wrafy SHRIET

Term Deposits

YT

Borrowings

aRd H IUR

Borrowings in India

(%) AR e o 9

(a)  from Reserve Bank of India
(@) o St |

(b)  from other Banks

(M) = Heensh SR wSfeE |

(c)  from other Institutions and Agencies

IRA W AT IR
Borrowings outside India

3T AT T WA

Other liabilities and provisions
3 faa

Bills Payable

T HEd guESE (IF)
Inter-Office adjustments (net)
Iuf=d =

Interest accrued

& el & T greem

Provisions towards standard assets

37091

991293

333852

772951

2041998

81654

3454398

15108177

32961968

127100

896033

2740422

2156921

239883

1723

155619

290997

36207

911805

313748

641151

1883927

64796

3237300

14187564

28695489

1527951

470879

1805444

2099057

251286

2726

150706

246780
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USSP Sk T 31 HIE, 2015 T ViAW WATHR qoH-UT

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON
MARCH 31, 2015

ufer 2 arm o
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31.03.2015 &Y 31.03.2014 @l
As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
SR & 3@ (IqE) 0 0
Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
T 1209037 955233
Others
HA Yot 3R I
Tﬁta@pital and Liabilities 63601117 57482048
st
ASSETS
THel T8 ARdE fiod o & e ey 2443578 2240614
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India
Rl & UG ST 99 ST WO qOT 316w YO W U €9
Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice
qRd ol % 9w I 803544 554842
Balances with Banks in India
aRA H A g o769 g W U ¥H 0 e
Money at Call and Short Notice in India
ARG Y e o 2578800 1890446
Balances outside India
Trawr
Investments
ad |
In India
*) TR HiafaEr 12757885 11548000
(@)  Government Securities
@) I SrAitea gasgfae 18784 30021
(b)  Other Approved Securities
T IR 360436 275526
(c)  Shares
7) fedwr @i ave 1653981 1932443
(d) Debentures and Bonds
) SN S WY SEm 127120 78286
(e)  Subsidiaries and/or joint ventures
=) I 569248 870482
(f)  Others
ARG | 9T 188712 187712
Outside India
B ip)
Advances
IR o
In India
%) W SR A T faa 2917025 2191244
(@)  Bills purchased and discounted
W) % IUN, AR AR G W g B0 14585233 13837356

(b)  Cash Credits, Overdrafts & Loans



TSl A9 Sich Rl 31 WTE, 2015 ohT WIATW HHIRd qoi--ux

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK AS ON
MARCH 31, 2015

afer o |
(All amounts in ¥ lac)
31.03.2015 &I 31.03.2015 @t
As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
M) T R GAYTAE
repayable on demand
o) et = 17071791 15920117
(d) Term Loans
IR 9 e 5887357 4658604
Outside India
Epcicuisel 365577 349044
Fixed Assets
= et
Other Assets
Fid: HEd RN (IS5) 0 0
Inter-Office adjustments(net)
ERIERZ IS 432208 429894
Interest accrued
T ] AR JEF/H BT Ed R Fdt 158816 100982
Tax paid in advance / deducted at source
i & e (5) 147938 57222
Deferred tax asset (net)
T & e v W TR SR i 6564 5435
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
E 526520 323081
Others
% st 63601117 57482048
Total Assets
SRR T
Contingent Liabilities
% % foeg T T % HwW & w9 H T A oTn g 20942 17869
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts
T ARl fafe Sfaet % wron < 19428507 13574159
Liability on account of outstanding forward exchange contracts
el H1 AR W & R Ife 4408770 4009165
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
Tefiepfera, gmish AR I e 4107340 4379844
Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
s W e fou e stefors &9 9 feier © 330057 186351
Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable
et & forg fae 1964062 2032597
Bills for collection
urfya ffit ofw srfuwiw & ofata weas unfara i 139207 141300
The amount of Revaluation Reserve under Reserves & Surplus -
@t & B . &, T
T K BALAMUKUNDAN ) K GUPTA
e TEYEEh TETIEETh

ASSTT. GENERAL MANAGER

GENERAL MANAGER
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1. 9 T HEmq &, ST SRSt ua
DR. RAM S SANGAPURE K VEERA BRAHMAJI RAO
wHrEUTeTeR TR FHruTeten e

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

RUUNEDS
GAURI SHANKAR

vay ey Td TE wEuTee TRt
MANAGING DIRECTOR & C.E.O.

RENECDEIG 2 = s e AR el
RAJESH AGGARWAL T C JHALANI DILIP KUMAR SAHA
IRENED IRENED IRENED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
St dt Eedaa Tq ARE
G P KHANDELWAL PREM NARAIN
[EERED IRENED

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Hd & T AT T HEt Fd Hidieh U TEIfaued Hd T HYT TS
For K N Gutgutia & Co. For CVK & Associates For Ramesh Kapoor & Co.

T AETERR T TR

Chartered Accountants

(St 3 Tird - WEER)
(B R Goyal - Partner)

TS H0 012172, THARTT 3041538
M No. 012172, FRN 304153E

Chartered Accountants

(T & ¥ - |EER)

(A K Pradhan - Partner)

HEH H0 032156, THARTA 101745 T
M No. 032156, FRN 101745W

HET V@RI

Chartered Accountants

(T HYT - WHEW )

(Ramesh Kapoor - Partner)

TS 0 080725, THIRTA 0014777
M No. 080725, FRN 001477N

Hd BoE TS 9 Fd AW TAF HAR TS THITAEH Fd BW G TS HEA
For Chhajed & Doshi For R Devendra Kumar & Associates For Hem Sandeep & Co.
T TR T PRATER T TRt

Chartered Accountants

(Tw W BNE - WIEER)
(M P Chhajed - Partner)
WS . 049357, THIANTA 1017948

M No0.049357 , FRN 101794W

Chartered Accountants

(RS e - WHER )
(Neeraj Golas - Partner)
WEH . 074392, THANTA 114207 S
M No0.074392 , FRN 114207W

Chartered Accountants

(TS TR - WEER )
(Manish Gupta - Partner)
T 9. 092257, THIARTA 009907TA
M N0.092257 , FRN 009907N

fei : 08/05/2015
Date : 08/05/2015

M ;8 et
Place : New Delhi



ATl A9 Sih T 31 HTE, 2015 oAl WA 9 o {10 GlTehd TT9-BT @er
ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL

BANK FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

i3 T @@ H /All amounts in ¥ lac)

31.03.2015 ! TUTA a8
For the year ended
March 31, 2015

31.03.2014 ! WWTE o9
For the year ended
March 31, 2014

T
Income

I =

Interest Earned

Ay /faett W

On advances/bills

faei

On Investments

AR o o % U 99 R o et Ao A
On balances with RBI and other inter-bank funds

I

Others

I AT

Other Income

A, fafa we et

Commission, Exchange and Brokerage

fraen w1 fost W 35 @

Net Profit on sale of Investments

qfy, 9o 3R o et i fawl W gs aw
Net Profit on sale of land, buildings and other assets
fafra giseRml | gs @y

Net Profit on exchange transactions

qRd/faRe W i sivereen Sgsd SaH W A et g

Income by way of Dividends etc. from subsidiaries companies and / or

joint ventures abroad/in India
fafaer s

Miscellaneous Income

A I
Total Income

ag
Expenditure

e feram T =T

Interest Expended

EEIRUNRIE

On Deposits

et st deh/3: S IER W
On RBI/ Inter - bank borrowings
T

Others

afereT =4

Operating Expenses

HUE 1 G SR ST T qreem
Payments to and Provisions for employees
[ERRINCIRCRCE)

Rent, Taxes and Lighting

TR U @A W

Printing and Stationery

3671790 3370968
1104510 1064721
60533 36980
34149 23140
275863 260868
112279 56425
307 482
51472 56127

0 0
177539 97132
5488442 4966843
2811508 2556598
139176 135560
183621 129869
746912 661639
57575 50499
8419 7695
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TSl 9T Sk Rl 31 WTE, 2015 Rl TATA 99 & felq Wlfeha TI9-gT @ar

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL
BANK FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

T3 T @G | /All amounts in  lac)

31.03.2015 ot TUTE ad 31.03.2014 T T a9
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
[EEEEIE NI 4876 3587
Advertisement and Publicity
S w g R eae™ 38399 36662
Depreciation on Bank’s property
TRl &1 W, T T 152 175
Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses
@l TEER i HE T Ed (I o el ded) 5511 4802
Auditors’ fees and expenses (including branch auditors)
fafr gm 6459 5246
Law Charges
T, AR, e AR 13232 13426
Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, etc.
TR 3R @@ 19988 15455
Repairs and Maintenance
Bkl 45443 41111
Insurance
3= 133933 117852
Others
T TS TRHHRATT
Provisions and contingencies
a9 W qerRE & fau yeee -58555 71017
Provisions for depreciation on Investment
eI ol & o graem 799499 457925
Provision towards non performing assets
e il & fae wEem 43716 53175
Provision towards standard assets
I (T U & AfER) 47352 107605
Others (excluding income taxes)
o @ T wraET .. 5047216 4469898
Total expenses and provisions
* gd e/ Erh)
Prof:?/zt(loss) before tax A0 §26945
FAAA AT 200659 165921
Current tax
SATEATT T (93575) (22437)
Deferred tax
& qgETd /(BT )
Profit/(loss) after tax A peealol
stee feq/meaifEl &t o # fewm(gs) 5818 8246
Minority interest/share in earning in associates(net)
snifya /g 64770 54267
Profit/Loss brought forward
T\(v)tal 404729 415974
fafrarsm
Appropriations
wifafre arfara fafesl w1 sfawo 79844 87522
Transfer to Statutory Reserve
7 yrfea il &1 sfawo 162609 217378

Transfer to Other Reserves
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ATl A9 Sih T 31 HTE, 2015 oAl WA 9 o {10 GlTehd TT9-BT @er

ABRIDGED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF PUNJAB NATIONAL
BANK FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

(@ @@ H /Al amounts in % lac)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
TR IEATT AL Rl a0 80516 46278
Transfer to Government / proposed dividend
qed 9 H o S T e 81654 64796
Balance carried forward to balance sheet
= ¥ @,
T K BALAMUKUNDAN J K GUPTA
HeTaeh HeTaa-<eh RIS
ASSTT. GENERAL MANAGER GENERAL MANAGER
. T TE HWRTqR &, ST SISt T
DR. RAM S SANGAPURE K VEERA BRAHMA]JI RAO
TR TR TR TR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

| EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
T wiaRT
GAURI SHANKAR
vy v Td qem wEues It
MANAGING DIRECTOR & C.E.O.

RENEEUCIG 3 e et AR 9@
RAJESH AGGARWAL T C JHALANI DILIP KUMAR SAHA
IEENED IEEtiED feren
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Sl IRCE G| T AR
G P KHANDELWAL PREM NARAIN
ARCNED IRENED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Fd & T [Tl TS HwHt Fd Hidier g wEfaued Fd WY FHYT TS wH
For K N Gutgutia & Co. For CVK & Associates For Ramesh Kapoor & Co.
TIET TETRR T FETRR AT FETRR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(St W M - WEHER) (T & JgM - WEER) (THYT FHYT - HEHER)

(B R Goyal - Partner)
T |0 012172, THIARTT 3041538
M No. 012172, FRN 304153E
FA BIeE TE A9
For Chhajed & Doshi
TE TR

Chartered Accountants

(T dt B - WEER)
(M P Chhajed - Partner)
W H. 049357, THIANTA 1017948
M N0.049357 , FRN 101794W

feia @ 08/05/2015
Date : 08/05/2015

M :fg et
Place : New Delhi
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(A K Pradhan - Partner)

TS H0 032156, THARTA 101745 T
M No. 032156, FRN 101745W

(Ramesh Kapoor - Partner)

TS H0 080725, THIARTA 0014777
M No. 080725, FRN 001477N

FA IR T FFN (e TATATEH F ¥ WA U wwe
For R Devendra Kumar & Associates For Hem Sandeep & Co.
T TRETRT LIRS IeICa

Chartered Accountants

(RS MeE - WEER)
(Neeraj Golas - Partner)
TR . 074392, THINTA 114207 T
M No.074392 , FRN 114207W

Chartered Accountants

(WY T - WEER )
(Manish Gupta - Partner)
TWEH H. 092257, THARTT 0099077
M No0.092257 , FRN 009907N



T w fewfor
1. wufwRa fawia faavor-u=i ® 59 et w faum fawan
T ®, 9 Frefafae §

(% H)
HEl Mfeq | AfeArEd faraat o
AT RO T A & | oife wfwm warfrer
31.03.2015] 31.03.2014
1. droAet fieew fafmes™ TR 74.07 74.07
2. duAet Bei T fafies [wRd 51.00 72.54
3. doME WA S ZEREA) L. 100.00 100.00
fafaes
4. diuHe 3HaEHS giads aRa 100.00 100.00
fafes
5. T% Wl deh fol. I 51.00 51.00
6. WMot o st wfds |9 81.00 81.00
7. SUEHl uHel dEe EElicEIE 84.375 84.375
EXIExsict
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. The subsidiaries considered in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are as under:

(in 0/0)
Name of the Subsidiary | . Country (.)f % Voting power held as at
Company incorporation 31st March, | 31st March,
2015 2014
1. PNB Gilts Limited* India 74.07 74.07
2. PNB Housing Finance |India 51.00 72.54
Limited
3. Punjab National Bank |United 100.00 100.00
(International) Ltd. Kingdom
4. PNB Investment India 100.00 100.00
Services Ltd.
5. Druk PNB Bank Ltd. Bhutan 51.00 51.00
6. PNB Insurance Broking |India 81.00 81.00
Pvt Ltd#
7. JSC SB PNB Kazakhstan [ Kazakhastan 84.375 84.375

* g el & fadE TqeRor T el ST, 2013 % ST 9Rd % A
@Eﬁq% &k GRI ST ofEl-wiel o §F IR St R+t wiftd &
AT I

# FO H TG FE B HeH 330 SN @ © R HEA A AR 14.02.2011
1 AR TBd € auE S e B

2. WHfera faxiia faeror wif & fog FmAfeafaa w=ant/
Haa Sushal W faem feram e §

* The financial statements of these companies are subject to Supplementary Audit by
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, under the Companies Act, 2013 and

receipt of their report.

# Steps are being taken for winding up of the company as the license has already
been surrendered on 14.02.2011.

2. Associates / Joint Venture considered in consolidated
financial statements are as under:

(%)
f?ﬂ? W Frfafea fafat @
—— e — # wfed | wenfie i
T [31.03.2015] 31.03.2014
1. 7= faer o S, we A 35 35
2. gd efEmn ueiu Sw, Jedw TR 35 35
3. Teame wew uEfn W, wer [T 35 35
4. IS I e, HOReel I 35 35
5. G4 Fd umiv e, e R 35 35
6. W FW e RhewRH e 15.30* 30
T=uEs fax
7. TR % fafee( g et 2 20
3UHH)
8. fifme v @i W g 21.38 30
F.9.fd
9. fufgua T=t wuLfa. AR 30 30
10. HoTet Heems® sfed AT gy 30 30
S ol
* femuit ¢ 09.09.2014 9§ AEEH ha TS hTRM TZIUES [AHS il doh
HeArh ween o q gl T e € iR U AvEe S 3 ST SERear
30% ¥ HH HH 15.30% FL & 2
e feouft .

2.1 T ¥ fAfHes &1 o a9 gan S 9 i 2

2.2 98 2014-15 & fau fAfafad Teart /&gF SThAl & o
iR Sra-vhifed fadfa foewe o & oaR W) ol | 9% &
IR & fawa | fa=m foran o 2

(in %)
Name of the Associate |Country of Proportion of ownership
Company incorporation percentage as at
31st March, | 31st March,
2015 2014
1. Madhya Bihar Gramin  |India Bl5 35
Bank, Patna.
2. Sarva Haryana Gramin |India 35 35
Bank,Rohtak
3. Himachal Pradesh India 85 35
Gramin Bank, Mandi.
4. Punjab Gramin Bank, India 35 35
Kapurthala.
5. Sarva UP Gramin Bank, [India 35 35
Meerut.
6. Assets Care & India 15.30* 30
Reconstruction Enterprise
Ltd.*
7. Everest Bank Ltd. (Joint  |Nepal 20 20
Venture)
8. Principal PNB Asset India 21.38 30
Management Co. Pvt.
Ltd.
9. Principal Trustee Co. India 30 30
Pvt. Ltd.
10. PNB Metlife India India 30 30
Insurance Company Ltd

* Note: Assets Care & Reconstructions Enterprise Ltd has ceased to be an Associate
of the Bank w.e.f. 09.09.2014, since the share holding of Punjab National Bank has
reduced to 15.30% from 30%.

Footnote:

2.1 Everest Bank Ltd. follows accounting year different from that of
the Parent.

2.2 The bank’s share in the following Associates / Joint Venture
have been considered in the accounts on the basis of
un-audited financial statements received for the year 2014-15.
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%, fUfgua o= s i
@, fifquer dioaet e fasme s

T TR S ol AUl (WY SUHH)
2.3 USH wrfara fifa/ara s faavor fefafaa € -

(T lig )
faarur 31.03.2015 =t feerfa 31.03.2014 = fearfa
@ I =
Ysft grfer e 141.07 141.07
g (I5) T T
HHFA T YSH yrfad faf 102.52 102.52

2.4 aftrEarEd dguR/ANT YR ® ®T F OHAI: rAT-1 AR

a. Principal Trustee Co. Pvt. Ltd.

b. Principal PNB Asset Management Co. Pvt. Ltd.

c. Everest Bank Ltd. Nepal (Joint Venture)

2.3 The break-up of Capital Reserve/Goodwill is as follows: -

[®. in Crore)
Particulars As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
Goodwill NIL NIL
Capital Reserves 141.07 141.07
Goodwill (Net) NIL NIL
Capital Reserve on Consolidation 102.52 102.52

2.4 Perpetual bonds/subordinated debt raised as Tier | and Tier

ZreR-11 Uit Trerad e 1 I Capital:
(ZEiE ¥) . in Crore)
. . As on As on
feraror 31.03.2015 @t feafa| 31.03.2014 st fegfa| |Particulars 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014
o % RM SR T TR B 2077.50 1529.96| |Amount of subordinated debt raised as 2077.50 1529.96
= d R T tw omw w Lower Tier-1l Capital during the year
- 200.00 Amount of subordinated debt raised as 200.00 NIL
i j 3 o T?:T“ ij:ﬁ ® ] Upper Tier-1l Capital during the year
il e = A Sl 500 Amount of perpetual bonds raised as Tier-I 1500 NIL
ad & WA PR-1 I B ' A A Capital during the year
ST T St e R afw

3. o WHE 1 USh watwar SIUE (SHa-Il 3 Sawe- i)

3. The capital adequacy ratio (Basel 1l and Basel I11) of the bank

4, TET ORI GRT TUTRIT UehelehiuT
4.1 WG AHh-5 Y& rafy it or@ie Hifq ¥ uiads
IRAE TS TR GEIM gR SR ol AM&-5 & A
FE Hewqul Io-srafy /e 1 yeherRtor erifed T )

4.2 VIET HHH 6 :

qeagE oran fafe

o8 H offedl & yEw o & fau feu U gemm #@

Frafataa € group is as under:
|- ! Basel Il
[e—— 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 Particulars (31.03.2015) | (31.03.2014)
AR % 13.64% 12.69% CRAR% : : 13.64% 12.69%
HATAR — | ToA(%) 9.90% 9.50% CRAR —T!er | caplFaI (%) 9.90% 9.50%
TATAR — TR 1 TA(%) 3.74% 3.19% CRAR — Tier Il capital (%) 3.74% 3.19%
Basel 111
iialll Particulars (31.03.2015)[ (31.03.2014)
- 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Common equity Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) 9.14 9.00
A 3Rt PRI OGSt SAE (%) (ISl 9.14 9.00 (Basel- 1)
FPR-1 S S (%) (Sl 9.67 9:32| [Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) (Basel- 111) 9.67 9.32
FPR-2 TS S (%) (S 3.23 279 [Tier 2 Capital ratio (%) (Basel- I} 3.23 2.79
FA goll ST (HARTAR) (%) (SEelll) 12.89 12.11]  [Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) (Basel- II1) 12.89 12.11

4. Disclosures required by Accounting Standards

4.1 AS 5 - Prior Period and Change in Accounting Policy.

There were no material prior period income/expenditure
items requiring disclosure under AS-5 issued by The Institute

of Chartered Accountants of India.

4.2 AS 6 - Depreciation accounting
-Break up of total depreciation for the year for

each class of

I assets

(Twg o) . in Crore)

fereror (emfm Sroft)  [31.03.2015 A AT @ |31.03.2014 Sl QAW o6 . Year ended| Year ended

Particulars (Class of Assets)

g 10.53 12.37 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014
o o 335.20 320.19 Premises 10.53 12.37
270 177 Other fixed assets 335.20 320.19

w2 el A Leased assets 2.70 1.77
FHI HIHATR 32.10 32.29 Computer software 32.10 32.29
Gﬁ"s; 380.53 366.62 Total 380.53 366.62
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4.3 @ A 9: TS Yo 4.3 AS 9 - Revenue Recognition
S o # gl & YR W w@ifhd fRaAr T 2 39 The income which has been accounted for on realization
Tl 7@ T 3 basis are not considered to be material.
4.4 11 : . - Changes in foreign exchange rates:
. HTTeh fafmma a0 o 4.4 AS 11- Changes in foreig hange rat
Toresht fafma sar @@ Tty =1 weae - Movement of Exchange Fluctuation Reserve
fareroT T (3 g 7) Particulars Amount . In Crore)
01 =i 2014 = 3 23623 | |Balance as at 1st April 2014 236.23
01-04-2014 | 31-03-2015 &I @y ® fepan 6346 Credited during the period 1.4.14 to 31.03.2015 63.46
™ o 376 Withdrawn during the period 3.16
STl = 296.53 Balance as at 31.03.2015 296.53
31-03-2015 I 3
4.5 SET ATEF 15 FHHETE 09T 4.5 AS 15 — Employees Benefits:

@l AR 15 (HINTaa ) & 3T

S J 01.04.2007 Y WRAT T S@ERR GEA G SIKT o
AAH-15 (Hf)- we=r o9 &1 ier w21

o A oE-afEdl § qor-ua fafe sl e et & st
od i TR AT % IGHE Ged HI RN & €I H wHAN
o G S e i u fwan R

HHERE & foIw Yo faehes Qe aon SteE Wi o gfg
T 2010-11 & WA G S 7 AT 9 wHEE & g
TrA fowen @@ fon = wsd deEe % A
foere &1 fean o 50 faswew &1 wam fFd S M & woasy
33982 HHTIMEAT % HROT §eh HI AW 2757.65 IS T3
21 5@ IrerEl 99 2010-11 & <A SULH GaE AfefEm,
1972 ® HIMeM & WoRa®d YDA $l T SUGH H1 g
deh w1 W ot 9g TR ol THE Worea®d d% Hi SUSH
3T H 566.00 FUE hi gl Tl 37 TABTN T 2757.65 HUS
+ 3 566.00 HUS, A 3323.65 HUS &I UM dHIRH
el &% SER T 1 S 2l

@ e 15, HEAR @9 & U & STIER T
3323.65 HUS H A9 9 TH W H yaRa fwan S
aiferd B1 wetE, URdE Rod dF 9 gdwtee a4 @
dh & wH=E & fau g fawed g @ierm den
STRE et ¥ gfg-faeewyul fafames =@er’ fomm «
9 ®IE, 2011 &1 URTA TEA STl EE.80/21.04.
018/2010-11 SRt foran 21 S IRGA & e & STER
dF 4 3@ T 2014-15 F A9 TH WA F T 664.73
FAS(FT 551.53 Hle UvH & fow ik Tt & fou &
113.20 HUE) i TRT =S A% 1 & S T 3323.65 HUS
1 AT k1 qfee fewm St 1 (fuwet @t srefq 2010-11
W 2013-14 ¥ TEed & 2658.92 HUS =S T S Fh 7)1
UYH 9 U= W B et <ad 3H fafa i qol g9r g
G T R

ot e fedl & fau wew™ gl oqd SHET % SER
W A A A Y S ® T 2

ADOPTION OF AS - 15(R):

The Bank has adopted Accounting Standard 15(R) - Employee
Benefits, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI), with effect from 1st April 2007.

The Bank recognizes in its books of accounts the liability
arising out of Employee Benefits as the sum of the present
value of obligation as reduced by fair value of plan assets on
the Balance Sheet date.

OPENING OF PENSION OPTION TO EMPLOYEES AND
ENHANCEMENT IN GRATUITY LIMITS

During the year 2010-11 the Bank reopened the pension
option for such of its employees who had not opted for the
pension scheme earlier. As a result of exercise of the option
by 33982 employees, the bank has incurred an additional
liability of 3.2757.65 crore. Further during the year 2010-
11 the limit of gratuity payable to the employees of the
banks was also enhanced pursuant to the amendment to
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. As a result the gratuity
liability of the Bank has increased by 3.566.00 crore. These
additional Liabilities (32757.65 crore +3566.00 crore, total
%3323.65 crore) were calculated on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

As per the Accounting Standard (AS) 15, Employee Benéefits,
the entire amount of ¥3323.65 crore is required to be charged
to the Profit and Loss Account. However, the RBI has issued
a circular no. DBOD.BP.BC.80/21.04.018/2010-11 dated
9th February, 2011 on the prudential Regulatory Treatment
consequent upon the Re-opening of Pension Option to
Employees of Public Sector Banks and Enhancement in Gratuity
Limits. In accordance with the provisions of the said Circular,
the Bank had charged off ¥.664.73 crore k. 551.53 crore for
pension and ¥ 113.20 crore for gratuity) representing one-
fifth of . 3323.65 Crore to Profit & Loss Account for this year
2014-15 (R 2658.92 crore already charged proportionately
in previous years i.e. 2010-11 to 2013-14). The transitional
liability for pension and Gratuity stands fully charged off as
on date.

Further the provision foremployee benefits has been calculated
by the actuary on basis of pre wage revision salary.



T Ak 15 (GINTd ) & SITHN WehetehtuT
TR G & ATET AT TE THEE 15 (W) H SIER
FHAR 9 % A% I GRYA EAfq & FTTER Ol hl d d
B @ o qor-ua § Frefafed &9 9 6 S e o

DISCLOSURE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS-15(R):

In line with the accounting policy and as per the Accounting
Standard - 15(R), the summarized position of post-employment
benefits are recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c and Balance

Sheet as under:

I - Principal Actuarial Assumptions at the Balance Sheet Date

I- o fafa s fifaue swifewes swomg

SwifeRen STUTT L] IUSH LT TRETERTTT
31.03.2014(31.03.2015 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015|31.03.2014| 31.03.2015

fewme 9.10%| 8.03%|  9.10%| 8.00%| 9.10%| 8.00%

A el 8.61%| 8.61%| 8.61%| 8.61% - -

Jiawel 1 HHIq

T

a ghg 5.50%| 5.50%|  5.50%| 5.50%| 5.50%| 5.50%

eremTett 1.00%| 1.00%|  1.00%| 1.00%| 1.00%| 1.00%

(Attrition) =

Actuarial LEAVE
Assumptions PEQSION LA ENCASHMENT

31.03.2014| 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015

Discount Rate 9.10% 8.03% 9.10% 8.00% 9.10% 8.00%

Expected Re-

turn on Plan 8.61% 8.61% 8.61% 8.61% - -

Assets

Rate of

Escalation In 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%

salary

Attrition Rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Il STfaet (deie) & SdAe Hod ® URedd- Y qdr

Il - Changesin Presentvalue of the obligation (PVO)-Reconciliation
of Opening & Closing Balance

gfq ol @1 FETET
(X =0 §) ®in Crore)
- Particulars LEAVE
fereruT P ST E\,Z\é' EEiCay PENSION| GRATUITY ENCASHMENT
TR &1 A e, 01.04. b oot Obiitai
2014 15162.79|  2609.52 1289.27 fessiiyalugor Obligation,
01.04.2014 15162.79 2609.52 1289.27
SRS 1342.45 222.47 107.87
Interest Cost 1342.45 222.47 107.87
=] T AT 430.46 182.89 41.87
Current Service Cost 430.46 182.89 41.87
EESRYIE (821.16) (329.48) (207.81)
R Benefits paid (821.16) (329.48) (207.81)
o 3 =Y (=T0) Actuarial loss / (gain) on ob-
(foem o T iR 2102.86| (265.48) 78.31| | ligations (Balancing Figure) 210286l (265.48) 631
gl A, Present value of Obligation,
31.03.:2015 18217.4| 2419.92 1309.49]  [31.03.2015 18217.4]  2419.92 1309.49

l- et enfiat & sfea 9o § uftad- o9 @ 3fa ot

111 - Changes in the Fair Value of the Plan Assets-
of Opening & Closing balances:

Reconciliation

hl HHTIE
(F wE §) ®in Crore)
i Particulars LEAVE
foraar Yo SuR™| gt TeheeR PENSION| GRATUITY| p\\cASHMENT
i e @ SfEd e, 01.04.2014]14756.02]2756.05 - F/?'R Va'“f of Plan Assets, 1
g - 01.04.2014 4756.02 2756.05 -
AT S T EAIfer e 1335.11| 233.46 2| [Expected return on Plan
S G SYRH, A 2322.08| 240.33 207.74| |assets 1335.11 233.46 -
o e (821.16)[(329.48) (207.74) CO”tI”bU“O”S by Bank, ya2208 V4033 20774
N employees . . .
iR SRI N G EEC EVASIE Benefits Paid (821.16) (329.48) (207.74)
e foh T spisne (219.04)| (63.96) | [Actuarial (loss) / gain on Plan
e sferat o sfea Assets(Balancing Figure) (219.04) (63.96) -
= kS FAIR value of Plan Assets,
V- AT STTRAEE U ATt s uhEe IV - Actual Return on Plan Assets
(% s F) Rin Crore)
Terarer Fom|  SuaT| GEA T Particulars PENSION| GRATUITY LEAVE
i ENCASHMENT
AT i W STt gfawer 1335.11| 233.46 - Expected return on Plan 1335.11 233.46 -
Assets
A e R AR (21, @ | (219.04)| (63.96) "|  |Actuarial (loss) / gain on Plan|  (219.04) (63.96) -
; Feeait 7 R Assets
A 1116.07] 169.50 ) Actual Return on Plan Assets |  1116.07 169.50 -
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V - Net Actuarial (Gain) / loss Recognized

(X =05 ®) in Crore)
feraror Y| ST ) |Particulars PENSION | GRATUITY LEAVE
THATRTTT ENCASHMENT
AP R R (21, @ (2102.86)| 265.48 (78.21)] | Actuarial gain / (loss) for the | (2102.86) 265.48 (78.21)
Ao A W ARE (1) @ | (219.04)]  (63.96) _| |period - Obligations
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the (219.04) (63.96) -
safy & fau wa (am)/ef 2321.90| (201.52) 78.21 period - Plan Assets
Total (Gain) / Loss for the 2321.90 (201.52) 78.21
period
srafer # W= wwifeRen (W) et | 2321.90] (201.52) 78.21|  |Actuarial (gain) or loss 2321.90|  (201.52) 78.21
Rl recognised in the period
% o W it () /e 0.00 0.00 0.00| | Unrecognised Actuarial (gain) 0.00 0.00 0.00
/ loss at the end of the year
VI- e § A i 3R Hag favemur : VI - Amount recognised in Balance Sheet and related analysis
(X =i ®) in Crore)
forarzor T SUSM G2t TRt Particulars PENSION | GRATUITY| | - ASHIL&?&
Trfcet w1 adAE ged,
31.03.2015 18217.4| 2419.92 1308.69 gqege}}”%?';e of Obligation, a4l Foas ) S
f —— .03. . . .
31.03.2015 17373.01| 28364 o| |[FAIR value of Plan Assets,
A, 31.03. : ' 31.03.2015 17373.01|  2836.4 0
R 84439| (416.57) 130825 | IDifference 844.39| (416.57) 1308.25
ST TR I 0 0.09 0 U X —
nrecognised Transitional
ST ferd o o - Liability 0 0.09 0
i fifed e - o @ Unrecognised Past Service
S T 0 0 0 cost - vested benefits - Carried
qEE-UT W W I 844.39 - 1308.25 Forward 0 0 0
A 15 (FiTE ) Liability Recognised in the
@& i 55 B sl . Balance Sheet 844.39 c 1308.25
Ik 9T 0| (416.57) 0 Negative amount determined
g under Paragraph 55 of AS-15
: R) 0 (416.57) 0
AU & IIET HT (
A g 0 416.57 0 Present value of available
S - refunds and reductions in
2 7 59 (16;)(3\-? ) future contributions 0 416.57 0
5
S . 0 416.57 0 Resulting asset as per
E Paragraph 59 (b) of AS-15 (R) 0 416.57 0
VIl- 9 g g1 @ W a1y VII - Expense recognised in Profit and loss statement
(X =g #) in Crore)
fereraT e U™ B Tehe eI Particulars LEAVE
= PENSION | GRATUITY
< e A 430.46 182.89 41.61 ENCASHMENT
RISRSINE] 1342.45 222.47 107.83 Current Service Cost 430.46 182.89 41.61
AT e W e Interest cost 1342.45| 22247 107.83
a’ﬁfg ; : (1335.11) (233.46) 0 Expected return on Plan assets | (1335.11)| (233.46) 0
s m:;ﬁ e (201.52) . Net Actuarial (gain) / loss
;2‘” m:; - : : recognised in the year 2321.90| (201.52) 78.21
551.53 113.20 0 Past Service Cost-Recognised 551.53 113.20 0
@ 9 B e # Expenses recognised in the
H 3311.23 83.58 227.64 statement of profit and loss 3311.23 83.58 227.64




VIll- qemuT ® "= vt 3R "ag favewor

VIII- Movement in Net Liability to be recognised in Balance

e A Sheet
{5 F ), Rin Crore)
fererur UoH|  SUEE| gl TeRareul Particulars LEAVE
PENSION | GRATUITY ENCASHMENT
R 4 (144.76)| (259.73) 1288.79 : _
Opening Net Liability (144.76)|  (259.73) 1288.79
R 3311.23 83.58 227.64| |Expenses 3311.23 83.58 227.64
Ted YR (2322.08)| (240.33) (207.74) Cont.nbutlons'Pa!d' _ (2322.08)|  (240.33) (207.74)
= o = p Closing Net Liability (Liability 844.39| (416.48) 1308.69
s (=g, Sl 844.39 (416.48) 199860 recognised in B/S in current
g H A <F) period)
IX SE srafy o feg i IX -Amount for the current Period
(X =arg ®) ®in Crore)
Taawor Rl IUEH| TIET Tha [Tl Particulars PENSION| GRATUITY LEAVE
Euprciicoiert el e, 18217.40 2419.92 1308.69 ENCASHMENT
31.03.2015 Present value of Obligation, 18217.40 2419.92 1308.69
o Tt w1 Sfaa ge, 17373.01 2836.4 o| [31.03.2015
31.03.2015 FAIR value of Plan Assets, 17373.01 2836.4 0
YqYd STfed AT wiHd ¥ TR | (844.39) 416.48 (1308.69)| |31:03:2015
AT (ame) Surplus / (Deficit) befor.e (844.39) 416.48 (1308.69)
Cum————— e e 8.66) unrecognised past service cost
- (1) e : ' ’ E(apbeiﬂgr;se(i:(;ljsl;jtgsir:s in Plan 48.45 406.76 (8.66)
; gTF-lW 1 (21R.04) (G g Experience Adjustments in (219.04) (63.96) 0
( ) Plan Assets (loss) / gain
X AT efEEl @t yq@ Afrat (el A onfEt & X - Major Categories of Plan Assets (as percentage of Total Plan
yfaea & w9 o) Assets)
(m .a.) (In %age)
ey I EXCik] Particulars PENSION GRATUITY
TRG TR i gragfar 12.78 15.45 Government Of India Securities 12.78 15.45
ToF FEhRT 1 gfgfei 36.91 33.21 State Government Securities 36.91 33.21
S IR f"é; fz W;m 35.47 35.60 High Quality Corporate Bonds 35.47 35.60
SEISGR NG b Slagle] 888 888 Equity Shares of listed companies 0.00 0.00
foretw s A 6.55 6.69] foroperty 0.00 0.00
SRl g Wetea et 737 386 Special deposit scheme 6.55 6.69
I - o STHNIRET qen Funds managed by Insurer 7.37 8.86
STHT-GHTOTTS 0.92 0.19 Other- Bank Deposits and CDs 0.92 0.19
g 100.00 100.00 TOTAL 100.00 100.00
XI 1 & XI - Best estimate of contribution during next year
CNEIE THH 8 y
(TFS W) ®in Crore)
feamor Yo (Tferen ) Sua (Faférer ) Particulars Pension Gratuity
ST o % SR SR 1 Ak Bl (Funded) (Funded)
g M 2600.00 500.00 Bank’s best estimate of Contribution
during next year 2600.00 500.00
Xl 3= Fratafer st e N XII - Other long term employee benefits
(R =ag ®) ®in Crore)
faavor gt B icatca faeraT Sick Leave &| Leave Fare| Silver Jubilee
THEHITT TEEt ufea| qeeh ar| Particulars Casual leave| concession Bonus
fifres a’ﬁ'q'r{"F - w=t| (Cirfifus (Unfunded)| (unfunded) (unfunded)
( ) ( G ) ( ) Present Value of Obligation 176.26 124.02 11.76
MRRIEED Opening Balance of 0 0 0
T 1 FAAE qoT 176.26 124.02 11.76| |Transitional Liability
HeRAURIE a1 IR I 0 0 o |Transitional Liability 0 0 0
- recognized in the year
o % <RE T HhHURie S 0 0 0 Closing Balance Of 0 0 0
HHToTSiiel 2Tar T AR I 0 0 0 Transitional Liability _
5 3 176.26 124.02 176 Liability Recognized in 176.26 124.02 11.76
U R L] . : . balance Sheet
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Particulars

Basis of assumption

Discount rate

Discount rate has been determined
by reference to market yields on the
balance sheet date on Government
Bonds of term consistent with estimated
term of the obligations as per para 78
of AS15R.

Terawar SUT R ST

femhse Tiiferd el Ak W& 15 o TN 78 SIER I Hi ST
A od & oT9%9 WM 9y T W qer-ud & fafy
T wifteE & weed R e fewee @ & E R

Ao enfeaal & | A onfedEl R e wfawe R Hefua qifae @ q@

Einkagical o & fedl & fau safy & arey § aem Sarest

oy T et €

I § gfg # W |9 S iy F SAET & fou wHER aeR ¥ eyfd ud
Yok TR GG ol WM HEA 15 % U0 HE 83-91
% @R foem faman mn R

fraret =T et <X w1 frefor fumel iR weifaa @l el Ee
B o T ® R SUH geY i Big fehg SrerREl
HRU g I et TR Y Fepieat wftefed €1

4.6 31 Wrd, 2015 I TUTA 99 & few Wear fafen

(YA g (AR &1 e del oerddeehl g 39 W faverd

Expected rate of return on plan
assets

The expected return on plan assets is
based on market expectations, at the
beginning of the period, for returns over
the entire life of the related obligation.

Rate of escalation in salary

The estimates of future salary increases
considered in actuarial valuations
taking into account inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors
mentioned in paras 83-91 of AST5R.

Attrition rate

Attrition rate has been determined by
reference to past and expected future
experience and includes all types
of withdrawals other than death but
including those due to disability.

4.6 SEGMENT REPORTING

MARCH 2015

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST

forar ) (As compiled by the management and relied upon by
Auditors)
(F @@ o) . in lacs)
31.03.2015 31.03.2014 Year Ended | Year Ended
ol i 31.03.15 31.03.14
. fererrr (Fraratitgn)| (dramadfm)| (S |particulars Guded) | (At
(wfem)  Gramem) dated) | dated)
i. GEar T i Segment Revenue
h) é}l’ﬁ 1350437 1199800 a) |Treasury 1350437 1199800
@) |Hiaie/Eedd sfhT 2528790 2426788 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking |2528790 2426788
) |fee SR 1560816 1293454 ¢) |Retail Banking 1560816 1293454
=) | S aiEmeH 48399 46801 d) |Other Banking Operations 48399 46801
Gﬁg 5488442 4966843 Total 5488442 4966843
ii. AR T ii. Segment Results
%) é:\_flﬂ 148682 148506 a) |[Treasury 148682 148506
W) |waRe/gerde sfeT 772831 751731 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking |772831 751731
m |fee St 502894 417670 c) |Retail Banking 502894 417670
=) | S it 12389 13054 d) |Other Banking Operations 12389 13054
Trﬂ%" 1436796 1330961 Total 1436796 1330961
iii. R ardfeq = 163268 144294 iii. Unallocated Expenses 163268 144294
iv. aR=Ted @ 1273528 1186667 iv. Operating Profit 1273528 1186667
V. EJS %_g[ EIERIE] 107084 143484 V. Provision for Tax 107084 143484
Vi. STETHNT TS - - Vi. Extraordinary Items - -
vii. | e weenst | SRR w1 ST (JS) 18402 13929| |vii. [Share of Earnings in Associates 18402 13929
viii. | sreure feq 12584 5683 ey
. T 339959 361707 viii. | Minority Interest 12584 5683
= e iX. Net Profit 339959 361707
Other Information:
X. TSAR T X. Segment Assets




) éﬁfﬁ 16244582 15563258 a) |[Treasury 16244582 15563258

@) |wiaRe/Eede SR 32238843| 28995399 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking 32238843 28995399

) |fea S 13455503 11326463 ) |Retail Banking 13455503 [11326463

=) | S afwrer 1154296 1223873 d) |Other Banking Operations 1154296 1223873

39 Gﬂg 63093224 57108993 Sub Total 63093224 57108993

) |ﬁ1 sTafed sfear 507893 373055 e) |Unallocated Assets 507893 373055

Ly s 63601117 57482048 Total Assets 63601117 57482048
xi. |@ear FFAg xi. |Segment Liabilities

%) éﬁl’ﬁ 15001441 14427208 a) |Treasury 15001441 14427208

@) |[HiRe/ReEe ST 29634992 26564675 b) |Corporate/Wholesale Banking 29634992 26564675

m |fRew Eical 13612339 11539865 c) |Retail Banking 13612339 11539865

=) | S aftre 1074632 1140602 d) |Other Banking Operations 1074632 1140602

39 Gﬁg 59323404 53672350 Sub Total 59323404 53672350

) |ﬁ'{ syEfed AT 73769 376 e) |Unallocated Liabilities 73769 376

Eayl ey 59397173 53672726 Total Liabilities 59397173 53672726
O g - 9ifees T Part B - GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENTS

T T ot oY SI. No |Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
4 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Ex:H feaewor ('“_a:m ) (ﬁﬁr ) (Audited) (Audited)
(Framoifaa )|  (SraTif) (Consolidated) | (Consolidated)

1o ST 1. Revenue

%) R 5331471 4809872 a) |Domestic 5331471 4809872

@) |3iauya 156971 156971 b) [International 156971 156971

Trﬁ's; 5488442 4966843 Total 5488442 4966843
2. SuEsel 2. Assets

7 [ 55869636 49750567 a) |Domestic 55869636 49750567

@) |siat 7731481 7731481 b) [International 7731481 7731481

e 63601117 57482048 Total 63601117 57482048
e - Note

1. WEIR IFAm 3! Hafd @ Mfaal & oI ua o foafa
H T

2. Tusell srefe & sl &l AERTH TR/ /JHaTiehor
fean e 2

4,7 AR TET A@TRT TEAE gRT S oR/@T 7T - 18 o
TTAR UhETHITT
Hafea wiféal & 9\ qen 9% & WY 3T Hay

TSI Yaee it :
i. of % 3 TMHd, Ty Ud Y FRoues (27.10.2014 )

i, ot 0 vy, wEues fREE (9.02.2015 W weEH
e @ 7= s sfeRl w1 Afaled 99R)

iii. ot = o sers e, S Feee
T 9 TH. R, Fuers ReeR

1. Segment Liabilities are distributed in the ratio of their respective
Segment Assets.

2. Figures of the previous period have been re-grouped /
reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable.
4.7 Disclosure of Related Parties as per AS —18 issued by ICAl

Names of the related parties and their relationship with the
Bank:

Key Management Personnel:

i.  Shri K. R. Kamath, Chairman & Managing Director (up to
27.10.2014).

ii.  Shri Gauri Shankar, Executive Director ( Additional charge
of Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 09.02.2015).

iii. Shri K.V.Brahmaji Rao, Executive Director.
Dr .Ram S.Sangapure, Executive Director
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aﬁﬂ'ﬁ'ﬁﬁ : Subsidiaries:

i. duet fieew fafes i. PNB Gilts Ltd.
ii. Tt BRfan wEAe fafics ii. PNB Housing Finance Ltd.
iii. ISMa FvEe 9% (SOEA) faftes, 5. iii. Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd., UK
iv. Tl saede afdas fafies iv. PNB Investment Services Ltd
v. % e d% fafee, gem v. Druk PNB Bank Ltd, Bhutan.
Vi, duAel 33aRY sife wEae fafgee* vi. PNB Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd*.
Vii. STTEH THe e s vii. JSC SB PNB Kazakhstan
AR Heema Associates:
i. fufgger froget s fReme weo T i. Principal PNB Asset Management Company Pvt. Ltd.
ii. fafgge ;gg-“r O gLfE. ii. Principal Trustee Company Private Limited
iii. feet Heae® sfear svany st fa. iii. PNB Metlife India Insurance CO Ltd
iv. 727 foer umfor o9, g iv. Madhya Bihar Gramin Bank, Patna.
v. T8 gfEmn a9, Jeds v. Sarva Haryana Gramin Bank, Rohtak
vi. feurae weer T ém uet vi. Himachal Pradesh Gramin Bank, Mandi
vii. 9STE T S, A vii. Punjab Gramin Bank, Kapurthala.
viii.gd Tﬁ ITEToT aEF T viii.Sarva UP Gramin Bank, Meerut.
* BT HI TAT H b HIW II@ W W B HMfE A fRaw o+ Steps are being taken for winding up of the company as the license has
14.02.2011 ! ST Uga & amfug & & 7 already been surrendered on 14.02.2011.

fewoft : 09.09.2014 9 3:@23 HW Te ﬁmﬁ TS fafiieg Note: Assets Care & Reconstructions Enterprise Ltd has ceased to be an
e éﬁﬁ el H@"’ﬂ"ﬁ T F SO Q 7 T T % it 9o Associate of the Bank w.e.f. 09.09.2014, since the share holding of Pun-
3 EYMIES - BT 30% @ F9 > 15.30% FT & 2 jab National Bank has reduced to 15.30% from 30%.

(] . (]

IR SUHA Joint Venture:
i @i’&' e fa., Faa i)  Everest Bank Limited, Nepal



Heifew widat § o-a7 (X @@ &)

qA** . . T UaeT
e/ 5 o eI /AT = vees .
wefea uret ( . T p S Eaitiey " =
T & arEr) fgaEr
- ferRam |, | oTferRaw " erfereRaa " arfereRan A erfreraa " srfereRan
3 | wwmvaf | 3 | SeemEr win & Ecae il & SRt T | 5 | weRmEn v o Ecaeiluil
S S S S S S
[} [} o o N (o}
@ T @R T @ T i & - -- 100.74 @ T @ T @ @ 100.74 @ T
aiRefas
@ T @ T @y T i & - -- (121.98) @ T @ @ @ @ (121.98) @ T
JHR A TR WG K @y T = o~ e o . - - _
. T @ | 9010.29 i 4.97 21.29 4.83 25.95 9020.09 47.24
@ @ e | (2488.04) | (8274.89) | (16.05) (25.56) | (36.25)| (47.31) (2540.34) | (8347.76)
BRIk @ ] @ a (34678.25) | (34678.25) - _ r _ (34678.25) | (34678.25)
2600.00 r - 7 36.12. 36.12 2636.12 36.12
i @ @ | (879.67) | (4944.50) _ _ (24.22)|  (24.22) (879.67) | (4944.50)
— 127.83 127.83 B
IR S | = = = = =
e @ T @ @ @ @ @ _ N.A B @ B @ B !
ERCE R L - _ N _
IEEH @ T T T @ T _ NA B @ T B @ T _ Gl
Tffes
. o T A TE o T A TE _ | - - - - - -
RIGEEGI
I hi TS
i)
A T TE
TS ST
Toa  enfeat
ElER]
oa  enfeat
EAREE
JUANT T
T efifemy
TR TS
SZITTE
510.53 B B B B B 510.53 -
£ o | mw |mw|  wmw | (283.48) NoA 0.03) " - L (283.51) | mm
A e mw | mw  |mw|  mw | (2287.21) NA NoA e - B 26721 | @
HaTe I - - - - - - - -
Lol @ @ @ T @ T @ (114.30) NA - -- -- -- (114.30) @
Fag YA _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
FET ] T @ T e @ T _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
AN Ty | ms || mm (90.00) _ _ B - _ (90.00) L
. 11.89 B B B B B 11.89 -
T oy | mm |mm | mw | (1933.62) - B ~ ~ B (1933.62) B
S TR _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _
T HHIE _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

* gere gRIGAR qel WA
(et ¥ feu U e fusd od & 7)

** il @it s wedn Heenel & W gu e %1 YRl ol Hh - 18 ' grEfed el yeweiehtul’ o U 9 % WeASR el R e @ S U gr b et st
T o1 gEled T | e § A fre @ wwafud gee 39 9 w2 2a @ S we g FRfe El
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(%in Lac)
Items/ Parent** Subsidiaries** | Associates/ Joint ventures Key Management Relatives of Key Total
Related Party | (as per ownership Personnel Management
or control) Personnel
" Maximum | Maximum " Maximum n Maximum " Maximum " Maximum
: amount : amount ; amount g amount ; amount ; amount
S |outstanding | = | outstanding 5 outstanding 5 outstanding 5 outstanding 5 outstanding
N [a\] N (3] (3] [a\]
N.A N.A N.A N.A - -- 100.74 NA NA NA 100.74 NA
Remuneration
N.A N.A N.A N.A - - (121.98) NA NA NA (121.98) NA
Borrowings N.A N.A N.A N.A -- -- - - - - - -
b . N.A N.A N.A N.A 9010.29 _ 4.97 21.29 4.83 25.95 9020.09 47.24
eposits
N.A N.A N.A N.A (2488.04) (8274.89) (16.05) (25.56) (36.25) (47.31) (2540.34) | (8347.76)
Placement of - - - - - - - -
Deposits N.A N.A N.A N.A (34678.25) | (34678.25) _ _ _ _ (34678.25) | (34678.25)
2600.00 _ _ _ 36.12. 36.12 2636.12 36.12
Advances N.A N.A N.A N.A (879.67) (4944.50) _ _ (24.22) (24.22) (879.67) (4944.50)
. 127.83 _ _ _ _ _ 127.83 -
Investments in
share capital N.A N.A N.A N.A _ N.A _ N.A = N.A _ NA
Investments in _ _ _ | | _
debentures N.A N.A N.A N.A _ NA B NA L NA _ NA
Non funded |\ N.A N.A N.A _ ~ - - L] = = -
Commitments
Leasing/ HP
arrangements - - - - - B - = = = = =
availed
Leasing/ HP
arrangements - - - - - =3 o3 5 = = = -
provided
Purchase of N N »_ B N i __ __ | | __ _ |
fixed assets
Sale of Fixed B _ __ N N i - N | | - __ C
Assets
Leasing/ HP
arrangements -- -- - - - - - - - - - -
availed
Interest paid 510.53 : . - $ = 510.53 :
p N.A N.A N.A N.A (283.48) N.A (0.03) N.A -- N.A (283.51) N.A
Interest _ g _ _ | | _ _ =
received N.A N.A N.A N.A (2287.21) N.A N.A N.A - (2287.21) N.A
Receiving of - 5 - - O] - - 5
Services N.A N.A N.A N.A (114.30) NA = = = - (114.30) NA
Rendering of _ i _ - | - - L
Services N.A N.A N.A N.A = i _ - | | _ _ -
Management - 4 = - ) = _ =
contracts N.A N.A N.A N.A (90.00) = _ 4 _ (90.00) NA
Dividend 11.89 1 = _ A - 11.89 -
received N.A N.A N.A N.A (1933.62) 4 _ - ) 4 L (1933.62) =
Bank Charges - i _ _ , u _ I
Commission _ | i _ = ., - < _
Received

* As compiled and certified by the management.
(Figures in brackets relate to previous year)
** The transactions with the subsidiaries and certain associates have not been disclosed in view of para-9 of AS-18 ‘Related Party Disclosure’, which exempts state controlled enterprises from making
any disclosures pertaining to their transactions with other related parties, which are also state controlled.
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yeet & foau e - a@r 9w 19
fosita w2 :

F foda 92 W ot T el w1 g g

3R 3T oT=a onfa ¥ witwfed
(®eR 9 TR gfeq)

34 W fhT 7T GeIg™ ki YEE i
i 31.03.15 Tk

31.03.2015 @i sTufafEd qea

W TH oY § A § A T Y I
T TE Y g Al e 5 9 @ stfus § W

AT 9 A
|5 o % W% HRF AaH U A
T UREed 92
. A T TaE T 99 | Afesk @1
EﬁlﬂT@El:

II. AT T aH Tk a9 & a8 fohg
5 94 9 sifess @1 8 =fe

T 0.42 S

T 0.42 UG

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
232.66 HUE

? 12.73 g

z 19.92 Hg

4.8. Accounting for Leases — AS 19

Financial Leases:

a.

Original value of assets acquired on financial

lease and included in other fixed assets
(including furniture and fixture):

The amount of depreciation provided
upto 31.03.2015 thereon:

The written down value as
on 31.03.2015:

Minimum Lease Payment due not
later than one year:

Minimum Lease Payment due later
than one year but not later than
five years:

Minimum Lease Payment due later
than five years:

Operating leases:

Minimum Lease payment due not
later than 1 year:

Minimum Lease Payment due later
than 1 year but not later than 5 years :

4.9 V@ |k 20 : Ufq IR 31T

4.9. AS 20 - Earnings Per Share

% 0.42 Crores.

% 0.42 Crores

% 0.00

% 0.00
% 0.00

0.00
¥ 32.66 Crores

3 12.73 crores

3 19.92Crores

® ®)

TeramoT 31.03.2015 Rl 31.03.2014 &I PaTticulars As on As on
e = 18.78 101.62 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

A 3% 18.78 101.62 Earnings per Share

. Basic 18.78(101.62
FH A (R F T 3399.59 3617.07| |Diluted * 18.78/101.62
A ST F W AR (R FS H) Amount used as numerator Profit after 3399.59(3617.07
IR 1 SR g Rs 2.00 z 10/~ gfq ser|  [tax @ In Crore)

i Nominal value of shares Rs 2.00 | 10/- per share

= (feifrey) 33 w9 T 3T f*‘l 1810470746* 355946370 Weighted average number of equity 1810470746* (355946370
UL i O Ol s shares used as the denominator

S e 1 sifRd Hed A 19-12-2014 @ T 10/~ IR W faulea s
T2/ R W T T ¥ I H Gen faune & owwme § T ¥ o
4.100@T Uk -22: T W il & HaT o TE@ieh

AR Y Ml den <t & wgE wew e §

* The face value of bank’s share was split from ¥10/- per share to % 2/- per
share on 19.12.2014. The number of equity shares given is post split.

4.10AS 22 - Accounting for Taxes on Income

Major components of deferred tax assets and liability are set

. out below
(% #5 ) . In Crores)
Tereor 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 - As on As on
i, =t feafa| @t frafa] | Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

e T*T m, Deferred Tax Assets
SRIeT T i ol o for g 1408.52 368.50 Provision for bad & doubtful debts 1408.52 368.50
w TRART % fer Fraem 524.89 539.32 Provision for leave encashment 524.89 539.32
W 9 3H % fore Wqﬁ 0.03 bl Provision for Pension & Gratuity 0.03 NIL
M 43 % ST et < 0.34 110} [Statutory Liabilities u/s 43B 0.34 1.10
Kl 1.26 14151 Others 1.26 14.15
Sy : 1935.04] 92307  [Topal 1935.04 923.07
earfiT T*T LRI Deferred Tax Liabilities
S U i) 5.03 18.90|  [Depreciation on fixed assets 5.03 18.90
SRR AU 1961 T &R 36(1) Viii & sfwia 429.07 309.70 Deduction u/s 36(1)(viii)of income tax 429.07 309.70
At Act, 1961
T 21.48 22.25 Others 21.48 22.25
g 455.58 350.85 Total 455.58 350.85
mefi T snfEat/ (3€T) - g 1479.46 572.22 Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liability) — Net 1479.46 572.22




4.115TET W 28 : TRl &l FHade
% &1 onfdl ¥ watw fewm foxia enferal @1 @ fW
@l "M 28 ¢ el 1 e’ @] T R Sk ki T
¥ gust ol (9 W 9 @] el €) i Se A
1 I o A oTUfed TewE & ferd 31 W 2015 1 foRe

Heequl WAl qe eI @l 2
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4.11AS 28 - Impairment of Assets

A substantial portion of the bank’s assets comprise of ‘financial
assets’ to which Accounting Standard 28 ‘Impairment of
Assets’ is not applicable. In the opinion of the bank, there is no
impairment of its assets (to which the standard applies) to any
material extent as at 31st March 2015 requiring recognition in

terms of the said standard.

4.12TT@T U 29 : WAL, ATeh{&Heh 91T 3T amTemfdmss  4.12AS 29 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent

st Assets
i et & feq EIERIRIR: Te-dg * i. Movement of provisions for liabilities *
(% wis ¥) R In Crores)
Tarerot JaT THSAS H HEA trmﬁ( Salary Legal cases/
AT T AT TR TEHEHATL Particulars arrears under . -
s contingencies
FHTAT negotiation
1 3TUl, 2014 i 99 1020 18.21 Balance as at 1st April 2014 1020 18.21
ST % R I - 630 1.81 Provided during the year 630 1.81
& SRE W TR 0 0 -
T SR T T A 356 197 Amounts used during the year 0 0
31 =, 2015 T 9 1294 18.05 Reversed during the year 356 1.97
afertd / sAffeeaa #1 0 0 Balance as at 31st March 2015 1294 18.05
Rkl Timing of outflow/uncertainties 0 0

* I % AU wauH H Siewt

T sTeRfoTeRdiel’’ @ faavu fefafead 7

oY o B @ H g Y & ST fe@ Ut greemEl

* Excluding provisions for others

ii. Break up of “Provisions and Contingencies” shown under
the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account is as

41437 TR ITATell W g 12 36
TE AT e / YEE / SR 9 ael e, e &

e qen | T ufYr, dfaera facl w1kl e WAt
g w1 TR qen Serh R Wi W wHe: oneid § U9 wEe

o ¢ wfagfd et T2 2l

R  #) follgws: ( In Crore)
T S— 31.03.2015 31.03.2014 ded ded
7 T e = e = Particulars Year ende Year ende
. % fo 563.69 782.76 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
T HTg™ EIERIE]
) 8262.05 2627.08 Provisions for depreciation on -563.69 782.76
SISl & fau yeem . investment
SR STiEl & faw gefen waem | |Provision towards NPAs 8262.05 4627.08
(W q' WEH SR H W Floating provisions for NPAs (over and 0 -
AHEvEl | 3fheh) above RBI provisioning norms)
. 437.68 531.75 -
A& T & fou geem Provision towards Standard Assets 437.68 bBIN75
1055.67 1434.84
IR & foau fear @ gy (T Provision made towards Income Tax 1055.67 1434.84
&t A qu HueER E@fEd) (including FBT & Wealth Tax )
T WEMA T SR 183.15 955.63| | Others Provision & Contingencies 183.15 955.63
9374.86 8332.06| |Total 9374.86 8332.06
413 GelfET waeTt W faawr frefataa @ 4.13Break-up of Floating Provisions is as follows:
(R =03 ) ® in crore)
TeramoT 31.03.2015| 31.03.2014 Particulars 31.03.2015 [31.03.2014
Opening balance as on 758..29 1103.03
01.04.2014 / 01.04.2013 <1 URfETH o 758..29 1103.03 01.04.2014/01.04.2013
uantum of floating provisions made durin 0 10.12
a9 % IRM fohd T JeAlT W i A 0 10.12 t(ﬁeyear e g
a9 & R STeRd T 1 Seed 398.04 354.86 Purpose and amount of draw down made 398.04 354.86
during the year
31.03.2015 / 31.03.2014 1 3ff=<m I 360.25 758.29| [Closing balance as on 360.25 758.29
31.03.2015/31.03.2014

4.14Refer Schedule-12 on Contingent Liabilities

Such liabilities are dependent upon, the outcome of Court/
arbitration/out of court settlement, disposal of appeals, and
the amount being called up, terms of contractual obligations,
devolvement and raising of demand by concerned parties,
respectively. No reimbursement is expected in such cases.



4159% Faeee fhmen # s yESfaga fafame  4.15 The Bank has issued a Letter of Comfort to Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA), theregulatorin United Kingdom,
committing that the bank shall provide financial support to
its subsidiary, Punjab National Bank (International) Ltd.,
UK so that it meets its financial commitments as and when
they fall due. However, no financial obligation has arisen
out of such arrangement during the financial year ending

WifereRo(feIRT) w1 9.5, feerd ot ST g A9
% (Ferivre) foaftee & Gau § Uk geRidl e
o S TR @ fred 5@ W@ w1 twareA fean e @
f& afz oo THa S (sETEa) fafids, g% s
forta gfdargae 98 7 =2 9@ @ 96 39 foxia gemE
YSH HTT | T8, 31 A, 2015 Hi fafd & Er
Ut et foxira widegan w1 feaf 72 swd 2

feisr 31 @, 2015 9 ST fohT T ARarEH T/ 5
1 A

31st March 2015.

The detail of Letters of Comfort / Letters of undertaking issued

and outstanding as at 31st March, 2015.

* wigd JT hfee faffeg & ofd WK SRidfed Swam™s ws/a=d T qen
% H1 deiq vie & vid- wiEfa, ST U6 o= S § SAeRfon
et & S ST 2

S5

3= femforat

%. T 2.99 w3 (Fee qeaeE we) (fusd v w9 4.34

FUE TH) (AME & 7.47 F4s) (et a9 8.70 FUg) &
TR T T TG IRE & fAU TEed Sied w1 AR
forT T &1 welten € 1 uRE ® T 77.24 g (s ad
T 26.63 HUS) F1 Yoivd wifa & Ffmferd ©

@ 9d & WA g oF T guI-I W Gentyd I& fafEm 2009

% @ VIl (T o W € o fafrem) & eER e
TUed gN fRd T o & oEw siftmr eMER W 2/~
FT UIh el IR %.194.80 T IR & WfHAH W ARG
TR I 44207317 Sl IR eTEfed e | oo fod ST9 9§
S I FH T A 2870 Fe T g ad shrEdt g &
w9 § T 8.84 e MR Wi w9 H T 861.16 S WHe B
TROMTEEET TR i YRREIRAT = sTded 76 58.87%
I o H 319 59.86% T

(% =i o) ® In Crores)
2014-15 ® SR fU MU T¥arE w/a=E I 43097 Letter of Comforts (LOC)/ Letter of Undertaking (LoU) 43097
2014-15 & <R URYee/ & SYares w/a= o 20147| [|issued during 2014-15 .
" LoC / LoU matured / cancelled during 2014-15 20147
31.03.2015 I FHTN ARG T/T T 22960 LoC / LoU outstanding as at 31.03.2015 22960*

* The above mentioned LoC / LoU have been issued within the sanctioned Trade
Credit Limits and forms an integral part of the contingent liabilities reported in
the Bank’s Balance Sheet under the Head — Acceptance, Endorsements and other

Obligations.
5. Other Notes

a. Premises include properties amounting to ¥2.99 crore

(Net of Depreciation) (previous year 34.34 crore) {Cost
%7.47crores} (previous year ¥8.70 crore) are awaiting
registration of title deeds. Premises include capital
work in progress of ¥77.24 crore (previous year 326.63
crore)

. During the year the parent bank has allotted 44207317

equity shares of 32/- each to Government of India at
a premium of ¥ 194.80 per share as determined by the
Board in terms of the Chapter VII of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2009, as amended from time to time on

preferential basis. The total amount received by the bank
on this account is %.870 crores which includes ¥ 8.84
crores as equity capital and ¥ 861.16 crores as premium.
Consequently the Government holding has increased to
59.86 % as against 58.87% before preferential allotment.

6. W el MEvas WHE T € T a9 e oty @ ergew 6. Figures of the corresponding previous year have been

IAhEl 1 THEHE/ YHTEEITT/ THeRTTeRToT &Y feran T 2

regrouped/
necessary.

rearranged/reclassified ~wherever considered
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31 W 2015 Sl GHIW o8 & qoUT & 1Y G\ WHIhd Tehal UaTg faerur-ux

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH’ 2015

(ufer T U H)
(Figures % in Crore)
31 W= 2014-15 2013-14
31st March 2014-15 2013-14
Tereror
Particulars
3 UREe wEwATl § Thal WaTg (WEeR )
A. Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities
() = & UvEH IF AT 3,341.41 3,534.62
Net Profit after Tax
sifeu : Teart wufal § oS w1 ofw 184.02 139.29
Add: Share of earning in Associates
sy feq & Ud v @
Net Profit before Minority Interest 3,525.43 387391
Sifew : FX F A wEuE(enfend # # siew) 1,070.84 1,434.84
Add: Provision for Tax (Net of deferred tax)
w1 F gd e (i)
Proift before Taxes 4,596.27 34 98.75
(i) TrfafEe & fao guEse
Adjustment for :
T Tl R qesE 404.62 387.30
Depreciation on fixed assets
TRREY : Yo URfed fafy @ smefa (20.63) (20.67)
Less : Amount drawn from Revaluation Reserve
SIS STl & fan greree 8,238.90 4,627.08
Provision for Non-performing assets
e AR T A 551.35 1,420.03
Provision on Standard Assets
frael (9§ ) ™ yEEm (585.55) 710.17
Provision on Investments (net)
I TEEE (I35) 156.70 144.06
Other Provisions (net)
SN / 3 ¥ anwE (et swdewen) - -
Dividend from Subsidiary / Others (Investing Activity)
stvel 9 = (foedt wrfwam) 1,224.27 939.43
Interest on Bonds (Financing Activity)
srEa il &t fat @ ey =71t (IS) (3.07) (4.82)
Profit / (Loss) on sale of Fixed Assets ( net )
(i) 9,966.59 8,202.58
e onfat & Jaared ® uiew=t (i+ii)
agd u_lia|a|=|‘ il . . 14,562.86 13,311.33
Operating Profit before Changes in Operating Assets and
Liabilities
(i) wfener enfeaal @ Iarel ¥ g wiedT
= faw wurEeT

Adjustment for net change in Operating Assets and
Liabilities



31 WT 2015 Sl GHIW 98 & q@UA o W1 Gl HH{hd Tehdl UaTE TaeRur-ux

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH’ 2015

(ufer T *s H)
(Figures ¥ in Crore)
31 W=t 2014-15 2013-14
31st March 2014-15 2013-14
fraett o &+t / (3fF) (6,625.86) (15,328.77)
Decrease / (Increase) in Investments
It ® &/ (3fF) (46,779.75) (50,411.15)
Decrease / (Increase) in Advances
o= enfeal ® & / (Ifg ) (2,036.01) 1,089.06
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets
smrfEt ® gfg /() 54,041.90 62,203.36
Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits
Ul H gfg / () (7,219.46) 8,031.27
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings
= <aaet 9 wauE | gfg / (FH ) 1,426.26 (263.74)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities & Provisions
(iii) (7,192.92) 5,320.04
TR @ 3T Tehal (i+ii+iii) 7,369.94 18631.37
Cash generated from Operations
YT HY (AT H BISHT) (2,556.34) (1,725.28)
Tax Paid (net of refund )
qR=Te SrEheTdt ¥ g TRl (a1)
Net Cash used in OperagActivities (A) 4,813.60 16,906.09
e THawT wEwETt ¥ Ther WaTe( W )
B. Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities
e e &1 ' (fasht =1 siga) (546.25) (429.88)
Purchase of Fixed Assets (net of Sales)
Ui/ e e/ Q.. Skl @ U e - -
Dividend recd from Subsidiaries / JV / RRBs
SR HgE SEEl/ AL Wi § e (325.55) 127.88
Investment (Disinvestment) in Subsidaries / JV / RRBs
= frem - -
Other Investments
Traror wredememat # FeRdt (3m)
Net Cash used in invzl?};g gvities (B) (871.80) (302.00)
3  foviam wriEemd @ Tt wae (g )
C. Cash Flow from /(used in)Financing Activities
TR ST (HfrEw afe) 1,326.84 643.30
Issue of share capital (incl Share Premium)
S/ gAER 9ve (-1 g Am-11) 7,390.91 3,912.09
Issue/(Redemption) of Bonds (Tier | & Tier I1)
Aol W HEH A (-1 d TR (1,224.27) (939.43)
Interest paid on Bonds(Tier I,11)
AL BT P (AT W AL Gfed) (42.05) (1,487.09)
Payments of Dividends (incl tax on Dividend)
foxitem sl & STeRet( ) (%)
Net Cash used in Finarﬁg Activi::? (C) 7,451.43 2,128.87
ERR C - B I s R uftads (3T+3T+%)
D Net Change in Caﬁld C?}:ﬁ Equivalents (A+B+C) 11,393.23 18,732.96
Y @ TN W Sehdl q9T Tehal qod

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
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31 W 2015 Sl GHIW o8 & qoUT & 1Y G\ WHIhd Tehal UaTg faerur-ux

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH’ 2015

(ufer U H)
(Figures % in Crore)
31 |T=t 2014-15 2013-14
31st March 2014-15 2013-14
T SR R ford 9 % I 22,406.14 17929.51
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India
ST ® U WY IR W T T GIA W W T 24,459.85 46,865.99 10203.52 28,133.03
Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice
a8 & Ifq W TRl qAT TRAT T
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
THG SR R Rl S % W 9 24,435.78 22406.14
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India
ST F U WY SR W T T GIA W W T 33,823.44 58,259.22 24459.85 46,865.99
Balances with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice
11,393.23 18,732.96
feooft
Notes :-

1 e WeHel A (ST Rl Brewhl) 1 Y= wEwedl § S W T € 99 3% (e qen faxien s & we faws T fhar wen
7 °

Direct taxes paid (net of refund) are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing activities.
2 B I g1 e oo o T e | B

All figures in minus represents "Cash Out Flow"

2t & AR . @, TEr
T K BALAMUKUNDAN J K GUPTA
TETeh WETEreh TETHE~<Teh
ASSTT. GENERAL MANAGER GENERAL MANAGER
. T T |mgE &, I SRSt |
DR. RAM S SANGAPURE K VEERA BRAHMA]JI RAO
FHruTere e HEUTeeh 3vTeR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TR SieRt
GAURI SHANKAR
wee THavIeR Te qE srEuTeish TRt
MANAGING DIRECTOR & C.E.O.
TSITT STTA 4 it g feefta AR =
RAJESH AGGARWAL T C JHALANI DILIP KUMAR SAHA
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Sl IECEEI| U AR
G P KHANDELWAL PREM NARAIN
IECNED IEENED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
F B T AR U w F W U TEifuEE FA TN HE T Fow
For K N Gutgutia & Co. For CVK & Associates For Ramesh Kapoor & Co.
TS AR TE ST TIE AETeRR
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants



(St IR gt - HWEER) (T & 7O - WEER)
(B R Goyal - Partner)

TS H0 012172, THARTA 3041538
M No. 012172, FRN 304153E

(T I - FFEER)

(Ramesh Kapoor - Partner)

HEH H0 080725, THIANTA 00147707
M No. 080725, FRN 001477N

(A K Pradhan - Partner)

WS H0 032156, THARTA 101745 T
M No. 032156, FRN 101745W

Fd BT U Sl T IR g AR TS @A Fd W G TS HEA
For Chhajed & Doshi For R Devendra Kumar & Associates For Hem Sandeep & Co.
T TR T @R

TET SETeRT

Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(TH Ut BT - AEER) (st TieTE - HIEER)
(M P Chhajed - Partner)

TS H. 049357, THITRTA 101794y
M No0.049357 , FRN 101794W

(W AT - HEER )
(Manish Gupta - Partner)

I 9. 092257, THARET 00990777
M No0.092257 , FRN 009907N

(Neeraj Golas - Partner)
93 9. 074392, THARTA 114207 <Y
M No0.074392 , FRN 114207W

feis @ 08/05/2015
Date : 08/05/2015

T ;T8 feeet
Place : New Delhi



USa YA S & GHTeRd fa<ia faawor o=t
W AT gerehl sl W e
Har ®
(dIeet TR) & 31 61, 2015 % Hor geres SR S faf i
T TY % Gufehd TN9-BIH Wid qel Thal YaTE i ei@madren

H T A HEqul oiEish HifqEl 1 GEW IR S AR
oA 58 Wi o 7, foew Frefafea e §

i. TR o gien RO feqie 8 WE, 2015 gR g9R g
ol Tiifed oSE JeEe d% (d) @ o ghifad o,

ii. 3 ol TereRl g 7 STl SR 1 WeEw & o
Tfea @@,
iii. 7 Al 3k 1 9 STM & R-oEn wWifed o |
2. T A SRl AHa: i) dieet fieew fafies ii) ot
TR Wi . i) dome HvEe o (e fafde,
iv) diefst gaede afdes fa., v) g Wt S fafes,
vi) et fifaue v sifen wifa., den vil) SoesEr
e W i % T faeRol e ghen Te
wi & faaia faaeen & 31 @€, 2015 1 994 a9 &
faw 93 37239.73 HAS HI FHA AT qo TIF 2899.28
FAS 1 e Twed g T 7 | 3 i faeroh qen e
Taietl i 3o Hafud oiEr Tdeel g ol Wie &t R
3R aedeel Rl § weg w5 W s emm " sA @@
wieren 1 Rl w g emmia © |
3. %, &g i S, 2 geAfiTE $iR Uk g Sue & fadia
foreoll fSht ofan wlan T o Wifad @At ® we
F& 1 T ®, A1 31.03.2015 I GG oF & forg dremHt
TE § ARE . 184.02 HE Tl
@3N T4 gt 18 # ol W fewfire w fewef wen 2
1 U fewst (2.2) W Sfeetaa qsft i awfior i, 2
TEATEl 3R fuAel Tqe & Th o Tk ggant & )
s wiiferd foeia foemo w amenfd € |
T yq@ S, SFNAE SR TeArT weensti (&sia g S
afed) gRI TR TE S Aifaa § faear & e 9
qEf-4d qul SR & S19E | his SHHE T fRa
? 1 @t Trefier SRl (HeEntt geenen) 3 s s
% U 9RdE S TERR WM 5N SR @S -
15 (Genfed) & oroemn 7, fheg 5= el 9-eiH-g-m
MR W few & faw 7 | T YER gA o qen !
ARl @R gedlfEl & o= 7 oga gu aw/eEl &
TRoTTEEY A ga S& & euiEl iR gedtE o fed
W I q9E Uedl B df SH gAE e fRan T © 1 e
af & foIu sUsh @I W 99E o= 99E 9 Rl el T 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK GROUP

To

The Board of Directors of Punjab National Bank,

1.

3.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet
of Punjab National Bank, its subsidiaries, associates and
Joint Venture (collectively known as PNB Group) as at 31st
March 2015, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information annexed thereto, in which
the following are incorporated:

i. Audited accounts of Punjab National Bank (The Bank),
audited by us, vide our audit report dated May 08,
2015,

ii. Audited accounts of 7 Subsidiaries and 1 associate,
audited by other auditors and

iii. Unaudited accounts of 7 Associates and 1 Joint Venture.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries
viz. (i) PNB Gilts Limited (ii) PNB Housing Finance Limited
(iii) Punjab National Bank (International) Limited (iv) PNB
Investment Services Limited (v) Druk PNB Bank Ltd. (vi) PNB
Principal Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd. and (vii) JSC SB PNB
Kazakastan whose financial statements reflect total assets of
%37239.73 Crores as at 31st March 2015 and total revenues
of 2899.28 Crores for the year then ended. These financial
statements and other financial information have been audited
by their respective auditors whose reports have been furnished
to us and our opinion is based solely on the reports of the said
auditors.

a). The Financial Statements of 5 Regional Rural Banks, 2
Associates and 1 Joint Venture which have not been audited
along with one audited associate contribute ¥184.02 Crore
to PNB group for the year ended 31.03.2015.

b. Ouropinionis based on the Un-audited financial statements
of all Regional Rural Banks, 2 Associates stated in Footnote
(2.2) to note No.2 to Notes to Accounts in Schedule 18 as
well as one audited associate of PNB group.

c. In the absence of full information regarding impact
of difference in accounting policies followed by the
parent, subsidiaries and associates (including RRBs), no
adjustments, have been carried out. Regional Rural Banks
(associates) have not followed Accounting Standard -15
(Revised), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, for certain employees’ benefits but have accounted
for the same on adhoc/pay as you go basis. In like manner,
unrealized profits/ losses resulting from transactions
between the parent and its subsidiaries and the associates, if
any, to the extent of the parent’s interest in the subsidiaries
and associates have not been eliminated. Thus, the effect
on profit for the year and other consequential effects could
not be ascertained.



4. w9 B0 2 9 3 ¥ U MU AR wa & onfi g9 gfud
& for diuel Tqe wared R wafha faadie foeror oo wrde
I TETRR GEIE R S (WA foeRer um wreedt)
T@IHT AFE -21 H U & T®Y qf ohEl HHdh- 23
(Tafrd foero o § gearh et § few & o) it
qReT Rofd Sk w1 ordensi % FTER d9R fey g |

forfra forawuit & For e T Ah

5. 3 TafRd foxia foeror S & FeuA ol MO € IR 3R yeeH
BN Seehll fafee el s, 1949 &t ¥R 29 & WEHH &
STTHR TR 37er foriia foeruil iR el & Hoiu o o faia
oAl & SMUR T a0 Gl R sSehebrt fafzm aifufam, 1949 1
T ST & B ‘H F ‘@ ® ST eIk faaR-fomed
Fh IR R T R | A feria foeRel aRdE @ SR
GEIM g ST 1] oREiehl HFehi shi STIeHT hid € | 39 S
T foi foero St Fewul e foeru, =R Uraet ste 9% %
R B, U G €, IR h 9 Gelferd S1idien e % e,
fesTe 3R @] e it |

AETIereht T ST

6. TAN TFE 37 foor0l 99 W AR g1 &I T <@l ThE &
YR R Td Fhe H dF € | 80 TERYE AF ALs
THREIEH % sfed g I ol Wa W S AEHl &
HTER S@dien w1 ¢ | A " el w § R ew Afaw
AR 1 ST Y SR eH el TIE 1 S
qen 391 FToureT 38 YRR R fr 7 faciia foeromsi & Hay
o o gyfua envarad faet S for s g Ffe e ?

7. Th ol e § SEAE Wi ded € fe facde e
o H Sfeafad TREN SR TR & aR § Wied W R
WM € | = wifates ofen T % e W ST g 8
o facia faaor v & TTed oA, 9% o ¥EeE! & SR
3o ofe % SR e A S e e
SR A T S S S e ST
1 fesom &0 & fau o e foxia foero o &t 3faa
TG q1 S ki GA @ Hey e e ®fEem
T ® | o T § g ofen A w1 STgE ® ot
Yeud §N fRA T oRal STgEMi & difehehar, WY & fawia
IR 1 Tl AR T oAt ot fafed € |

8. &4 favarg @ fF o wden @ied, s w9 W@ g €, TR
AfHT R SMUR 9GH w6 % foa waia iR Suges @ |

arfiraa

9. THR NI 1 T o qdien iR 31 o wierhl 1 7ol 1o
formdita foeon w ol &k @ @0 2 § § 7 sufiEl @ik
el 1 o foaia goa1 i 3@d g iR g9’ Hafam
TR 3R T & T T % SER e d i 1 °:
. THfHd qorTA 3R Iq @il ufed fewforar weh qof den

Sfea oo @ g gt srewass faeror @3 @ € eik

184

4. Subject to our observations in paragraph 2 to 3 above, we
report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared by the management of PNB Group in accordance with
the requirements of Accounting Standard - 21 (Consolidated
Financial Statements) and Accounting Standard — 23 (Accounting
for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and the requirements of the Reserve Bank of India.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

5. These Consolidated Financial Statements are the responsibility
of the Bank’s management and have been prepared by the
management on the basis of separate financial statements
and other financial information regarding components, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and to discuss the information as may be
necessary to conform to Form ‘A & B’ respectively of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949. These financial
statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

6. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

7. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amount and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend upon the auditor’s
judgment including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial misstatements whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
auditalsoincludesevaluatingthe appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

8. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion:

9. Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements and other financial
information of the Subsidiaries, and Associates as referred in
Para 2 above, and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that:

a) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, read with the notes
thereon is a full and fair Balance Sheet containing all



IE ARG H W Wi a@rRd fag & STI®Y 39
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T TR Te THIfgued T SRR
THARTT 101794859, LEEUICICICON THARTT 009907TH

THARTET 009907TT
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I H. 049357, I . 074392, TS H. 092257

fedia : 08.05.2015
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the necessary particulars, is properly drawn up so as
to exhibit a true and fair view of state of affairs of the
PNB Group as at 31st March, 2015 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in India;

The Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, read with the
notes thereon shows a true balance of Profit in the PNB
Group, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India, for the year ended on that date; and

The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement gives a true and
fair view of the cash flows of the PNB Group for the year
ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

10. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been

drawn up in Form’A’ and 'B’ respectively of the Third Schedule
to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Profit and

Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement of the PNB Group
comply with the applicable Accounting Standards.

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of For and on behalf of

K. N. Gutgutia & Co.  CVK & Associates Ramesh Kapoor& Co.
Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
FRN 304153E FRN 101745W FRN 001477N

B R Goyal A K Pradhan Ramesh Kapoor
Partner Partner Partner

M No. 012172 M No.032156 M No. 080725

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Chhajed & Doshi R. Devendra Kumar & Hem Sandeep& Co.
Chartered Accountants Associates Chartered Accountants
FRN 101794W Chartered Accountants FRN 009907N

FRN 009907N

M P Chhajed Neeraj Golas Manish Gupta
Partner Partner Partner
M No. 049357 M No. 074392 M No. 092257

Date: 8th May 2015
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure - 1

PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK
Head Office: 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi 110607

DECLARATION
(By the Candidate)
(Refer Regulation 65 of the Regulations)
I, son/daughter/wife of Shri. , a
resident of
hereby confirm that
a) | am a shareholder holding equity shares of Bank, as on Friday, the 22.05.2015, i.e. the Cut-off date for nominating

and contesting in the elections; and

b) | have special knowledge or practical experience* in (i) Agriculture and Rural Economy, (ii) Banking, (iii) Co-operation,
(iv) Economics, (v) Finance, (vi) Law, (vii) Small Scale Industry or (special knowledge of
an practical experience of which in the opinion of Reserve Bank of India would be useful to the Bank) and | represent the interest
of Depositors or Farmers, Workers and Artisans, in terms of sub section 3A of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 and as an evidence thereof | submit herewith the relevant testimonials; and

c) | accept the nominations numbered from to , and
d) I am willing to stand for the election as Director of Punjab National Bank, and

e) | am not disqualified from being a Director of the Bank under the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, The Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, the Nationalised Banks (Management and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme, 1970 and the Punjab National Bank (Shares and Meetings) Regulations, 2000, RBI Notification — DBOD
No. BC. No.46 & 47/29-39.001/2007-08 dated 1.11.2007 and DBOD NO. BC.N0.95/29.39.001/2010-11 dated 23.5.2011,
Department of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Government of India letter no. F. No. 16/83/2013 — BOI dated 03.09.2013
and extant guidelines for selection of part time Non-Official Director vide letter No. 16/17/2010-BOI dated 13.10.2011 as on
01.06.2011, amendment dated 01.04.2015 and subsequent amendments thereto and

f) I neither hold any office of profit nor I am an employee of any nationalised Bank or State Bank of India constituted under sub-
section (1) of Section 3 of the State Bank of India Act, 1955 or any subsidiary bank as defined in Section 3 of the State Bank of
India ( Subsidiary Banks) Act, 1959 and

g) | enclose my personal details which are to the best of my knowledge and belief is true and complete and

h) 1 undertake to keep the Bank informed, as soon as possible, of events, if any, which take place subsequent to this declaration
which are relevant to the information provided hereto and to execute the Deed of Covenants upon my election as a Director of
the Bank.

Signature

Name

Number of Shares
Regd. Folio/DPID-CLID
Place

Date

The above declaration was signed before me
Signature with Seal and
Name of the attesting official

Note: The declaration must be signed by the Candidate before a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances, or other
Gazetted Officer or an Officer of Reserve Bank of India or Punjab National Bank or any other Nationalised Bank.

* Delete whichever is not applicable
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Annexure - 2

PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK
Head Office: 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi 110607

NOMINATION FORM

(by the Shareholder)
(Refer Regulation 65(d) of the Regulations)
To

The Managing Director/Executive Director,
PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK,

7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place,

New Delhi 110607

Dear Sir,
Nomination for Election of a Director
With reference to your Notice dated 12/05/2015, | a shareholder of Punjab National Bank,
holding equity shares of ¥ 2/- each on 22.05.2015 do hereby nominate Shri/Smt
son/daughter/wife of Shri residing at

for being elected as a Director of Punjab National Bank representing the shareholders of the Bank as provided in Section 9 (3) (i) of
the Banking Companies (Acquisition & Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders to
be held on 30.06.2015.

Signature

Name

Number of Shares
Regd. Folio/DPID-CLID
Place

Date

Notes :
1. In case nomination is made by a Body Corporate, the nomination form should be accompanied by a certified true copy of the
resolution passed by the Board of Directors under the signature of the Chairman of the meeting at which it was passed.

2. Signatures of the shareholders nominating the candidates should match with the specimen signatures available with Share
Transfer Agent of the Bank.

3. If any of the columns above is left blank or the particulars are found to be incorrect, the nomination is liable to be rejected.



arftfes Rard

Annual Report 2014-15

3y - 3
TSE 9 Sk
YH HETAd : 7, HETTS S w9, 8 fGeell, 110607
SHfRATd Gl
(e 2015 =t fearfq STgER Herehl |fed)
TeIen GRT SO T qeA9H
I YTITT ohT ST faeor
ED T W (T2 AT H)
kel Sfafer
T Siferer A
i Hafed e T ST
. T Tl
= ECCIRREG

e e RSN AATEA TR (SSegA/AEEd)

Sl SR sfafrm & sidta Tl e S SR e |idmd o
9 TF qar
El TG I T S9E (SR I (SUHE T A e SHaT)
arfaf@e, 1970 =t 9/ 9 (3T)E
Ll qF & FRYUF-T5 ¥ Hafud o7 &1 SHEH
1. TeT9t % Wt s ferewur
* ¥& & W fee off w1 § wEg R, 9 8 @, F1 @

(Fe eAfafrem, 2013 1 &R 2 @)

EC| e Heenstt w1 g, A wE T, S ¥ feqes gwen s @
(et erfafam, 2013 1 9T 184 <©)

T e geene w e, T gemeht @ Swert faftee sifufem,
1949 T g 5 (T %) & o1 & TR F meaye! feq afa
HE oIl G S € | (W Td wieer)

el Fop & T T 9% FRyE Hed 1 99 § S| W R (39
sty w1 =R < f| SR o SH UE W ®) |

. IHH gN AL SHEHEER - || (@) o () | gune wh
weeneti grn fafa we TR-fafy gfaurd fsme 58 w9 sem
@R

= T O, 9% HE &, el IHRAR el SRR - || (T) T

(M) ¥ <o TR Heene g USE Heee o s1eEn o TRl Sk
 oft T wo glaene % Geu ¥ <ehhal @1 A1 Tehhdl @I 2
1. HTHTR STl ot Rens

ED Gafaa SAETE SUAfsEan




PUNJAB NATIONAL BANK
Head Office: 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi 110607
Annexure -3
PERSONAL INFORMATION
(With enclosures as appropriate ason ____,2015)

DECLARATION AND UNDERTAKING

l. Personal details of the candidate

Name in Full (in block capital letters)
Date of Birth

Educational Qualifications

Relevant Background and experience

MO0 |[®| >

Permanent Address

F Present Address

G E-mail address/ Telephone Number (Landline/Mobile)

H Permanent Account Number (under the Income Tax Act)
and Name and address of Income Tax Circle

| Relevant Knowledge & Experience
(Refer Section 9(3-A) of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970)

J Any other information relevant to Directorship of the Bank.

1. Relevant Relationships of the candidate

A List of Relatives, if any, who are connected with the Bank in
any way (Refer Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013)

B List of entities if any in which he/she is considered as being
interested (Refer Section 184 of the Companies Act, 2013).

C List of entities in which he/she is considered as holding sub-
stantial interest within the meaning of Section 5(ne) of the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 proposed & existing.

D Name of Bank in which he/she is or has been a member of the
board (giving details of period during such office was held)

E Fund and non-fund facilities, if any, presently being enjoyed
by him/her and/or by entities listed in II(B) and (C) above
from the Bank.

F Cases, if any, where the candidate or entities listed at Il (B)
& (C) above are in default or have been in default in the past
in respect of credit facilities obtained from the Bank or any
other bank.

I1l. Records of Professional Achievements

A Professional achievements relevant
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Proceedings, if any, against the Candidate

If the candidate is a member of a professional association/
body, details of disciplinary action, if any, pending or com-
menced or resulting in conviction in the past against him/
her or whether he/she has been banned from entry of at any
profession/occupation at any time.

Details of prosecution, if any, pending or commenced or
resulting in conviction in the past against the director and/
or against any of the entities listed in 1l (B) & (C), above for
violation of economic laws and regulations.

Details of criminal prosecution, if any, pending or com-
menced or resulting in conviction in the past against the
candidate.

Whether the candidate attracts any of the disqualifications
envisaged under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Has the candidate or any of the entities at Il (B) & (C) above
been subject to any investigation at the instance of Government
department or agency?

Has the candidate at any time been found guilty of violation
of rules/regulations/legislative requirements by customs/ ex-
cise/income tax/foreign exchange/other revenue authorities;
if so give particulars.

Whether the candidate/director had at any time come to the
adverse notice of a regulator such as SEBI, IRDA, DCA etc.
(Though it shall not be necessary for a candidate to mention
in the column about orders and findings made by regulators
which have been later on reversed / set aside in toto, it would
be necessary to make a mention of the same, in case the rever-
sal / setting aside is on technical reasons like limitation or lack
of jurisdiction, etc. and not on merit. If the order of the regula-
tor is temporarily stayed and the appellate / court proceedings
are pending, the same also should be mentioned).

Any other explanation / information in regard to items | to
11l and other information considered relevant for judging
‘fit and proper’.

Undertaking

I confirm that the above information is to the best of my knowledge and belief true and complete. | undertake to keep the bank fully
informed, as soon as possible, of all events which take place subsequent to my appointment which are relevant to the information
provided above.

| also undertake to execute the deed of covenant required to be executed by all directors of the Bank.

Place :

Date :

Signature of the Candidate
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Signature Signature Signature

4 - 3

Member Name of Member Name of Member

|
- —

!
]
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Punjab National Bank
Head Office: 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi — 110 607

FORM ‘B’

FORM OF PROXY
(To be filled in and signed by the shareholder)

Regd. Folio No.

(If not Dematerialised)
DPID No.

Client ID No.

(If Dematerialised)

No of shares.

I/We, resident/s of in the district of
in the state of being a shareholder/s of Punjab National Bank, hereby appoint Shri/Smt.
resident of inthedistrict of inthe state of
orfailing him/her, Shri/Smt. resident of
in the district of in the state of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Bank to be
held on 30.06.2015, at 10.00 a.m., at Punjab National Bank Auditorium, Central Staff College, 8, Underhill Road, Civil Lines,
Delhi — 110054 and at any adjournment thereof.

Revenue
Stamp

Signed this day of 2015. Signature of soleffirst holder

Signature of the Proxy

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM
1. No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless,

a. in case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her or by his/her attorney duly authorised in writing,

b. in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the Register of Shareholders or by his/her attorney
duly authorised in writing,

c. in the case of a body corporate, it is signed by its officer and executed under its Common Seal, if any, or otherwise signed
by its attorney duly authorised in writing.

d. shall be in the Form B and duly stamped.

2. An instrument of proxy, in which the thumb impression of the shareholder is affixed, will be valid provided it is attested by a
Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or any other Government Gazetted Officer or an officer of Punjab
National Bank.
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The proxy together with:
a. the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or

b. a copy of that power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, should be deposited at the Share
Department, Finance Division, Punjab National Bank, Head Office : 5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi — 110 001 not later than
FOUR DAYS before the date of the Annual General Meeting, i.e. on or before closing hours i.e. 5.00 p.m. of 25.06.2015.

In case the relevant power of attorney is already registered with Punjab National Bank or its Share Transfer Agent, the registration
number of the power of attorney and the date of such registration may be mentioned.

An instrument of proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.

In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall be
executed.

The shareholder who has executed an instrument of proxy shall not be entitled to vote in person at the meeting to which such
instrument relates.

The proxy so appointed shall not have any right to speak at the meeting but such proxy can attend & vote on behalf of the
grantor.

No person shall be appointed as duly authorised representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Punjab National
Bank.
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TSNa SIDISIS] A L.‘ punjab national bank

swere) vy weltas ! .. the name you can BANK upon !

Head Office : 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi — 110 607

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, TUESDAY, THE 30™ JUNE, 2015 AT 10.00 A.M.
AT PNB AUDITORIUM, CENTRAL STAFF COLLEGE, 8, UNDERHILL ROAD, CIVIL LINES, DELHI-54

ATTENDANCE SLIP (To be surrendered at the time of registration of attendance)

NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS REGD.FOLIO/DPID&CLIENT ID No. Number of Shares
(Member/Proxy/Authorised Representative)

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy/Authorised Representative

. —

TSna SIDISISl AP L.‘ punjab national bank

yerer vy weftas ! .. the name you can BANK upon !

Head Office : 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi — 110 607

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, TUESDAY, THE 30™ JUNE, 2015 AT 10.00 A.M.
ENTRY PASS(To be retained throughout the meeting)

NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS REGD.FOLIO/DPID&CLIENT ID No. Number of Shares
(Member/Proxy/Authorised Representative)

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy/Authorised Representative

Shareholders/Proxy holders/Authorised Representatives are requested to produce Attendance-slip-cum-Entry pass duly signed, for admission to
the meeting hall. The Entry pass portion will be handed back to the shareholders/Proxy holders/Authorised Representatives, who should retain
it till the conclusion of the meeting. The Ballot Paper Pass portion shall be surrendered to obtain Ballot Paper. Under no circumstances, any
duplicate Attendance slip-cum-Entry pass will be issued.

Tsna Sigieis A L.‘ punjab national bank

swere) vy weltas ! .. the name you can BANK upon !

Head Office : 7, Bhikhaiji Cama Place, New Delhi — 110 607

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, TUESDAY, THE 30™ JUNE, 2015 AT 10.00 A.M.

BALLOT PAPER PASS
(To be surrendered at the Polling Counters to obtain Ballot Paper)

NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS REGD.FOLIO/DPID&CLIENT ID No. Number of Shares
(Member/Proxy/Authorised Representative)

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy/Authorised Representative
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